CITY OF KERRVILLE

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
800 Junction Highway
Kerrville, Texas 78028

830-257-8000 / www.kerrvilletx.gov

RESOLUTION OF COMMENDATION

WHEREAS, TOM ANTHONY has served as a member of the Food Service

Advisory Board with the date of service beginning April 10, 2007;
and

WHEREAS, TOM ANTHONY has served faithfully and dutifully on said
board,;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF KERRVILLE, KERR COUNTY, TEXAS:

That TOM ANTHONY be recognized for outstanding service as
a member of the Food Service Advisory Board, and that on
behalf of the citizens of Kerrville, as well as for ourselves
individually, we wish to express our sincere appreciation for
contributions to the city and the community.

e
PASSED AND APPROVED, this the _& day of M , 2010.

ATTEST:

Bl Lo e

Brenda G. er)é City S(ﬁfetary Todd A. Bock, Mayor

Bruce Motheral Mayor Pro Tem

Stacie Ke® le, Cauncilmember
i"‘j
/- e

T. Scott Gross, Councilmember

Chu ek plarmeor

Chuck Coleman, Councilmember




@’_ CITY OF KERRVILLE

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
800 Junction Highway
Kerrville, Texas 78028

830-257-8000 / www.kerrvilletx.gov

RESOLUTION OF COMMENDATION

WHEREAS, ROSE MARIE JUNDZILO has served as a member of the Food
Service Advisory Board with the date of service beginning '
January 24, 2006; and

WHEREAS, ROSE MARIE JUNDZILO has served faithfully and dutifully on
said board,;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF KERRVILLE, KERR COUNTY, TEXAS:

That ROSE MARIE JUNDZILO be recognized for outstanding
service as a member of the Food Service Advisory Board, and
that on behalf of the citizens of Kerrville, as well as for ourselves
individually, we wish to express our sincere appreciation for
contributions to the city and the community.

PASSED AND APPROVED, this the &%ay of 12010,

ATTEST: L :
BM(% 4. //)Lm'f) %
Brenda G. Cr‘é/liq City %Jcretary T9dd A Bock,}xfyg_[\ |

- :-‘ . &,

. .-' %

'-'. b .." :
G T

Bruce Motheral, Mayor Pro Tem

SN

Stacie Keeble, Councilmember

Tt

T. Scott Gross, Councilmember

Chuck Coleman, Councilmember




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Recognition and commendation of Chief John Young's graduation
from the 239" Session of the FBI National Academy

FOR AGENDA OF: January 26, 2010 DATE SUBMITTED: January 18, 2010
SUBMITTED BY: Todd Parton % CLEARANCES:

EXHIBITS: Graduation Certificate

AGENDA MAILED TO:

APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER:

Expenditure Current Balance Amount Account
Required: in Account: Budgeted: Number:
$ $ $

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO:

APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES:

SUMMARY STATEMENT

Mayor Todd Bock and the City Council of Kerrville, Texas would like to congratulate
Police Chief John Young on his December 11, 2009 graduation from the 239"
Session of the FBI National Academy. Chief Young was one of 266 students who
participated in the 11 week course that serves to promote professional development
of Law Enforcement Leaders. He received a yellow brick, only given to those who
are successful in completing the Yellow Brick Road Fitness Challenge, an obstacle
course created by the Marines.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

None.




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
SUBJECT: Appreciation to Volunteer Fire Departments for Assistance on
January 7, 2010, Lakeside Apartments Fire

FOR AGENDA OF: January 26, 2010 DATE SUBMITTED: January 18, 2010

SUBMITTED BY: Robert Ojeda CLEARANCES:

Fire Chief
EXHIBITS: None
AGENDA MAILED TO:
APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER: 7/
Expenditure Current Balance  Amount “T Account
Required: in Account: Budgeted: Number:
$ $ $
PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO:

REVIEWED BY THE DIRECTOR OR FINANCE:

SUMMARY STATEMENT

On January 7, 2010, a fire at the Lakeside Apartments on Plaza Drive involved eight
apartment units and displaced eleven people. Structural damage was extensive in
four of the eight apartments and water, smoke and firefighter access damage was
prevalent in the other four apartments. Volunteer firefighters from Center Point,
Comfort, Ingram, and Turtle Creek assisted Kerrville firefighters with the blaze and
provided other necessary support. Fredericksburg Fire Department was on standby
in the event their assistance was needed. There were no reports of civilian or
firefighter injuries which is amazing due to the size of the structure fire, the number
of personnel on the scene and the cold and windy weather conditions. No doubt, the
support provided by the volunteer fire departments played a huge part in the success
of the operation, as well as allowing Kerrville to keep a reserve of personnel
available to respond to other parts of the city.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Chief Robert Ojeda of the Kerrville Fire Department wishes to express his sincere
appreciation to the volunteer firefighters from the Center Point, Comfort, Ingram,
Turtle Creek and Fredericksburg Fire Departments for their assistance during the
January 7, 2010, fire at the Lakeside Apartments on Plaza Drive.



CITY OF KERRVILLE

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL
800 Junction Highway
Kerrville, Texas 78028

830-257-8000 / www.kerrvilletx.gov

PROCLAMATION

WHEREAS, Fire Station No. 2 has been relocated from 407 Harper Road to
1750 Goat Creek Road; and

WHEREAS, The former Fire Station No. 2 was dedicated to Captain Clifford
E. Blackwell, whose untimely death occurred during the line of
duty on October 20, 1967; and

WHEREAS, the Kerrville Fire Department desires to perpetuate the name
and memory of Captain Clifford E. Blackwell, in honor of his
dedication to his fourteen-year career as a professional
firefighter.

NOW, THEREFORE, |, Todd A. Bock, Mayor of the City of Kerrville, Texas, do
hereby honor Captain Clifford E. Blackwell and call upon the citizens of the City of
Kerrville to join in re-dedicating Fire Station 2 as the Blackwell Fire Station.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF,

| have hereunto set my hand and
caused the Seal of the City of
Kerrville to be affixed hereto,

the _  day of , 2010.

Todd A. Bock, Mayor




BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Resolution Ordering City Council General Election on May 8, 2010
FOR AGENDA OF: January 26, 2010 DATE SUBMITTED: January 15, 2010

SUBMITTED BY: Brenda Craig, CLEARANCES: Todd Parton, City Manager
City Secretary @Q/ Mike Hayes, City Attorney

EXHIBITS: Resolution and Election Calendar

AGENDA MAILED TO:
APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER: 07/

Expenditure Current Balance Amount Account
Required: in Account: Budgeted: Number:
$ $ $

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO:
APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY DIRECTOR OF FINANCE:

SUMMARY STATEMENT

The attached resolution orders a General Election to be held on Saturday May 8, 2010,
to elect a mayor and two councilmembers whose terms will expire as follows:

Mayor — Todd A. Bock
Councilmember Place Three — T. Scott Gross
Councilmember Place Four — Chuck Coleman.

The period for filing an application for a place on the ballot is February 6 through March
8, 2010; write-in candidates may file through March 15, 2010.

Approval of the resolution will establish the period of early voting by personal
appearance and establish the date and time for canvassing the election. The city
secretary recommends the following:

1. Early voting by personal appearance be held April 26 through May 4 at the Cailloux
City Center at 910 Main Street as follows:

- Monday, April 26: 7 a.m.to 7 p.m.

- Tuesday, April 27: 7a.m.to 7 p.m.

- Wednesday, April 28 through Tuesday, May 4: 8 am. to 5 p.m.

2. Election Day is Saturday, May 8, 2010, from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. at the Cailloux
City Center at 910 Main Street.

3. Official canvass of the election be held on May 18, 2010, at 10:00 a.m.



RECOMMENDED ACTION

The city secretary recommends approval of the resolution calling the General Election
on May 8, 2010, establishing the period and location of early voting by personal
appearance, and establishing the date and time for the official canvass of the May 8,
2010 General Election for May 18, 2010, at 10:00 a.m.




CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
RESOLUTION NO. -2010

A RESOLUTION ORDERING THAT A GENERAL ELECTION BE HELD
ON MAY 8, 2010, FOR THE ELECTION OF MAYOR AND TWO CITY
COUNCILMEMBERS

WHEREAS, Section 2.03 of the City Charter establishes that terms of offices for
Councilmembers shall be for two years and until their successor is elected; and

WHEREAS, the term of office for Mayor, Councilmember Place Three, and Councilmember
Place Four, will expire in May 2010; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Kerrville, Texas, finds it to be in the public
interest to call a General Election to be held on May 8, 2010, for the election of persons to the offices
of Mayor, Councilmember Place Three, and Councilmember Place Four;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF KERRVILLE, KERR COUNTY, TEXAS:

SECTION ONE. A General Election will be held in the City of Kerrville, Texas, on the 8th
day of May 2010 for the purpose of electing people to the offices of Mayor, Councilmember Place
Three, and Councilmember Place Four for the City of Kerrville, Texas.

SECTION TWO. The method of voting shall be by the Hart Voting System, which is an
electronic touch screen voting system.

SECTION THREE. The municipal polling place for such election shall be the Kathleen C.
Cailloux City Center of the Performing Arts, 910 Main Street, Kerrville, Texas, 78028.

SECTION FOUR. On election day, the polls shall be open from 7:00 AM to 7:00 pM. Early
voting shall be conducted at the Kathleen C. Cailloux City Center of the Performing Arts, 910 Main
Street, Kerrville, Texas, 78028, April 26™ through May 4™ as follows:

Monday, April 26, 2010 7:00 AM to 7:00 pm
Tuesday, April 27, 2010 7:00 AM to 7:00 PM
Wednesday, April 28, 2010 through

Tuesday, May 4, 2010  8:00 AM to 5:00 PM

SECTION FIVE. Applications for ballot by mail shall be addressed to: Brenda G. Craig,
Early Voting Clerk, 800 Junction Highway, Kerrville, Texas, 78028, and must be received no later
than 5:00 PM on April 30, 2010.




SECTION SIX. City Council will conduct the official canvass of the election at a special
meeting on Tuesday, May 18, 2010, beginning at 10:00 AM in the Council Chambers, City Hall, 800
Junction Highway.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON this the day of » A.D,, 2010.

Todd A. Bock, Mayor

ATTEST:

Brenda G. Craig, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

9y e
SN/ A
/,/%////" ' /%A\

Michael C. Hayes, C{ty Attorney

LALEGAL\CITY SECRETARV\ELECTION\MAY 200NELECTION CALLING 2010.DOC

[\




CITY COUNCIL ELECTION CALENDAR

This memo gives the dates for the various actions connected with the regular city election to
be held on May 8, 2010, and lists the councilmembers whose terms are expiring. Please mark
these dates on your calendar:

Feb. 6 — Candidate may file application for place on ballot from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00

Mar. 8 p.m. Monday-Friday The name of the candidate and place for which he is
filing will be affixed by the city secretary at the time of issuance of a petition
form.

Feb. 6— Write-In candidate may file to declare candidacy at city secretary’s office

Mar. 15 8:00 a.m.-5:00 p.m. Monday-Friday

Mar. 11 City secretary conducts drawing for order of names on ballot at 3:00 p.m.

Apr. 8 Last day for submitting voter registration application or for requesting
transfer of registration in time to vote in the election.

Apr. 26— | Early voting by personal appearance at Cailloux City Center at 910 Main
May 4 Street on April 26 through May 4:

- Monday, April 26: 7a.m.to 7 p.m.

- Tuesday, April 27: 7a.m.to 7 p.m.

- Wednesday, April 28 through Tuesday, May 4: 8 a.m. to 5 p.m.

May 8 ELECTION DAY, voting from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. at Cailloux City Center,
at 910 Main Street. Early voting results will be available at the Kerr County
Courthouse after 7:00 p.m., and the unofficial tabulation results of election
day will be available after 7:30 p.m. at the courthouse.

May 18 City council meeting at 10:00 a.m. to officially canvass election returns by
city council, certificates of election issued, oaths of office given, newly
elected officers assume duties, and mayor pro tem may be elected by city
council.

May 25 Regular city council meeting at 6:00 p.m. at city hall, 800 Junction Highway.

Councilmembers whose terms are expiring are:

Mayor — Todd A. Bock
Place Three — T. Scott Gross
Place Four — Chuck Coleman




NEGOCIO DEL AYNTAMIENTO
CUIDAD DE KERRVILLE, TEXAS

TEMA: Eleccién general del Ayuntamiento de la resolucién que ordena el 8 de Mayo de 2010

FECHA DE LA AGENDA: Enero 26, 2010 LA FECHA SOMETIO: January 15, 2010

SOMETIDO: Brenda Craig, /\5& SEPARACIONES:Todd Parton,
Secretaria de la ciudad Administrador de la ciudad
Mike Hayes,
Abogado de la ciudad

OBJETOS EXPUESTOS: Calendario de la resolucién y de la eleccion

Declaracién sumaria

La resolution de este documento es mandatoria para la election General que se llevara
a cabo el Sabado 8 del mes de Mayo del 2010. Para elejir uno alcalde, dos miembros
del consejo quienes sus terminos terminaran, ellos son:

Alcalde — Todd A. Bock
Miembro del consejo Plazo Tres — T. Scott Gross
Miembro del Consejo Plazo Cuatro — Chuck Coleman

El periodo para llenar la application para un lugar en la boleta se llevara acabo el 6 de
Frebero hasta el 8 de Marzo, del 2010. '
Los candidatos inscritos pueden applicar hasta el 15 de Marzo del 2010.

La resolution aprobada establecera el periodo del voto temprano personal
Y establecida por la fecha y tiempo para la solicitacion de votos
De elecciones. La Secretaria de la Ciudad recomenda lo siguente:

1. El voto temprano personal comenzara el 26 Abril hasta el dia 4 de Mayo en El
Cailloux Centro Publico obicado en La calle Main numero 910, Horario:

- Lunes, 26 de Abril: 7a.m.to7 p.m.

- Martes, 27 de Abril: 7a.m.to7 p.m.

- Miercoles, 28 de Abril hasta el Martes, 4 de Mayo: 8 a.m.to 5 p.m.

2. El dia electoral sera el Sabado 8 del mes de Mayo, de las 7:00 a.m hasta alas 7:00
p.m. en El Cailloux Centro Publico obicado en La calle Main numero 910.

3. La eleccion official se llevara acabo el 18 de Mayo del 2010, alas 10:00 a.m

ACTION RECOMENDADA

La Secretaria de la Ciudad recomenda la aprovanza de la eleccion general se lleve
acabo el 8 de Mayo del 2010, para establecer el periodo del voto temprano personal. Y
establecer la fecha y hora para la eleccion general el 8 de Mayo del 2010, alas 10:00
a.m.




CIUDAD DE KERRVILLE, TEXAS
RESOLUCION NO. -2010

UNA RESOLUCION QUE PIDE QUE UNA ELECCION
GENERAL ESTE DADO EL 8 DE MAYO DE 2010, PARA LA
ELECCION UNO ALCALDE, DOS MIEMBROS DEL
AYUNTAMIENTO DE LA CIUDAD.

CONSIDERANDO QUE la seccion 2.03 de la Carta de la Ciudad establece que los
términos de los cargos para los miembros del ayuntamiento serdn por dos afios y hasta que se
elige a su sucesor; y

CONSIDERANDO QUE ¢l término de los cargos uno Alcalde, Miembro del
Ayuntamiento del Lugar Tres y Miembro del Ayuntamiento Lugar Cuatro, expirard Mayo de
2010;y

CONSIDERANDO QUE el Ayuntamiento de la Ciudad de Kerrville, Texas, lo
encuentra estar en el interés publico para llamar una eleccion general que se tendra el 8 de Mayo
de 2010, para la eleccion de personas a los cargos, uno Alcalde, el Miembro del Ayuntamiento
Lugar Tres, y el Miembro del Ayuntamiento Lugar Cuatro;

AHORA, POR LO TANTO, SEA RESUELTO POR EL AYUNTAMIENTO DE LA
CIUDAD DE KERRVILLE, CONDADO DE KERR, TEXAS:

SECCION UNA. Una eleccién general se tendra en la Ciudad de Kerrville, Texas, el 8
mo dia de Mayo de 2010 con el propdsito de elegir a gente a los cargos del Miembro del
Ayuntamiento Lugar Tres y del Miembro del Ayuntamiento Lugar Cuatro para la Ciudad de
Kerrville, Texas.

SECCION DOS. El método de votacién estara por el Sistema de Votacién de Hart, que
es un sistema de votacion con una pantalla de tacto electronica.

SECCION TRES. El sitio de votacion para tal eleccion sera el Kathleen C. Cailloux City
Center of the Performing Arts, 910 Calle Main, Kerrville, Texas, 78028.

SECCION CUATRO. El dia de la eleccion, los sitios de votacion estaran abiertos a
partir de las 7:00 A.M. hasta las 7:00 P.M.. La votacion temprana se tomara lugar en el Kathleen
C. Cailloux City Center of the Performing Arts, 910 Calle Main, Kerrville, Texas, 78028, del 26
de Abril al primero de Mayo, y el 4 de Mayo:

- Lunes, 26 de Abril: 7 a.m.to 7 p.m.
- Martes, 27 de Abril: 7 a.m. to 7 p.m.
- Miercoles, 28 de Abril hasta el Martes, 4 de Mayo: 8 am. to 5 p.m.

SECCION CINCO. Las solicitudes para una balota por correo se dirigiran a: Brenda G.
Craig, Early Voting Clerk (1a oficinista encargada de la votacién temprana), 800 Junction




Highway, Kerrville, Texas, 78020, y se debe recibir no mas adelante de las 5:00 P.M. el 30 de
Abril de 2010.

SECCION SEIS. El Ayuntamiento de la Ciudad conducira el sondeo oficial de la
eleccion en una reunion especial el martes, el 18 de Mayo de 2010, empezando a 1as10:00 A.M.
en los Compartimientos del Ayuntamiento, City Hall, 800 Junction Highway.

ACCEPTADA Y APROBADA ¢l dia de , A.D., 2010.

Todd A. Bock, Alcalde

ATTESTIGUADO:

Brenda G. Craig, Oficinista Municipal

APROBADA A PARTIR DE LA FORMA:

Michael C. Hayes, Abogado Municipal




CALENDARIO DE LA ELECCION DEL AYUNTAMIENTO DE LA CIUDAD

Este memorandum da las fechas para las varias acciones conectadas con la eleccion
municipal que se tiene lugar el 8 de mayo, 2010 y lista los concejales cuyos periodos se

acabaran.
6 Feb. — El candidato puede registrar su aplicacion para una posicion en la balota
8 Mar. desde las 8 a.m. hasta las 5 p.m. Lunes-Viernes. El nombre del candidato
y la posicién para que registre sera afiadido por el Oficinista de la Ciudad a
la emision de una forma de peticion.
6 Feb. - Un candidato no oficial (afiadido por escrito) puede registrar para declarar
15 Mar. su candidatura en la oficina del Oficinista de la Ciudad paraalas 8 am.-5
p.m. Lunes — Viernes.
11 Mar. El Oficinista de la Ciudad hace un sorteo para la 6rden de los nombres en
la balota a las 3 p.m.
8 Abr. El dltimo dia para entregar la aplicacion para la inscripcion de votante
0 para pedir cambio de inscripcién con tiempo para votar en la eleccion.
26 Abr.— | Votar temprano por aparecer personalmente al Calilloux City Center en 910
4 Mayo Main Street de la noche y el 26 abr. 4 de mayo:
- Lunes, 26 de Abril: 7a.m.to7 p.m.
- Martes, 27 de Abril: 7a.m.to7 p.m.
- Miercoles, 28 de Abril hasta el Martes, 4 de Mayo 8 a.m. to 5 p.m.
8 Mayo DIA DE ELECCION, se puede votar desde las 7 a.m. hasta las 7 p.m. en
Cailloux City Center, en 910 Main Street. Los resultados del voto temprano
seran disponibles en la corte del condado de Kerr alas 7 p.m., y los
resultados del dia de la eleccion seran disponibles a eso de las 7:30 p.m.
poco mas tarde en la corte.
18 Mayo La reunién del Ayuntamiento de la Ciudad a las 10 a.m. para examinar
oficialmente los resultados de la eleccién por el Ayuntamiento de la
Ciudad, entregar certificados de la eleccién, dar juramentos de oficio, los
delegados recientemente eligidos asumen el cargo, y escoger el alcalde
pro tem elegido por el Ayuntamiento.
25 Mayo La reunion regular del Ayuntamiento de la Cuidad a las 6:00 p.m. ala

oficina del ayuntamiento, 800 Junction Highway.

Los concejales cuyos periodos se acabaran son:

Alcalde — Todd A. Bock
Lugar Tres — T. Scott Gross
Lugar Cuatro — Chuck Coleman




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
SUBJECT: Authorization for the City Manager to execute a contract with T. F. Harper
for $243,013.00 for the installation of a Spray Park and Storage Building at
Carver Park through the Texas Buy Board and authorize the City Manager
to execute contingency change orders in an amount not to exceed
$6,987.00.

FOR AGENDA OF: January 26, 2010 DATE SUBMITTED: January 18, 2010

SUBMITTED BY: Michael Wellborn™%  CLEARANCES: Kristine Ondrias QQQ-
Director of Engineering Assistant City Manager

Malcolm Matthews

Director of Parks and

Recreation
EXHIBITS: Contract, Conceptual Drawings

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: T.F. Harper
103 Red Bird Lane

Austin, TX. 78745
APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER:

Expenditure Current Balance Amount Account
Required: in Account: Budgeted: Number:
$250,000.00 $250,000.00 $250,000.00 G94

REVIEWED BY THE FINANCE DIRECTOR: W

SUMMARY S'&&TEMENT

In FY 08, the City Council appropriated $30,000 of Parkland Dedication Funds for
improvements to Carver Park. In an effort to better understand the desires of the
community, the Parks and Recreation Department held a public input meeting on June
26, 2008, at the Doyle Community Center to gather information and priorities for
upcoming park improvements. Following the meeting, staff compiled the suggestions
that were identified and prioritized by the community and hired Halff Associates, a
Landscape Architectural firm, to develop four conceptual drawings highlighting the
citizens’ suggestions.

A second public input meeting was held on September 16, 2008, to present the four
conceptual drawings. A brief presentation was given describing the process and steps
involved for improving the park. Following the presentation, the residents reviewed
each of the four conceptual drawings and again prioritized which park amenities and
concept they thought best reflected their vision for improvements resulting in a final site
master plan for Carver Park.




The site master plan for Carver Park was presented to the Parks and Recreation
Advisory Board and it was approved on October 16, 2008. The City Council approved
the plan on November 11, 2008.

Upon approval of the site master plan, staff began to line out improvements for the Park
Land Dedication Funds and the FY09 Bond Funds. On June 25, 2009, the Parks and
Recreation Advisory Board along with staff held a public information meeting at Carver
Park to update the neighborhood on the improvements, further discuss the closing of
Martin Pool, and to fund the construction of a spray park in Carver Park.

Included in the FY10 CIP, the Carver Park Spray Ground was budgeted at $250,000.00,
funded by cost savings from the Martin Pool closure and a low interest loan from the
City of Kerrville Post Closure Landfill Fund. The spray park will operate on a
recirculation system for water conservation purposes, similar to a swimming pool. The
spray park will be covered in the Water Management Plan and will cease operation
during Stages 4 and 5.

Due to the time constraints of being able to have the project completed by the 2010
summer season, and given the specialized nature of spray park materials and
construction, the most efficient procurement method for this project is through the Texas
Buy Board Program.

T. F. Harper and Associates, a Texas based park equipment supplier, is an approved
vendor through the Texas Buy Board Program. They submitted a materials and
installation proposal to the City in the amount of $243,013.00. The timeline for the
project includes delivery and installation of the equipment 12 to 16 weeks after receipt
of the order from the City of Kerrville.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

The Director of Engineering recommends the City Council authorize the City Manager to
execute a contract with T. F. Harper and Associates for the construction of the Spray
Park and Storage Building in the amount of $243,013.00 through the Texas Buy Board
and authorize the City Manager to execute contingency change orders in an amount not
to exceed $6,987.00.




Equipment Purchase and Installation Agreement by and Between the City of
Kerrville and T.F. Harper & Assocaiates L.P.
Carver Park Sprayground

This Agreement, entered into this 27 day of January, 2010 by and between the City of
Kerrville, Texas (“City,”) and T.F. Harper & Associates L.P. ("Contractor") as follows:

I. PARTY ADDRESSES

City:

City of Kerrville

800 Junction Highway
Kerrville, Texas 78028

Contractor:

T.F. Harper & Associates LP
103 Red Bird Lane

Austin, Texas 78745-3122
Thomas F. Harper Partner
512-440-0707 800-976-0107

II. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Agreement between the parties consists of this Agreement, T. F. Harper Quote
Number #TM 141209, associated plans, and warranties and are as fully a part of the
Agreement as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. The Agreement
represents the entire and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes
prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.

III. WORK TO BE PERFORMED

Contractor shall provide all materials, labor, and incidentals necessary to complete the
Carver Park Sprayground project, as per the T.F. Harper Quote #TM 141209 and all
associated plans that are due at the pre-construction meeting. The Contractor shall fully
execute the work described in the Agreement, except to the extent specifically indicated
to be the responsibility of others.

IV. DATE OF COMMENCEMENT, SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION, AND
OPERATIONAL DATE '

a. The date of commencement shall be the effective date of the Agreement which shall
be the date that the City Council authorizes this Agreement.

b. Payment and performance bonds and certificates shall be provided at the pre
construction meeting.




c. The Contractor shall achieve substantial completion within 120 calendar days from:
the date of commencement. Substantial completion shall be defined as the condition of
work performed by the Contractor to allow for project operation.

¢. The project must be operational and staff training to be provided by Contractor by
May 27, 2010, as long as the project start date is on/or before January 27. 2010.
Inclement weather or other delays will be subject to review and approval by the City.

V. CONTRACT SUM
City shall pay the Contractor two hundred forty three thousand thirteen dollars
and no cents Dollars ($243,013.00), pursuant to the payment schedule.

VI. PAYMENTS
a. Progress Payments

i. Based upon applications for payment submitted to the City by the Contractor,
the City shall make progress payments on account of the contract sum to the Contractor
as provided below and elsewhere in the Agreement.

ii. The period covered by each application for payment shall be one calendar month
ending on the last day of the month. Application for payment may be submitted on the
25" day of the month, projecting work through the last day of the calendar month.

iii. City shall submit payment by the City within (15) calendar days after the City
receives the application for payment.

iv. Each application for payment shall be based on the most recent schedule of
values submitted by the Contractor in accordance with the Agreement. The schedule of
values shall allocate the entire contract sum among the various portions of the work. This
schedule shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Contractor’s applications for payment.

v. Applications for payment shall indicate the percentage of completion of each
portion of work as of the end of the period covered by the application for payment.

vi. Subject to other provisions of the Agreement, the amount of each progress
payment shall be computed as follows:

(a) Take that portion of the contract sum properly allocable to completed work
as determined by multiplying the percentage completion of each portion of
the work by the share of the contract sum allocated to that portion of the
work in the schedule of values, less retainage of percent (5%).

(b) Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by
the City; and




(c) Subtract amounts, if any, for which the City has withheld or nullified from
previous applications for payment.

vii. The progress payment amount determined in accordance with (vi) shall be
further modified under the following circumstance:

Add, upon substantial completion of the work, a sum sufficient to increase the
total payments to the full amount of the contract sum, less such amounts as the City shall
determine for incomplete work, retainage applicable to such work and unsettied claims.

b. Final Payment

i. Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the contract sum, shall
be made by the City to the Contractor when the City has provided Contractor written
notification of final acceptance of the project.

ii. The City’s final payment to the Contractor shall be made no later than 15
calendar days after the issuance of the City’s notification of project acceptance.

VII. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Liquidated damages are hereby established for work which is not substantially complete
in the amount of Three Hundred Dollars ($300.00) per each working day after the
substantial completion date identified in Section IV. The City may offset any such
liquidated damages against any sums from time to time due by the City to Contractor, by
written notice. The time for completion shall not be extended except by written
memorandum executed by the Contractor and the City. Contractor shall make written
application to the City not later than seven (7) calendar days after the day, event, or cause
claimed by Contractor to be a delay. Failure to make such written claim within such time
shall result in a waiver by Contractor of an extension based on those particular days,
events, or causes.

The said amount per day is not a penalty but an agreed amount of actual damages to City
which are difficult to calculate. Such damages include loss of staff time, answering
complaints by citizens who have been inconvenienced by the work, City Council time,
loss of use, and other damages difficult to reasonably anticipate or calculate.

VIIL. INDEMNITY

THE CONTRACTOR AGREES TO INDEMNIFY, DEFEND, AND HOLD
HARMLESS THE CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS, AND ALL OF THEIR
RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES FROM ALL SUITS,
ACTIONS, CLAIMS, DAMAGES, PERSONAL INJURIES, LOSSES, PROPERTY
DAMAGES, AND EXPENSES OF ANY CHARACTER WHATSOEVER,
INCLUDING ATTORNEY'S FEES BROUGHT FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY
INJURIES OF DAMAGES RECEIVED OR SUSTAINED BY ANY PERSON OR




PROPERTY ON ACCOUNT OF ANY NEGLIGENT ACT OF THE
CONTRACTOR, THE CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS, OR ANY OF THEIR
RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, REPRESENTATIVES, OR
SUBCONTRACTORS IN THE EXECUTION, SUPERVISION, AND
OPERATIONS GROWING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH
THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER OR NOT THE
ACT OR OMISSION OF THE CITY OR ANY OF THEIR RESPECTIVE
OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, OR AGENTS WAS THE SOLE PROXIMATE
CAUSE OF THE INJURY OR DAMAGE OR A PROXIMATE CAUSE JOINTLY
AND CONCURRENTLY WITH THE NEGLIGENCE OF THE CONTRACTOR
OR ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES, AGENTS, CONTRACTORS, OR
SUBCONTRACTORS, IN THE EXECUTION, SUPERVISION AND
OPERATIONS GROWING OUT OF OR IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH
THE PERFORMANCE OF THIS AGREEMENT.

IX. LIABILITY INSURANCE

Prior to the commencement of any work and not later than ten (10) calendar days
following the execution of this contract, the Contractor shall furnish the City copies of
paid-up policies to the City Risk Manager providing Liability and Workman's
Compensation Coverage as follows minimum limits:

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS
a. Workman's Compensation covering all
employees Statutory
b. Employer's Liability $100.000.00
c. Comprehensive General Liability
Bodily Injury & Property Damage (per occurrence) $1.000,000.00
Aggregate $1.000.000.00

(Premises/Operations Products/Completed Operations/Independent
Contractors/Contractual Liability/Coverages may not be excluded). XCU must be

supplied if any exposure.

d. Business Automobile Liability covering owned vehicles, rented and non-owned
vehicles and employee non-ownership
Bodily Injury Property Damage (per occurrence) $1,000,000.00
Aggregate $1.000.,000.00

The Commercial General Liability and the Automobile Liability policies shall name the
City of Kerrville, Texas, as additional insured and all policies shall provide for a waiver
of subrogation in favor of the City of Kerrville. The policy and any renewal certificate
shall provide that the City be notified thirty (30) days prior to cancellation or
modification of any coverage. Language to the effect that the company will "Endeavor"




or "Attempt" to so notify the City of Kerrville is not sufficient. Renewal certificates must
be received by the City at least ten (10) days prior to any cancellation date. Policies will
be in effect until final acceptance or cancellation of this contract, unless otherwise
specified.

It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to insure that all Subcontractors comply
with the same insurance requirements as the said Contractor.

X. CASUALTY INSURANCE

In the event the work includes structures or buildings susceptible to damage by fire,
windstorm, or other casualty, then the Contractor before being authorized to begin work
shall furnish the City a duplicate original of an insurance policy naming the City of
Kerrville as an additionally insured. Such insurance shall insure both the City of
Kerrville and Contractor, during the term of the work, against loss by fire, windstorm,
vandalism, theft, or other casualty. Such policy shall be in the total amount of this
contract. Commencement, substantial completion, and operational dates, as specified in
Section IV of the Agreement begin on the effective date of the Agreement.

XI. QUALITY OF WORK

All work shall be of good workmanship. Contractor shall comply with all applicable City
of Kerrville Codes and standards as well as all applicable professional and technical
standards. Materials shall be of first quality.

XI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

a. The City’s representative is:
Malcolm Matthews: 830-258-5506

b. The Contractor’s representative is:
Tim Mcintyre: 512-786-7096

¢. Neither the City’s nor the Contractor’s representative shall be changed without ten
days written notice to the other party.

d. Contractor shall ensure the project conforms to federal, state, and local codes.

e. Contractor shall be responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences, and
procedures, and for coordinating all portions of the work.

f. Contractor shall warrant to the City that workmanship, materials, and equipment
furnished under this Agreement will be of good quality and new, unless otherwise
permitted by the City in writing.




g. Contractor shall guarantee workmanship and materials for a period of one (1) year
from the date of completion, unless included in manufacturer’s warranty, at the pre
construction meeting.

h. Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use and similar taxes required by federal,
state, and local law. The City is a tax-exempt organization and will provide a tax-exempt
certificate if requested by the Contractor.

i. Contractor shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of
waste materials or rubbish caused by operations under this Agreement.

This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written above and is executed
in at least three original copies, of which one is to be delivered to the Contractor and two
to the City.

SIGNED AND AGREED THIS DAY OF January, 2010

OWNER, City of Kerrville, Texas CONTRACTOR,
T.F. Harper & Associates L.P.
By: Harper Services, LLC General
Partner of T. F. Harper & Associates

LP
e Dl pet
By: By: 1/15/2010

Todd Parton, City Manager Thomas F. Harper, Manager

of Harper Services, LLC, in its capacity as
general partner for T. F. Harper & Associates, LP

ATTEST:

Brenda G. Craig, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

TALEZANPARKS & RECREATIONContraci\Carver Park Spraygiound, conitiict 011310, doc .
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| ("BUYBOARD QUOTE

103 Red Bird Lane

491' assbc,afes LP ~ Austip, Texas 78745

e-mail: playground@tfharper.com

______________

800-976-0107 Phone
512-440-0707 Phone

512-440-0736  Fax

TO: City of Kerrville Contract #269-07
Attn: Malcolm Matthews FOR PURCHASE THRU BUYBOARD
Address: 800 Junction Highway PLEASE FAX YOUR PURCHASE
Kerrville, TX 78028 ORDER & SIGNED QUOTE TO Date: December 14th, 2009
Phone: 830-792-5506 BUYBOARD & TF HARPER TO Quote # TM 141209
Fax: 830-896-6220 INSURE COMPLIANCE AND
Email:  malcom.matthews@kenvilletx.gov RECEIPT OF YOUR ORDER Revised 23 Dec 09
QTY DESCRIPTION OF EQUIPMENT PRICE COST
1 Vortex #7010.0002R03 - Water Jelly No 3 (EM) $2,350.00
1 Vortex #555.20000R01 - Aqua Dome No 1 (SW,PC) $3,120.00
1 Vortex #0548.0000R02 - Rainbow No 2 (EM,PC) $9,200.00
2 Vortex #301.40000R03 - Ground Geyser (SW) $560.00 $1,120.00
1 Vortex #7518.0000R01 - Side Winder (EM) $1,040.00
1 Vortex #7372.2008R01 - Three Bells No 1 (SW,PC) $8,370.00
2 Safe Swap No. 1 w/ spray cap (SW) $1,350.00 $2,700.00
1 Vortex #7640.40000R01 - Team Spray No 1 (EM) $4,760.00
1 Vortex #309-0000R04 - Water Tunnel No 2 (EM $2,030.00
1 Vortex #611.2008R01 - Bollard Activator No 3 (SW, PC) $3,100.00
2 Vortex #1000.0001R03 - Deck Drain 12" x 12" x 16" w/ H Strainer $910.00 $1,820.00
1 Vortex #V-5312.0000R06 - Water Quality Management System $55,610.00
1 Vortex #5322.0000R01 - Debris Trap HDPE w/ Rain Diverter $10,280.00
1 Vortex #5311 - 3,000 Gallon Holding Tank $19,570.00
Buyboard Discount ($8,754.00)
1 18'x12' Equipment Room - CMU - 4'x7' Door with vent/fan
2 lights, 1 outlet, switch and fan build on 3000 PSI concrete slab $14,684.00
Customer to Provide:
Power, Water & Sewer Line to 10’ from Edge of Splashpad
Power Needed: 230V 3-Phase 60amp Circuit for Recirculation System;
120V Power for Control Panel
Water Needed: Minimum 2" Water Line
Location for Holding Tank
Freight on Above Equipment $4,500.00
Normal Installation on Above Equipment Including Start Up and Training $72,985.00
1,850 |S.F. Concrete Pad 5" Thick, #4 Rebar at 12" OC Both Ways, 1'x 2' $21,830.00
Perimeter Beams and Cross Beams w/ 2 #3's top, middle, & bottom
& #3 Stirrups on 3' Centers, and #4 Corner Bars, Poured over 4"
Compacted Stone Base
1,850 |S.F. Cool Deck No Slip Staining Installed over Concrete, Standard Color $6,161.00
1 Cost of Obtaining Performance/Payment Bond $6,537.00
TOTAL $243,013.00

Carver Park 4 Jan




BUYBOARD QUOTE
Page 2 of 3

THIS QUOTE IS VALID FOR 30 DAYS DUE TO RISING FUEL AND MATERIAL COSTS

EXCLUDES SOIL TESTING, ANY PERMITS THAT ARE NECESSARY

NOT INCLUDED: Sales Tax, Permits (if required), Site Work In Excess of Normal Installation
{example: site prep - excavation/infill, french drains, excess rock removal that are not shown on
drawings or listed on the quote)
Any installation charges quoted are based upon a soil work site (not rocky) that is freely accessible by truck, no fencing,
tree/landscaping or utility obstacles, etc.), and level (+/- 1-2% max slope). Any site work not expressly described is excluded.
Landscape timbers are not warranted. All underground utilities must be located and clearly marked before any work can begin.
Installation of all products (equipment, borders, ground cover, amenities) are as quoted and approved by acceptance of
quote/drawings.

DELIVERY & INSTALLATION: 12 TO 16 WEEKS AFTER RECEIPT OF ORDER
Payment Terms: Per section V of the contract.

Accepted by:

Date: P.O. #: (if applicable;
PLEASE ISSUE PURCHASE ORDER IN VENDOR NAME OF T.F. HARPER & ASSOCIATES, LP
Thank you for giving us the opportunity to quote this equipment.
Tommy Harper, Sales Representative

Carver Park 15 Jan




ﬁmvc,m:v»o DIMENSION u

TOTAL AREA: 2175ft2 /202m?2
SPRAY AREA: 1376ft2 /127m?
GRID DIMENSION: 2 ft x 2 ft /0.6m X 0.6m

70' [21.3m]

REE AREA ALL AROUN,
pRAY F D THe
1S mvhb
S

s
5 3 — —— Heap
—T v i N~

\
%

39' [12.0m]
(ProDUCT LEGEND )
PRODUCT QTY TOTAL FLOW BAY
CODE
" mem 1w s
s MumEe L LS e
c w%wn_.wwnma 1 ww m“n FAMILY
= a»oanw.mqmwmm» a oM FAMILY
o WATER UL 22 1 i FAMILY
- RAINEOW 2L 1 oM FAMLY
” THREE BELLS feef 1 S FaMILY
W momem oo
1 Vor7715 : Giw T
I Temmm o e

K BOLLARD ACTICATORNO3 4
VOR-611







TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
SUBJECT: Authorization for the City Manager to execute a contract with CH2MHill in the
amount of $100,000.00 for engineering services for phase two of the ASR #
3 well project.

FOR AGENDA OF: January 26, 2010 DATE SUBMITTED: January 15, 2010

o \
SUBMITTED BY: Michael We|IM CLEARANCES: Kristine Ondrias 9*@-/
Director of Engineering Assistant City Manager

EXHIBITS: Professional Services Agreement, Scope of Services, Map

AGENDA MAILED TO:

APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER: ‘7/
Expenditure Current Balance Amount “ Account
Required: in Account: Budgeted: Number:
$100,000.00 $1,278,023.73 $1,347,908.00 E10

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: CH2MHill
12301 Research Blvd.
Building 4, Suite 250
Austin, Texqs 78759
REVIEWED BY THE FINANCE DIRECTOR: ,‘VW_E

SUMMARY STATEMENT

In the 2008 CIP, city council approved a project for the design and construction of the
Aquifer Storage and Recovery Well (ASR) # 3 to be located off of Legion Drive and Loop
534 (map attached). CH2MHill was engaged to perform Phase 1 well design services for
drilling the well in December 2008 for a fee of $24,980.00. The well design was completed
in October of 2009. A construction contract was awarded to C & C Groundwater Services
(the lowest qualified bidder) for this phase of the project in the amount of $357,225.60 at
the December 8, 2009 city council meeting. A construction administration contract in the
amount of $35,838.00 was awarded to CH2MHill for phase one of this project at the
December 8, 2009 city council meeting.

The scope of services for phase two of the design includes site improvements for a
concrete slab, pump pedestal, fencing, gates and drainage improvements; design of
approximately 200 feet of all weather access road, pipeline to connect the ASR # 3 to the
existing distribution system; design of the chlorination system, electrical system; design of
the wellhead piping and valve systems; design of the well pump and motor; design of a two
room structure to house the electrical and disinfection equipment; and develop the process
and instrumentation diagram and equipment list for the SCADA system required for the
ASR # 3.




The following timeline was provided to the city council at the December 8, 2009 city council
meeting and provides the timeline and cost estimates to complete the project.

Task Timeline CiP Budget Cost / Estimate
Phase 1 - Well Design 210 days $44,908.00 $24,890.00
{Complete) October 2009
Phase 1 - Construction 70 days $38,838.00
Administration -Jan2010~ .
{In process) . March 2010 ‘ -
Phase 1 - Construction 70 days $1,158,000.00 $357,225.60
(In process) Jan 2010 -
March 2010
Phase 2 - Surface Pipe 90 days $145,000.00 $100,000.00
and Pump Final Design February 2010 -
{Current request) May 2010
Phase 2 - Construction 90 days Included in Budgeted amount $800,000.00
(Future) June 2010 — of $1,158,000.00 Engineers Estimate
September 2010
TOTAL $1,347,908.00 $1,317,953.60
RECOMMENDED ACTION

The Director of Engineering recommends that the city council authorize the City Manager
to execute a contract with CH2MHill in an amount not to exceed $100,000.00 for the final

engineering design services for phase 2 of the ASR # 3 well project.




Professional Services Agreement

Between

CH2M Hill and City of Kerrville

THIS AGREEMENT is made as of this /7 <ay of
CITY OF KERRVILLE, a Texas home rule municipality wit ffices at 800 Junction
Highway, Kerrville, Texas, 78028-5069, hereinafter referred to as “CLIENT”, and CH2M Hill,
with its offices at 12301 Research Blvd., Building 4, Suite 250, Austin, Texas 78759, hereinafter
referred to as “ENGINEER”, for the performance of professional engineering services in
consideration of the following terms, conditions, and agreements:

2010, between the

PART I. SERVICES

ENGINEER shall perform all work described in the proposal attached hereto as Exhibit A (the
"Project").

A. ENGINEER shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy,
timely completion, and the coordination of all designs, drawings, specifications,
reports, and other services furnished by ENGINEER under this Agreement,
ENGINEER shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors,
omissions or other deficiencies in his designs, drawings, specifications, reports
and others services.

B. ENGINEER hereby agrees to comply with all federal, state, and local laws and
ordinances applicable to the work or services under this Agreement.

C. ENGINEER shall hold periodic conferences with CLIENT or CLIENT’s
representatives to the end that the Project as developed shall have the full benefit
of CLIENT’s experience and knowledge and be consistent with CLIENT’s
objectives for this Project.

D. ENGINEER shall periodically report Project status to CLIENT as is appropriate
to keep CLIENT informed regarding project progress.

E. ENGINEER shall perform all services under this Agreement in a manner which is
consistent with generally accepted standards of professional engineering practice.

PART II. CLIENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES

A. CLIENT shall provide all criteria and full information as to CLIENT’s
requirements for the Project; designate a person to act with authority on
CLIENT’s behalf in respect of all aspects of the Project; examine and respond
promptly to ENGINEER’s submissions; and give prompt written notice to




ENGINEER whenever CLIENT observes or otherwise becomes aware of any
defect in ENGINEER’s submissions.

CLIENT shall also do the following and pay all costs incident thereto:

1. Furnish to ENGINEER, upon ENGINEER’s notification that data is required,
data including but not limited to core borings, probings and subsurface
explorations, hydrographic surveys, laboratory tests and inspections of
samples, materials and equipment and similar data; appropriate professional
interpretations of all of the foregoing; environmental assessment and impact
statements; geologic assessments, environmental impact studies, and
endangered species studies; and any other information previously made
available to CLIENT, which may be required by ENGINEER; all of which
ENGINEER may rely upon as accurate in performing ENGINEER’s services
provided, however, ENGINEER shall not be entitled to rely on any inaccuracy
or incompleteness of information or services provided by CLIENT or at
CLIENT’s direction if a professional ENGINEER using generally accepted
engineering practices and procedures would have discovered such inaccuracy
or incompleteness reviewing any other data other than the document or
information provided.

2. Guarantee access to and make all provisions for ENGINEER to enter upon
public and private property.

3. Provide such legal, accounting, independent cost estimating and insurance
counseling services as may be required for the Project.

CLIENT shall pay all non-labor costs incident to obtaining bids or proposals from
contractor(s).

PART III. WORK ORDER AMENDMENTS

A.

CLIENT may at any time, by written Work Order, make changes relating to
services to be performed. If such changes cause an increase or decrease in
ENGINEER’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any services, an
agreeable equitable adjustment shall be made and reflected in a properly executed
Work Order. ENGINEER must assert any claim for adjustment under this clause
in writing within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt by ENGINEER
of the notification of change, unless CLIENT grants a further period of time
before the date of final payment under this Agreement.

No services for which additional compensation will be charged by ENGINEER
shall be furnished without a properly executed Work Order signed by CLIENT.

In the event that there are modifications and/or additions to regulatory
requirements relating to the services to be performed under this Agreement after



the date of execution of this Agreement, the increased or decreased cost of
performance of the services provided in this Agreement and subsequent Work
Orders shall be reflected in an appropriate Work Order.

PART IV. COMPENSATION

CLIENT agrees to pay ENGINEER for Professional Services in accordance with the
descriptions, definitions, terms and conditions as set forth in Exhibit A.

PART V. PAYMENTS

ENGINEER will invoice CLIENT monthly in accordance with the terms and conditions as set
forth in Exhibit A. CLIENT agrees to promptly pay ENGINEER at its office at 213 “C” Street,
Kerrville, Texas 78028, the full amount of each such invoice upon receipt. In no event shall
ENGINEER’s failure to invoice constitute a default under the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

PART VI. INSURANCE

ENGINEER shall procure and maintain the following types and limits of insurance for the
duration of this Agreement:

Type of Insurance Minimum Limits of Liability

Workers” Compensation Statutory

Employer’s Liability $250,000.00

Commercial General Liability-Personal | $1,000,000.00 combined single limit per

Injury/Property Damage occurrence

Automobile Liability $1,000,000.00 combined single limit per
occurrence — Hired car, owned and non-owned
autos

The commercial general liability insurance required above will include contractual liability
coverage. The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies shall be endorsed to
name the CLIENT as an additional insured, and all policies shall be endorsed to show a waiver
of subrogation in favor of CLIENT. ENGINEER shall direct that a certificate of insurance be
delivered to CLIENT before any services are performed pursuant to this Agreement. Such
certification of insurance shall provide for not less than thirty (30) days written notice to
CLIENT prior to cancellation or material modification by endorsement of any insurance
referenced therein and shall indicate that all required coverage and endorsements are in effect.




PART VII. TERMINATION

A.

CONDITIONS OF TERMINATION

This Agreement and/or Work Order(s) may be terminated without cause at any
time prior to completion of ENGINEER’s services, either by CLIENT or by
ENGINEER, upon written notice to the other at the address of record. Upon
receipt of written notice from CLIENT to discontinue work, ENGINEER shall
discontinue work under this Agreement immediately. In the event CLIENT
terminates the Agreement based on CLIENT’s reasonable opinion ENGINEER
has failed or refused to prosecute the work efficiently, promptly, or with
diligence, ENGINEER shall have fifteen (15) business days, from the receipt of
written notification by CLIENT, to cure such failure to perform in accordance
with the terms of the Agreement.

ACTIONS ON TERMINATION

Upon any termination, ENGINEER shall: (1) promptly discontinue all services
affected (unless a termination notice from CLIENT directs otherwise); and (2)
upon full payment for services, deliver or otherwise make available to CLIENT
all documents, data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and
such other information and materials as may have been accumulated by
ENGINEER in performing this Agreement, whether completed or in process.

COMPENSATION PAYABLE ON TERMINATION

On termination, by either CLIENT or ENGINEER, CLIENT shall pay
ENGINEER with respect to all contracted services rendered and expenses
incurred before termination an amount fixed by applying the ENGINEER’s
Standard hourly rates, in force at the time of termination, to all services performed
to date, in addition to termination settlement costs ENGINEER reasonably incurs
relating to commitments which had become firm before the termination; however,
in no case shall CLIENT be required to pay ENGINEER more than the amount
set forth in this Agreement.

PART VIII. RISK ALLOCATION

In recognition of the relative risks, rewards and benefits of the project to both the Owner and the
ENGINEER, the risks have been allocated such that the Owner agrees that, to the fullest extent
permitted by law, the ENGINEER's total liability to the Owner for any and all injuries, claims,
losses, expenses, damages or claim expenses arising out of this Agreement from any cause or
causes, shall not exceed total Fees paid to the ENGINEER. Such causes include, but are not
limited to, the ENGINEER's negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach of contract or
breach of warranty.



PART IX. MISCELLANEOUS

A.

REUSE OF DOCUMENTS

All documents, including Drawings and Specifications prepared or furnished by
ENGINEER pursuant to this Agreement, are instruments of service with respect
to the PROJECT, are the property of both CLIENT and ENGINEER, and may be
used by both CLIENT and ENGINEER, as they deem necessary in their
reasonable discretion. Either CLIENT or ENGINEER may retain copies,
reproduce copies, and disseminate copies of said Instruments of Service as are
reasonably necessary for the construction and on-going maintenance of the
Project. Not later than 90 days after substantial completion, ENGINEER shall
deliver to CLIENT one (1) set of Record Drawings in CADD format
incorporating all Addenda and Change Orders and consisting of one set of
compact disks; provided, however, ENGINEER reserves the right to remove all
indicia of ownership and/or involvement from the disc/magnetic tape provided to
CLIENT. The original CADD data will be retained by ENGINEER. CLIENT
hereby releases and holds harmless ENGINEER from any claims, losses, or
liability resulting from CLIENT’s use of the Instruments of Service in a manner
not authorized on this project by this Agreement. Any reuse without written
verification or adaptation by ENGINEER, for the specific purposes intended will
be at CLIENT’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to ENGINEER.
Any such verification or adaptation by ENGINEER will entitle ENGINEER to
further compensation at rates to be agreed upon by CLIENT and ENGINEER.

OPINION OF COST

Since ENGINEER has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment or
services furnished by others, or over the contractor(s)’ method of determining
prices, or over competitive bidding or market conditions, ENGINEER’s opinions
of probable Project Cost and Construction Cost are to be made on the basis of
ENGINEER’s experience and qualifications and represent ENGINEER’s best
judgment as an experienced and qualified professional ENGINEER, familiar with
the construction industry; but ENGINEER cannot and does not warrant or
guarantee ENGINEER’s opinions of cost as an “actual” cost and if an “actual”
“Construction Cost” is required, and/or desired, then, construction bids should be
obtained by CLIENT from appropriate sources. Opinions of cost may be supplied
to applicable municipalities for bonding purposes and no representations,
warranties, or guarantees are rendered hereby to any other person or entity.
Opinions of cost for presentation to any mortgagee or lending institution will only
be prepared by ENGINEER at CLIENT’s specific request. Preparation of such
may involve substantial additional cost to CLIENT and ENGINEER cannot and
does not warrant or guarantee such opinion of cost as an “Actual” cost.



LATE PAYMENT

If CLIENT fails to make any payment due ENGINEER for services and expenses
in accordance with Parts IV and V herein, within thirty (30) calendar days from
the date of ENGINEER’s invoice, thereafter the amounts due ENGINEER shall
include a charge at the rate of 1.50 % per month, calculated from the date of the
invoice, and in addition, ENGINEER may, after giving ten (10) business days
written notice to CLIENT, suspend services under this Agreement until
ENGINEER has been paid in full all amounts due for services and expenses.

ATTORNEY’S FEES

In the event ENGINEER’s invoices for services are given to an attorney for
collection, or if suit is brought for collection, or if they are collected through
probate, bankruptcy, or other judicial proceeding, then CLIENT shall pay
ENGINEER all costs of collection, including the maximum attorney’s fees
allowed by Law and court costs, in addition to other amounts due.

PERIOD OF SERVICE

ENGINEER shall diligently pursue completion of services and shall promptly
inform CLIENT of any anticipated delay. ENGINEER shall not be liable or
responsible for any delays caused by circumstances beyond ENGINEER’s
control.

SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

CLIENT and ENGINEER each binds himself, and his partners, successors,
executors, administrators, and assigns to partners, successors, executors,
administrators, in respect to all covenants of this Agreement. Neither CLIENT
nor ENGINEER shall assign, sublet, or transfer their interest in this Agreement
without written consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as giving
any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than CLIENT or ENGINEER.

CONTROLLING LAW; VENUE

This Agreement is to be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws
of the State of Texas. Venue for any disputes between CLIENT and ENGINEER
arising from or related to this Agreement shall be in Kerr County, Texas.

SEVERABILITY AND WAIVER

In the event any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or
unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding
upon the parties. One or more waivers by either party of any provision, term,
condition or covenant shall not be construed as a waiver of a subsequent breach of
the same by the other party.



L EXTENT OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement, including Exhibit A, and any and all amendments,
modifications, and supplements duly executed by the parties in accordance with
this Agreement, govern and supersede any and all inconsistent or contradictory
terms, prior oral or written representations .or understandings, conditions or
provisions set forth in any purchase orders, requisition, request for proposal,
authorization of services, notice to proceed or other form or document issued by
CLIENT with respect to the project or ENGINEER’s services.

J. AMENDMENTS

The parties agree that no change or modification to this Agreement, or any
attachments hereto, shall have any force or effect unless the change is reduced to
writing, dated, and made a part of this Agreement. The execution of the change
shall be authorized and signed in the same manner as this Agreement. No one has
authority to make variations in, or additions to the terms of this Agreement on
behalf of ENGINEER other than the undersigned Principal, and then only in

writing.

Executed on this day of , 2010.
CITY OF KERRVILLE CH2M Hill
BY: BY:

Jeffrey Todd Parton,

City Manager )

(Name) (Title)

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:
| eP‘S‘{ébW"
Assistant City Attorney Brenda G. Craig, City Secretary

L:ALegal\PUBLIC WORKS\Contracts\Prof Services Agreement-Architect CH2MHill PHASE 11 011110.doc



EXHIBIT A, SCOPE OF SERVICES

Exhibit A - Scope of Services
ASR-3 Well Services
Purpose and Project Description

The purpose of this document is to communicate the scope of professional engineering
services required for surface facilities of the proposed Aquifer Storage and Recovery Well
No. 3 (ASR-3) for the City of Kerrville (the City). The project will be divided into
Preliminary Design, Final Design, Bidding Services, and Services During Construction.
The design elements for the project include:

1. Design of site improvements for an area 100 ft square centered on ASR 3 including well
slab, pump pedestal, fencing, gates, and drainage improvements.

2. Design of approximately 200 feet of all-weather access road.

3. Design of approximately 200 feet of pipeline connecting ASR 3 to the existing
distribution system.

4. Design of the chlorination system for ASR 3.

5. Design of the electrical system for ASR 3.

6. Design of the wellhead piping and valve systems.
7. Design of the well pump and motor.

8. Design of a single, 2-room building, approximately 8 feet x 14 feet x 18 feet in dimension
to hold the electrical equipment and disinfection equipment.

9. A process and instrumentation diagram and equipment list for the SCADA system
required for ASR 3.

Project Team

The tasks described in this scope of Services will be completed by the CH2M HILL project
team which will consist of CH2M HILL and Hewitt Engineering, Inc. Geotechnical work
and surveying tasks are planned to be performed by Rock Engineering and Testing, Inc. and
Voelkel Land Surveying, PLLC respectively.

Project Tasks

Task 1. Preliminary Design
The project team will perform the following subtasks during the preliminary design phase:
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EXHIBIT A, SCOPE OF SERVICES

Prepare a draft preliminary design memo describing basic design elements of the
project. The memo will be delivered to the City, attention Dieter Werner via email in
PDF format.

Receive one set of redline comments from the City. The comments will be formatted as a
list including reviewer name, page number, line or paragraph number, comment, and
recommended change.

Prepare a response to all comments in the same list format (adding a response column)
and deliver to the City for review.

Attend a scheduled conference call to discuss and resolve all addressed comments.

Prepare a final preliminary design memo and deliver the memo to the City via email in
PDF format.

After finalizing the preliminary design, the CH2M HILL team (Rock Engineering and
Testing, Inc.) will perform geotechnical analysis to support foundation design.

After finalizing the preliminary design, the CH2M HILL team (Voelkel Land Surveying,
PLLC) will perform land surveying to support site layout and design.

Task 2. Final Design
The project team will perform the following subtasks during the final design phase:

1.

Prepare a draft (90%) specifications and drawings. The specifications and drawings will
be delivered to the City via email in PDF format. Two hard copies will also be delivered
to the City.

Receive one set of redline comments from the City. The comments will be formatted as a
list including reviewer name, page number, line or paragraph number, comment, and
recommended change.

Prepare a response to all comments in the same list format (adding a response column)
and deliver to the City for review.

Attend a scheduled conference call to discuss and resolve all addressed comments.

Prepare a final (100%) specifications and drawings. The specifications and drawings will
be delivered to the City via email in PDF format, Six hard copies will also be delivered to
the City.

Final specifications and drawing will also be delivered to TCEQ for public water supply
plan review and UIC permitting purposes.

Task 3. Bidding Services

The project team will perform the following subtasks during the bidding services phase:

1.
2.
3.

Attend pre-bid meeting and prepare pre-bid meeting minutes
Respond to up to 2 request for information

Prepare up to 2 addenda to the contract
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EXHIBIT A. SCOPE OF SERVICES

4. Review bids and qualifications of successful bidder and prepare recommendation

Task 4. Services During Construction

As part of the Services During Construction Task, the CH2M HILL team will complete the
following subtasks:

1. Attend pre-construction meeting and prepare pre-construction meeting minutes
2. Provide construction oversight and administration

2.1. Provide up to 20 hours of on-site construction observation and inspection services.
2.2. Provide reviews of technical submittals.

2.3. Evaluate and prepare change orders for up to 2 changes to the contract after

receiving approval for the change by the City.
2.4. Provide analysis of technical data collected during acceptance testing.

2.5. Additional hours may be authorized by the City and will be paid for on a time and

materials basis.

3. Submit construction data to TCEQ Public Water Supply division for interim approval.
4. Submit construction data to TCEQ UIC division.

5. Provide closeout documents and record drawings at the end of construction.

Assumptions

1. The City will provide the expected distribution system pressure at the tie-in point based
on the design rate of ASR 3.

2. Programming of control systems will be done by Bloc Design Build under contract to the
General Construction Contractor. CH2M HILL will coordinate with Bloc Design Build
when developing the P&ID and equipment list to be provided in the plans and
specifications.

3. The CH2M HILL team will provide support for TCEQ permitting which includes public
water supply plan review and UIC Class V injection well permitting. Any additional
non-standard permitting tasks will be performed by others. All required fees will be
paid by the City. :

4. The City will be responsible for advertisement of the project for bid and maintaining the
bidder’s list.

5. Traffic control and storm water pollution prevention plans will be the responsibility of
the Contractor performing the construction activities.
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EXHIBIT A. SCOPE OF SERVICES

Proposed Schedule for Basic Services

Project Phase Task Duration Finish Time
(Weeks) (Weeks from
NTP)
Preliminary Design 4 weeks 4 weeks
Final Design 8 weeks 12 weeks
Bidding Services 4 weeks 16 weeks
Services During Construction 25 weeks U 41 weeks
(1) Assumes approximately 2 weeks of submittals and reviews, 20 week lead time for custom pump, six weeks of site
construction, and three weeks of start-up and acceptance testing.

Basis of Payment

Compensation for the tasks described above will be based on Time and Materials and will
not exceed $100,000 without prior authorization from the City of Kerrville. The breakdown

of budget by task is expected to be as follows.

Project Phase Budget
Preliminary Design $20,000
Final Design $55,000
Bidding Services $5,000
Services During Construction $20,000

Additional work may be authorized by the City of Kerrville on a time and materials basis at

the rates provided below.

Billing Rates

Title Billing Rate
Administrative Assistant $55
Junior Technician $70
Specification Processor $70
Mid-level Technician $85
Contracts Administrator $90
Junior Engineer $100
Project Accountant $100
Project Inspector $100
Mid-level Engineer $125
Senior Technician $125
Chief Inspector $130
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EXHIBIT A, SCOPE OF SERVICES

Project Engineer $150
Senior Consultant $170
Project Manager $170
Principal Consultant $185
Safety Manager $195
Senior Project Manager $195

it is assumed that all work associated with this project will be complete by the end of 2010.

Approved In Form

78

7 &
Dietel/Werner, PE, Project Engineer, City of Kerrville

.

Stuart Barron, Water/Wastewater Manager, City of Kerrville

Cheri Halford, CIP Manager, City oﬂrwille

o4

Mik/’ﬁellborn, PE, Director of Engineering, City of Kerrville
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BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Public Hearing: Annexation-Zoning Request — A proposed
annexation-zoning request for approximately 86.71 acres generally
located northwest of the Kerrville/Kerr County Airport fronting the
northeast side of Peterson Farm Road, adjacent to the corporate
limits of the City of Kerrville. Applicant: Kerr Economic Development
Foundation. (File No. 2009-45)

FOR AGENDA: January 26, 2010 DATE SUBMITTED: January 15, 2010
SUBMITTED BY: Gordon Browning, Senior Planner

EXHIBITS: ~ Location Map, Applicant’s Request, Annexation and Zoning
Ordinance

APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER: /)/

Mail Agenda Bill to: Guy Overby, Kerr Economic Development Foundation, 1700 Sidney Baker, Suite 100,
Kerrville, Texas 78028

. Annexation-Zoning Timeline:

¢ November 30, 2009 — Annexation petition and zoning request submitted for
review and consideration.

e December 3, 2009 — Notice of public hearing published in The Kerrville Daily
Times.

¢ December 8, 2009 — City Council considers and accepts annexation petition
for the subject tract by resolution.

e December 17, 2009 — Planning and Zoning Commission (P&Z) public hearing
on proposed annexation and recommendation of zoning designation to the
City Council.

e January 12, 2010 — City Council conducts the first required public hearing on
the proposed annexation.

January 26, 2010 - City Council conducts the second required public
hearing on the proposed annexation and considers an ordinance on
first reading annexing and zoning the subject tract.

e February 9, 2010 — City Council considers an ordinance on second and final
reading annexing and zoning the subject tract.

Summary:

The applicant proposes annexation and zoning of approximately eighty-six (86.71) acres
generally located northwest of the Kerrville/Kerr County Airport, fronting the northeast
side of Peterson Farm Road adjacent to the corporate limits of the City of Kerrville. The
concept plan submitted as part of the request shows the property developed as an
animal and insect research facility. The requested annexation and zoning is intended to



be the first step in the relocation of the USDA-ARS Knipling-Bushland U.S. Livestock
Insects Research Laboratory currently located north of the City on SH 16.

Staff is working closely with the Kerr Economic Development Foundation, USDA-ARS
staff and their consultants on the timing and development of this facility.

Article 11-1-4(b) of the Zoning Code requires on all annexation requests that:

1. The Commission hold a public hearing on the proposed annexation, and
2. Make a recommendation to the City Council as to the zoning designation of
the subject tract upon its annexation.

Staff recommended a zoning designation for this tract of PDD (Planned Development
District) for a “USDA-ARS Livestock Insects Research Laboratory” to include the land
uses and development standards outlined in the attached draft ordinance. The proposed
use is in conformance with the compatible land uses outlined in the Airport Master Plan
and the ‘Rural Development’ designation of the City’s Comprehensive Plan.

The Planning and Zoning Commission, following a public hearing on this request,
recommended annexing the subject tract with a zoning designation of PDD (Planned
Development District) as outlined. No one from the public appeared at the public
hearing.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

1. Open the public hearing and receive comments, and
2. Approve the annexing and zoning as outlined in the attached ordinance on first
reading.
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PETITION REQUESTING ANNEXATION TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY
OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS, OF TEXAS ACRES OUT OF THE W T, Crook Sume, Al 77/
Survey, Abstract Number | [ , KERR COUNTY TEXAS

TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERRVILLE,
TEXAS:

l(ﬁbf: Is the sole owner of an approximately fj(o 7[ acre tract of
land located adjacent to the incorporated limits of the City of Kerrville which is out of the

Survey No. 71 Abstract No. //Y Kerr County, Texas, and is more particularly
described as follows:

SEE EXHIBIT “A”.
In accordance with Texas Local Government Code §43.028,
hereby respectfully requests and petitions that the above-

described property be annexeq_Lnto the incorporated limits of the City of Kerrville, Texas.
SUBMITTED THIS SO day of /Vovemed zp o4

By: //g KO[ /
Leg% authorize};r(gnature

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF KERR §

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the 50%3 day of Nowemkes_ , 3 oo
by Cﬂuu B Oweay for and on behalf of

WEDF |
¢ ‘g@ P;u.@@

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF TEXAS
DEBRAFREED . § Printed Name: _ L Debra Freed

A Notary Pubilc, Steta of Texas
Commission

My expires <
» My Commission Expires: 7~ |18 -0\




CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
ORDINANCE NO. -2009

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING AN APPROXIMATE 86.71 ACRE
TRACT OUT OF THE W.T. CROOK SURVEY NO. 71, ABSTRACT
NO 114; SAID TRACT BEING LOCATED ADJACENT TO THE
CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
AND GENERALLY LOCATED NORTHWEST - OF '~ THE
KERRVILLE/KERR COUNTY AIRPORT FRONTING THE
NORTHEAST SIDE OF PETERSON FARM ROAD; DESCRIBING
THE TERRITORY TO BE ANNEXES; ADOPTING A SERVICE
PLAN FOR THE TERRITORY ANNEXED; AND ESTABLISHING
THE ZONING FOR THE AREA ANNEXED

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 43.052(h)(2),
the owner of the property described in Section One, below, has petitioned the City to
annex the property into the corporate limits of the City of Kerrville, Texas; and

WHEREAS, having provided all required public notices, held all required by
public hearings at which persons with an interest in the matter were provided an
opportunity to be heard, the City Council of the City of Kerrville, Texas, finds it fo be in
the public interest to approve an Ordinance annexing the subject property, adopt a service
plan as required by state law, and establish zoning regulations for the area;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF KERRVILLE, KERR COUNTY, TEXAS: '

SECTION ONE. The property as described in Exhibit A and depicted in Exhibit
B, is hereby annexed and incorporated into the corporate limits of the City of Kerrville,
Texas, for all legal purposes.

'SECTION TWO. The service plan regarding the provision of public services set
forth in Exhibit C, is adopted for the property described in Section One, above, as
required by Texas Local Government Code 543.056.

SECTION THREE. Upon the adoption of this Ordinance, the property described
in Section One, above, shall be placed in a newly created “Planned Development District
for a “Livestock-Insects Research Laboratory”. For the purpose of this Ordinance,
Livestock-Insects Research Laboratory shall iriclude the following uses:

a. research laboratory and office space;
b. large animal research facility;

. ¢. insect research and rearing facility;
d. the keeping, penning and pasturing of livestock;
e. maintenance and storage facilities and structures;
f. animal waste storage incinerator;




g. chemical storage structures; and
h. accessory structures directly related thereto.

SECTION FOUR. The property described in Section One, above, may be
developed and uses as a “Livestock-Insects Research Laboratory”, subject to each of the
following:

a. Concept Plan: The development of the property shall be substantially in
accordance with the Concept Plan found in Exhibit D, attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference.

b. Platting: The development of the property shall be subject to the City’s
Subdivision Regulations, which includes submittal and approval of a plat.

c. Development Site Plan: Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a
Development Site Plan shall be submitted pursuant to the City regulations.

d. Parking: The design, number of parking spaces, and aisle dimensions
shall be in accordance with the regulations in effect at the time of
individual building permits are submitted to the City.

e. Sidewalks: The construction of sidewalks shall be required in
accordance with the regulations in effect at the time building permits are
submitted.

f. Setbacks Requirements: The Planned Development District shall be
developed with minimum setbacks from property lines as follows:

i. Front Yard Setback: 35.0 feet

ii. Rear Yard Setback: 35.0 feet

iii. Interior Yard Setback: 12.5 feet

iv. Exterior Yard Setback: 15.0 feet

v. Animal Pens: 30.0 feet from any property line

g. Maximum Height: No building or structure shall exceed 40.0 feet in
height. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 11-1-3(a)(47), no
portion of any structure built on the property, included but not limited to
communication antennae and water towers, shall exceed 50.0 feet in
height.

h. Signs: The design, installation, location, and maintenance of signs shall
comply with the City’s sign regulations existing at the time of permitting.

i. Trash and Other Solid Waste: Solid waste collection bins and dumpsters
shall be equipped with lids and screened with a gate with an opaque screen




on one side and masonry material finished to look substantially like the
adjacent building on the remaining three (3) sides.

j. Outdoor Parking Lot Lighting: All parking lot pole lights shall be of a
"shoe box" design and shall be located, shielded and aimed in such a
manner so as not to allow light to fall directly on adjacent roadways and/or
properties. All outdoor lighting must be designed in accordance with the

regulations of the Federal Aviation Administration.or its SUCCESSOT agency. © -

in order to prevent such outdoor lighting from constituting a hazard to air
traffic arriving or departing the Kerrville/Kerr County Airport.

SECTION FIVE. The provisions of this Ordinance are to be cumulative of all
Ordinances or parts of Ordinances governing or regulating the same subject matter as that
covered herein; provided, however, that all prior ordinances or parts of ordinances
inconsistent with or in conflict with any of the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby
expressly repealed to the extent of any such inconsistency or conflict.

SECTION SIX. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this
Ordinance is, for any reason, held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such holding shall not
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. The Council of the City of
Kerrville, Texas, hereby declares that it would have passed this Ordinance and each
section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase hereof irrespective of the fact that any one
or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or phrases be declared unconstitutional
or invalid.

SECTION SEVEN. The penalty for violation of this Ordinance shall be in
accordance with the general penalty provisions contained in Article 1-1-9 of the Code of

Ordinances of the City of Kerrville, Texas, which provides for a fine not exceedmg TWO
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00).

SECTION EIGHT. In accordance with Section 3.07 of the City Charter and
Texas Local Government Code §52.013(a), the City Clerk is hereby authorized and
directed to publish the descriptive caption of this Ordinance in the manner and for the
length of time prescribed by the law as an alternative method of publication.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON FIRST READING, this the day of
A.D., 2009.
PASSED AND APPROVED ON FIRST READING, this thé . day of

A.D., 2009.




Todd A. Bock, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

Michael C. Hayes, City Attorney Brenda C. Craig, City Secretary
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FIELD NOTES DESCRIPTION FOR 86.71 ACRES OF LAND OUT
OF THE EQUITECH-BIO, INC. LAND ALONG PETERSON FARM
ROAD IN KERR COUNTY, TEXAS

Being all of a certain tract or parcel of land containing 86.71 acres, more or less, out of W.T. Crook Survey No. 71, Abstract
No.114 in Kerr County, Texas; part of a certain 268.62 acre tract conveyed from James S. Ernst, et ux to Equitech-Bio, Inc. by an
Assumption Warranty Deed with Vendor's Lien executed the 8™ day of November, 1995 and recorded in Volume 823 at Page 774
of the Real Property Records of Kerr County, Texas; and being more particularly described by metes and bounds-as follows:

BEGINNING at a 4" iron stake set in the northeast right-of-way line of Peterson Farm Road, a sixty (60) ft. wide public road and
in the southwest line of said 268.62 acre tract for the most westerly corner of the herein described tract; which point bears: 64.57
ft. S.30°55'S3"E. from a fence cornerpost, the most westerly corner of said 268.62 acre tract; and, approximately, 4646 f. South
and 3706 ft. West from the northwest corner of Survey No. 43;

THENCE, upon, over and across said 268.54 acre tract, parallel to and sixty (60) ft.east and southeast from the west line of 268.54
acre tract, all calls to set %" iron stakes: N.37°2322"E., 257.05 ft.; N.19°32'35"E., 746.64 ft.; N.18°3229"E., 401.99 ft,;
N.41°24'35"E., 226.79 ft.; S.89°03'43"E., 333.56 ft.; and N.71°57'13"E., 737.56 fi. to a '4" iron stake set in a fence for the
northerly northeast corner of the herein described tract; ‘

THENCE, along or near a fence continuing upon, over and across said 268.62 acre tract, all calls to fence angleposts:
S.01°57'42"E., 482.78 fi.; S.13°11'05"E., 415.47 ft.; N.77°49'16"E., 753.33 ft.; N.77°58'21"E., 98.86 fi.; S.85°32'16"E., 12.08 fi.;
S.74°27'14"E., 3.75 fi.; 5.03°46'51"W., 17.24 fi.; and S.54°21'06"E., 154.52 fi. to a fence cornerpost in the south line of 268.62
acre tract and north line of a certain 142 acre tract conveyed as Parcel No. 1 from Ida E. Ingenhuett, et al to the City of Kerrville by
a Warranty Deed executed the 16™ day of August, 1941 and recorded in Volume 68 at Page 302 of the Deed Records of Kerr
County, Texas; ’

THENCE, along a fence with the common line between said 268.62 and 142 acre tracts: S.22°36'31"W., 289.54 fi. to a fence
anglepost; S.47°54'07"W., 280.75 fi. to a fence cornerpost; and N.18°0529"W., at 29.8 fi. passing a fence endpost, then continuing
for a total distance of 51.30 fi. to an unmarked point in the approximate center of Silver Creek;

THENCE, with the said approximate center of Silver Creek continuing with the said common line between 268.62 and 142 acre
tracts, all calls to unmarked points: S.51°22'58"W., 235.04 ft.; S.32°29'44"W. 281.06 ft.; S.30°19'43"W., 330.44 fi,
S.40°56'47"W., 335.80 ft.; S.66°45'40"W., 349.28 ft.; N85°35 12"W 217.96 ft.; N. 82°37'16"W 178.69 fi.; S. 88°45'46"W
192.23 ft.; S.86°02'35"W., 125.33 ft.; N.86°48'11"W,, 100 78 ft.; S 41°59‘45"W 120 64 fi.; and S. 46°29 39"W., 120.34 f. to an
unmarked point in a fence; the said northeast right-of-way line of Peterson Farm Road for the southwest corner of the herein
described tract and 268.62 acre tract;

THENCE, along a fence with the southwest line of said 268.62 acre tract and northeast rlght-of-way line of Peterson Farm Road
N.30°55'53"W., 864.69 f. to the PLACE OF BEGINNING.

I hereby certify that this field notes description and accompanying plat
are accurate representations of the property shown and described
hereon as determined by a survey made on the ground under my
direction and supervision, except no survey was made to reestablish
Patent Survey lines or corners; and that all property corners are as
shown.(Bearing basis = True north based on GPS observations)

Dates Surveyed: March 7 & 11, 2003
QOctober 26, 2006

Dated this 31% day of January, 2008

Lee C. Voelkel
Registered Professional Land Surveyor No. 3909
County Surveyor for Kerr County, Texas

EXHIBIT A
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.. SURVEY PLAT FOR 86.71 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, QUT OF
W.T. CROOK SURVEY NO. 71, ABSTRACT NO. 114 IN KERR COUNTY,
TEXAS; PART OF A CERTAIN 268.62 ACRE TRACT. CONVEYED FROM
JAMES S. BRNST, BT UX: TO EQUITECH-BIO INC. BY' AN ASSUMPTION
WARRANTY DEED WITH, VENDOR'S LIEN EXECUTED THE 8™ DAY OF
NOVEMBER, 1995 AND RECORDED IN VOLUME 823 AT PAGE 774 OF
THE REAL PROPERTY RECORDS OF KERR COUNTY; TEXAS

N NOTE:  Zone A shown hereon is approximate. The location of
LINECHART Zone A is from 4 "scaled overlay® of the FIRM and
. does not represent any flood study or elevations done
L1 N,77'53"2|'E-. 98.86" . by me. 1';12: repfesentation is l'o¥ shematic purposes
l‘:]z g"lig?l'l\:::;, ;27(;". only and should not be uscd for the placement of
< o . . Vi
LA SOAESIW, i7aq. | mPrOvements on the propenty. .
Ls S.54521'06"E, 154,57
L6 - N.A80529"W, 51.30"
‘L7 . N.85°35'12"W,, 217.96'
L3 N.82°3716"W,, 178 EFF
s S.85°48'46"W,, 192.24' SCALE: 1" = 400"
Lo §.86°0235*W,, 125.33' . .
LIL  NBG4E1I"W,, 10078' LEGEND
Li2 S.A1"59'45°W., 120.64

TLI3 SAG29I9W. 12034 O fencepost

© % ioastke”

—%— feace

® unmarked point in creek

)

DETALL .
SCALE: 1" =300 -

¢ 268.62 ACRES (remainder)
Emst 1o Equitech-Bio_

Vol. 823 Pg. 774

110895, -

SAT°EA o'W
Zen1s’

DA6°5G A Vb uRCEL K I: 142 ACRES
225.80"  Ingenhuct to City of Kenrvitic
Vol. 68 Pg. 302 (Deed Records)
08/16/41 -

s "ihuppmxlnulg ’ Vid

G hercby cerify that-this plat and. sccompanying’ field notes
desciipt mfzcwnhnpmmmhu of the propesty shown'and £ v/

described horcon as defermined by & survey made on the ground  Dated this 31st da

under my ditection and supervision, except ng survey was made to

' ¥ reestablish Patent Survey lines of comers; and that all property : 3
zﬁ[ocncg . comers are &t show. (Bearing basis = True north based on GPS | [ YN
A d e:} o e o ' Lee C. Voelkel > "
: 3 C Registered Professionsl Land SUNE 3909
d‘\kﬂ{- V\Q' A o Survcyod_. m'zzs?%os 2 County Surveyor for Kerr County, Texas
{ V@ELKELL LAND SURVEYING, PLLC ¢ PHONE:830-257-3313 ¢ 212 CLAY STREET, KERRVILLE, TEXAS 78028 J—J
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ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN

SERVICE

DETAILS OF SERVICE PROVIDED

TIMETABLE

Animal Control

The provisions of animal control services
shall be in effect following annexation of the
property.

Immediately
following
annexation

Code Enforcement

The provisions of Code Enforcement
services, including the application and
enforcement of building, electrical, plumbing,
and other related code requirements adopted
by the City of Kerrville shall be made
immediately to the area upon annexation.
The preparation of a zoning plan shall serve
as a basis for the zoning of land following
annexation. The adoption of the zoning plan
shall be in accordance with the procedures of
the City of Kerrville’s Zoning Ordinance.

Immediately
following

annexation, zoning
to be concurrent
with annexation

Fire Protection and
Suppression

Fire protection and suppression personnel and
equipment from the Kerrville Fire

Department will be provided to the area as
needed.

Immediately
following
annexation

Fire Prevention

The services of the City of Kerrville Fire
Marshall shall be provided to the area.

Immediately
following
annexation,

Library

Future residents of the area, if any, will
continue to be entitled to utilize all City of
Kerrville Library facilities.

Immediately
following
annexation,

Parks and Recreation

City of Kerrville Parks and Recreation
services will continue to be available to any
area residents.

Immediately
following
annexation

Police Protection

Police protection personnel and equipment
shall be provided to the area immediately
upon annexation. Police enforcement and
protection services shall be provided through
regular patrol activities.

Immediately
following
annexation

EXHIBIT C




ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN (CONTINUED)

SERVICE DETAILS OF SERVICE PROVIDED TIMETABLE
Public Services - Street | Public streets not maintained by the Texas | Immediately
Department Department of Transportation within the area | following

shall be maintained by the City of Kerrville. | annexation

Salﬁtati.on (Refuse Refuse collection shall be available to any | Immediately

Collection) residents of the annexed area at the same | following
costs and procedures as required of City | annexation
residents and businesses.

Traffic Engineering Traffic control devices and street markers | Immediately
shall be installed where deemed necessary by | following
the city street department, except as provided | annexation
by the Texas Department of Transportation.

Utilities (Water Extension of utilities to the property shall be

Distribution and | in accordance with the City of Kerrville’s As the property

; : .. . . develops
Subdivision Ordinance.

Wastewater Collection)
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SUBJECT:

BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

Public Hearing: Annexation and Zoning Request — A proposed
annexation-zoning reauest for approximately 3.954 acres located at
246 Johnson Drive, adjacent to the corporate limits of the City of
Kerrville. Applicant: Kerrville/Kerr County Airport Board (File No.
2009-44) _

FOR AGENDA: January 26, 2010 DATE SUBMITTED: January 15, 2010

SUBMITTED BY: Gordon Browning, Senior Planner

EXHIBITS:

Location Map, Applicant’s Request, Annexation and Zoning
Ordinance

APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER: »/}’/

Mail Agenda Bill to: Bruce McKenzie, Airport Manager, 1877 Airport Loop, Kerrville, Texas 78028 .

Annexation-Zoning Timeline:

Summary:

November 12, 2009 — Annexation petition and zonlng request submitted for
review and consideration.

December 3, 2009 — Notice of publlc hearing published in The Kerrville Daily
Times.

December 8, 2009 — City Council considers and accepts annexation petition
for the subject tract by resolution.

December 17, 2009 — Planning and Zoning Commission (P&Z) public hearing
on proposed annexation and recommendation of zoning designation to the
City Council.

January 12, 2010 — City Council conducts the first required public hearing on
the proposed annexation.

January 26, 2010 — City Council conducts the second required public
hearing on the proposed annexation and considers an ordinance on
first reading annexing and zoning the subject tract.

February 9, 2010 — City Council considers an ordinance on second and final
reading annexing and zoning the subject tract.

The Kerrville/Kerr County Joint Airport Board, representing the owners,
request annexation and zoning of the subject 3.954 acre tract adjacent to the
airport and corporate limits of the City of Kerrville.

Article 11-1-4(b) of the Zoning Code requires on all annexation requests that:




1. The Commission hold a public hearing on the proposed
annexation, and

2. Make a recommendation to the City Council as to the zoning
designation of the subject tract upon annexation.

Staff recommended a zoning designation of “AD” (Airport District) which is in

conformance with the Comprehensive Plan, the adjacent zoning and the Airport Master
Plan.

The Planning and Zoning Commission, following a public hearing on this request,

recommended annexing the subject tract with a zoning designation of AD (Airport
District). No one from the public appeared at the public hearing.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

1. Open the public hearing and receive comments, and
2. Approve the annexing and zoning as outlined in the attached ordinance on first
reading.




SUBJECT
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PETITION REQUESTING ANNEXATION TO THE CORPORAIE LIMITS OF THE CITY
OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS, OF TEXAS ACRES OUT OF THE 6/%M
Survey, Abstract Number , KERR COUNTY TEXAS

TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERRVILLE,
TEXAS:

()—l\/l«(,l_— @LA/A?"T ALW?LIS the sole owner of an approximately 395 2-1O acre tract of

land located adjacent to the incorporated limits of the City of Kerrville which is out of the
Survey No. Abstract No. Kerr County, Texas, and is more particularly
described as follows:

SEE EXHIBIT “A”.

% ordanc with Texas Local Government Code §43.028,
A2 L/dL T § hereby respectfully requests and petitions that the above-
described propeny be annexed into the ingorporated limits of the City of Kerrville, Texas.

SUBMITTED THIS _/Z_day of =7 ____ Jpo09

By:&—b. /IAAg Ki ;\

Legally authorized signatore~

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
THE STATE OF TEXAS §
COUNTY OF KERR g
This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ]2 day of _ﬁm_em‘he,r’ Zpoﬁ
by | ie Dol ‘—Ef‘me for and on behalf of

NOTARY PUBLI%. STATE OF TEXAé

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES Printed Name: Mﬂhﬂ—_g rm 6}/

My Commission Expires: __01-0%-2013




CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
ORDINANCE NO. 2010

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING AN APPROXIMATE 3.954 ACRE TRACT,
SAID PROPERTY BEING LOCATED ADJACENT TO THE CORPORATE
LIMITS OF THE CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS, AND CONSISTING OF A
TRACT ADJACENT TO THE KERRVILLE/KERR COUNTY AIRPORT
AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS PART OF LOT 1,
SHADY GROVE SUBDIVISION; DESCRIBING THE TERRITORY TO BE
ANNEXED; ADOPTING A SERVICE PLAN FOR THE TERRITORY
ANNEXED; AND ESTABLISHING THE ZONING FOR THE AREA
ANNEXED

WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Section 43.052(h)(2), the owners of
the property described in Section One, below, have petitioned the City to annex said property into the
corporate limits of the City of Kerrville, Texas; and

WHEREAS, having provided all required public notices, held all required public hearings at
which people with an interest in the matter were provided an opportunity to be heard, the City
Council of the City of Kerrville, Texas, finds it to be in the public interest to approve an ordinance
annexing the subject property, adopt a service plan as required by state law, and establish zoning
regulations for the area;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF KERRVILLE, KERR COUNTY, TEXAS:

SECTION ONE. The property, as described in Exhibit A and depicted in Exhibit B, is
hereby annexed and incorporated into the corporate limits of the City of Kerrville, Texas, for all legal
purposes.

SECTION TWO. The service plan regarding the provision of public services, as set forth in
Exhibit C, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, is hereby adopted for the property
described in Section One, above, as required by Texas Local Government Code §43.056.

SECTION THREE. Upon the adoption of this Ordinance, the property as described in
Section One, above, shall be subject to a zoning designation of “AD”, Airport District.

SECTION FOUR. The provisions of this Ordinance are to be cumulative of all Ordinances
or parts of Ordinances governing or regulating the same subject matter as that covered herein;
provided, however, that all prior ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with or in conflict
with any of the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby expressly repealed to the extent of any such
inconsistency or conflict.

SECTION FIVE. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is,




for any reason, held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such holding shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions of this Ordinance. The Council of the City of Kerrville, Texas, hereby declares
that it would have passed this Ordinance and each section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase
hereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, sentences, clauses, or
phrases be declared unconstitutional or invalid.

SECTION SIX. The penalty for violation of this Ordinance shall be in accordance with the
general penalty provisions contained in Article 1-1-9 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of
Kerrville, Texas, which provides for a fine not exceeding TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS
(5$2,000.00).

SECTION SEVEN. In accordance with Section 3.07 of the City Charter and Texas Local
Government Code §52.013(a), the City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish the
descriptive caption of this Ordinance in the manner and for the length of time prescribed by the law
as an alternative method of publication.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON FIRST READING, this the day of
»A.D., 2010

PASSED AND APPROVED ON SECOND READING, this the day of
» A.D., 2010.

Todd A. Bock, Mayor

ATTEST:

Brenda G. Craig, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
" /l  —
C
\ A ;"

Michael C. Hayes, City Attorney

T:\LegahDEVELOPMENT SERVICES (planning)\Annexation\Ord\Shady Grove (3.954 ac)_Airport use_}21409.doc
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Job No. S0285201
March 27, 2007

County: Kerr

C.S.J. No.:

Highway: Kerrville Airport
Project Limits: At Kerrville Airport

.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION OF PARCEL NO. 1

Being a 3.954 of acres (172,274 square foot) parcel of land, more or less, out of Lot 1, Shady Grove
Subdivision, Kerrville, Kerr County, Texas, being the tract as described in Volume 645, Page 227,
Official Public Records, Kerr County, Texas, which 3.954 of acres (172,274 square feet) of land
being more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows:

BEGINNING at a %” rebar with MDS cap found for the southwest comer of the herein
described tract, said point being in the north line 0£39.51 acre tract as recorded in Volume 257,
Page 608, Deed Records, Kerr County, Texas;

1) THENCE South 00°00°15" West, with and along the west line of the herein described tract, a
distance of 76.00 feet to a 1/2” rebar with a CEC plastic cap set for an angle point of said
Johnson Drive;

2) THENCE North 33°03°09" East, with and along the center line of Johnson Drive and the
west line of the herein described tract, a distance of 79.30 feet to a 1/2” rebar with a CEC
plastic cap set for an angle point of said Johnson Drive;

3) THENCE North 52°33°09" East, with and along the center line of Johnson Drive and the
west line of the herein described tract, a distance 0f 199.69 feet, to a 1/2” rebar with a CEC
plastic cap set for the northwest corner of the herein described tract and the southwest corner
of a 3.94 acre tract as recorded in Volume 192, Page 829, Deed Records, Kerr County,
Texas; .

4) THENCE South 84°52°09" West, with and along the north line of the herein described tract
and the south line of said 3.94 acre tract, a distance 0f438.89 feet to a 1/2” rebar with a CEC
plastic cap set for the northeast corner of the herein described tract and the southeast corner
of'a 3.94 acre as recorded in Volume 192, Page 829, Deed Records, Kerr County, Texas;

5) THENCE South 14°25°48" East, with and along the east line of the herein described tract and
the west line.of a 5.94 acre tract as recorded in Volume 1222, Page 687, Official Public
Records, Kerr County, Texas, a distance of 311.82 feet to a 1/2” rebar found for the

Page 1 of 2
EXHIBIT A
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southeast corner of the herein described tract and the southwest corner of said 5.94 acre tract,
said point being in the north line of said 39.51 acre tract;

6) South 89°54°27" West, with and along the south line of the herein described tract and the
north line of said 39.51 acre tract, a distance 0f 716.63 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING
and containing 3.954 acres (172,274 square feet) of land, more or less.

The basis of bearing recited herein is the Texas State Plane Coordinate System (South Central
Zone 4204). This description was prepared from a survey made on the ground by employees of
Civil Engineering Consultants. The square footage recited herein is based on mathematical
calculations and is subject to the rules of rounding and significant numbers. There is a plat of
survey with even date.

Chester A. Varner, RPLS#4812

CATG b A s 2225 2y 7

Page 2 of 2




VOL. 192, PG. 829, D.R.K.C.

| oL 16384 0307

3.94 ACRES
e

NB4's2 09'E 438.89

FOR DETAIL OF BUILDINGS
SEE SHEET 2.

3.954 ACRES

VOL. 645, PG. 227, 0.P.RK.C.

LOT 1
SHADY GROVE
VOL. 1, PG. 48
o] ik
SB9'54'27 W 716.63"
39.51 ACRES
VOL. 257, PG. 608, D.R.K.C.
GRAPHIC SCALE
100 0 80 100
( s ree )
1 inch = 100 f2,
NOTES: LEGEND

1. BEARINGS ARE BASED ON NAD 83 TEXAS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM (SOUTH CENTRAL
ZONE 4204). m TELEPHONE PEDESTAL
2. A LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF EVEN SURVEY DATE HEREWITH ACCOMPANIES THIS PLAT.

1) POWER POLE
3. THE SQUARE FOOTAGE RECITED HEREIN IS BASED ON MATHEMATICAL CALCULATIONS AND IS
SUBJECT TO THE RULES OF ROUNDING AND SIGNIFICANT NUMBERS. —_— GUY WRE
4, THE ACREAGE OF THE PARENT TRACT WAS TAKEN FROM THE RECORDED INSTRUMENTS IS NOT —0— WIRE FENCE
BASED ON FIELD' DIMENSIONS.
—— OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINE

5. FIELD SURVEY COMPLETED AND MONUMENTS SET: MARCH 30, 2007.
6.

0.P.RK.C. = OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF KERR COUNTY, TEXAS. CIVII, ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS
D.RK.C. = DEED RECORDS OF KERR COUNTY, TEXAS. = 11650 I 10 WEST, SUITE 896

SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS  (210) 6841-9008

PARCEL 1
PLAT OF A SURVEY
DIST. NAME COUNTY
SAN ANTONIO OF PROPERTY KERR
TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION
R.C.S.J. DATE OF SURVEY
0000—00—000 KERRVILLE AIRPORT MARCH 27, 2007
TAKING: 3.954 ACRES (172,274 SQ. FT.)
EXHIBIT B . -
ana Na enorsond | REMAINDER: 0.000 ACRES I PAGE: 1 OF 2
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Pravisias heren which restdel tha sale. rantal er use of the descrbed porp-
erty because of color or race is nvalkd and ungnlorceable under Federal Law.
THE STATE OF TEXAS, }

COUNTY OF KERR

| heteby cedity that tis ingirument was FILED In the File Number Sequence
on the date and al the lime stamped hereon by me and was duty RECORDED
Inthe Official Public Records of Kem County, Texas on

CLT 1 82007

Oprent s,

RECORDER'S NOTE
AT TIME OF RECORDATION INSTRUMENT FOUND
TO BE INADEQUATE FOR BEST PHOTOGRAPHIC
REPRODUCTION DUE TO THE DEPTH & DARKNESS OF
PRINT, COLOR OF PRINT OR INK, BACKGROUND OF
PAPER, ILLEGIBILITY, CARBON OR PHOTQ COPYETC.

voL. 16380309




ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN

SERVICE DETAILS OF SERVICE PROVIDED TIMETABLE
Animal Control The provisions of animal control services | Immediately
shall be in effect following annexation of the | following
property. annexation
Code Enforcement The provisions of Code Enforcement | Immediately
services, including the application and | following

enforcement of building, electrical, plumbing,
and other related code requirements adopted
by the City of Kerrville shall be made
immediately to the area upon annexation.
The preparation of a zoning plan shall serve
as a basis for the zoning of land following
annexation. The adoption of the zoning plan
shall be in accordance with the procedures of
the City of Kerrville’s Zoning Ordinance.

annexation, zoning
to be concurrent
with annexation

Fire Protection and
Suppression

Fire protection and suppression personnel and
equipment from the Kerrville Fire
Department will be provided to the area as
needed.

Immediately
following
annexation

Fire Prevention

The services of the City of Kerrville Fire
Marshall shall be provided to the area.

Immediately
following
annexation.

Library

Future residents of the area, if any, will
continue to be entitled to utilize all City of
Kerrville Library facilities.

Immediately
following
annexation.

Parks and Recreation

City of Kerrville Parks and Recreation
services will continue to be available to any
area residents.

Immediately
following
annexation

Police Protection

Police protection personnel and equipment
shall be provided to the area immediately
upon annexation. Police enforcement and
protection services shall be provided through
regular patrol activities.

Immediately
following
annexation

EXHIBIT C




ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN (CONTINUED)

SERVICE DETAILS OF SERVICE PROVIDED TIMETABLE
Public Services - Street | Public streets not maintained by the Texas | Immediately
Department Department of Transportation within the area | following

shall be maintained by the City of Kerrville. | annexation
gaxﬁta?on (Refuse Refuse collection shall be available to any. | Immediately
ollection) residents of the annexed area at the same | following
costs and procedures as required of City | annexation
residents and businesses.

Traffic Engineering Traffic control devices and street markers | Immediately
shall be installed where deemed necessary by | following
the city street department, except as provided | annexation
by the Texas Department of Transportation.

Utilities (Water Extension of utilities to the property shall be

Distribution and | in accordance with the City of Kerrville’s ?:velct)};: property

Wastewater Collection)

Subdivision Ordinance.




PETITION REQUESTING ANNEXATION TO THE CORPORAIE LIMITS OF THE CITY
OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS, OF TEXAS ACRES OUT OF THE Ied
Survey, Abstract Number , KERR COUNTY TEXAS

TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERRVILLE,
TEXAS:

@%M g&&, A"Z}f? At ‘5’///92 IL’IS the sole owner of an approximately 3495 -1 acre tract of
land located adjacent to the incorporated limits of the City of Kerrville which is out of the
Survey No. Abstract No. Kerr County, Texas, and is more particularly
described as follows:

SEE EXHIBIT “A".
Ina orda with Texas Local Government Code §43.028,
A2 fﬂ??f— r/.e}f? hereby respectfully requests and petitions that the above-

described property be annexed into the ingorporated limits of the City of Kerrville, Texas.
SUBMITTED THIS /Z_day of 2k vy AV Y

By b D WS ER

Legally authorized signa

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

THE STATE OF TEXAS §
§

COUNTY OF KERR §

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the | _ day of & N O bg,{p Z@Oﬁ
by ‘Lavurie DeFohn-Grmey for and on behalf of
Bruce MEenzie

4]

(NLLLN LG, 13)1 Vi QJ? HMNLIAY,
NOTARY PUBLICG, STATE OF TEXAS

LAURIE DEJOHN-ERMEY

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES  |§ Printed Name: L(LUU/‘(G, Eej—l—"l’m‘ L::(‘Wl("’_y

My Commission Expires: _ 01-0%-2013




CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
ORDINANCE NO. -2010

ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE, SALE AND DELIVERY
OF § IN AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF "CITY OF
KERRVILLE, TEXAS COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2010"; SECURING THE
PAYMENT THEREOF BY AUTHORIZING THE LEVY OF AN ANNUAL
AD VALOREM TAX AND A PLEDGE OF CERTAIN SURPLUS
REVENUES OF THE CITY'S WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM;
AND APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A
PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT, A PURCHASE
CONTRACT, AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND ALL OTHER
INSTRUMENTS AND PROCEDURES RELATED THERETO

WHEREAS, the City of Kerrville, Texas (the "City") in Kerr County, Texas, is a
political subdivision of the State of Texas operating as a home-rule city pursuant to the Texas
Local Government Code and its City Charter which was initially approved by the qualified
voters of the City on February 24, 1942, and which has been amended from time to time, with
the most recent amendments being approved by the qualified voters of the City on May 4, 1999;
and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City hereby determines that it is necessary and
desirable to acquire, consiruct and equip extensions and improvements to the City's waterworks
and sewer system (collectively, the "Project"); and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City intends to finance the Projects from proceeds
derived from the sale of Certificates of Obligation issued by the City pursuant to Sections
271.041 - 271,065, Texas Local Government Code, as amended; and

WHEREAS, on December 8, 2009, the City Council adopted a resolution authorizing
and directing the City Secretary to give notice of intention to issue Certificates of Obligation;
and

WHEREAS, said notice has been duly published in the Kerrville Daily Times, which is a
newspaper of general circulation in the City in its issues of December 10, 2009, and December
17, 2009; and

WHEREAS, the City received no petition signed by at least five percent of the qualified
electors of the City protesting the issuance of such Certificates of Obligation; and

WHEREAS, it is considered to be in the best interest of the City that said interest
bearing Certificates of Obligation be issued; and




NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF KERRVILLE, KERR COUNTY, TEXAS, THAT:

SECTION ONE. AMOUNT AND PURPOSE OF THE CERTIFICATES OF
OBLIGATION. The certificate of obligation or certificates of obligation of the City further
described in Section 2 of this Ordinance and referred to herein as the “Certificates of Obligation"
are hereby authorized to be issued and delivered in the aggregate principal amount of -
5 FOR THE PURPOSE OF PAYING, IN WHOLE OR IN PART,
CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS TO BE INCURRED TO ACQUIRE, CONSTRUCT AND
EQUIP EXTENSIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS TO THE CITY'S WATERWORKS AND
SEWER SYSTEM AND TO PAY COSTS OF ISSUANCE.

SECTION TWO. DESIGNATION, DATE, DENOMINATIONS, NUMBERS AND
MATURITIES OF THE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION. Each certificate of
obligation issued pursuant to and for the purpose described in Section 1 of this Ordinance shall
be designated: C1TY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES
OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2010, and initially there shall be issued, sold and delivered hereunder
one fully registered certificate of obligation, without interest coupons, dated February 1, 2010, in
the aggregate principal amount of § . numbered T-1 (the "Initial Certificate of
Obligation™), with certificates of obligation issued in replacement thereof being in the
denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof and numbered consecutively from R-1
upward, all payable to the initial registered owner thereof (with the Initial Certificate of
Obligation being payable to the initial purchaser designated in Section 16 hereof), or to the regis-
tered assignee or assignees of said certificates of obligation or any pottion or portions thercof (in
cach case, the "Registered Owner"), and the certificates of obligation shall mature and be
payable serialty on Augast 15 in cach of the years and in the principal amounts, respectively, as
set forth in the following schedule:



2011 2021
2012 2022
2013 2023
2015 2025
2016 2026
2017 2027
2018 2028
2019 2029
2020 2030

The term "Certificates of Obligation” as used in this Ordinance shall mean and include
the Certificates of Obligation initially issued and delivered pursuant to this Ordinance and all
substitute certificates of obligation exchanged therefor, as well as all other substitute certificates
of obligation and replacement cettificates of obligation issued pursuant hereto, and the term
"Certificate of Obligation” shall mean any of the Certificates of Obligation.

SECTION THREE. INTEREST. The Certificates of Obligation shall bear interest
calculated on the basis of a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months from the dates
specified in the FORM CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION set forth in this Ordinance to their
respective dates of maturity or prior redemption at the following rates per annum:



2011 2021
2012 2022
2013 2023
2014 2024
2015 2025
2016 2026
2017 2027
2018 2028
2019 2029
2020 ‘ 2030

Said interest shall be payable in the manner provided and on the dates stated in the FORM OF
CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION set forth in this Ordinance.

SECTION FOUR. CHARACTERISTICS OF THE CERTIFICATES OF
OBLIGATION; APPROVAL OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT. (a)
Registration. Transfer. and Exchange; Authentication. The City shall keep or cause to be kept at
the designated corporate trust or commercial banking office (currently Jocated in Austin, Texas)
of WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A. (the "Paying Agent/Registrar") books or records for the
registration of the transfer and exchange of the Certificates of Obligation (the "Registration
Books"), and the City hereby appoints the Paying Agent/Registrar as its registrar and transfer
agent to keep such books or records and make such registrations of transfers and exchanges
under such reasonable regulations as the City and Paying Agent/Registrar may prescribe; and the
Paying Agent/Registrar shall make such registrations, transfers and exchanges as herein
provided. Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a copy of the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement
between the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar which is hereby approved in substantially final
form, and the Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem and City Secretary of the City are hereby authorized to
execute the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement and approve any changes in the final form
thereof.

The Paying Agent/Registrar shall obtain and record in the Registration Books the address
of the registered owner of each Certificate of Obligation to which payments with respect to the
Certificates of Obligation shall be mailed, as herein provided; but it shall be the duty of each

4



registered owner to notify the Paying Agent/Registrar in writing of the address to which
payments shall be mailed, and such interest payments shall not be mailed unless such notice has
been given. To the extent possible and under reasonable circumstances, all transfers of
Certificates of Obligation shall be made within three business days after request and presentation
thereof. The City shall have the right to inspect the Registration Books during regular business
hours of the Paying Agent/Registrar, but otherwise the Paying Agent/Registrar shall keep the
Registration Books confidential and, unless otherwise required by law, shall not permit their
inspection by any other entity. The Paying Agent/Registrar's standard or customary fees and
charges for making such registration, transfer, exchange and delivery of a substitute Certificate
of Obligation or Certificates of Obligation shall be paid as provided in the FORM
CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION set forth in this Ordinance. Registration of assignments,
transfers and exchanges of Certificates of Obligation shall be made in the manner provided and
with the effect stated in the FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION set forth in this
Ordinance. Each substitute Certificate of Obligation shall bear a letter and/or number to
distinguish it from each other Certificate of Obligation.

Except as provided in (¢} below, an authorized representative of the Paying
Agent/Registrar shall, before the delivery of any such Certificate of Obligation, date and
manually sign the Paying Agent/Registrar's Authentication Certificate, and no such Certificate of
Obligation shall be deemed to be issued or outstanding unless such Certificate is so executed.
The Paying Agent/Registrar promptly shall cancel all paid Certificates of Obligation and
Certificates of Obligation surrendered for transfer and exchange. No additional ordinances,
orders, or resolutions need be passed or adopted by the governing body of the City or any other
body or person so as to accomplish the foregoing transfer and exchange of any Certificate of
Obligation or portion thereof, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall provide for the printing,
execution, and delivery of the substitute Certificates of Obligation in the manner prescribed
herein, and said Certificates of Obligation shall be of type composition printed on paper with
lithographed or steel engraved borders of customary weight and sirength, Pursuant to Chapter
1201, Texas Government Code, and particularly Subchapter D and Section 1201.067 thereof, the
duty of transfer and exchange of Certificates of Obligation as aforesaid is hereby imposed upon
the Paying Agent/Registrar, and, upon the execution of said Certificate, the transferred and
exchanged Certificate of Obligation shall be valid, incontestable, and enforceable in the same
manner and with the same effect as the Certificates of Obligation which initially were issued and
delivered pursuant to this Ordinance, approved by the Attorney General, and registered by the
Comptroller of Public Accounts.

(b) Payment of Certificates of Obligation and Interest. The City hereby further appoints
the Paying Agent/Registrar to act as the paying agent for paying the principal of and interest on
the Certificates of Obligation, all as provided in this Ordinance. The Paying Agent/ Registrar
shall keep proper records of all payments made by the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar with
respect to the Certificates of Obligation.

(c) In General The Certificates of Obligation (i) shall be issued in fully registered form,
without interest coupons, with the principal of and interest on such Certificates of Obligation to
be payable only to the registered owners thereof, (ii) may be redeemed prior to their scheduled
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maturities (notice of which shall be given to the Paying Agent/Registrar by the City at least 50
days prior to any such redemption date), (iif) may be transferred and assigned, (iv) may be ex-
changed for other Certificates of Obligation, (v) shall have the characteristics, (vi) shall be
signed, sealed, executed and authenticated, (vii) shall be payable as to principal and interest, and
(viii) shall be administered and the Paying Agent/Registrar and the City shall have certain duties
and responsibilities with respect to the Certificates of Obligation, all as provided, and in the
manner and to the effect as required or indicated, in the FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF
OBLIGATION set forth in this Ordinance. The Initial Certificate of Obligation is not required to
be, and shall not be, authenticated by the Paying Agent/Registrar, but on each substitute
Certificate of Obligation issued in exchange for the Initial Certificate of Obligation issued under
this Ordinance the Paying Agent/Registrar shall execute the PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR'S
AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE, in the form set forth in the FORM OF CERTIFICATE
OF OBLIGATION. In licu of the executed Paying Agent/Registrar's Authentication Certificate
described above, the Initial Certificate of Obligation delivered on the closing date (as further
described in subparagraph (i) below) shall have attached thereto the Comptrollet's Registration
Certificate substantially in the form set forth in the FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF
OBLIGATION below, manually executed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of
Texas or by her duly authorized agent, which certificate shall be evidence that the Initial
Certificate of Obligation has been duly approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas
and that it is a valid and binding obligation of the City, and has been registered by the

Comptroller.

(d) Substitute Paying Agent/Registrar. The City covenants with the registered owners of
the Certificates of Obligation that at all times while the Certificates of Obligation are outstanding
the City will provide a competent and legally qualified bank, trust company, financial institution,
or other entity to act as and perform the services of Paying Agent/Registrar for the Certificates of
Obligation under this Ordinance, and that the Paying Agent/Registrar will be one entity and shall
be an entity registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The City reserves the
right to, and may, at its option, change the Paying Agent/Registrar upon not less than 120 days
written notice to the Paying Agent/Registrar, to be effective not later than 60 days prior to the
next principal or interest payment date after such notice. In the event that the entity at any time
acting as Paying Agent/Registrar (or its successor by merger, acquisition, or other method)
should resign or otherwise cease to act as such, the City covenants that promptly it will appoint a
competent and legally qualified bank, trust company, financial institution, or other agency to act
as Paying Agent/Registrar under this Ordinance. Upon any change in the Paying
Agent/Registrar, the previous Paying Agent/Registrar promptly shall transfer and deliver the
Registration Books (or a copy thereof), along with all other pertinent books and records relating
to the Certificates of Obligation, to the new Paying Agent/Registrar designated and appointed by
the City. Upon any change in the Paying Agent/Registrar, the City promptly will cause a written
notice thereof to be sent by the new Paying Agent/Registrar to each registered owner of the
Certificates of Obligation, by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, which notice also
shall give the address of the new Paying Agent/Registrar. By accepting the position and
performing as such, each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be deemed to have agreed to the provi-
sions of this Ordinance, and a certified copy of this Ordinance shall be delivered to each Paying
Agent/Registrar.
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(¢) Book-Entry Only System for Certificates of Obligation. The Certificates of
Obligation issued in exchange for the Certificates of Obligation initially issued to the purchaser
specified in Section 16 herein shall be initially issued in the form of a separate single fully
registered Certificate of Obligation for each of the maturities thereof. Upon initial issuance, the
ownership of each such Certificate of Obligation shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co.,
as nominee of The Depository Trust Company of New York ("DTC "), and except as provided in
subsection (i) hereof, all of the outstanding Certificates of Obligation shall be registered in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.

With respect to Certificates of Obligation registered in the name of Cede & Co., as
nominee of DTC, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or
obligation to any securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations
and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created ("DTC Participant") to hold
securities to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transaction among DTC
Participants or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an interest in the
Certificates of Obligation. Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the City and
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the
accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any
ownership interest in the Certificates of Obligation, (i) the delivery to any DTC Participant or
any other person, other than a registered owner of the Certificates of Obligation, as shown on the
Registration Books, of any notice with respect to the Certificates of Obligation, or (iii) the
payment to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than a registered owner of
Certificates of Obligation, as shown in the Registration Books of any amount with respect to
principal of or interest on the Certificates of Obligation. Notwithstanding any other provision of
this Ordinance to the contrary, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat
and consider the person in whose name each Certificate of Obligation is registered in the
Registration Books as the absolute owner of such Certificate of Obligation for the purpose of
payment of principal and interest with respect to such Certificate of Obligation, for the purpose
of registering transfers with respect to such Certificate of Obligation, and for all other purposes
whatsoever. The Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay all principal of and interest on the Certificates
of Obligation only to or upon the order of the registered owners, as shown in the Registration
Books as provided in this Ordinance, or their respective attorneys duly authorized in writing, and
all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the City's obligations
with respect to payment of principal of and interest on the Certificates of Obligation to the extent
of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than a registered owner, as shown in the
Registration Books, shall receive a Certificate of Obligation certificate evidencing the obligation
of the City to make payments of principal and interest pursuant to this Ordinance. Upon delivery
by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice to the effect that DTC has determined to
substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the provisions in this Ordinance
with respect to interest checks being mailed to the registered owner at the close of business on
the Record Date, the words "Cede & Co." in this Ordinance shall refer to such new nominee of
DTC.



() Successor Securities Deposilory; Transfers Outside Book-Entry Only Systems. In the
event that the City determines that DTC is incapable of discharging its responsibilities described
herein and in the representation letter of the City to DTC or that it is in the best interest of the
beneficial owners of the Certificates of Obligation that they be able to obtain certificated
Certificates of Obligation, the City shall (i) appoint a successor securities depository, qualified to
act as such under Section 17(a) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, notify
DTC and DTC Participants of the appointment of such successor securities depository and
transfer one or more separate Certificates of Obligation to such successor securities depository or
(i) notify DTC and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC of Certificates of
Obligation and transfer one or more separate Certificates of Obligation to DTC Participants
having Certificates of Obligation credited to their DTC accounts. In such event, the Certificates
of Obligation shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the Registration Books in the
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be registered in the name of the successor
securities depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name or names registered owners
transferring or exchanging Certificates of Obligation shall designate, in accordance with the
provisions of this Ordinance.

(e) Payments to Cede & Co. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to
the contrary, so long as any Certificate of Obligation is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as
nominee for DTC, all payments with respect to principal of and interest on such Certificate of
Obligation and all notices with respect to such Certificate of Obligation shall be made and given,
respectively, in the manner provided in the representation letter of the City to DTC.

(h) DIC Letter of Representation. The officers of the City are herein authorized for and
on behalf of the City and as officers of the City to enter into one or more Letters of
Representation with DTC establishing the book-entry only system with respect to the Certificates
of Obligation.

(i) Delivery of Initial Certificate of Obligation. On the closing date, one Initial
Certificate of Obligation representing the entire principal amount of the respective series of
Certificates of Obligation, payable in stated installments to the initial registered owner named in
Section 16 of this Ordinance or its designee, executed by manual or facsimile signature of the
Mayor or Mayor Pro-Tem and City Secretary of the City, approved by the Attorney General of
Texas, and registered and manually signed by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of
Texas, will be delivered to the initial purchaser or its designee. Upon payment for the Initial
Certificate of Obligation, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Initial Certificate of
Obligation and deliver to the initial registered owner or its designee one registered definitive
Certificate of Obligation for each year of maturity of the Cettificates of Obligation, in the
aggregate principal amount of all of the Certificates of Obligation for such maturity.

SECTION FIVE. FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION. The form of the
Certificates of Obligation, including the form of Paying Agent/Registrat’s Authentication
Certificate, the form of Assignment, and the form of Registration Certificate of the Comptroller
of Public Accounts of the State of Texas (to be attached only to the Certificates of Obligation
initially issued and delivered pursuant to this Ordinance), shall be, respectively, substantially as
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follows, with such appropriate variations, omissions, or insertions as are permitted or required by
this Ordinance.

FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION

R- UNITED STATES OF AMERICA PRINCIPAL
STATE OF TEXAS AMOUNT
COUNTY OF KERR $

CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION
SERIES 2010

INTEREST RATE  MATURITY DATE DATE OF SERIES CUSIP NO.

Yo August 15,20 February 1, 2010

REGISTERED OWNER:
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: DOLLARS

ON THE MATURITY DATE specified above, the CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS (the
"Cify"), being a political subdivision and home-rule municipality of the State of Texas, hereby
promises to pay to the Registered Owner specified above, or registered assigns (hereinafter
called the "Registered Owner"), the Principal Amount specified above, and to pay interest
thereon (calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months) from the date of
initial delivery of the series of which this Certificate of Obligation is a part (as shown on the
records of the Paying Agent/Registrar identified below) at the Interest Rate per annum specified
above, payable on February 15, 2011, and semiannually on each February 15 and August 15
thereafter to the Maturity Date specified above, or the date of redemption prior to maturity;
except that if this Certificate of Obligation is required to be authenticated and the date of its
authentication is later than the first Record Date (hereinafter defined), such Principal Amount
shall bear interest from the interest payment date next preceding the date of authentication,
unless such date of authentication is after any Record Date but on or before the next following
interest payment date, in which case such principal amount shall bear interest from such next fol-
lowing interest payment date; provided, however, that if on the date of authentication hereof the
interest on the Certificate of Obligation or Certificates of Obligation, if any, for which this
Certificate of Obligation is being exchanged is due but has not been paid, then this Certificate of
Obligation shall bear interest from the date to which such interest has been paid in full.

THE PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST ON this Certificate of Obligation are payable
in Iawful money of the United States of America, without exchange or collection charges. The
principal of this Certificate of Obligation shail be paid to the Registered Owner hereof upon

"9



presentation and surrender of this Certificate of Obligation at maturity or upon the date fixed for
redemption prior to maturity, at the designated corporate frust or commercial banking office
(currently located in , Texas) of , which is the "Paying
Agent/Registrar" for this Certificate of Obligation. The payment of interest on this Certificate of
Obligation shall be made by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the Registered Owner hereof on each
interest payment date by check, dated as of such interest payment date, drawn by the Paying
Agent/Registrar on, and payable solely from, funds of the City required by the Ordinance
authorizing the issuance of this Certificate of Obligation (the "Ordinance") to be on deposit with
the Paying Agent/Registrar for such purpose as hereinafter provided; and such check shall be
sent by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid, on each
such interest payment date, to the Registered Owner hereof, at its address as it appeared on the
last business day of the month next preceding each such date (the "Record Date") on the Regis-
tration Books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar, as hereinafter described. In the event of a
non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, and for 30 days thereafter, a new record
date for such interest payment (a "Special Record Date") will be established by the Paying
Agent/Registrar if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the
City. Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due
interest (the "Special Payment Date" which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall
be sent at lcast five business days prior to the Special Record Date by United States mail, first
class, postage prepaid, to the address of each Registered Owner appearing on the Registration
Books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the last business day next
preceding the date of mailing of such notice. Any accrued interest due upon the redemption of
this Certificate of Obligation prior to maturity as provided herein shall be paid to the Registered
Owner upon presentation and surrender of this Certificate of Obligation for redemption and
payment at the designated corporate trust office of the Paying Agent/Registrar (unless the
redemption date is a regularly scheduled interest payment date, in which case accrued interest on
such redeemed Certificates of Obligation shall be payable in the regular manner described
above). The City covenants with the Registered Owner of this Certificate of Obligation that on
or before each principal payment date, interest payment date and accrued interest payment date
for this Certificate of Obligation it will make available to the Paying Agent/Registrar, from the
"nterest and Sinking Fund" created by the Ordinance, the amounts required to provide for the
payment, in immediately available funds, of all principal of and interest on the Certificates of
Obligation, when due.

IF THE DATE for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Certificate of
Obligation shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the
city where the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are authorized by law or executive order to
close, or the United States Postal Service is not open for business, then the date for such payment
shall be the next succeeding day which is not such a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on
which banking institutions are authorized to close, or the United States Postal Service is not open
for business; and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect as if made on the
original date payment was due.

THIS CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION is one of a series of Certificates of Obligation
dated as of February 1, 2010, authorized in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the
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State of Texas in the aggregate principal amount of § FOR THE PURPOSE OF
PAYING, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS T0 BE INCURRED
TO AND TO PAY COSTS OF ISSUANCE.

ON AUGUST 15, 20, or on any date thereafter, the Certificates of Obligation of this
Series maturing on and after August 15, 20_, may be redeemed prior to their scheduled
maturities, at the option of the City, with funds derived from any available and lawful source, as
a whole, or in part (provided that a portion of a Certificate of Obligation may be redeemed only
in an integral multiple of $5,000), at the redemption price of the principal amount of Certificates
of Obligation called for redemption, plus accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for
redemption, The City shall determine the maturity or maturities, and the principal amount of
Certificates of Obligation within each maturity, to be redeemed. If less than all Certificates of
Obligation of a maturity are to be redeemed, the particular Certificates of Obligation to be
redeemed shall be selected by the Paying Agent/Registrar at random and by lot.

ADDITIONALLY, THE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION MATURING on August
15 in the years 20, 20_ and 20__ (collectively, the "“Term Certificates") are subject to
mandatory tedemption prior to maturity in patt by lot, at a price equal to the principal amount
thereof plus accrued interest to the date of redemption, on the dates and in the respective
principal amounts shown below:

TERM CERTIFICATES MATURING TERM CERTIFICATES MATURING
AuGusT 15,20 AuGUST 15,20 __
Mandatory Redemption Mandatory Redemption
Redemption Date Amount Redemption Date Amount
August 15,20 August 15,20
August 15,20 August 15,20
August 15,20 August 15,20
{maturity) (maturity)

TERM CERTIFICATES MATURING

AUGUST 15,20
Mandatory Redemption
Redemption Date Amount
August 15,20 3

August 15,20

August 15,20
(maturity)
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The principal amount of the Term Certificates required to be redeemed pursuant to the operation
of such mandatory redemption requirements may be reduced, at the option of the City, by the
principal amount of any such Term Certificates which, prior to the date of the mailing of notice
of such mandatory redemption, (i} shall have been acquired by the City and delivered to the
Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation, (ii) shall have been purchased and canceled by the
Paying Agent/Registrar at the request of the City, or (iii) shall have been redecmed pursuant to
the optional redemption provisions described in the preceding paragraph and not theretofore
credited against a mandatory redemption requirement.

AT LEAST 30 DAYS prior to the date fixed for any redemption of Certificates of
Obligation or portions thereof prior to maturity, a written notice of such redemption shall be sent
by the Paying Agent/Registrar by United States mail, first-class postage prepaid to the Registered
Owner of each Certificate of Obligation to be redeemed at its address as it appearcd on the
Registration Books maintained by the Paying Agent/Registrar on the day such notice of
redemption is mailed. Any notice of redemption so mailed shall be conclusively presumed to
have been duly given irrespective of whether received by the Registered Owner. The notice may
state (1) that it is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys, in an amount equal to the amount
necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying Agent/Registrar no later than the redemption
date, or (2) that the City retains the right to rescind such notice at any time prior to the scheduled
redemption date if the City delivers a certificate of an authorized representative to the Paying
Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice, and
such notice and optional redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys are not so deposited or
if such notice is so rescinded. By the date fixed for any such redemption, due provision shall be
made with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of the required redemption price for the
Certificates of Obligation or portions thereof which are to be so redeemed. If such written notice
of redemption is mailed (and not rescinded), and if due provision for such payment is made, all
as provided above, the Certificates of Obligation or portions thereof which are to be so redeemed
thereby automatically shall be treated as redeemed prior to their scheduled maturities, and they
shall not bear interest after the date fixed for redemption, and they shall not be regarded as being
outstanding except for the right of the Registered Owner to receive the redemption price from the
Paying Agent/Registrar out of the funds provided for such payment. If a portion of any
Certificate of Obligation shall be redeemed a substitute Certificate of Obligation or Certificates
of Obligation having the same maturity date, bearing interest at the same rate, in any
denomination or denominations in any integral multiple of $5,000, at the written request of the
Registered Owner, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed portion
thereof, will be issued to the Registered Owner upon the surrender thereof for cancellation, at the
expense of the City, all as provided in the Ordinance.

ALL CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION OF THIS SERIES are issuable solely as
fully registered Certificates of Obligation, without interest coupons, in the denomination of any
integral multiple of $5,000. As provided in the Ordinance, this Certificate of Obligation, may, at
the request of the Registered Owner or the assignee or assignees hereof, be assigned, transferred
and exchanged for a like aggregate principal amount of fully registered Certificates of
Obligation, without interest coupons, payable to the appropriate Registered Owner, assignee or
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assignees, as the case may be, having the same denomination or denominations in any integral
multiple of $5,000 as requested in writing by the appropriate Registered Owner, assignee or
assignees, as the case may be, upon surrender of this Certificate of Obligation to the Paying
Agent/Registrar for cancellation, all in accordance with the form and procedures set forth in the
Ordinance. Among other requirements for such assignment and transfer, this Certificate of
Obligation must be presented and surrendered to the Paying Agent/Registrar, together with
proper instruments of assignment, in form and with guarantee of signatures satisfactory to the
Paying Agent/Registrar, evidencing assignment of this Certificate of Obligation or any portion or
portions hereof in any integral multiple of $5,000 to the assignee or assignees in whose name or
names this Certificate of Obligation or any such portion or portions hereof is or are to be
registered. The form of Assignment printed or endorsed on this Certificate of Obligation may be
executed by the Registered Owner to evidence the assignment hereof, but such method is not
exclusive, and other instruments of assignment satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar may be
used to evidence the assignment of this Certificate of Obligation or any portion or portions
hereof from time to time by the Registered Owner. The Paying Agent/Registrar's reasonable
standard or customary fees and charges for transferring and exchanging any Certificate of
Obligation or portion thereof shall be paid by the City, but any taxes or governmental charges
required to be paid with respect thereto shall be paid by the one requesting such assignment,
transfer or exchange as a condition precedent to the exercise of such privilege. The Paying
Agent/Registrar shall not be required to make any such transfer or exchange during the period
commencing with the close of business on any Record Date and ending with the opening of
business on the next following principal or interest payment date,

WHENEVER THE BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP of this Certificate of Obligation is
determined by a book entry at a securities depository for the Certificates of Obligation, the
foregoing requirements of holding, delivering or transferring this Certificate of Obligation shall
be modified to require the appropriate person or entity to meet the requirements of the securities
depository as to registering or transferring the book entry to produce the same effect.

I
IN THE EVENT any Paying Agent/Registrar for the Certificates of Obligation is
changed by the City, resigns, or otherwise ceases to act as such, the City has covenanted in the
Ordinance that it promptly will appoint a competent and legally qualified substitute therefor, and
cause written notice thereof to be mailed to the Registered Owners of the Certificates of
Obligation.

IT IS HERERY certified, recited, and covenanted that this Certificate of Obligation has
been duly and validly authorized, issued, and delivered; that all acts, conditions, and things
required or proper to be performed, exist, and be done precedent to or in the authorization,
issuance, and delivery of this Certificate of Obligation have been performed, existed, and been
done in accordance with law: that this Certificate of Obligation is a general obligation of the
City, issued on the full faith and credit thereof} and that ad valorem taxes sufficient to provide for
the payment of the interest on and principal of this Certificate of Obligation, as such interest
comes due, and as such principal matures, have been levied and ordered to be levied against all
taxable property in the City, and have been pledged for such payment, within the limits
prescribed by law and that this Certificate of Obligation is additionally secured by a lien on and
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pledge of Surplus Revenues received by the City from the ownership and operation of the City's
Waterworks and Sewer System, all as provided in the Ordinance authorizing the Certificates of
Obligation.

THE CITY also has reserved the right to amend the Ordinance as provided therein, and
under some (but not all) circumstances amendments thereto must be approved by the registered
owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the outstanding Cenrtificates of Obligation.

BY BECOMING the Registered Owner of this Certificate of Obligation, the Registered
Owner thereby acknowledges all of the terms and provisions of the Ordinance, agrecs to be
bound by such terms and provisions, acknowledges that the Ordinance is duly recorded and
available for inspection in the official minutes and records of the governing body of the City, and
agrees that the terms and provisions of this Certificate of Obligation and the Ordinance constitute
a contract between each Registered Owner hereof and the City.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Certificate of Obligation to be
signed with the manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor or Mayor Pro-Tem of the City, and
countersigned with the manual or facsimile signature of the City Secretary of the City, and the
official seal of the City has been duly impressed, or placed in facsimile, on this Certificate of
Obligation.

Countersigned:
(facsimile signature) (facsimile signature)
City Secretary, City of Kerrville, Texas Mayor [Pro-Tem], City of Kerrville, Texas
(CITY SEAL)
FORM OF REGISTRATION CERTIFICATE
OF THE COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS:
COMPTROLLER'S REGISTRATION  CERTIFICATE: REGISTER NO.

I hereby certify that this Cettificate of Obligation has been examined, certified as to
validity, and approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, and that this Certificate of
Obligation has been registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.

Witness my signature and seal this

(COMPTROLLER'S SEAL) Comptroller of Public Accounts
of the State of Texas

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank]
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FORM OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR'S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR'S AUTHENTICATION CERTIFICATE
(To be executed if this Certificate of Obligation is not accompanied by an
executed Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the
State of Texas)

It is hereby certified that this Certificate of Obligation has been issued under the
provisions of the Ordinance described in the text of this Certificate of Obligation; and that this
Certificate of Obligation has been issued in exchange for a certificate of obligation or certificates
of obligation, or a portion of a certificate of obligation or certificates of obligation of a series
which originally was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by
the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas.

Dated WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.

Austin, Texas
Paying Agent/Registrar

By

Authorized Representative

[The remainder of this page infentionally left blank]
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FORM OF ASSIGNMENT:

ASSIGNMENT

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned Registered Owner of this Certificate of
Obligation, or duly authorized representative or attorney thereof, hereby sells, assigns and
transfers  this  Certificate  of  Obligation —and all  rights hereunder  unto

/ /
(Assignee's Social Security or (Please print or typewrite Assignee's name and address,
Taxpayer Identification Number) including zip code)

and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints
attorney to transfer the registration of this Certificate of Obligation on the Paying
Agent/Registrar's Registration Books with full power of substitution in the premises.

Dated:

Signature Guaranteed:

NOTICE: Signature(s) must be guaranteed NOTICE: The signature above must
by a member firm of the New York Stock correspond with the name of the Registered
Exchange or a commercial bank or trust Owner as it appears upon the front of this
company. Cettificate of Obligation in every particular,

without alteration or enlargement or any
change whatsoever,

INITIAL CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION INSERTIONS
The Initial Certificate of Obligation shall be in the form set forth above except that:

(A) Immediately under the name of the Certificate of Obligation, the headings
"INTEREST RATE" and "MATURITY DATE" shall be completed with the
words "As shown below" and "CUSIP NO. " shall be deleted.

(B)  The first paragraph shall be deleted and the following shall be inserted:

"ON THE RESPECTIVE MATURITY DATES specified below, the CITY OF
KERRVILLE, TEXAS (the "City"), being a political subdivision and municipal corporation of
the State of Texas, hereby promises to pay to the Registered Owner specified above, ot
registered assigns (hereinafter called the "Registered Owner"), the respective Principal
Installments specified below, and to pay intercst thereon (calculated on the basis of a 360-day
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year composed of twelve 30-day months) from the date of initial delivery of the series of which
this Certificate of Obligation is a part at the respective Interest Rates per annum specified below,
payable on February 15, 2011, and semiannually on each February 15 and August 15 thereafter
to the respective Maturity Dates specified below, or the date of redemption prior to maturity.
The respective Maturity Dates, Principal Installments and Interest Rates for this Certificate of
Obligation are set forth in the following schedule:

[Insert principal and interest information from Sections 2 and 3 above]"
(C)  The Initial Cettificate of Obligation shall be numbered "T-1."

SECTION SIX. INTEREST AND SINKING FUND; TAX LEVY. A special Interest
and Sinking Fund for the Certificates of Obligation (the "Inferest and Sinking Fund") is hereby
created solely for the benefit of the Certificates of Obligation, and the Interest and Sinking Fund
shall be established and maintained by the City at an official depository bank of the City. The
Tnterest and Sinking Fund shall be kept separate and apart from all other funds and accounts of
the City, and shall be used only for paying the interest on and principal of the Certificates of
Obligation. All ad valorem taxes levied and collected for and on account of the Certificates of
Obligation shall be deposited, as collected, to the credit of the Interest and Sinking Fund. During
each year while any of the Certificates of Obligation or interest thereon are outstanding and
unpaid, the City shall compute and ascertain a rate and amount of ad valorem tax which, together
with "Surplus Revenues" with respect to the Certificates of Obligation (as described in Section 7
below) budgeted to pay principal and interest coming due during such fiscal year, will be
sufficient to raise and produce the money required to pay the interest on the Certificates of
Obligation as such interest comes due, and to provide and maintain a sinking fund adequate to
pay the principal of its Certificates of Obligation as such principal matures (but never less than
2% of the original principal amount of the Certificates of Obligation as a sinking fund each
year); and said tax shall be based on the latest approved tax rolls of the City, with full allowance
being made for tax delinquencies and the cost of tax collection. Said rate and amount of ad
valorem tax is hereby levied, and is hereby ordered to be levied, against all taxable property in
the City for each year while any of the Certificates of Obligation or interest thereon are
outstanding and unpaid; and said tax shall be assessed and collected each such year and de-
posited to the credit of the respective Interest and Sinking Fund. Said ad valorem taxes sufficient
to provide for the payment of the interest on and principal of the Certificates of Obligation, as
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such interest comes due and such principal matures, are hereby pledged for such payment, within
the limit prescribed by law.

SECTION SEVEN. SURPLUS REVENUES. Pursuant to Section 271.052, Texas
Local Government Code, as amended, and Chapter 1502, Texas Government Code, as amended,
the Certificates of Obligation additionally shall be payable from and secured by surplus revenues
derived by the City from the City's Waterworks and Sewer System remaining after (a) payment
of all amounts constituting operation and maintenance expenses of said Waterworks and Sewer
System, and (b) payment of all debt service, reserve, and other requirements and amounts
required to be paid under all ordinances heretofore or hereafier authorizing (i) all bonds and (ii)
all other obligations not on a parity with the Certificates of Obligation, which are payable from
and secured by any Waterworks and Sewer System revenues, and (c) payment of all amounts
payable from any Waterworks and Sewer System revenues pursuant to contracts heretofore or
hereafter entered into by the City in accordance with law (the "Surplus Revenues"). 1f for any
reason the City fails to deposit ad valorem taxes levied pursuant to Section 6 hereof to the credit
of the Interest and Sinking Fund in an amount sufficient to pay, when due, the principal of and
interest on the Certificates of Obligations, then Surplus Revenues may be deposited to the credit
of the Interest and Sinking Fund and used to pay such principal and/or interest. The City
reserves, and shall have, the right to issue bonds and other obligations not on a parity with the
Certificates of Obligation, and to enter into contracts, in accordance with applicable laws, to be
payable from and secured by any Waterworks and Sewer System revenues.

SECTION EIGHT. CONSTRUCTION FUND. There is hereby created and
established in the depository of the City, a fund to be called the City of Kerrville, Texas
Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation (Series 2010) Construction Fund
(herein called the "Construction Fund"). Proceeds from the sale and delivery of the Certificates
of Obligation (other than proceeds representing accrued interest on the Cettificates of Obligation
and any premium on the Certificates of Obligation that is not used by the City to pay costs of
issuance in accordance with the provisions of Section 1201.042(d), Texas Government Code, as
amended, which shall be deposited in the Interest and Sinking Fund) shall be deposited in the
Construction Fund. Money in the Construction Fund shall be subject to disbursements by the
City for payment of all costs incurred in carrying out the purpose for which the Certificates of
Obligation are issued, including but not limited to costs for construction, engineeting,
architecture, financing, financial consultants and legal services related to the project being
financed with proceeds of the Certificates of Obligation and the issuance of the Certificates of
Obligation. All funds remaining on deposit in the Construction Fund upon completion of the
projects being financed with the proceeds from the Certificates of Obligation, if any, shall be
transferred to the Interest and Sinking Fund.

SECTION NINE. INVESTMENTS. Funds on deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund
and the Construction Fund shall be secured by the depository bank of the City in the manner and
to the extent required by law to secure other public funds of the City and may be invested from
time to time in any investment authorized by applicable law, including but not limited fo the
Public Funds Investment Act (Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code), and the City's
investment policy adopted in accordance with the provisions of the Public Funds Investment Act;
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provided, however, that investments purchased for and held in the Interest and Sinking Fund
shall have a final maturity no later than the next principal or interest payment date for which
such funds are required, and investments purchased for and held in the Construction Fund shall
have a final maturity of not later than the date the City reasonably expects the funds from such
investments will be required to pay costs of the projects for which the Certificates of Obligation
were issued. Income and profits from such investments shall be deposited in the respective Fund
which holds such investments; however, any such income and profits from investments in the
Construction Fund may be withdrawn by the City and deposited in the Interest and Sinking Fund
to pay all or a portion of the interest next coming due on the Certificates of Obligation. It is
further provided, however, that any interest earnings on Certificate of Obligation proceeds which
are required to be rebated to the United States of America pursuant to Section 14 hereof in order
to prevent the Certificates of Obligation from being arbitrage bonds shall be so rebated and not
considered as interest earnings for the purposes of this Section.

SECTION TEN. EMPOWERED. The City Manager and Director of Finance are
hereby ordered to do any and all things necessary to accomplish the transfer of monies to the
Interest and Sinking Fund of this issue in ample time to pay such items of principal and interest.

SECTION ELEVEN, DEFEASANCE OF THE CERTIFICATES OF
OBLIGATION. () Defeasance. Any Certificate of Obligation and the interest thereon shall be
deemed to be paid, retired and no longer outstanding (a "Defeased Certificate of Obligation™)
within the meaning of this Ordinance, except to the extent provided in subsection (d) of this
Section, when payment of the principal of such Certificate of Obligation, plus interest thereon to
the due date (whether such due date be by reason of maturity or otherwise) either (i) shall have
been made or caused to be made in accordance with the terms thereof, or (ii) shall have been
provided for on or before such due date by irrevocably depositing with or making available to the
Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance with an escrow agreement or other instrument (the
“"Future Escrow Agreement") for such payment (1)lawful money of the United States of
Amggica sufficient to make such payment or (2) Defeasance Securities that mature as to principal
and interest in such amounts and at such times as will insure the availability, without
reinvestment, of sufficient money to provide for such payment, and when proper arrangements
have been made by the City with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the payment of its services until
all Defeased Certificates of Obligation shall have become due and payable. At such time as a
Certificate of Obligation shall be deemed to be a Defeased Certificate of Obligation hereunder,
as aforesaid, such Certificate of Obligation and the interest thereon shall no longer be secured by,
payable from, or entitled to the benefits of, the ad valorem taxes or revenues herein levied and
pledged as provided in this Ordinance, and such principal and interest shall be payable solely
from such money or Defeasance Securitics. Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Ordinance to the contrary, it is hereby provided that any determination not to redeem Defeased
Certificates of Obligation that is made in conjunction with the payment arrangements specified
in subsection (a)(i) or (ii) of this Section shall not be irrevocable, provided that: (1) in the
proceedings providing for such payment arrangements, the City expressly reserves the right to
call the Defeased Certificates of Obligation for redemption; (2) gives notice of the reservation of
that right to the owners of the Defeased Certificates of Obligation immediately following the
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making of the payment arrangements; and (3) directs that notice of the reservation be included in
any redemption notices that it authorizes.

(b) Investment of Funds in Defeasance Securities. Any moneys so deposited with the
Paying Agent/Registrar may at the written direction of the City be invested in Defeasance
Securities, maturing in the amounts and times as hercinbefore set forth, and all income from such
Defeasance Securities received by the Paying Agent/Registrar that is not required for the
payment of the Cettificates of Obligation and interest thereon, with respect to which such money
has been so deposited, shall be turned over to the City, or deposited as directed in writing by the
City. Any Future Escrow Agreement pursuant to which the money and/or Defeasance Securities
are held for the payment of Defeased Certificates of Obligation may contain provisions
permitting the investment or reinvestment of such moneys in Defeasance Securities or the
substitution of other Defeasance Securities upon the satisfaction of the requirements specified in
subsection (a)(i) or (ii) of this Section. All income from such Defeasance Securities received by
the Paying Agent/Registrar which is not required for the payment of the Defeased Certificates of
Obligation, with respect to which such money has been so deposited, shall be remitted to the City
or deposited as directed in writing by the City.

(c) Definition of Defeasance Securilies. The term "Defeasance Securities" means (i)
direct, noncallable obligations of the United States of America, including obligations that are
unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America, (ii) noncallable obligations of an
agency or instrumentality of the United States of America, including obligations that are
unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agency or instrumentality and that, on the date of
the purchase thereof are rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized investment
rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent, (iii) noncallable obligations of a state or an
agency or a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of a state that have been refunded
and that, on the date on the date the governing body of the City adopts or approves the
proceedings authorizing the financial arrangements are rated as to investment quality by a
nationally recognized investment rating firm not less than AAA or its equivalent, and (iv) any
other then authorized securities or obligations under applicable state law that may be used to
defease obligations such as the Certificates of Obligation.

(d) Duties of Paying Agent/Registrar. Until all Defeased Certificates of Obligation shall
have become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall perform the services of Paying
Agent/Registrar for such Defeased Certificates of Obligation the same as if they had not been
defeased, and the City shall make proper arrangements {0 provide and pay for such services as
required by this Ordinance.

(e) Selection of Certificates of Obligation to be Defeased. In the event that the City
elects to defease less than all of the principal amount of Certificates of Obligation of a maturity,
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall select, or cause to be selected, such amount of Certificates of
Obligation by such random method as it deems fair and appropriate.

SECTION TWELVE. DAMAGED, MUTILATED, LOST, STOLEN, OR DI-
STROYED CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION. (@)  Replacement Certificates of
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Obligation. In the event any outstanding Certificate of Obligation is damaged, mutilated, lost,
stolen, or destroyed, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cause to be printed, executed, and de-
livered, a new certificate of obligation of the same principal amount, maturity, and interest rate,
as the damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Certificate of Obligation, in replacement for
such Certificate of Obligation in the manner hercinafter provided.

(b) Application for Replacement Certificates of Obligation. Application for replacement
of damaged, mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Certificates of Obligation shall be made by the
registered owner thereof to the Paying Agent/Registrar.  In every case of loss, theft, or
destruction of a Certificate of Obligation, the registered owner applying for a replacement
certificate of obligation shall furnish to the City and to the Paying Agent/Registrar such security
or indemnity as may be required by them to save each of them harmless from any loss or damage
with respect thereto. Also, in every case of loss, theft, or destruction of a Certificate of
Obligation, the registered owner shall furnish to the City and to the Paying Agent/Registrar
evidence to their satisfaction of the loss, theft, or destruction of such Certificate of Obligation, as
the case may be. In every case of damage or mutilation of a Certificate of Obligation, the
registered owner shall surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar for cancellation the Certificate of
Obligation so damaged or mutilated.

(c) No Default Occurred. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, in
the event any such Certificate of Obligation shall have matured, and no default has occurred
which is then continuing in the payment of the principal of, redemption premium, if any, or
interest on the Certificate of Obligation, the City may authorize the payment of the same
(without surrender thereof except in the case of a damaged or mutilated Certificate of Obligation)
instead of issuing a replacement Certificate of Obligation, provided security or indemnity is
furnished as above provided in this Section.

(d) Charge for Issuing Replacement Certificates of Obligation. Prior to the issuance of
any replacement certificate of obligation, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall charge the registered
owner of such Certificate of Obligation with all legal, printing, and other expenses in connection
therewith. Every replacement certificate of obligation issued pursuant to the provisions of this
Section by virtue of the fact that any Certificate of Obligation is lost, stolen, or destroyed shall
constitute a contractual obligation of the City whether or not the lost, stolen, or destroyed
Certificate of Obligation shall be found at any time, or be enforceable by anyone, and shall be
entitled to all the benefits of this Ordinance equally and proportionately with any and all other
Certificates of Obligation duly issued under this Ordinance.

(e) Authority for Issuing Replacement Certificates of Obligation. Tn accordance with
Chapter 1201, Texas Government Code, as amended, this Section of this Ordinance shall
constitute authority for the issuance of any such replacement certificate of obligation without
necessity of further action by the governing body of the City or any other body or person, and the
duty of the replacement of such certificates of obligations is hereby authorized and imposed upon
the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver such
Certificates of Obligation in the form and manner and with the effect, as provided in Section 4(a)
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of fhis Ordinance for Certificates of Obligation issued in exchange for other Certificates of
Obligation.

SECTION THIRTEEN. CUSTODY, APPROVAL, AND REGISTRATION OF
THE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION; BOND COUNSEL'S OPINION, BOND
INSURANCE, AND CUSIP NUMBERS. The Mayor or Mayor Pro-Tem of the City is hereby
authorized to have control of the Certificates of Obligation initially issued and delivered
hereunder and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining to the Certificates of Obligation
pending their delivery and their investigation, examination, and approval by the Attorney
General of the State of Texas, and their registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the
State of Texas. Upon registration of the Certificates of Obligation said Comptroller of Public
Accounts (or a deputy designated in writing to act for said Comptroller) shall manually sign the
Comptrolier's Registration Certificate attached to such Certificates of Obligation, and the seal of
said Comptroller shall be impressed, or placed in facsimile, on such Certificate. The approving
legal opinion of the City's Bond Counsel (with an appropriate certificate pertaining thereto
executed by facsimile signature of the City Secretary of the City), a statement regarding the
issuance of a municipal bond insurance policy to secure payment of debt service on the
Certificates of Obligation, if any, and the assigned CUSIP numbeis may, at the option of the
City, be printed on the Certificates of Obligation issued and delivered under this Ordinance, but
neither shall have any legal effect, and shall be solely for the convenience and information of the

registered owners of the Certificates of Obligation.

SECTION FOURTEEN. COVENANTS REGARDING TAX-EXEMPTION OF
INTEREST ON THE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION. (@) Covenants. The City
covenants to take any action necessary to assure, OF refrain from any action which would
adversely affect, the treatment of the Certificates of Obligation as obligations described in
section 103 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), the interest on
which is not includable in the "gross income" of the holder for purposes of federal income
taxation. In furtherance thereof, the City covenants as follows:

(1) to take any action to assure that no more than 10 percent of the proceeds of
the Certificates of Obligation or the projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited
to a reserve fund, if any) are used for any "private business use," as defined in section
141(b)(6) of the Code or, if mote than 10 percent of the proceeds of the Certificates of
Obligation or the projects financed therewith are so used, such amounts, whether or not
received by the City, with respect to such private business use, do not, under the terms of
this Ordinance or any underlying arrangement, directly or indirectly, secure or provide
for the payment of more than 10 percent of the debt setvice on the Certificates of
Obligation, in contravention of section 141(b)(2) of the Code;

(2) to take any action to assure that in the event that the "private business use"
described in subsection (1) hereof exceeds 5 percent of the proceeds of the Certificates of
Obligation or the projects financed therewith (less amounts deposited into a resetve fund,
if any) then the amount in excess of 5 percent is used for a "private business use" which
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is "related” and not "disproportionate,” within the meaning of section 141(b)(3) of the
Code, to the governmental use; ‘

(3) to take any action to assure that no amount which is greater than the lesser of
$5,000,000, or 5 percent of the proceeds of the Certificates of Obligation (less amounts
deposited into a reserve fund, if any) is directly or indirectly used to finance loans to
persons, other than state or local governmental units, in contravention of section 141(c)
of the Code;

(4) to refrain from taking any action which would otherwise result in the
Certificates of Obligation being treated as "private activity bonds" within the meaning of
section 141(b) of the Code;

(5) to refiain from taking any action that would result in the Certificates of
Obligation being "federally guaranteed" within the meaning of section 149(b) of the
Code;

(6) to refrain from using any portion of the proceeds of the Certificates of
Obligation, directly or indirectly, to acquire or to replace funds which were used, directly
or indirectly, fo acquire investment property (as defined in section 148(b)(2) of the Code)
which produces a materially higher yield over the term of the Certificates of Obligation,
other than investment property acquired with --

(A) proceeds of the Certificates of Obligation invested for a reasonable
temporary petiod of three years ot fess until such proceeds are needed for the
purpose for which the Certificates of Obligation are issued,

(B) amounts invested in a bona fide debt service fund, within the meaning
of section 1.148-1(b) of the Treasury Regulations, and

(C) amounts deposited in any reasonably required reserve or replacement
fund to the extent such amounts do not exceed 10 percent of the proceeds of the
Certificates of Obligation;

(7) to otherwise restrict the use of the proceeds of the Certificates of Obligation
or amounts treated as proceeds of the Certificates of Obligation, as may be necessary, SO
that the Certificates of Obligation do not otherwise contravenc the requirements of
section 148 of the Code (relating to arbitrage) and, to the extent applicable, section
149(d) of the Code (relating to advance refundings);

(8) to pay to the United States of America at least once during each five-year
period (beginning on the date of delivery of the Certificates of Obligation) an amount that
is at least equal to 90 percent of the "Excess Earnings," within the meaning of section
148(f) of the Code and to pay to the United States of America, not later than 60 days after
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the Certificates of Obligation have been paid in full, 100 percent of the amount then
required to be paid as a result of Excess Earnings under section 148(f) of the Code; and

(9) to assure that the proceeds of the Certificates of Obligation will be used solely
for new money projects.

(b) Rebate Fund. Tn order to facilitate compliance with the above covenant (8), a
"Rebate Fund" is hereby established by the City for the sole benefit of the United States of
America, and such fund shall not be subject to the claim of any other person, including without
limitation the bondholders. The Rebate Fund is established for the additional purpose of
compliance with section 148 of the Code.

(¢} Proceeds. The City understands that the term "proceeds” includes "disposition
proceeds” as defined in the Treasury Regulations and, in the case of refunding bonds, transferred
proceeds (if any) and proceeds of the refunded bonds expended prior to the date of issuance of
the Certificates of Obligation, It is the understanding of the City that the covenants contained
herein are intended to assure compliance with the Code and any regulations or rulings
promulgated by the U.S. Department of the Treasury pursuant thereto. In the event that
regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated which modify or expand provisions of the Code,
as applicable to the Certificates of Obligation, the City will not be required to comply with any
covenant contained herein to the extent that such failure to comply, in the opinion of nationally
recognized bond counsel, will not adversely affect the exemption from federal income taxation
of interest on the Certificates of Obligation under section 103 of the Code. In the event that
regulations or rulings are hereafter promulgated which impose additional requirements which are
applicable to the Certificates of Obligation, the City agrees to comply with the additional
requirements to the extent necessaty, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond counse!, to
preserve the exemption from federal income taxation of interest on the Certificates of Obligation
under section 103 of the Code. In furtherance of such intention, the City hereby authorizes and
directs the Mayor, the City Manager or the Director of Finance of the City to execute any
documents, certificates or reports required by the Code and to make such elections, on behalf of
the City, which may be permitted by the Code as are consistent with the purpose for the issuance
of the Certificates of Obligation,

(d) Allocation of, and Limitation on, Expenditures for the Project. The City covenants to
account for the expenditure of sale proceeds and investment earnings to be used for the purposes
described in Section 1 of this Ordinance (collectively referred to herein as the "Project") on its
books and records in accordance with the requirements of the Internal Revenue Code. The City
recognizes that in order for the proceeds to be considered used for the reimbursement of costs,
the proceeds must be allocated to expenditures within 18 months of the later of the date that (1)
the expenditure is made, or (2) the Project is completed; but in no event later than three years
after the date on which the original expenditure is paid. The foregoing notwithstanding, the City
vecognizes that in order for proceeds to be expended under the Internal Revenue Code, the sale
proceeds or investment earnings must be expended no more than 60 days after the eatlier of (1)
the fifth anniversary of the delivery of the Certificates of Obligation, or (2) the date the
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Certificates of Obligation are retired.  The City agrees to obtain the advice of
nationally-recognized bond counsel if such expenditure fails to comply with the foregoing to
assure that such expenditure will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Certificates of
Obligation. For purposes hereof, the City shall not be obligated to comply with this covenant if
it obtains an opinion that such failure to comply will not adversely affect the excludability for
federal income tax purposes from gross income of the interest.

(e) Disposition of Project. The City covenants that the property constituting the projects
financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the Certificates of Obligation will not be sold or
otherwise disposed in a transaction resulting in the receipt by the City of cash or other
compensation, unless the City obtains an opinion of nationally-recognized bond counsel that
such sale or other disposition will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Certificates of
Obligation. For purposes of the foregoing, the portion of the property comprising personal
property and disposed in the ordinary course shall not be treated as a transaction resulting in the
receipt of cash or other compensation. For purposes hereof, the City shall not be obligated to
comply with this covenant if it obtains an opinion that such failure to comply will not adversely
affect the excludability for federal income tax purposes from gross income of the interest.

() Designation as Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations. The City hereby designates the
Certificates of Obligation as "qualified tax-exempt bonds" as defined in section 265(b)(3) of the
Code. In furtherance of such designation, the City represents, covenants and warrants the
following: (i) that during the calendar year in which the Certificates of Obligation are issued, the
City (including any subordinate entities) has not designated nor will designate bonds, which
when aggregated with the Certificates of Obligation, will result in more than $30,000,000 of
"qualified tax-exempt bonds" being issued; (ii) that the City reasonably anticipates that the
amount of tax-exempt obligations issued, during the calendar year in which the Certificates of
Obligation are issued, by the City (or any subordinate entities) will not exceed $30,000,000; and
(iii) that the City will take such action or refrain from such action as necessary, and as more
particularly set forth in this Section, in order that the Certificates of Obligation will not be
considered "private activity bonds" within the meaning of section 141 of the Code.

SECTION FIFTEEN., CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING.

(a) Definitions. As used in this Section, the following terms have the meanings ascribed
to such terms below:

"EMMA" means the Electronic Municipal Market Access system being established by
the MSRB.

"MSRB" means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.
"Rule" means SEC Rule 15¢2-12, as amended from time to time.

nSEC" means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission.
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(b) Annual Reports. The City shall provide annually to the MSRB through EMMA
within six months after the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2009, financial information
and operating data with respect fo the City of the general type included in the final Official
Statement authorized by this Ordinance being the information described in Exhibit B hereto.
Any financial statements so to be provided shall be (1) prepared in accordance with the
accounting principles described in Exhibit B hereto, or such other accounting principles as the
City may be required to employ from fime to time pursuant to state law or regulation, and
(2) audited, if the City commissions an audit of such statements and the audit is completed
within the period during which they must be provided. If the audit of such financial statements is
not complete within such period, then the City shall provide (1) unaudited financial statements
for such fiscal year within such six month period, and (2) audited financial statements for the
applicable fiscal year to the MSRB through EMMA when and if the audit report on such
statements become available.

If the City changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB through EMMA of the date of
the new fiscal year end prior to the next date by which the City otherwise would be required to
provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this paragraph (b).

The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this paragraph
(b) may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific reference to
any document (including an official statement or other offering document, if it is available from
the MSRB) that theretofore has been provided to the MSRB through EMMA or filed with the
SEC.

(¢) Material Event Notices. The City shall notify the MSRB through EMMA in a timely
mannet, of any of the following events with respect to the Certificates of Obligation, if such
event is material within the meaning of the federal securities laws:

A, Principal and interest payment delinquencies,

B. Non-payment related defaults;

C. Unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial
difficulties;

D, Unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting  financial
difficulties;

E. Substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

E. Adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-exempt status of the

Certificates of Obligation;

G. Modifications to rights of holders of the Cextificates of Obligation;
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H. Redemption calls;
L Defeasances;

J. Release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the
Certificates of Obligation; and

K. Rating changes.

The City shall notify the MSRB through EMMA, in a timely manner, of any failure by
the City to provide financial information or operating data in accordance with paragraph (b) of
this Section by the time required by such paragraph.

(d) Limitations, Disclaimers, and Amendments. The City shall be obligated to observe
and perform the covenants specified in this Section for so long as, but only for so long as, the
City remains an "obligated person” with respect to the Certificates of Obligation within the
meaning of the Rule, except that the City in any event will give notice of any deposit made in
accordance with Section 11 of this Ordinance that causes Certificates of Obligation no longer to
be outstanding.

The provisions of this Section are for the sole benefit of the holders and beneficial
owners of the Certificates of Obligation, and nothing in this Section, express ot implied, shall
give any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.
The City undertakes to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial
statements, and notices which it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Section and
does not hereby undertake to provide any other information that may be relevant or material to a
complete presentation of the City's financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake
to update any information provided in accordance with this Section or otherwise, except as
expressly provided herein. The City does not make any representation or warranty concerning
such information or its usefulness to a decision to invest in or sell Certificates of Obligation at
any future date.

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CITY BE LIABLE TO THE HOLDER
OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY CERTIFICATE OF OBLIGATION OR ANY OTHER
PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN
PART FROM ANY BREACH BY THE CITY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT
FAULT ON ITS PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS SECTION, BUT EVERY
RIGHT AND REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON
ACCOUNT OF ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR
MANDAMUS OR SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE.

No defauit by the City in observing or performing its obligations under this Section shall
comprise a breach of or default under this Ordinance for purposes of any other provision of this
Ordinance.
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Nothing in this Section is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the
duties of the City under federal and state securities laws.

The provisions of this Section may be amended by the City from time to time to adapt to
changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a
change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the City, but only if (1) the
provisions of this Section, as s0 amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or
sell Certificates of Obligation in the primary offering of the Certificates of Obligation in
compliance with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule
since such offering as well as such changed circumstances and (2) either (a) the holders of a
majority in aggregate principal amount (or any greater amount required by any other provision of
this Ordinance that authorizes such an amendment) of the Outstanding Certificates of Obligation
consent to such amendment or (b) a person that is unaffiliated with the City (such as nationally
recognized bond counsel) determined that such amendment will not materially impair the interest
of the holders and beneficial owners of the Certificates of Obligation. The City may also amend
or repeal the provisions of this continuing disclosure agreement if the SEC amends or repeals the
applicable provision of the Rule or a court of final jurisdiction enters judgment that such
provisions of the Rule are invalid, but only if and to the extent that the provisions of this
sentence would not prevent an underwriter from lawfully purchasing or selling Certificates of
Obligation in the primary offering of the Certificates of Obligation. If the City so amends the
provisions of this Section, it shall include with any amended financial information or operating
data next provided in accordance with paragraph (b) of this Section an explanation, in narrative
form, of the reason for the amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial
information ot operating data so provided.

SECTION SIXTEEN. SALE AND DELIVERY OF THE CERTIFICATES OF
OBLIGATION. The Certificates of Obligation are hereby initially sold and shall be delivered
to RBC CAPITAL MARKETS CORPORATION, as representative of the initial purchasers of the

Certificates of Obligation (the "Underwriters"), at a price of § (which amount is
equal to par, plus a net original issue premium of 3 , and less Underwriters'
discount of $ ), and no accrued interest, all pursuant to the terms and provisions of a

Purchase Contract in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit C which the Mayor or
Mayor Pro-Tem of the City is hereby authorized to execute and deliver, and which the City
Secretary is hereby authorized to attest. The City will deliver to the Underwriters an Initial
Certificate of Obligation in the aggregate principal amount of § payable in principal
installments on the dates and in the principal amounts shown in Section 2 hereof, and bearing
interest at the rates for each respective maturity as shown in Section 3 hereof. The Initial
Certificate of Obligation shall be registered in the name of RBC CAPITAL MARKETS
CORPORATION.

SECTION SEVENTEEN. APPROVAL OF OFFICIAL STATEMENT. The City
hereby approves the form and content of the Official Statement relating to the Certificates of
Obligation and any addenda, supplement, or amendment thereto, and approves the distribution of
the Official Statement in the reoffering of the Certificates of Obligation by the Underwriters in
final form, with such changes therein or additions thereto as the officer executing the same may
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deem advisable, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by his execution thereof. The
distribution and use of the Preliminary Official Statement for the Certificates of Obligation,
dated January _, 2010, prior to the date hereof is hereby ratified and confirmed. The City
Council finds and determines that the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement
were and are "deemed final" as of each of their respective dates within the meaning, and for the
purpose, of Rule 15¢2-12 promulgated under authority granted by the Federal Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934,

SECTION EIGHTEEN. MUNICIPAL BOND INSURANCE POLICY. On the date
of delivery of the Certificates of Obligation, the City will obtain  from
(the "Insurer") a municipal bond insurance policy in support of the
Certificates of Obligation. To that end, for so long as said policy is in effect, the ordinance
requirements of the Insurer, as a condition to the issuance of said policy, attached hereto as
Exhibit D, are incorporated by reference into this Ordinance and made a part hereof for all
purposes, notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary. The City is
authorized to use proceeds of the Certificates of Obligation to purchase such policy.

SECTION NINETEEN, AUTHORITY FOR OFFICERS TO EXECUTE
DOCUMENTS AND APPROVE CHANGES, The Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem, City Secretary,
City Manager and Director of Finance of the City, and all other officers, employees, and agents
of the City, and each of them, shall be and they are hereby expressly authorized, empowered, and
directed from time to time and at any time to do and perform all such acts and things and to
execute, acknowledge, and deliver in the name and under the corporate seal and on behalf of the
City all such instruments, whether or not herein mentioned, as may be necessary or desirable in
order to carry out the terms and provisions of this Ordinance, the Certificates of Obligation, the
sale of the Certificates of Obligation, the Official Statement, and the Paying Agent/Registrar
Agreement. In addition, prior to the initial delivery of the Certificates of Obligation, the Mayor,
Mayor Pro-Tem, City Secretary, City Manager, Director of Finance, the City Attorney and Bond
Counsel are hereby authorized and directed to approve any technical changes or correction fo this
Ordinance or to any of the instruments authorized and approved by this Ordinance necessary in
order to (i) correct any ambiguity or mistake or properly or more completely document the
transactions contemplated and approved by this Ordinance and as described in the Official
Statement, (i) obtain a rating from any of the national bond rating agencies or satisfy any
requirements of the provider of a municipal bond insurance policy, if any, or (iii) obtain the
approval of the Certificates of Obligation by the Attorney General's office. In case any officer
whose signature shall appear on any Certificate of Obligation shall cease to be such officer
before the delivery of such Certificate of Obligation, such signature shail nevertheless be valid
and sufficient for all purposes the same as if such officer had remained in office until such
delivery. The Director of Finance of the City is further authorized to pay to the Attorney General
of Texas prior to the delivery of the Certificates of Obligation, for the Attorney General's review
of the transcript of proceedings related to the Certificates of Obligation, the amount required
pursuant to Section 1202.004, Texas Government Code, as amended.

SECTION TWENTY. ORDINANCE A CONTRACT; AMENDMENTS. This
Ordinance shall constitute a contract with the Registered Owners of the Certificates of
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Obligation, binding on the City and its successors and assigns, and shall not be amended or
repealed by the City as long as any Certificate of Obligation remains outstanding except as
permitted in this Section. The City may, without the consent of or notice to any Registered
Owners, amend, change, or modify this Ordinance as may be required (i) by the provisions
hereof, (ii) for the purpose of curing any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or omission
herein, or (iii) in connection with any other change which is not to the prejudice of the
Registered Owners. The City may, with the written consent of the Registered Owners of a
majority in aggregate principal amount of the Certificates of Obligation then outstanding affected
thereby, amend, change, modify, or rescind any provisions of this Ordinance; provided that
without the consent of all of the Registered Owners affected, no such amendment, change,
modification, or rescission shall (i) extend the time or times of payment of the principal of and
interest on the Certificates of Obligation, reduce the principal amount thereof or the rate of
interest thereon, (i) give any preference to any Certificate of Obligation over any other
Certificate of Obligation, (iii) extend any waiver of default to subsequent defaults, or (iv) reduce
the aggregate principal amount of Certificates of Obligation required for consent to any such
amendment, change, modification, or rescission. Whenever the City shall desire to make any
amendment or addition to or rescission of this Ordinance requiring consent of the Registered
Owners, the City shall cause notice of the amendment, addition, ot rescission to be sent by first
class mail, postage prepaid, to the Registered Owners at the respective addresses shown on the
Registration Books. Whenever at any time within one year after the date of the giving of such
notice, the City shall receive an instrument or instruments in writing executed by the Registered
Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Certificates of Obligation then
outstanding affected by any such amendment, addition, or rescission requiring the consent of the
Registered Owners, which instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed amendment,
addition, or rescission described in such notice and shall specificaily consent to and approve the
adoption thereof in substantially the form of the copy thereof referred to in such notice,
thereupon, but not otherwise, the City may adopt such amendment, addition, ot rescission in
substantially such form, except as herein provided. No Registered Owner may thereafter object
to the adoption of such amendment, addition, or rescission, or to any of the provisions thereof,
and such amendment, addition, or rescission shall be fully effective for all purposes.

SECTION TWENTY-ONE. SECURITY INTEREST. Chapter 1208, Texas
Government Code, applies to the issuance of the Certificates of Obligation and the pledge of the
ad valorem taxes and Surplus Revenues granted by the City under Sections 6 and 7 of this
Ordinance, and is therefore valid, effective, and perfected. If Texas law is amended at any time
while the Certificates of Obligation are outstanding and unpaid such that the pledge of the ad
valorem taxes or Surplus Revenues granted by the City under Sections 6 and 7 of this Ordinance
is to be subject to the filing requirements of Chapter 9, Texas Business & Commerce Code, then
in order to preserve to the registered owners of the Certificates of Obligation the perfection of the
security interest in said pledge, the City agrees to take such measures as it determines are
reasonable and necessary under Texas law to comply with the applicable provisions of Chapter
9, Texas Business & Commerce Code, and enable a filing to perfect the security interest in said
pledge to occur.
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SECTION TWENTY-TWO. REMEDIES IN EVENT OF DEFAULT. In addition to
all the rights and remedies provided by the laws of the State of Texas, it is specifically
covenanted and agreed particularly that in the event the City (i) defaults in the payment of the
principal, premium, if any, or interest on the Certificates of Obligation, (ii) defaults in the
deposits and credits required to be made to the Interest and Sinking Fund, or (iii) defaults in the
observance or performance of any other of the covenants, conditions or obligations set forth in
this Ordinance and the continuation thereof for 30 days after the City has received written notice
of such defaults, the Holders of any of the Certificates of Obligation shall be entitled to seek a
writ of mandamus issued by a court of proper jurisdiction compelling and requiring the
governing body of the City and other officers of the City to observe and perform any covenant,
condition or obligation prescribed in this Ordinance.

No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall
impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or
acquiescence therein, and every such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as
often as may be deemed expedient. The specific remedy herein provided shall be cumulative of
all other existing remedies, and the specification of such remedy shall not be deemed to be
exclusive.

SECTION TWENTY-THREE. INTERESTED PARTIES. Nothing in this Ordinance
expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon, or to give to, any person or
entity, other than the City, the Underwriters and the registered owners of the Certificates of
Obligation, any right, remedy or claim under or by reason of this Ordinance or any covenant,
condition or stipulation hereof, and all covenants, stipulations, promises and agreements in this
Ordinance contained by and on behalf of the City shall be for the sole and exclusive benefit of
the City, the Underwriters and the registered owners of the Certificates of Obligation.

SECTION TWENTY-FOUR. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The City hereby
finds that the statements set forth in the recitals of this Ordinance are true and correct, and the
City hereby incorporates such recitals as a part of this Ordinance.

SECTION TWENTY-FIVE, SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Ordinance or
the application thereof to any circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this
Ordinance and the application thereof to other circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and this
governing body hereby declares that this Ordinance would have been enacted without such
invalid provision.

SECTION TWENTY-SIX. EFFECTIVE DATE. Pursuant to the provisions of
Section 1201.028, Texas Government Code, this Ordinance shall become effective immediately
after its adoption by the City Council.

[The remainder of this page left blank intentionally. ]
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PASSED AND APPROVED ON this the ___ day of

5 88D

2010.

Todd A. Bock, Mayor
ATTEST:

Brenda G. Craig, City Secretary
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

ek

Michael C. Hayes, City Attorney
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EXHIBIT A
FORM OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT

THE PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT IS OMITTED AT THIS POINT
AS IT APPEARS IN EXECUTED FORM ELSEWHERE IN THIS TRANSCRIPT,




DRAFT DATE; JANUARY 19,2010

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT

THIS PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT, dated as of February 1, 2010 (this
"Agreement"), by and between CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS (the "Issuer”) and WELLS FARGO
BANK,N.A., , Texas (the "Bank"), a national bank duly organized and operating under the
laws of the United States of America,

WHEREAS, the Issuer has duly authorized and provided for the issuance of its CITY OF
KERRVILLE, TEXAS COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES
2010 (the "Securities"), such Securities to be issued in fully registered form only as to the payment
of principal and interest thereon; and

WHEREAS, the Securities are scheduled to be delivered to the initial purchasers thereof on
or about February 24, 2010; and

WHEREAS, the Issuer has selected the Bank to serve as Paying Agent/Registrar in
connection with the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Securities and
with respect to the registration, transfer, and exchange thercof by the registered owners thercof; and

WHEREAS, the Bank has agreed to serve in such capacities for and on behalf of the Issuer
and has full power and authority to perform and serve as Paying Agent/Registrar for the Securities;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed as follows:

ARTICLE ONE
APPOINTMENT OF BANK AS PAYING AGENT AND REGISTRAR

SECTION 1.01. APPOINTMENT. The Issuer hereby appoints the Bank to serve as Paying
Agent with respect to the Securities. As Paying Agent for the Securities, the Bank shall be
responsible for paying on behalf of the Issuer the principal, premium (if any), and interest on the
Securities as the same become due and payable to the registered owners thereof, all in accordance
with this Agreement and the "Ordinance" (hereinafter defined).

The Issuer hereby appoints the Bank as Registrar with respect to the Securities. As Registrar
for the Securities, the Bank shall keep and maintain for and on behalf of the [ssuer books and records
as to the ownership of said Securities and with respect to the transfer and exchange thereof as
provided herein and in the Ordinance, a copy of which books and records shall be maintained at the
office of the Bank located in the State of Texas or shall be available to be accessed from such office
located in the State of Texas.

The Bank hereby accepts its appointment, and agrees to serve as the Paying Agent and
Registrar for the Securities.




SECTION 1.02. COMPENSATION. As compensation for the Bank's services as Paying
Agent/Registrar, the Issuer hercby agrees to pay the Bank the fees and amounts set forth in
Schedule A attached hereto for the first year of this Agreement and thereafter the fees and amounts
set forth in the Bank's current fee schedule then in effect for services as Paying Agent/Registrar for
municipalities, which shall be supplied to the Issuer on or before 90 days prior to the close of the
Fiscal Year of the Issuer, and shall be effective upon the first day of the following Fiscal Year.

In addition, the Issuer agrees to reimburse the Bank upon its request for all reasonable
expenses, disbursements and advances incurred or made by the Bank in accordance with any of the
provisions hereof (including the reasonable compensation and the expenses and disbursements of
its agents and counsel).

ARTICLE TWO
DEFINITIONS

SECTION 2.01. DEFINITIONS. For all purposes of this Agreement, except as otherwise
expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires:

n 4eceleration Date" on any Security means, if applicable, the date on and after which the
principal or any or all ‘nstallments of interest, or both, are due and payable on any Security which
has become accelerated pursuant to the terms of the Security.

"Bank Office” means the corporate trust ot commercial banking office of the Bank as
indicated on the signature page hereof. The Bank will notify the Issuer in writing of any change in
location of the Bank Office.

WFiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the Issuer, ending September 30.

"Holder" and "Security Holder" each means the Person in whose name a Security is
registered in the Security Register.

"Legal Holiday" means a day on which the Bank is required or authorized to be closed.

nOrdinance" means the resolutions, orders or ordinances of the governing body of the Issuer
pursuant to which the Securitics are issued, certified by the Secretary or any other officer of the
Issuer and delivered to the Bank, together with any pricing certificate executed pursuant thereto.

"Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, joint
stock company, trust, unincorpotated organization or government ot any agency or political
subdivision of a government.

WPredecessor Securities" of any particular Security means every previous Security
evidencing all or a portion of the same obligation as that evidenced by such particular Security (and,
for the purposes of this definition, any mutilated, lost, destroyed, or stolen Security for which a




replacement Security has been registered and delivered in lieu thereof pursuant to Section 4.06
hereof and the Ordinance).

"Redemption Date" when used with respect to any Security to be redecmed means the date
fixed for such redemption pursuant to the terms of the Ordinance.

"Responsible Officer" when used with respect to the Bank means the Chairman or Vice-
Chairman of the Board of Directors, the Chairman or Vice-chairman of the Executive Committee
of the Board of Directors, the President, any Vice President, the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary,
the Treasuter, any Assistant Treasurer, the Cashier, any Assistant Cashier, any Trust Officer or
Assistant Trust Officer, or any other officer of the Bank customarily performing functions similar
to those performed by any of the above designated officers and also means, with respect to a
particular corporate trust matter, aiy other officer to whom such matter is referred because of his
knowledge of and familiarity with the particular subject.

"Security Register" means a register maintained by the Bank on behalf of the Issuer
providing for the registration and transfer of the Securities.

nStated Maturity" means the date specified in the Ordinance the principal of a Security is
scheduled to be due and payable.

SECTION 2.02. OTHER DEFINITIONS. The terms "Bank," "Issuer,” and "Securities"
("Security”) have the meanings assigned to them in the recital paragraphs of this Agreement.

The term "Paying Agent/Registrar” refers to the Bank in the performance of the duties and
functions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE THREE
PAYING AGENT

SECTION 3.01. DUTIES OF PAYING AGENT. (a) Principal Payments. As Paying Agent, the
Bank shall, provided adequate collected funds have been provided to it for such purpose by or on
behalf of the Issuer, pay on behalf of the Issuer the principal of each Security at its Stated Maturity,
Redemption Date, or Acceleration Date, to the Holder upon surrender of the Security to the Bank
at the Bank Office.

(b) Interest Payments. As Paying Agent, the Bank shall, provided adequate collected funds
have been provided to it for such purpose by or on behalf of the Issuer, pay on behalf of the Issuer
the interest on each Security when due, by computing the amount of interest to be paid each Holder
and preparing and sending checks by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, on each
payment date, to the Holders of the Securities (or their Predecessor Securities) on the respective
Record Date, to the address appearing on the Security Register or by such othet method, acceptable
to the Bank, requested in writing by the Holder at the Holder's risk and expense.




(c) Federal Tax Information Reporting. To the extent required by the Code and the
Regulations it shall be the duty of the Bank to report to the owners of the Securities and the Internal
Revenue Service (i) the amount of "reportable payments,” if any, subject to back up withholding
during each year and the amount of tax withheld, if any, with respect to the payments on the
Securities, and (ii) the amount of interest or amount treated as interest, such as original issue
discount, on the Securities required to be included in the gross income of the owners thereof for
federal income tax purposes.

SECTION 3.02. PAYMENTDATES. The [ssuet hereby instructs the Bank to pay the principal
of and interest on the Securities on the dates specified in the Ordinance.

ARTICLE FOUR
REGISTRAR

SECTION 4.01, SECURITY REGISTER - TRANSFERS AND EXCHANGES. The Bank agrees to
keep and maintain for and on behalf of the [ssuer at the Bank Office books and records (herein
sometimes referred to as the "Security Register") for recording the names and addresses of the
Holders of the Securities, the transfer, exchange, and replacement of the Securities, and the payment
of the principal of and intereston the Securities to the Holders and containing such other information
as may be reasonably required by the Issuer and subject to such reasonable regulations as the Issuer
and the Bank may prescribe. If the Bank Office is located outside the State of Texas, a copy of the
Security Register shall be kept in the State of Texas. All transfers, exchanges, and replacement of
Securities shall be noted in the Security Register.

Every Security surrendered for transfer or exchange shall be duly endorsed or be
accompanied by a written instrument oftransfer, the signature on which has been guaranteed by an
officer of a federal or state bank or a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, in
form satisfactory to the Bank, duly executed by the Holder thereof or his agent duly authorized in
writing. :

The Bank may request any supporting documentation it feels necessary to effect a re-
registration, transfer, or exchange of the Securities.

To the extent possible and under reasonable circumstances, the Bank agrees that, in relation
to an exchange or transfer of Securities, the exchange or transfer by the Holdets thereof will be
completed and new Securitics delivered to the Holder or the assignee of the Holder in not more than
three business days after the receipt of the Securities to be cancelled in an exchange or transfer and
the written instrument of transfer or request for exchange duly exccuted by the Holder, or his duly
authorized agent, in form and manner satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar.

SECTION 4.02. SECURITIES. The Issuer shall provide an adequate inventory of printed
Securities to facilitate transfers or exchanges thereof. The Bank covenants that the inventory of
printed Securities will be kept in safekeeping pending their use, and reasonable care will be
exercised by the Bank in maintaining such Securities in safekeeping, which shall be not less than
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the care maintained by the Bank for debt securities of other political subdivisions or corporations
for which it serves as registrar, or that is maintained for its own securities.

SECTION 4.03. FORM OF SECURITY REGISTER. The Bank, as Registrar, will maintain the
Security Register relating to the registration, payment, transfer, and exchange of the Securities in
accordance with the Bank's general practices and procedures in effect from time to time. The Bank
shall not be obligated to maintain such Security Register in any form other than those which the
Bank has currently available and currently utilizes af the time,

The Security Register may be maintained in written form or in any other form capable of
being converted into written form within a reasonable time.

SECTION 4,04, LISTOF SECURITY HOLDERS, The Bank will provide the [ssuer at any time
requested by the Issuer, upon payment of the required fee, a copy of the information contained in
the Security Register. The Issuer may also inspect the information contained in the Security
Register at any time the Bank is customarily open for business, provided that reasonable time is

allowed the Bank to provide an up-to-date listing or to convert the information into written form.

Unless required by law, the Bank will not release or disclose the contents of the Security
Register to any person other than to, or at the written request of, an authorized officer or employee
of the Issuer, except upon receipt of a court order or as otherwise required by law. Upon receipt of
a court order and prior to the release or disclosure of the contents of the Security Register, the Bank
will notify the Issuer so that the Issuer may contest the court order or such release or disclosure of
the contents of the Security Register.

SECTION 4.05. RETURN OF CANCELLED SECURITIES. The Bank will, at such reasonable
intervals as it determines, surrender Securities to the Issuer in lieu of which or in exchange for which
other Securities have been issued, or which have been paid, or will provide a cettificate of
destruction relating thereto.

SECTION 4.06. MUTILATED, DESTROYED, LOST, OR STOLEN SECURITIES. The Issuer
hereby instructs the Bank, subjectto the applicable provisions of the Ordinance, to deliver and issuc
Securities in exchange for or in fieu of mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Securities as long as the
same does not result in an over issuance.

In case any Security shall be mutilated, or destroyed, lost, or stolen, the Bank, in its
discretion, may execute and deliver a replacement Security of like form and tenor, and in the same
denomination and bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding, in exchange and
substitution for such mutilated Security, or in lieu of and in substitution for such destroyed, lost, or
stolen Security, only after (i) the filing by the Holder thereof with the Bank of evidence satisfactory
to the Bank of the destruction, loss, or theft of such Security, and of the authenticity of the
ownership thereof and (if) the furnishing to the Bank of indemnification in an amount satisfactory
to hold the Tssuer and the Bank harmless. All expenses and charges associated with such indemnity



and with the preparation, execution, and delivery of a replacement Security shall be borne by the
Holder of the Security mutilated, or destroyed, lost, or stolen.

SECTION 4.07. TRANSACTION INFORMATION TO _ISSUER. The Bank will, within a
reasonable time after receipt of written request from the Issuer, furnish the Issuer information as to
the Securities it has paid pursuant to Section 3.01, Securities it has delivered upon the transfer ot
exchange of any Securities pursuant to Section 4.01, and Securities it has delivered in exchange for
or in lieu of mutilated, destroyed, lost, or stolen Securities pursuant to Section 4.06.

ARTICLE FIVE
THE BANK

SECTION 5.01. DUTIES OF BANK. The Bank undertakes to perform the duties set forth
hetein and in the Ordinance and agrees to use reasonable care in the performance thereof.

The Bank is also authorized to transfer funds relating to the closing and initial delivery of
the Securities in the manner disclosed in the closing memorandum as prepared by the Issuer’s
financial advisor, bond counsel or other agent. The Bank may act on a facsimile or e-mail
transmission of the closing memorandum acknowledged by the financial advisor or the Issuer as the
final closing memorandum. The Bank shall not be liable for any losses, costs or CXpenses arising
directly or indirectly from the Bank's reliance upon and compliance with such instructions.

SECTION 5.02. RELIANCE ONDOCUMENTS, ETC. (a) The Bank may conclusively rely, as
to the truth of the statements and cotrectness of the opinions expressed therein, on certificates or
opinions furnished to the Bank.

(b) The Bank shall not be liable for any ervor of judgment made in good faith by a
Responsible Officer, unless it shall be proved that the Bank was negligent in ascertaining the
pertinent facts.

(¢) No provisions of this Agreement shall require the Bank to expend or risk its own funds
or otherwise incur any financial liability for performance of any of its duties hereunder, or in the
exercise of any of its rights or powers, if it shall have reasonable grounds for believing that
repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity satisfactory to it against such risks or liability is not
assured to it.

(d) The Bank may rely and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon any
resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, direction, consent,
order, bond, note, security, or other paper or document believed by it to be genuine and to have been
signed or presented by the proper party or parties. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing
statement, the Bank need not examine the ownership of any Securities, but is protected in acting
upon receipt of Securities containing an endorsement or instruction of transfer or power of transfer
which appears on its face to be signed by the Holder or an agent of the Holder, The Bank shall not
be bound to make any investigation into the facts or matters stated in a resolution, certificate,



statement, instrument, opinion, repott, notice, request, direction, consent, order, bond, note, security,
or other paper or document supplied by the Issuer.

(¢) The Bank may consult with counsel, and the written advice of such counsel or any

opinion of counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection with respect to any action
taken, suffered, or omitted by it hereunder in good faith and in reliance thereon.

() The Bank may exercise any of the powers hercunder and perform any duties hereunder
cither directly or by or through agents or attorneys of the Bank.

SECTION 5.03. RECITALS OF ISSUER. The recitals contained herein with respect to the
Issuer and in the Securities shall be taken as the statements of the Issuer, and the Bank assumes no
responsibility for their correctness.

The Bank shall in no event be liable to the Issuer, any Holder or Holders of any Security, or
any other Person for any amount due on any Security from its own funds.

SECTION 5.04. MAY HOLD SECURITIES. The Bank, in its individual or any other capacity,

may become the owner or pledgee of Securities and may otherwise deal with the Issuer with the
same rights it would have if it were not the Paying Agent/Registrar, or any other agent.

SECTION 5.05. MONEY HELD BY BANK. The Bank shall deposit any moneys received from
the Issuer into an account to be held in a fiduciary capacity for the payment of the Securities,
with such moneys in the account that exceed the deposit insurance, available to the Issuer, provided
by the Federal Deposit [nsurance Corporation to be fully collateralized with securities or
obligations that are eligible under the laws of the State of Texas and to the extent practicable
under the laws of the United States of America to secure and be pledged as collateral for trust
accounts until the principal and intereston such securities have been presented for payment and paid
to the owner thereof. Payments made from such trust account shall be make by check drawn on
such trust account unless the owner of such Securities shall, at its own expense and risk, request
such other medium of payment.

Funds held by the Bank hereunder need not be segregated from any other funds provided
appropriate accounts are maintained in the name and for the benefit of the Issuer.

The Bank shall be under no liability for interest on any money received by it hereunder.

Any money deposited with the Bank for the payment on any Security and remaining
unclaimed for three years after final maturity of the Security has become due and payable will be
held by the Bank and disposed of only in accordance with Title 6 of the Property Code (Unclaimed
Propetty).



The Bank will comply with the reporting provisions of Chapter 74 of the Property Code with
respect to property that is presumed abandoned under Chapter 72 or Chapter 75 of the Property Code
or inactive under Chapter 73 of the Property Code.

SECTION 5.06. INDEMNIFICATION. To the extent permitted by law, the Issucr agrees to
indemnify the Bank for, and hold it harmless against, any loss, liability, or expense incurred without
negligence or bad faith on its part, arising out of or in connection with its acceptance or
administration of its duties hereunder, including the cost and expense against any claim or liability
in connection with the exercise or performance of any of its powers or duties under this Agreement.

SECTION 5.07. INTERPLEADER. The Issuer and the Bank agree that the Bank may seek
adjudication of any adverse claim, demand, or controversy over its person as well as funds on
deposit, in either a Federal or State District Court located in the County in the State of Texas where
either the Bank maintains an office or the administrative offices of the Issuer is located, and agrec
that service of process by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, to the address referred
to in Section 6.03 of this Agreement shall constitute adequate service. The Issuer and the Bank
further agree that the Bank has the right to file a Bill of Interpleader in any court of competent
jurisdiction located in the State of Texas to determine the rights of any Person claiming any interest
herein.

SECTION 5.08. DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY SERVICES. It is hereby represented and
warranted that, in the event the Securities are otherwise qualified and accepted for "Depository Trust
Company" services or equivalent depository trust services by other organizations, the Bank has the
capability and, to the extent within its control, will comply with the "Qperational Arrangements,”
effective from time to time, which establishes requirements for secutities to be eligible for such type
depository trust services, including, but not limited to, requirements for the timeliness of payments
and funds availability, transfer turnaround time, and notification of redemptions and calls,

ARTICLE SIX
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

SECTION 6.01. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended only by an agreement in
writing signed by both of the parties hereto.

SECTION 6.02. ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement may not be assigned by either party without
the prior written consent of the other.

SECTION 6.03. NOTICES. Any request, demand, authorization, direction, notice, consent,
waiver, or other document provided or permitted hereby to be given or furnished to the Issuer or the
Bank shall be mailed or delivered to the Issuer or the Bank, respectively, at the addresses shown on
the signature page of this Agreement.

SECTION 6.04. EFFECT OF HEADINGS. The Article and Section headings herein are for
convenience only and shall not affect the construction hereof.
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SECTION 6.05. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. All covenants and agreements herein by the
Issuer shall bind its successors and assigns, whether so expressed or not.

SECTION 6.06. SEVERABILITY. In case any provision herein shall be invalid, illegal, or
unenforceable, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any
way be affected or impaired thereby.

SECTION 6.07. BENEFITS OF AGREEMENT. Nothing herein, express or implied, shall give
to any Person, other than the parties hereto and their successors hereunder, any benefit or any legal
or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder.

SECTION 6.08. ENTIRE AGREEMENT, This Agreement and the Ordinance constitute the
entire agreement between the partics hereto relative to the Bank acting as Paying Agent/Registrar
and if any conflict exists between this Agreement and the Ordinance, the Ordinance shall govern.

SECTION 6.09. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterpatts, cach of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the
same Agreement.

SECTION 6.10. TERMINATION. This Agreement will terminate on the date of final payment
of the principal of and interest on the Securities to the Holders thereof or may be earlier terminated
by either party upon 60 days written notice; provided, however, an early termination of this
Agreement by either party shall not be effective until (a) a successor Paying Agent/Registrar has
been appointed by the Issuer and such appointment accepted and (b) notice has been given to the
Holders of the Securities of the appointment of a successor Paying Agent/Registrar. Furthermore,
the Bank and [ssuer mutually agree that the effective date of an eatly termination of this Agreement
shall not occur at any time which would disrupt, delay, or otherwise adversely affect the payment
of the Securities.

Upon an early termination of this Agreement, the Bank agrees to promptly transfer and
deliver the Security Register (or a copy thereof), together with other pertinent books and records
relating to the Securities, to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar designated and appointed by the
Issuer.

The provisions of Section 1.02 and of Article Five shall survive and remain in full force and
effect following the termination of this Agreement.

SECTION 6,11, GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with
and governed by the laws of the State of Texas.

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank]
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IN WITNESS WHERFEOY, the partics hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day

and year first above written.

Attest:

Title:

Attest:

-

Title: City Secretary

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.

By:
Title:

Address: 400 W. 15% Street, 1% Floor
Austin, Texas 78701

City OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

By:
Title: Mayor

Address: 800 Junction Highway
Kerrville, Texas 78028

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR AGREEMENT]



SCHEDULE A

PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR FEE SCHEDULE

ANNUAL ADMINISTRATION FEE
(ptus out of pocket expenses)



EXHIBIT B
FORM OF PURCHASE CONTRACT

THE PURCHASE CONTRACT IS OMITTED AT THIS POINT AS IT APPEARS IN EXECUTED
FORM ELSEWHERE IN THIS TRANSCRIPT.



EXHIBIT C

DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following information is referred to in Section 15 of this Ordinance.
Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data

The financial information and operating data with respect to the City to be provided
annually in accordance with such Section are as specified (and included in the Appendix or

under the headings of the Official Statement referred to} below:

1. The annual audited financial statements of the City or the unaudited financial
statements of the City in the event audited financial statements are not completed within six
months after the end of any fiscal year.

2. All quantitative financial information and operating data with respect to the City
of the general type included in the Official Statement under Tables 1 through 6 and 8 through 13.

Accounting Principles

The accounting principles referred to in such Section are the accounting principles
described in the notes to the financial statements referred to in paragraph 1 above.



be any sale of these securities in any junsdiction In which such offer, solicitation of sale would be unlawful prior to registration or gualification under the securities Jaws of any such jurisdiction.

This Preliminary Official Statement and the information contained herein ars subj i H i i
: ] it and . . ject 1o completion or amendment without notice. Thess securities may not be sold nor may offers to buy be accepted prior
10 the time the Official Statement is delivered in fna! form. Under no circumstznces shall this Preliminary Official Statement constitte an offer to sell or the solicitution gf;m offer :ou}‘;uy z:::?;‘mH ir:;

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT
Dated Januayy 20, 2010

Retings:
FirstSouthwest. S&P: Applied Fox
Cantinulng Distkesure Services See (“OTHER INFORMATION -~
Ratings" herein)

(See "Continuing Dlsclosure of Information” hereln)
NEW ISSUE - Boole-Entry-Only

In the opinfon of Bond Counsel, interest on the Certificates will ba excludablo from gross income fo fedzral income tax purposes under statutes,
regulaions, published nilings and court decisions existing on the date thercof] subject to the matters described under "TAX MATTERS" hiecein,

THE CERTIFICATES WILL BE DESIGNATED AS "QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS",
TOR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

§4,200,000%
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
) (Kerr Connty)
COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2010

Dated Date: Februavy 1, 2010 (Intevest acerues from Date of Delivery) Duter August 15, as shown on Inside cover

YavmesT TERAS ... Interest on Ihe $4,200,000% City of Kenvills, Texas Combination Tax and Revenue Cedtificates of
Obligation, Series 2010 (the “Cerlificates”, will acerue from the "Date of Delivery” (defined below), and will be payable
Febrary 15 and August 13 of each year commenchng February 15, 2011, wiil be caleulated on the basis of a 360-day year
consisting of twelve 30-day months. ‘The definilive Certiflcates will be jnitlally registered and delivered only to Cede & Co,, the
nominee of The Deposliery Trust Company ("DTC") pursuait o tie book-entry-only system described herein, Beneficlal
ownership of the Cerlificates may be acquired in denominations of $5,000 or Integral multiptes thereof, No physleal delivery of
the Certifientes will be made fo the benefieial owners thereof. Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on (e Certificates
will bo payable by the Paying Agent/Registrar to Ceds & Co., which will make distribution of the amounts so paid to tie
parficipaling mnembers of DTC for subsequent payment o the beneficial owners of the Certificates. See "THE CERTIFICATES -
Dook-Entry-Only System® hereln, The initiel Paying Agent/Registrar is Wells Fargo Bank, N.A, Austin, Texns {see "THE

CERTIFICATES - Paying Agent/Registear”).

AUTHORITY ¥OR ISSUANCE . , . The Certificates are issued pursuant {0 lhe Conslilution and general laws of the State of Texas
(the "Stale”), padicularly Subchapter C of Chapter 271, Texas Local Govemnment Code (the Certificate of Obligation Act of
{971), as amended, and constitute direct Certiffeates of the City of Kerrville, Texas (the "City"), payable from a continuing ad
valorem lax levied on all taxable property within the City, within the Ymils prescribed by law, and a pledge of the surplus
reveiites of the Cily's waterworks and sewer sysiem, all as provided in the ordinance authorlzing the Certificates, 3ce "THE
CERTIFICATES - Authorily for Issuance of the Certificates” and * Security and Source of Payment.”

Punrost . . , Proceads from the sale of the Certificates will be used to acquire, construct and equip extensions and improvements
{o the City's waterworks and sewer system and to pay the costs assaciated with the Issuance of the Certificates.

TNSURANCE . . . The City hes applied to several companies for bond insuranco and will consider the purchase of such Insurance
for ihe Certificates after an analysis of bids from such companies has been made,

CUSIP PREFIX: 492422
MATURIYTY SCHEDULE & 9 DIGYT CUSIP
See Schedule on Page 2

1rGALITY . . . The Certificates ave offered for defivery when, as and if issued and received by tlie Undenwidters and subject to the
approving opinion of tie Altorney General of Texas and the opinion of McCall, Parkhurst & Horton L.L.P, Bond Counsel, San
Antonio, Texas (see APPENDIX C, "Form of Bond Counsel’s Opinfon™). Cerlain legal matters will be passed upon for the
Underwriters by their counsel, Andrews Kurth LLE, Austin, Texas.

DELIVERY . .. It is expected that lhe Cettificates will be available for delivery through DTC on February 24, 2010 (“Date of
Delivery™).

RBC CAPITAL MARKETS WELLS I'ARGO SECURITIES

* Preliminary, subject to change.



Principal

Amouni*

$235,000
215,000
280,000
285,000
290,000
300,000
310,000
315,000
330,000
340,000

Stated
Maturity Interest

(August 15) Rate

it
2612
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020

MATURITY SCHEDULE* CUSIP Prefist 4924221
Toitial Initial
Price Stated Prce
or Cusip Principal Maturity Tinterest or Cusip
Yield  Numbed® _Amount? (August 15) Rate Yield  Numbed
$185,000 2021
190,600 2022
95,000 2023
95,000 2024
160,000 2025
105,000 2026
110,000 2007
115,000 2028
120,000 2029
125,000 2030

{1 CUSIP Is a registered trademark of the Ameriean Bankers Associalion, CUSIP data herein is provided by Standard and
Poor's CUSIP Service Bureau, 2 Division of the McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. This data is not intended to create a
database and docs not serve inany way as a substitate for the CUSIP Services.

Or1oNAL REDEMPTION . , . The Cily reserves the tight, al its option, to redeem Certifieates having stated maturities on and afler

e i e —F .
, oF any date thereafier, at the pat value thereof plus accrued interest to the d

Optional Redemption™}.

* Preliminary, subject 1o change.

2

in whole ot in part In principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, on s
ate of redemption {see "THE CERTIFICATLS -




For pirposes of compitance with Rufe 15¢2-12 of the Securities end Exchange Conmlssion, as amended and fn effect on the date of this Oflcial
Statement ("Rule 15¢2-12%), this docuntent constitutes on afficial statement of the Cily with respect to the Cerlificates that has been deemed
“final” by the City as of i1s date excepl for the omisston of no wore than the inforviation ‘permitted by Rule 15c2-12.

This Official Statensent, which fuchides the cover page and the Appendices hereto, does nol constitule i offer to sell or the solicitatlon of an
affer to by bnanp jrrisdiction 1o any person fo wehton it is unlawful fo make swch offer, solicitation or sale.

No denler, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorived to give information or to make any representaiiant other than those contaived
in this Qfficial Statement, and, if given or made, stich other inforiation or répresenlations nust nol be rel?ed upon, This Qfficial Statement is nol
to be used in connection with an offer (o sell or the soliciiation of an affer to bry i cny state in which such qﬁ?fz’ or solicitation Is not auihiorized
or htwhich the person waking such offer or solicitation Is not qualfied to do 3o or to any person io whont it 15 wilenyfiel fo make snck offer or

solicitation.

Certain fnformation set forth herein Jus been ovided by sources othier than the City that the City believes is reltable, but the City makes no
represeniation as fo the accuracy of such iufg.:v;aﬂan. Anp imformation and expressious of opinfon herein contained are subject to change
without notice, and neither the delivery of the Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, pider any eircimstances, creale mg
implication that there has beet no chaiige In the gffairs of the City or other maiters cdescribed herein stice the dafe hereof. See "CONTINUIN
DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION® for a descripilon of the City’s smdertaking to provide cerlain Information on.a continiing basls.

The prices and other terms respecting ihe ofitring and sale of the Certificates may be changed frous time to tine by the Underwrlters after the
Certificates are released for sale, and the Certificates may be offered aid sold at prices otfier than the initial offering prices, including sales le

dealers whoinay sell the Cerifficates info Divesiuent acconnts.

The Undervrlters have provided mz{bl!owing sentence for inclusion in this Qfficial Statement. The Underwriters have reviewed the information
in this Qfficial Statement In accoraance wiih their responsibliities to fnvestors wnder the federal seciyities laws as appiied (o the facts and
clreupistances of this transaction, but the Undersiiters oo nol guarantes Mg accuracy or completensss of such informailon.

THE CERTIFICATES ARE EXBMPT FROM REGISIRATION WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION A ND
CONSHQUENTLY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED THERBIVITH. THE REGISTRATION, QUALIFICATION, OR EXEMPTION OF THE
CERTIFICATES IN ACCORDANCE WETH APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAY PROVISIONS OF THE JURISDICTIONS IN WHICH THESE
SECURITIES HAVE BBEEN REGISTERED, QUALIFIED, OR EXEMPTED SHOULD NOT BE REGARDED AS A RECOMMENDATION

THEREOF,

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERIWRITERS MAY OVER-ALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE
OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE CERTIFICATES AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT PREVAIL IN THE OPEN
MARKET, SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMBNCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.

NEITHER ‘THE CITY, THE FINANCIAL ADVISOR NOR THE UNDERIWRITERS MAKE ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY WITH
RESPECT TO THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMBENT REGARDING THE DEPOSITORY TRUST COMPANY

OR ITS BOOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM.

This Officlal Statement contalns “Forvard-Looking” Statentents within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securitles Exchange Aci of 1934, as
amended. Such statements may fnvolve fnown and furknaws rishks, wncertainties and offier factors which may cause e actual resulls,
performance and aclievements to be different from futnre results, perforniaiice and achlevemenis expressed or :‘m;%ed by such forward-looking
Satements. Investors are cantloned that e aciual results could er naterially froni those set forih in the Forward-Laoking Statements, See
SOTHER INFORMATION — Forward Looking Statewenis Disclainter. .

The information contained in this Officlal Staterent has been firnished by the Cily, DTC and other sources {hat zre beligved to bo rellable. No
dealer, broker, satesparson, or other person has been awthorized by thé City or the Undenwriters to give any infomsation or to make any
representations other than those made herein, Any such other information or representations must not be relied upon a3 having been authorized.
This Official Statement does not constitute an offer ta sell or solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there bs eny sale of the Certificates by any
person i any jurisdiction in which it is utawul For such person to make such ofter, solicitation or sale. The information and exptessions of
opinions hegin are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this document nor the sale of any of the Cerlifécates shall, under

any cireumstances, creale any implication that the [nformation kecoin is correct as of any time subsequent to the date hereof.
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OFFICIALSTATEMENT SUMMARY

This summary Is subject in all respects to the more complete infonmation and definitions contained or incorporated in this
Official Statement, The offering of the Certificates to potential investors fs made only by means of this enlire Official Statement,
No person is authorized to defach this summary from this Official Statement or to otherwise use it without the entire Official

Statement,

THE CITY oo soeosrsnsmsssssssseserns The City o Kerrville is a political subdivislon and municipal corporation of the State of Texas
(the “Stale’), located In Kere Counly, Texas. The City covers approximately 13.8 squate
miles (see "INTRODUCTION - Description of the City").

THE CERTIFICATES vewcsrsemsnrnnes The Certificates are issued as $4,200,000% City of Kerrville, Texas Combinatlon Tax and
Revenue Cerlificates of Obfigalion, Seres 2010. The Cedificates are issued as seral
certificates maturing on Awgust 15 in the years 2011 through 2030, unless the Undenvriters
designate one or more malurities as a Term Cerlificale (see "THE CERTIFICATES -

Description of the Cerlificates”),

PAYMENT OF INTEREST vovvevurreenee. Innferest on the Certificates ncenues from the *Date of Delivery”, and is payable February 15,
2011, and each February 15 and August 15 thereafter until matarity ot prier redemption (see
"THE CERFIFICATES - Description of the Cerfificates” and "THE CERTIFICATES -

Optionat Redemption”),

AUTHORI'TY FOR TSSUANCE ........ The Certificates ave issned pursuant to the general laws of the State, particularly Subchapter C
of Chapter 271, Texas Local Govenument Cede (the Certificate of Qbligation Act of 1971), as
amtended, and an ordinance (o “Certificate Ordinance”) passed by the City Council of tho City
{s¢e "THE CERTIFICATES - Authority for Issuance of the Certificates™).

SECURITY FORTHE

CERTIFICATES . The Cetificales constitule direct obligations of the Cily payable fiam a continuing ad valorem

tax levied, within the Kimits prescribed by law, on all taxable property within the City. The
Certificates additionally are secured wilh pledge of the smplus revenues of the City’s walerworks
and sewer system (see "THE CERTIFICATES - Seeurity and Source of Payment"),

QUALIFIED TAX-EXEMPT

ODLIGATIONS 1 venssscasimarimssseiren The Cily cxpeets to designate the Cenlificates as "Qualified Tax-Bxempt Ob]fgationls" for

financial institutions (see "TAX MATTERS - Qualified Tax-Ixempt Obligations for Financial
Tostitations").

REDEMETION c.vrscvsensessssasmenemineenes The Cily reserves the right, at its option, to redeem Certificates having stated maturilies on
and after ., ,in whole or fu part in prinelpal anounls of $5,000 or any
integral multiple thereof, on _,___, or any date thereafier, ot the par value
thereof plus acered interest to the date of redemption (see "THE CERTIFICATES - Oplional
Redemplion").

T the opinion of Bond Counsel, the interest on the Certificales will be excludable from gross
Income for federal income tax purposes under existing aw, subfect to the matters described
wnder the caption "TAX MATTERS" hecein,

TAX EXEMETION. v tuscessescasraens

TISE OF PROCEEDS voovovvnsssnnsensees Proeeeds from the sale of the Certificates will be used for the purpose of paying, in whole or
in part, conlractual Obligations to acquire, consteuet and equip exiensions and improvements
to the Cily's walerworks and sewer system (the “Projecis™) and for paying professional
services related thereto.

BATINGS oo esesesrseemmsenmeensmneneenees. Apiplication for a contract rating on the Certificales has been made to S&P. The presently
oulstanding tax supported debt of the City has an underlying raling of "AA-" by Standard &
Poor's Ratings Services, a Division of the McGraw-I5ll Companies, Tnc. ("S&P") {ste
SOTHER INFORMATION - Ralings").

* Preliminary, subject to change,




BooK-ENTRY-ONLY

SYSTEM covrvvvressisennnnssnmsanns

PAYMENT RECOTD 1o cnncntions

.......

The definitive Certificates will be initially registered and delivered only {0 Cede & Co., the
nominee of DTC pursuant fo the book-entry-only system described lierein, Beneficial

ownership of the Certificates may be acquired In denominations of $5,000 or integral
pultiples thereof, No physical delivery of the Cerillcates will be made to the beneficial
owners thereof. Prineipal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Cerlificates will be payable
by the Paying Agent/Registear to Cede & Co., which will make distribution of the amounts so
paid to the partieipating members of DTC for subsequent payment to the beneficial owners of
the Centificates {see *THE CERTIFICATES - Book-Entry-Onty System").

SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The City has never defaulted in payment of ils genternl obligation and tax supported debt.

Ratio

Fiscal Per Capita Per Tax Debt
Year Estimated Taxable Taxable Capila to Taxable %of
Ended City Assessed Assessed Tax Assessed Total Tax
9/30 Populaﬁonm Vatuation®” Valuation “Tax Debt®™ Debt Valuation  Collections
2006 22,648 $ 1,348,982,225 § 59,563 8§ 6,276,725 $ 8.47% 103.00%
2007 22,800 1,431,843,052 62,800 8,196,025 359 0.57% 99.49%
2008 23,142 1,189,144,358 51,385 7,900,100 4 0.66% 99.97%
2009 23,489 1,246,008,947 53,046 12,523,000 533 1.01% 99.21%
2010 23,489 1,267,100,786 53,944 12,048050 @ 513 @ 095% @ 1812%®

{1 Source: Cily of Kerrville, Texas.

& As reported by the Kerr County Appraisal District on the City's annuval State Property Tnx Board Reports; subject to

chenge during the ensuiug year,

&)} Doos not include seff-supporiing debt.

(4} Preliminary, subject to change. Includes the Certificates.

(3) As of December 15, 2009




CsIANGE INNET ASSETS

Unaudited Fiscal Year Ended September 30,
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Beginning Net Assels $50265,158  $48825544  $42,835201 ¥ $42,126743 M 538215975 ¥ $31,606,166
Total Revenue 22,677,402 23,997,009 27,171,163 23,363,091 21,590,720 19,230,357
Total Expenditures 23,068,755 23,381,162 23,826,074 19,479.221 18,229,692 17,749,598
Transfers 168,498 823,167 084,468 (500,710} (219312) 450,973

Prior Period Adjustnent

- 1,786,624

Ending Net Assets $£50,042,303  _$50,265,158 347,171,358 $45,509,903 $41,357,691 $35.324.022

(0

@)

&)

Restated, in fiscal year 2007, the Emergency Medical Services Fund was reviewed and based on prior year activity, it
\eas determined (it this fund should have been accounted for Tn the General Fund due to the excessive losses that the
General Fund had to provide for., This resulted in a deerease in fund balance of the EMS Fund and an increase to the
General Fund, Also duting the reviow, of Interfund payables and receivables, it was noted that in 2005 and 2006,
$80,000 of debt was forgiven by the City’s Feonomic Improvement Corporation {the “BIC”), When the debt was
forgiven, revenue should have been recognized by the Enterprise Funds with a corresponding decrease in interfund
payables. EIC should liave recognized an expense wilh a correspondlng decrense in interfund recoivables. Per an in
depth review of construction in progress, it appears thal cetiain projects were capitalized on construction in progress
ihal should have been expensed In the year In which they were incurred. ‘This resufted in a decrease in net assets of the
Water and Sewer Fund, Govemmental activities and Business-iype activities. The Insurance Intemal Servico Fund has
not previously recorded a liability for estimated elaims payable including claims incurred but not reporicd (IBNR). A
period adjustment was made (o record the IBNR liability that was estimated to exist at September 30, 2006, An
sdditlonal liability was recorded for the liability that must be pald to the Insurer upon termination for prior years'
deficits. This resulted in a decrease in net assels of the nsurance Trternat Service Fund as weil as Govemmental
activities, Airport land that was jointly ovmed by the City and Kerr County was recorded in the City's general capital
assets rather than in the Airport Fund, which accounts for the Airport Joint Venture. An adjustiment was made to
reinove $1,985,520 from the Governmental Activitics capifal assets at October 1, 2006 and to record the land in the
Alrport Fund., Furihermore, since the City owns 50% of the Alrport Joint Venture, the City's equily in the joint venture
was increased by 50% of $1,985,520 (or $992,764) at Qclober1, 2006,

Restated, in fiscal year 2006, it was noted that previous year's capital assets were nol properly recorded on the books,
An in depth review of their capital asset balances showed that capital assets were $1,802,776 overslated in the Business
type activities and $418,346 understated in Governnental aclivities. This resulted in u decrease lo nel assels for
Business-type activities and an increase fo net assels for Govemmental activities. The City receives Law Enforcenont
Officer Standards and Education Account {LEOSE") funds which are regulated and must bo Iracked coming in and
going out. In prior year, these were reported as revenue instead of deferced revenue. The prior year entry resulied jna
decrease in fund balanee in both the General Fund and Clovernmental aclivilies net assets of $4,352. In prior year, an
adjustment was made to transfer funds from the Sales Tax Improvement Fund to the Water and Sewer Tund per the
City's BIC Board authorization for the State Highway 16 wiility relocation project, It was determined after year end that
this enlry was not necessary, resuiting fn a decrease to the Water and Sewer niet assets and an increase to the Sales Tax
Improvement fund balance.

Restated; in fiscal year 2005, the BIC Board approved to apply prior interest payments as prinoipal pagment on an
interfund foan to the golf course fund. As & result, beginning fund equity for golf course fund and sales lax
improvements funds were restated by $40,000. In fiseal year 2005, it was noted that bond issuance cosis for
governmental actlvities had niever been capltalized in the goverament-wide financial statements. As a result, begioning
net assels for governmentat aclivitios were increased by $153,603 to record bond issuance costs at Qctober 1, 2004, In
reviewing construction in progress, it was noted that certaln projects costs were recorded as capital assels in bolh the
water and sewer fund as well as governmental activities in the statement of net assets. Since these assets witl
ultimately be maintained in the water and sewer fund, the duplicate costs of $1,090,819 were removed from
governmental activities as of October 1, 2004. During fiscal year 2005, the Cily’s engincer performed a complete
invenloty of the Cily’s stonn drains. Using current replacement cests and backtrending, the City was nble to estimale
s nvosient in storm deain infrastructure that previousty had not been capitatized, As aresult, at October 1, 2004, an
adjustment was made to record $3,789,769 in additional storm drain infrastructure.




GENERAL FUND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT SUMMARY

Unaudifed Fiscal Year Ended September 30,
2009 2008 2007 2000 2005 2004

Beginning Balance $ 7609478 8 7258938  § 7420072 W 5 6,148,504 ¥ 5 522134 § 5,397,724
‘T'otal Revenue 28317431 20,115,361 20,410,136 17,432,659 15,658,993 14,441,473
Total Expenditures (21,613,374) (20,802,578) (20,101,309) (16,478,194) (15,122,734) (15,228,256)
Other Sources 168,498 {18,030) (80,186) 231,035 395,373 610,373
Net Funds Available (127,445) {764,141 228,641 1,185,500 931,632 (176,410)
Ending Balance § 1481,933 $ 6,494,101 $ 7,648,713 $ 7,334,094 $ 6,152,946 $ 5221314
[4))] Restated, in fiscat year 2007, the Emergeney Medical Services Fund was reviewed and based en prlor year activily, it

was determingd that ihis fund should have been aceounted for in the General Fund due to the excessive losses that the
Generat Fund had to provide for, This resulted in a decrease in fund balance of the EMS Tund and an increasc to the
General Fund. Also during the review, of interfund payables and receivables, it was noted {hat in 2003 and 2006,
$80,000 of debt was forgiven by the City’s Economic Improventent Corporation (the “EBIC”), When the debt was
forgiven, revenue should have been recognized by the Enterpyise Funtds with a corresponding decrease in Interfund
payables. EIC should have recognized an expense with a conesponding decrease fu interfund receivables, Per an in
dopth review of construction D progress, it appears that cortain projects were capltalized on construction In progress
that should hiave been expensed In the year it which they were inourred. This resulled In a decrease in net assots of the
Water and Sewer Pund, Govenmnental aclivities and Business-type activities. The Insurance Intemal Servica Fund has
1ot provionsly recorded a liabilily for estimated clalins payable including claims incureed but not reporied (IBNR). A
period adjustment was made to record the IBNR liabifily that was estimated to exist at September 30, 2006. An
additional Jiability was recorded for the lability that must be paid to the jnsurer wpon termination for prior years'
deficits. This resulted in a decrease in net assets of the Insurance Tnternal Serviee Fund as well as Govemmental
activilies. Airport land that was jointly owned by the City and Karr County was recorded In the City’s general capital
assets rather than in the Airport Pund, which accouals for the Airport Joint Venlure, An adjustment was made to
remove $1,985,529 from the Govemnmental Activitics capilal assets at October 1, 2006 and to record the kand in the
Alrport Fund, Furthermors, since the City owns 50% of the Alrport Joint Venture, the City's equily in the joint venture
was increased by 50% of $1,985,529 {or $992,764) at October 1, 2006,

(3] Restaled, in fiscal year 2006, it was noted that previous yeat's capital assets were not properly recorded on the books,
An in depth review of their capital asset balances showed that capital assets were $1,802,776 overstated in the Business
type aclivities and $418,346 understated in Govemmental aclivities. This resulied in a decrease to nel assets for
Business-lype activities and an increase to net assets for Governmental activitles. The City receives LEOSE funds
which are regulated and must be racked coming in and going out. In prior year, these were reported as revenue instead
of deferred revenue, The prior year entry resulted In a decrease in fund balance in both the General Fund and
Govemmenlal activities net assets of $4,352. In prior yeas, an adjustment was made to trasfer funds from the Sales
Tax Fnprovement Fund {o (e Water and Sewer Ffund per the EIC Board authorization for the State Highway 16 utility
relocation project. [t was determined afier year end that this enlry was not necessary, resulling In a decrease to the
Water and Sewer net assets and an inergase {o the Sales Tax Tmprovement fund balance.

For additional information regatding the City, please contact:

Mr, Todd Patton Ms. Anne Burger Entrekin
City Manager First Southwest Company
Mr. Mike Erwin 70 Northeast Loop 410
Divector of Finance or  Suite 710

City of Kerrville San Antonio, Texas 78216
800 Junction Bighway 210-308-2200 - Tclephone
Kervitle, Texas 78028 210-349-7585 - Fax
£30-257-8000 - Telephone anne.enfrekin@firstsiv.com

$30-792-8309 - Fax
todd parton@kerrvilletx.gov
mike.erwinf@kerrvilletx.goy
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CITY OFFICIALS, STAEF AND CONSULTANTS

Length
City Council of Secvice Tenn Expires Qceupation
Todd A. Bock 4 Years May, 2010 General Manager RV Dealer
Mayor
R. Bruce Motheral 2 Years May, 2011 Professional Consuting Engineer
Mayor Pro-Tem, Place One
Stacta Keehle 1 Year May, 2011 Attoney
Councilperson, Flace Two
T. Scott Gross 4 Years May, 2010 Author
Counciiperson, Flace Three
Chuck Coleman 4 Years May, 2010 ' Real Estate hivestment and Financial Management
Councilperson, Place Four
SELECTED ADMINISTRATIVE STA¥F
Length of Service Total Govermment
Name Posilion 1o lhe City Service
Todd Parton Cily Manager 1 Year 17 Years
Mike Enwin Direcior of Finatice Newly Appointed 20Years
Brenda Cralg City Secretary 29 Yenrs 29 Years
Mike Hayes City Attorney & Years 14 Years
CONSULTANTS AND ADVISORS
AdHOIS cvnreiene Daws, Kinard & Co., P.C, CPA
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Financial AdVISOT. mimemmenmno.
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Abilene, Texas

o MeCall, Parkhurst & Horton LL.P,
San Antonio, Texas

sovesessnneres First Southivest Company
San Anfonio and Dallag, Texas
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT
RELATING TO

$4,200,000%
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIAGTION, SERTES 2010

INTRODUCTION

This Officlal Statement, which inchudes the Appendices hereto, provides certain information regarding the issuance of
$4,200,000* City of Kervville, Texas Combinatlen Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, Series 2010 (the “Certificates™)

Capilalized tenms used in this Officiat Statensent have the same meanings assigned fo such tenms in the respective ordinance lo be
adopted on the date of sale of the Certificates which witl authorize the issuance of the Cerlificates (the “Ordinance™), except as

otherwise Indicated hersin.

There follows in this Oifictal Statement descriptions of the Certificates nnd cerfatn information regarding the City and its
finances. All deseriptions of documents contained herein are only summares and are qualificd in their entirety by reference to
each such document. Copies of such docunitents may be obtained from the City's Financial Advisor, First Soulhwest Compatty,

Dallas and San Antondo, Texas.

DEsScRIPTION OF Tae CrTy .. . The City is a pofitical subdivision and munieipal corporation of the State, duly organized and
existing under the laws of the Slate, including the City's Home Rute Charter, T he City was incorporated in 1889, and first
adopted its Homo Rute Chatler on February 25, 1942, The City operates under a Council/Manager form of government with a
City Council comprised of the Mayor and four Counclimembers, The term of office fs two years with the tenns of the Mayor and
four Councilmombers being elected for staggered tvo-year tenns. The City Manager is the chief administealive officer for the
City. Some of the services that the City pravides ars: public safety {police and fire protection), emenzency medical services,
highways and streets, electric, water and sanifary sewer wlilities, healtl: and social services, cullure-recreation, public
improvements, planaing and zoning, ond genieral administrative serviees. The 2000 Census population for the City was 20,425,
while the estimated 2009 population is 23,489, The City covers approximately 18.8 square miles.

Usk oF CERTIRICATE PROCEEDS , . . Praceeds from the sale of the Cerlificates are expecied to bo expended as follows:

Sources of Fundst

Par Amount

Accrued Infercst

Original Issue Discount

Reoffering Premium e
Total Sources of Funds $ -

Uses of Funds:

Deposit to Project Construction Fund

Deposit to Tnferest and Sinking Fund

Costs of Issuance (includes Tnsuranco Premimum)

Uniderwriters' Discount
Total Uses of Funds ) -

* Preliminary, subject to chenge.
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THE CERTIEICATES

DESCRIFTION OF THE CERTIFICATES . .. The Certificates are dated February 1, 2010, and mature on August 15 in cach of the
years and in fhe amounts shown on page 2, tespectively. Interest will acerue from he “Date of Delivery” to the Underwriters and
will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months, and will be payable on February 15 and August 15,
commencing Februacy 15, 2011, until maturity or earfier redemption. The definitive Certificates wil be issued only in fully
registeted form in any integral multiple of $5,000 for any one maturity and witl be Initially registered and deliverced only to Cede
& Co., the nominge of The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") pursuant to the book-entry-only system described herein. No
pliysical delivery of the Certificates will be made to the benelicial owners thereof, Principal of, premium, ifany, and interest
on the Certificates will be payable by the Paying Agent/Reglistrar to Cede & Co., which will make distribution of the amounts so
paid fo the participating members of DEC for subsequent payment (o the beneficial owners of the Certiflcates. See "THE
CERTIFICATES - Book-Entey-Onty System” hereln,

AUTHORITY FOR JSSUANCE OF THE CERTIFICATES , , The Cortlficates are being Issued pursuant to the Constitution and general laws
of the State of Texas, particularly Subchapter C of Chapter 271, Texas Local Govemment Code (the Certificate of Obligation Act of

1971), as amended, and the Certificate Ordinance passed by the City Counetl.

SECURITY AND SOURCE OF PAYMENT

Ad valorem Tax Pledge: Tn the Ordinance, the City covenants that it will levy and coltect an annual ad valorem tax, within the
limitations preseribed by Inw, against all taxable property located within the City sufficient to meet the debi service requirements

on the Certificates.

Tax Rate Limitations: The City operates under a home-rule charter as authorized by Anicle XI, Section 5 of the Constilution of
the State of Texas. The Constitwtion of the State of Texas and the Cily Charter provide that the ad valorem faxes levied by the
City for gencral purposes and for (he purpose of paylng the principal of and Intercst on {he City's indebtediness nwust not exceed
$2 50 for cach $100 of assessed valuation of taxable property, There is no constitutionat or statulory Fimitation within the $2.50
rate for inferest and sinking fund purposes; however, the Texas Altomey General has adopled an administrative policy that
prohibits the jssuance of debt by & municipality, such as the City, if its issuance produces debt service requirements sxceeding
that which can be paid from $1.50 of the foregoing $2.50 maximutit tax rale cateutated at 90% collection. The issuance of the
Certificates does not violate the constitutional restriction, City Charter provision, or the Texas Attorney General's administrative

policy.

Pledee of Surplus Wate s ai Svsten) Revenes for Certificates: The Certificates are additionafly scoured by a lien ont
and pledge of fhe "Surplus Revenues™ derived from the ownership and operation of the Cily’s waterworks mid sewer system, as
provided in the Certificate Ordinmnce. ‘The City expects that such Surplus Revenves will be ulilized to pay the debt service
requirements ot the Certificates.

OPTIONAL REDEMPTION , , . The Cily reserves the right, at its option, to redeem Cenlificates having stated maturities on and after
., inwhole or in parl in principal amounts of $5,000 or any integral muttiple thereof, un s
T, or any date thereafter, af the par value thereof plus acesued interest to the date of redemption. If less than all of the
Cettificates of a particular series are to be redeemed, the City may select the matuiities of Cerlificates (o be redeomed, less
(han olf the Certificates of any malurity of & partieular series are to be redeemed, the Paying Agent/Registrar (or DTC while the
Cerlificates are In Book-Entry-Only formi) shall determine by Iot the Certificates, or porlions thereof, within such matuzity to be
redeemed, T€a Certificate (or any porlion of the principal sum thereof) shall have been catted for redemption and notice of such
redemption shell kave been given, such Certificate (or the principal amounl thereof to be redeemed) shall become due and
payable on such redemption date and interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and alter the redemption date, provided funds for
tho paynient of the redemption price and accrued interest thereon are held by the Paying Agent/Registrar on the redemption date.

NOTICE 0¥ REDEMPTION . . . Not less than 30 days prior to n redemplion date for the Certifieates, the City shal cavse anotice of
redemplion te be sent by United Siates mail, first class, postage prepaid, to the registercd owners of the Cerifieates to be
redeerned, In whole or In part, at the address of the registered owner appearing on the registration books of the Paying
Agent/Registrar at the olosc of business on the business day next preceding the date of mailing swuch notice, ANY NOTICE 80
MAILED SHALL BE CONCLUSIVELY PRESUMED TO HAVE BEEN DULY GIVEN, WHETHER OR NOT THE
REGISTERED OWNER RECEIVES SUCH NOTICE. NOTICE HAVING BEEN SO GIVEN, THE CERTIFICATES CALLED
FOR REDEMPTION SHALL BECOME DUER AND PAYABLE ON THE SPECIFIED REDEMPTION DATE, AND
NOTWITIISTANDING THAT ANY CERTIFICATES OR PORTION THEREOF HAS NOT BEEN SURRENDERED FOR
PAYMENT, INTEREST ON SUCH CERTIFICATES OR PORTION THUEREOTF SHALL CEASE TO ACCRUE,
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DEFEASANCE . .. The Ordinauee provides for the defeasance of the Certificates when the payment of the principat of and
premium, it any, on the Ceriffeates, plus interest thereon to the due dale thereof (whether such due date be by reason of maturity,
redemption, or otherwise), Is provided by irrevocably depositing with a paying agent, in trust (I} money su fiicient to make such
payment or (2) Defeasance Securities thal mature as ta principal and inferest in such mmouats and at such tines Lo {nsure the
availability, without reinvestment, of sufficient money to make such payment, and all necessary and proper fees, compensation
and expanses of the paying agent for the Certificates. The Ordinance provides that "Defeasance Securities” means (n} direct,
noncallable obligations of the United States of America, including obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed by the United
States of America, (b) noncallable obligations of an agency or instrurnentatily of the United States of Americn, including
obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed or insured by the agenoy or instrumentalily and that are rated as to investment
quality by a nationally recognized investment rating fime not less than AAA or lis equivalent, (¢) noncallable obligations of a
siate or an agency or A county, municipality, or other politicat subdivision of a stale that have been refunded and that are rated as
to investment quality by a natlonaily recoguized inveshent rating fim not less han AAA or its equivalent, and (d) any other
then anthorized securities or obfigations under applicable state Iaw fiiat may be used to defeaso obligations such as the
Certificates, The Clty has additionally reserved the right, subject to satisfying the requiroments of (1) and (2) above, lo substitute
other Defeasance Secutilies for the Defeasance Seeurities origlnally deposited, to reinvest the uninvested moneys on deposit for
such defeasantce and (o withdraw for the benefit of the City moneys in excess of the amount requived for such defeasance.

Upon such deposit as deseribed sbove, such Cerilficates shall no longer be regarded to be oufstanding or unpaid, Provided,
however, the City has reserved the option, to be exercised at the time of the defeasance of the Cerilficates, to call for redemption,
at an earlier date, those Cerlificates which have been defeased o thelr maturity date, if the City: () Inthe proceedings providing
for the firm banking and financial arrangements, expressly reserves the right to call the Certificates for redemption; (i) gives
notlee of the reservation of that right ta the owners of the Cettificales immediately following the making of the firm banking and
financial arrangements; and (i) dicects thet notice of the reservation be included in any redemption notices that it authorizes.

BoOK-ENTRY-ONLY SYSTEM ... This section describes how ownership of the Cerfificates Is to be transferred and how {lio
peincipal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Cerlificates are fo be paid to and acecedited by DTC while the Certificales are
registered n its nominee name. The information in this section concerning DTC and the Book-Entry-Only Sysient has been
provided by DTC for use in disolosure documents such as this Official Statement, The City believes the source of such
information Lo be retlable, but takes no responsibility for the accuracy or completeness thereof,

The Gity camnot and doos not give any assurance that (1) DTC will distribute payments of debt service on the Centificates, or
redemption or other notices, to DTC Parlicipants, (2) DIC Paticipants of athers will distribute debt service payments paid to
DTC or its nomines (ss the registered owner of the Certificates), or redempiion or offier notices, to the Beneficial Owners, or that
they will do so on a timely basis, or (3) DTC will serve and act in the manner described in this Official Statement. The current
rutes applicable to DTC are on file with the Securllfes and Bxchange Conumission, and the current procedures of DTC 1o be
followed in dealing with DTC Parlicipanis arc on file with DTC,

DTC will act as securities depository for the Certificates. The Certificates will be fssued as fully-registered securities registered
in the name of Cede & Co. (I'TC's pasinership nomines). One fully registered cerlificate will be Issued for each melurily of the
Certificales In the aggregate principal amount of ¢ach sueh malueity and witl be deposited with DTC.

DTC, tite world’s largest securitios depository, s & Hmited-purpose Lrust company organized under the New York Banking Law,
a “banking organization” wilhin the meaning of {he New York Banking Law, & member of the Federnl Reserve System, a
“ctenring corporation” wilhin the meaning of the New York Uniform Commerciaf Code, and a “slearing agency” registered
pursuant to the provisions of Seclion 17A of the Secnrities Bxchange Act of 1934, DTC holds and provides asset servicing for
over 3.3 million issucs of U.S, and non-U.8, equily issues, corporale and muntcipal debt fssies, aud money markel insirumenis
(fram over 100 countries) that DIC’s patticipants (“Direct Parficipants”) deposit with DTC, DTC also facilitates the post-trade
seftlement emong Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposiled securitics, through eleclronic
computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants® accounts. This eliminates the need for physical
movement of secutities certificates, Direet Participants include both 1.5, and non-10.5. seenrities brokers and dealers, banks, trust
companies, cleating corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is & wholly-owied subsidiacy of The Depositery Trust &
Clearing Carporation {“DTCC"), DTCC is the hotding company for DTC, National Securilies Clearing Corporalion and Fixed
come Clearing Comporation, alt of which are registered cleming agencies, DTCC is owned by the vsers of its regulated
subsidiaries, Access to the DTC system Is also availablo to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers,
banks, trost companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain & custodial relationshlp with a Direct Participant,
either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”), DTC fas Standard & Poor's highest rafing: AAA, The DTC Rules
applicable to its Participants are on file with the Seeurities and Exchange Commission, More infonnation about DTC can be

found at www.dlce.com and wwaw.dte.org,
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Purchases of Certificates under the DT system must be made by or tirough Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for
the Cerfificates on DTC’s records, The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Certificates (“Beneficial Owner”) is
in tm 1o be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Pariicipants’ records. Benefictal Owners will not recoive wiitten confinnation
from DTC of their purchase, but Beneficial Owners are expected to receive written confinnations providing details of the
{ransactions, as well as periodic slatements of their heldings, from the Direct or Fudirect Participant through which the Benoficial
Owners entered into the transaction. Transfers of ovnership interest in the Certificates are to be accomplished by cniries made
on the books of Participants acting on behatf of Beneficial Gwneis. Beneficinl Owners will not recelve certificales representing
thefr ownesship interests in the Cerdificates, except in the ovent that use of the book-enlry system for the Cetificates is
discontinued.

To facililate subsequent teansfers, all Certificates deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name of DTC's
parinership nominee, Cede & Co., or such othier name os may bo requested by an suthorized representative of DTC. The deposit
of Ceriificates with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change
in benefletal ovmership, DTC has no knowledge of the actusl Benefictal Owners of the Certificates; DTC's records reffect only
the identity of the Ditect Participant to whose account such Certificates aro credited, which may or may not ke the Beneficial
Owners, The Participants wilf remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behialf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and otlier comnnications by DTC to Direct Paricipants, by Direct Participants to Indirect Participants,
and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participanis to Bensficial Owners will be poverned by arrangements among them, subject
to any statulory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from tinte to tine,

Redemption notices shall be sent fo DTC. If less than all of the Certificates within 2 mafurity are being redeemed, DTC’s
praclice is to determing by lot the amount of the interest of each Direet Participant in such maturity to be redeemed.

Neitlier DTC nor Cede & Co. will consent or vete with respect to the Certificates unless authorized by a Direct Participant in
accordance with DTC's procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Onnibus Proxy (o the City as soon as possible
after Uie record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Ditect Participants to whose
aceounts the Certificates aze credited on the record date (identified in a listing aftached to the Omuibus Proxy).

Redemption proceeds and principal md interest payments o the Cerfificates will be made to DTC, DTC's practice Is to credit
Direct Parileipants® accounts, upon DTC’s receipt of funds and carresponding detail information from the City or tiie Paying
Agent/Registrar on payable dates in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by
Participants to Beneficial Owners will be govemed by standing instructions and customary practices, as in the case with
securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer Form or registered in “streel name,” and witl be the responslbility of such
Participant and not of DTC, the Paying Agent or the City, subject to any statutory or regulatory requireinents as may be in effect
from time to thme. Payment of redemption proveeds and principal and interest fo DTC is the responsibility of the City,
disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants shall be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments 1o

the Beneficial Owners shall be the responsibitity of Direct and Indirect Participnats,

DTC may discontinue providing its services as securiiies depository with respect (o lhe Cerlificates at any Hme by giving
reasonable notice to the City and the Paying Agent/flegistrar, Under such circumsiances, in the event thal a successor securities
depository is not obtained, Certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The City may decide to discontinue nse of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository),
Tns that event, Cerlificates will be printed and delivered.

Use of Certaln Terms in Other Sections of this Offfcial Statement. In reading this Official Stateruent it should be understood
that while the Certiflcates ato in 1he Book-Eutry-Only System, references In othex seclions of this Officlal Statement to registered
owners should be read to include the person for which (ke Paticipant acquires an interest in the Cerlificates, but (§) aft rights of
ownership must be exercised $hrough DTC and fhe Book-Entry-Only System, and (ji) except as described above, notices that are
to be given to registered owners under {he Ordinance will be given only to DTC.

Information coneeming DTC and the Beole-Entry-Only System has been obtained from DTC and is not gu aranteed as to accuracy
or completeness by, and is ot to be construed as a representation by the City, the Financial Advisor or the Underwrilers.

Effect of Terminniton of Book-Enfry-Only System, Tn the evenl that the Book-Butry-Only System is discontinued by DTC or
the use of the Book-Enicy-Only System is discontinued by the Cily, printed Cextificates will be issued to the holders and the
Cartificates will be subject o transfer, exchange and registention provisions as set forth in the Ordinance and summarized under
“THE CBRTIFICATES- Transfer, Exchange and Registzation” below.




PAvING AGENTIREGISTRAR . . . The inltial Paying Agent/Registrar is Wells Fargo Bank, A, Austin, Texas. In tho Qrdinance,
the City retalus the right to replace the Paying Agent/Registrar, The City covenants to maintain and provide a Paying
Agent/Registrar at all times until the Cenificales rre duly paid sud any successor Paying Agent/Registrar shalt be a commercial
bank or frust company organized wnder the faws of the State of ‘fexas or otler entity duly quatified and legally authorized to
serve as and perform the dutles and services of Paying Agent/RRegistrar for the Certificates. Upon any chango in the Paying
Agent/Registear for elther series of the Certificates, the City sgeees to prompily eause a writien nolice thereof 1o be sent to each
registered owner of the affected Certificates by United States mail, first olass, postage prepaid, which notice shall also give the

address of lhe new Paylng Agent/Repistrar.

TRANSFER, EXCHANGE AND REGISTRATION . . . In {he event i book-entry-anly systemt should be discontinued, the Cettificates
may be fransferred and exchanged on the rogisteation books of the Paying Agent/Registrar only upen presentation and surrender
10 the Paying Agent/Registrar and such transfer or exchange shall be willioul expens or servies charge 1o the registered owner,
except for any tax or other governmental charges required o bo paid with respect o such registration, exchange and fransfer.
Cerlficates ntay be assigned by the execution of an assignment form en the respective Cerlificates or by other Instrument of
transfer and assigninent acceptable to the Paying AgentfRegistrar.  New Certificates will be delivered by the Paying
Agent/Rogistrar, in lew of the Certificates being iransferred or exchanged, at the designated office of the Payiug Agent/Registrar,
or sent by United States mail, ficst class, postage prepaid, to the new registered owner or his designee. To the extent possible,
new Cerlificates ssued in an exchange or transfer of Cerlificates will be delivered to the registered owner or assigneo of the
registered owner in not mare then three business days after the recelpt of the Cedificates lo be canceled, and the written
instrument of transfer or request for exchange duly execuled by the tegistered owmer or his duly authorized agemt, in form
satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Regisirar. New Certificates registered and delivered in an exchange or transfer shafl be in any
integral multiple of $5,000 for any one maturity and for a like aggregate principal amount and series os the Certificates
surrendered for exchange or fransfer. See "THE CERTIFICATES - Book-Entry-Only System Rerein for a deseriplion of the
system 1o be utilized inltially in regard to ownership and teansferability of the Cerliflcates. Neither the City nor the Paying
Agent/Regisirar shall be required to tmnsfer or exchange any Cerlificate called for redempfion, in whole or in part, within 43
days of the date fixed for redemption; provided, however, such Hmitation of transfer shall net be applicable to an exchange by the
registered owner of the uncailed balance of 4 Cerificate,

Recomy DATE FOR TNTEREST PAYMERT . ., The record date ("Recard Dz{le") for the interest payable on the Certificates on any
interest payment dale means the close of business on the Iast business day of the preceding inonth.

It the event of o non-payment of interest on a scheduled payment date, aid for 30 days thereafter, a new record dale for such
nterest payment (a "Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, i€ and when funds for the payment
of such interest have been received from the City, Notice of the $Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the
past due interest (“Speciat Payment Date,” which shall ba 15 days afier the Special Record Datej shall be sent al least five
business days prior (o the Special Record Date by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, to the address of each Holder of
a Cerlificate appenring on the registration books of the Paying Agent/Registrar at the close of busiuess on the last business day
next preceding the date of malling of such notice,

AMENDMENTS , ., The City may amend, change, or modify the Ordinance without the consent of or nofice (o any registered
owners, s may be required (1) by the provisiens of the Ordinance; (i) for the purpose of curing any anhiguily, inconsisteacy, or
format defect or omissfon thereln; or {iii) n conneetion with any other chiange which is not to the prejudice of the registered
owners. In addition, the City may, with the writlen consent of the holders of a majodty in aggregate principal amount of the
Celficates then outstanding and affected therchy, amend, change, modify, or rescind any of the provisions of the Ordinance;
except that, without the consent of the registered owners of all of the Certificates affected, wo such amendment, change,
ntodificatton, or rescissions may (i) change the date specified as the date on which the principal of or any installment of interest on
the Cerlificates is due and payable, reduce the principal amount thereofor (e rate of Interest thereon, or in any other way modify
the terms of payment of the principal of, redemption price, or inferest on the Ceriificates; (i) give any proferece to any
Cedificates over any other Certificates; (iit) extend any waiver of defauft to subsequent defaulls; ov (iv) reduce the respective
apgregate principal amount of Centificates required for consent {o any amendment, change, modification, or rescission.

BoNDHOLDERS' REMEDIES , . . The Ordinance establish specific events of default with respect to the Certificates. If the City
defaulls in the payment of the principal of or interest on the Certificates when due or the Cily defaults in the observance or
performance of any of the covenants, conditions, or Certificates of the City, the failurs to perform which materiatly, adversely
affects the rights of the owners, including but not Hmited to, their prospect o ability to be repaid in accordance with the
Ordinance, and the continuation thereof for a perlod of 60 days after notice of such default is given by any owner (o the Cily, the
Ordinance provide that any registered ovner is enlitled fo seek a writ of mandamus from a court of proper jurisdiction requiring
the City to moke such payment or observe and perforn such covenants, Certificates, or conditions, The issuance of & writ of
snandamus is contrelled by cquitable principles, so rests with the disoretion of the court, but may net be arbitearily refused. Thero
is 1to acceleralion of maturity of the Cerlificates in the event of default and, consequently, the remedy of mandamus may have to bo
relied upon from year to year. The Ordinance does not provide for (he appointment of & trustee to represent the interest of the
holders upon any faiturz of the City to perform in accordance with the terms of the Ordinance, or upon any ather condition and
accordingly all legal actions to enforee such remedies would have 1o be undertaken at the fnitiative of, and be Hnanced by, the
reglstered owners. On June 30, 2006, the Texas Supreme Cowrt ruled in Tooke v. City of Mexia 157 $.W.3% 325 (Tex. 2006) that
a waiver of soversign inununity in a contractual dispute must be provided for by stalute in “clear and wambigitous” language.
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Because it is unclear whether the Toxas legislaturs has effoctively woived the City’s sovereign imumunily from a suit for money
damages, cerfificale holders may not be able to bring such a suit against the City for breach of the Certificates or covenants in the
Ordinance. Even if a judgment against the City could be oblained, it conld not be enforeed by direct levy and execution against {he
City's property. Further, the registered owners cannot themselives foreclose on property within the City or sell properly within the
City to enforce the tax lien on taxable propeity to pay the prineipal of and interest on the Cextificates. Furdhemore, the City is
eligitle to seck rolief from its creditors under Chapler & of the US, Baukwptey Code (“Chapler 9, Although Chapler 2
provides for the recognition of a securily Interest represented by a specifically pledged source of rovenues, the pledge of ad
valorem laxes in support of a general certificate of a bankrupt entity is not specifically recognized as a security interest under
Chapter 9. Chapter 9 also ineludes an autoratio stay provision that woudd prohibit, without Bankruptoy Court approval, the
proseution of any other legat action by creditors or bondholders of an entity which has sought protection under Chapter 9.
‘Therefore, should the City avail lisel€ of Chapter 9 protection from creditors, the ability to enforce would be subject to the
approval of the Bankruptoy Court (which could require that the actlon be licard in Bankruptey Court instend of other federal or
state courl); and the Bankruptey Codo provides for broad disoretionary powers of a Bankruptey Court In administering any
proceeding brought before il. The opinion of Bond Counsel will note that all opinidns relalive to the enforceabllity of the
Ordinance and the Cerlificates are qualified with vespeet to the eustomary rights of debtors relative fo their creditors,

BOND INSURANCE

The City has made application to municipat bond insurance companies to have the paymeat of the principal of and interest on the
Certificales insured by a municipal bond punranty policy or policles. In ihe event thet the City recelves one of morg
commilnents from providers of such Insurance, the City reserves the right to insurs the Certificates, If the City determines that
siteh insurance is econotnically beneficial (o the Cily. The Clly shall notify the Underwriters upon obieining a commitment from
a municipat bond insurance company coneemning this matter. The final Official Statement shatl discloese, to the extend necessary,
any relevant information relating to these municipat bond insurance policies.

BOND INSURANCE RISK FACTORS

If the Cily chooses to purchase a municipal bond insurance policy (ke "Policy™), the following risk faclors related to municipal
bond insurance policies applies.

Int the event of default of the scheduled payment of prineipal of or interest on the Cerfificates when all or a pottion thercof
becomes due, any owner of the Certificates shall have a claim under the Policy for such payments. ‘T he payment of principal and
fniterest in connection with mandatory or optional prepayment of the Certificates by the City which is recovered by the City fromi
the owner as a voidable preference under applicable bankruptey law is covered by the Policy; however, such payments will be
made by the Policy provider (the “Insurer”) at such fime and ju such amounts as would have been due absence such prepayment
by the City {unless the Insurer chooses to pay such amounts at an earlier date).

Payment of principal of und interest on the Cerilficates is not subject to accelesation, but other fegal remedies wpon the
accurcence of non-payment do exist (see "THE CERTIFICATES — Bondholders' Remedies"}, The Insorer may direct the pursult
of avallable remedies, and generally wust consent to any reniedies avaifable to and requesied by the holders. Additionally, the
Insuret’s consent may be required in conmection with antendments to the Ordinauce, In the event the Insurer is unable to ;make
payment of principal and interest as such payments become due under the Poliey, the Cortificales are payable solely from the ad
valorem tax levied, within he Himits prescribed by tow, on ail taxable propery located within the City {and the Certificates also
are payable from the Sumplus Revenues of the City's waterworks and sewer system). In the eveat the Insurer becomes obligated
to make payments with respect to the Cerlificates, no assurance fs given that such svent will not adversely affect the markel price
or the marketability (liquidily) of the Ceriificates,

If a Policy is acquired, the long-term ratings on the Certifieates will be dependent in part on the financia! strength of the Insurer
and ils claims paying ability. The Insurer’s finuicial strength and claims paying ability are predicated upen a number of factors
which conld change over tine, No assurance can be given that the long-tenn ralings of the Tnsurer and of the ratings on the
Cerlificates, whellher or not subject to a Policy, will not be subject (o downgrade and such event could advorsely affect the market
“price or the marketability (liquidity) for the Certificates. See the disclosure deseribed in "OTHER TNFORMATION - Rating”

herein,

The Certificates of the Insurer under a Policy are general Cerificates of the Insurer and in an event of defiwlt by the Insurer, the
remedles available may be limited by applicable beankmupley law. None of the City, the Financial Advisor, or the Underwriters
has made independent investigation inlo the elaims paying ability of the Insurer and no assurance ar representation regarding the
financlal strength or projected finaneial strength of the Insuzer is given,
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TAX INFORMATION

AD VALOREM Tax LA, .. The appraisal af property within the City is the responsibitity of the Kerr County Appralsal District (the
mAppratsal District"). Fxcluding agriculiuml and open-space land, which may be txed on the basls of produetive capacity, the
Appraisal District is required wnder the Property Tax Cods to appraise all property within the Appralsal District on the basis of 100%
of its market value and is prohibited from applying any assessment ralfos. Tn determining market value of property, different methods
of eppraisal may be sed, including the cost method of appralsal, the fnconte methed of apprafsal and markel datn comparison meliiod of
approisal, and the method considered most appropriate by Ute chielappralser s to be used. State faw further Timits the appraised value
of a residence homestead for a tax year to an mmount that wonld notl exceed either {he Jesser of (1) the property's market value for
1he most recent tax year in which it was appraised or (2) the sum of (a) 10% of the property's appraised value for the preceding
tax year, plus {b) the property’s appraised vatue for the preceding tax year, plus (c) the market value of all new impravewmsnts to
{lte properly, The value placed upon property within the Appraisal District is subject to review by an Appraisal Review Board,
consisting of three members appointed by the Doard of Directors of the Appraisel District, The Appraisal District is required to
review the value of properly within the Appraisal District af least every three years, The Cily may require annuat soview at ils own
expense, and Is entilled to challenge the determination of appraised value of property within the City by petition filed with lhe
Appralsal Review Board.

Referenco is made to the Texes Propetty Tax Code for identificatlon of properly subiject 1o taxation; properly exempt or which niay
be exeanpted from taxation, if claimed; the appralsel of properly for ad valorein laxation purposes; and the procedures and Jimitations
applicable to the levy and collection of ad valorem taxes,

Article VAL of the State Constitution ("Article VII[") and State fnw provide for certain exemptions from property taxes, the valuation
of agricultural and open-space lands at productivity value, and the exemption of certain personal properfy from ad valorei {axation.

Under Section 1-b, Article VI, and State law, the governing body of a political subdivision, al its option, may grant: (1) oa
exemption of not less than $3,000 of the market valio of the residence fomestead of persons 65 years of age or older and the
disabled front all ad valorem laxes thereafler levied by the polittcal subdivision; and (2) au exemption of up to 20% of the market
valie of residence fiomesieads, subject to a mindmunt exemplion under this provisien of $5,000. The surviving spouse of an
individual who qualifies for the foregoing exemption for the residence homestead of a person 65 or older (but not the disabled) is
entitled to an exemption for the same properdy in an amot equal to that of the exemption for which the deceased spouse qualified If
(i) the deceased spouse died in a year in which the deceased spouse qualified for the exemption, (i) the surviving spouse was at feast
55 years of age at the lime of the death of the individual’s spouse and (iit) the property was lhe residence homestead of the surviving
spouse when (he deceased spouse died and rentaing the residence homestead of the surviving spouse,

Int the case of residence homestead exemptions granted under Section I-b, Ardicle VI, ad valorem taxes may conilie to be
levied against the value of homesteads exempted where ad valorem taxes have previously been pledged for the payment of debt if
cessation of the levy would impair the certificate of the contract by which the debt was created.

State law and Section 2, Atiicle VI, mandate an additional property tax exemption for disabled veterans or (he surviving spouse or
children: of a deceased veteran who died whils on active duty in the ammed forces; the exemplion applies to elther real or personal
property with the amount of assessed valuation exempted ranging from $5,000 (o a maximum of $12,000. Effective January 1, 20190,
Section 11,131 to the Tax Code provides that n disabled veleran who recsives from the United States Department of Veterans Aftairs
or its successor 109% disability compensation due to & servics-connected disability and = rating of 108% disabled or of individual
unemployability is entitled to an exemption from taxation of the lotal appraised vatue of ihe veteran's residence homestead.

Under Asticle VII and State law, the City may freeze tho total mmount of ad valorem taxes levied on the residence homestead of
& disabled person or persons 65 years of age or older to the aniount of taxes imposed in the year such residence quatified for such
exemption. Also, upon receipt of a petition signed by five percent of the regisiered voters of the City, an election must be held to
deferminie by majority vote whether to establish sutch a limitation on taxes patd on residenco homesteads of persons 65 years of
age or older or who arc disabled. Upon providing for such exemplion, such freeze on ad valorem faxes is transferable to a
different residence homestead and to a surviving spouse Hving insuch lomestead who Is disabled or is at least 55 years of sge. IT
improvements {olher than maintenance or repalts) are made to the property, the valuo of the improvenents is taxed at ihe then
current tax rate, and the fotal amount of faxes imposed is increased to reficct the new improvements with the new amouit of taxes
then serving as the cefilng on taxes for the following years. Once established, the lax rate Jimitation may not be repealed or

reseinded,

Article VIII provides that eligible owners of both agricultural land (Section 1-d) nnd epert-space land {Section 1-d-1), including
open-space land devoted to fam or ranch pueposes or open-space land deyoted to timber production, may elect to have such propeity
appraised for properly taxation on the basis of its productive capacity. The same land may not be qualified under both Section 1-d

and 1-d-1,
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Nonbusiness personal property, such as automobiles or light trucks, are exempt from ad valorem {axation unless the governing body
of a political subdiviston elects to lax this property. Boals owned as nonbusiness property are exempt from ad vatorem faxation.

Aticle VI, Section 1-f of the Texas Constitution provides for an exemption from ad valorem taxation for “freeport property,”
which is defined as goods detainicd in the state for 175 days or less for the pupose of assembly, storage, manufacluring,
processing or fabrication, Taxing units thet took aclion prier to April 1, 1990 may continus lo tax freeport property and declsions
to continue to tax frecport propetty may be reversed in the future. However, decisions to exempt frecport property are not subject
to reversal. T addltion, effective for tax years 2008 and therenfter, Article VIH, Seclion {-n of the Texas Constitution provides
for an exemption from taxation for "goods-in-transit,” which are defined as personul property aequired or imported into the state
and transported fo another location inside or outside (he state within 175 days of the date the property was acquired or imported
into the state, The excmption excludes oil, natural gas, pefroleusn products, aircraft and special inventory, including motor
vehicle, vessel and out-board motor, heavy equipment and manufactured housing inventory. After holding a public hearing, a
taxing wnit may take action by Janvary 1 of the year preceding 4 tax year lo tax goods-in-teanslt during the following tax year. A
laxpayer may oblain only a freeport exemplion or a goods-in-transit exenption for items of personal property,

The City and the other taxing bodies within its terrifory may agree to jointly create tax increment financing zones (*TIFZ"), under
swhich the tax values on property in the zone are “frozen” at the value of the property at the time of creation of the zone, Other
overlapping taxing units levying taxes in the TIFZ may agree to conlribute all or parl of future ad valorem taxes levied and
collected against the valus of property in the TIFZ in excess of the “frozen values” to pay or finance the costs of certain public
improvements in the TIFZ. Taxes levied by the City sgainst the values of real property in e TIFZ in excess of tie “frozen”
value are not avaitable for general clty use but are restricled to paying or financing “project cosls™ willin the TiFZ, The City also
may entet iato tax abalement agreements to encourage economic development, Under the agreements, a property owner agrees to
construct certnin Improvements on its properiy. The Cily in tum agress not to levy a tax on all or part of the increased value
aliributable to the improvements until the expivation of the sgreement. The nbatement agreemaitt cowld last for a period of up to 10

years.

Citles aro also authorized, pursuant to Chapler 380, Texas Local Goveriment Code, as amended (“Chapter 380"), to establish
programs to promote state or local economic development and to slimutate business and commercial activity fn the city. In
necordance with a progeam established pursvant to Chapler 380, a oity mny ke loqns or grants of public fands for economic
development prrposes, however no Cortificates secured by ad valorem taxes may be issued for sueh purposes unless approved by

voters of the cily.

E¥sECTIVE TAX RATE AND ROLLBACK TAX RATE., . , The City Council adopfs a iax rale per $100 taxable value for tie current
year. 'The City Councll will be required to adopt the aunual tax rate for the City before the inter of Seplember 30 or the 60" day
afler the date the cerlified appraisal rolt is received by the Clty. If ihe City Councl! does nat ndopt o tax rate by swch required
date the tax rate for that tax year is the lower of the effective fax rate calculated for that tax year o the tax rate adopied by the
City for the preceding tax year. The tax rate consists of two components: (1) a mle for funding of maintenance and operation
expenditures, and (2) a rate for debt service.

nder the Property Tax Code, the City must annually caleulate and publicize its “sffective tax rate’” mud “rollback tox rale.” A
tax rate eannol be adopted by the City Council (hat exceeds the lower of the rollback tax rate or the effective fax rale untit two
pubiic hearings have been held on the proposed tax rate foltowing notice of such public hearings (including ihe requirement that
notice be posted an the City's websile if the City owns, operates or conleols an infernet website and public notice be given by
television if the City has free access o o television channcl) and the City Council has othenvise complied with the fegal
requirements for the adoption of such {ax rate. If tho adopted tax rate exceeds the rollback tax rale the qualified voters of the City
by petition may require that nn election be held to determine whether or not to reduce the tax rate adopted for the current year to

the rollback lax rate.

“Effective {ax rate” means the rate thal will produce last year's total tax levy (adjwsted) from this year's tofal laxablo values
{adjusted). "Adjusted” means lost values are not ncluded in the caleulation of last year's taxes and new values are not incheded
in this year's taxable values,

"Roliback {x rate” means the rate that wilt produce last year's maintenance and operation tax levy (adjusted) from this year's
values (adjusted) muttiplied by 1.0B plus a rate that will produce this year's debt service from this year's values (unadjusted)

divided by the anticipated tax collectionrale,

The Propetty Tax Code provides that certain cilies and counties in the State may submuiit a proposttion to the vofers to anthorize
an edditional one-half cent sales tax on relait sales of taxable items for the purpose of reducing the ad valorem tax rate, If tie
additional tax Is lovied, the effective tax rale and the roliback tax rate enlcutations are required to be offsct by the revenue that
will be generated by the sales tax in the coment year.

Reference is made lo the Property Tax Code for definitive requitements for the levy and collection of ad vaforem taxes and the
caleulation of tie varfous defined tax rafes.
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PROPERTY ASSESSMENT AND "TAX PAYMENT . .. Property within the City is generally assessed as of January | of each year,
Business inventory may, at fhe option of the taxpayer, be assessed as of Septemiber. Qil and gas roserves are assessed on the
basls of a velualion provess which uses an average of the daily price of oil and gas for the prior year. Taxes become due
Qctober | of the sane year, and become definquent on February 1 of the following year, Taxpayers 63 years old or older are
pemitled by State law lo pay taxes on homestends in four installments wilh the fivst due on Febnary 1 of each year and the final

instatiment due on August L.

PENALTIES AND INTEREST . .. Charges for penalty and interest on the unpaid balance of delinquent taxes are made as follows:

Cumulative Cumulative
Month Penally Interest “Total
February 6% 1% 7%
March 7 2 9
April 8 3 il
May 9 4 13
June 10 5 15
July 12 6 8

After July, penally remains at 12%, and intercst Increases al the rate of 1% each month, In addition, if an account is delinquent in
July, an atiomey's collcclion fee of up to 20% may be added to the total lax penally and interest charge. Under cerlain
circumstanices, 1axes which become delinguent on the homestead of 0 taxpayer 65 years old or older fncur & penalty of 8% per
anaum with no additional penaltles or interest assessed. In general, property subject to (e Cily's lien may be sold, in whole or in
parcels, prsuant to court order Lo collect the emounts due, Lederal law does stot allow for the collection of penalty and interest
against n esfate in bankruptey, Federal bankruptey tnw provides that an sutomatic stay of action by creditors and other entities,
including govemmental units, goes Into effect with the filing of any petition in bankwpley, The automadic stay prevenls
governmental units from foreclosing en property and prevents liens for post-petilion taxes from attaching to property and
obiaining sccured creditor status unless, in either case, an order Hfting the stay is obfsined from the bankrupley court. T many
cases post-petition taxes are paid as an administralive expense of the estate in bankmuptey or by order of the bankruptey coust.

Crry APPLICATION OF TAX CODE . . . The City grants an exemption to the market value of the residence homestead of persons
65 years of age or older of $3,000; the disabled e also granted an exemption of $3,000,

The City has not granted an additional exemplion of 20% of the market value of residence homesteads; minimum exemption of
$5,000,

See Table | for & listing of the amounts of the exemiptions deseribed above,

The City has adopted the tax freeze for citizens who are disabled audfor 65 years of age or older, which was approved at an
clection on November 7, 2006 and became effective on January 1, 2007. City administration does not believe that the
implementation of this tax freeze will have materlal adverse financlal impact on the City for the September 30, 2010 fiscal year;
however, the City will continus to menfier the potential impact of the tax freeze on the City’s financial condition,

Ad vatorem taxcs are levied by the City agnlnst the exempt value of residence honesteads for the payment of debt,

The City dees not tax nenbusiness personat property; and Kerr Counly coltects taxes for the City.

The Cily does not pennit split payments, and disconnts are not allowed,

The City does not tax fregport proparty; however, the City does lax goods-in-transit.

'The City does not coltect the edditional ene-half cent sales tax for reduction of ad valorem taxes.

The City does collect an additional one-half cent sales tax for economic development.

The City bas adopted n tax abateinent policy.

The City hias not created a tax increment finaucing zone,

(Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blanlk}
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TABLE ! - VALUATION, EXEMPTLONS AND GENERAL ODLIGAITON DERT

2009/2010 Market Valuation Established by Kerr County Appraisal Distelet

{excluding lotally exenipt property)} $1,767,688,563 |
Less Exeniptions/Reductions al 100% Market Value:

Homestead Cap Adjustment $ 4035376

Disabled Veterans 10,765,191

Qver 65 . 8,892,544

Charity 447,139

Polfution 31,830

Productivity Loss 843371711

Prorated Bxempl Propeity 333,689

House Bill 366 8,947

Freeport Exemption 92,220

Value Lost to Frecze Adjustmentst” 467,547,075 500,587,782
200972010 Net Taxable Assessed Vatuation $ 1,267, 100,736
General Obligation Debt Payable from Ad Valorem Taxes as of December |, 2005®

General Obligalion Bonds $ 5920000

Certificates of Oblipgation 20,870,000

The Cerlificates™ 4,200,000
General Obligation Debt Payable from Ad Valorem Taxes ‘ $ 30,990,000
Less: Self-Supporting Debt™
Whaterworks and Sewer Systems General Obligation Bond Debt $ 3,286,000
Watenworks and Sewer System Certificates of Obligation General Obligation Debt 10,981,000
The Cedificales 4,200,000 $ 13467000
Net General Obligation Debt Payable from Ad Valorem Taxes $ 12,523,000
General Obligation Interest and Sinking Fund as of December 1, 2009 3 870,862
Ratio Net General Obligation Tax Debt to Taxable Assessed Valuation 0.59%

2010 Bstimated Popufailon - 23,489
Per Capita Taxable Assessed Valuation - $53,944
Per Capila General Obligation Debt Payeblo from Ad Valorem Taxes - $1,319
Per Capita Net General Obligation Debi Payablo from Ad Valorem Taxes - $333
{1) At an oleetion on November 7, 2006, vaters in the Cily approved a tax freeze for citizens who are disabled andfor 65
years of age or older. The tax frecze became effective on January 1, 2007, Ses "TAX INFORMATION."
(2) The above statement of indebtedness does not include the following revenue bonds, as the bonds are payable solely

from the net revenues of the Systens, as defined in the Ordinunce authorizing the bonds; $580,000 Watenworks and
Sewer System Revenue Bonds; and $11,055,000 Electde System Revenue Bonds,

@ Preliminary, subject to change.

) General obligation debt in the amounts shown for which repaynient is provided from revenues of the walerworks and
sewer system, The amount of self supporting debt is based on the percentages of rovenue support os shown in Teble
10, Tt is the Clty’s cuirent poficy to provide these payments from the watenworks and sewer sysfem revenes; his

policy is subject to changoe in the future.
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TAULE 2 - TAXADLE ASSESSED VALUATIONS BY CATEGORY

Taxablo Appralsed Valus for Fiscal Year Bnded Seplember 30,
2009 2

2010 008
% of Y% of % of
Categoty Amount “Total Anount Total Amount Total
Real, Residentinl, Single-Family 51,1£2,335,645 62.01%  $1.083,7894% 62.30% § 982,905,141 56.95%
Real, Restdentinf, Mulli-Family 77,980,140 4.41% 69,571,145 4,03% 67,994,218 39495
Real, Vacant Lots/Tiacts 560,848,502 2.88% 48,502,186 2.81% 48,929,503 2.84%
Real, Acreage (Land Only) 15,424,073 0.8 16,499,511 0.96% 15,450,301 0.90%
Real, Farm and Ranch Improvements 3,233,144 0.18% 3,066,978 0.18% 2749448 0.16%
Real, Conmerelal and Industrial 325,539,011 18.42% 312,335,660 18,10% 301,755,859 17.83%
Real and Tangible Personal, Utilities 37,562,813 2.12% 36,894,443 2.14% 16,064,245 2.09%
‘Tangible Personal, Business 114,801,955 6.49% 129,471,040 7.50% 114,856,825 6.65%
‘Tangible Pessonal, Other 9,757,539 0.55% 6,792,647 0.3%% 9,236,067 0.54%
Real Property, [nvealory 12,135,612 0.69% 9,185,281 0,53% 7.924,23¢ 0.46%
Speciat Inventory 8,070,134 0.A46% 9,767,359 0.57% 9,278,354 0.54%
Brempt - 0.00% 15407 0.00% 45730 0.00%
Total Appraised Value Before Exemplions $1,767,688,568  100.00%  §1,725,885943 100.00% S 1,603,190,020 92.89%
Less: Tolal Exemptions/Reductions 500,587,782 472,8769%6 414,045,662 @
Taxable Assessed Value §1,267,100,786 $ 1,246,008,947 $ 1,189,144,358
Taxable Appraised Value for Fiseal Year Frded Septembec 30,
2007 2006
%5 of %hof
Category Amount Totat Ampount Total
Real, Residential, Single-Family $ 473,876,210 59.75% 201,865,137 35.00%
Real, Residential, Mulli-Fatnily 65,167,296 4.46% 59,201,320 4,28%
Real, Vacant Lots/Tracts 43,916,819 3,003 47,398,762 343%
Real, Acrezge (Land Only) 13,341,365 0.84% 15,620,440 113%
Real, Parm and Ranch Improvements 2,588,193 0.18% 2,449,742 0.18%
Real, Commercial & Industrial 262,469,365 20.01% 280,352,866 20.28%
Rea! and Tangible Personal, Utilities 14,817,173 2,38% 32,542,853 2.35%
Tangible Personal, Business 110,851,763 7.58% 118,847,948 8.60%
Tangible Personal, Other 9,378,002 0.64% 9,422,665 0.68%
Real Prapecty, Inveptory 6,624,357 0.45% 5,620,855 0.41%
Special Inventory 2611498 0.59% 8,240,426 0,60%
Bxempt 891,845 0.06% 1,617,380 0.07%
Total Appraised Value Before Exemptions TTA61534,086 100.006%  §1,382,580,304 100.06%
FLess: Total ExernptionsReductions 29,691,034 33,598,169

Taxable Assessed Valus

$1.431,843,052

“§1,348.082,005

NOTE: Valualions shown are cerified taxable nssessed values reported by the Kerr County Appraisal District to the Stale
Comptrofter of Public Accounts, Cettified values are subiect to change lhroughout the year as contested values are resolved and

the Appraisal District updates records.

(1)

At an election on November 7, 2006, voters in the City approved a lax freeze for cilizens who are disabled andfor 65
years of ago or older, The tax freeze becane efiective on January 1, 2007, See “TAX INFORMATION.”
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TABLE3 - VALUATION AND GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT HisTORY

Net G.O. Ratio of Net Net |

Fiscal Taxable Tax Debi G.O. TaxDebt  G.0.Tax
Year Taxable Assessed Qulsianding to Taxable Debt

Ended Bstimaled Assessed Valuation at Bnd Assessed Per

9/30 Populationm Valuation™ Per Capita of Yearlt” Valuation Capila
2006 22,648 § 1,342,982,225 § 59,563 $ 6,276,725 0.47% §  2m7
2007 22,800 1,431,843,052 62,800 8,196,025 0.57% 159
2008 23,142 1,185,144,358 51,385 7,900,100 0.66% 341
2000 23,489 1,246,008,947 53,046 12,523,000 1.01% 533
2010 23,489 1,267,100,786 53,944 12,048,050 0 095% @ 513 @

1)) Source: City of Kerrville, Texns,

(2) As reported by the Kerr County Appraisal Dislriet on the City's annual Siate Properly Tax Board Reports; subject to
. change during {hs ensuing year,

3 Does not include self-supporiing debt,

{4} Projected; includes the Certificates, Preliminary, subjeet to change.

TaBLE4 - TAX RATE, LEVY AND COLLECTION HISTORY

Fiscal Inferest
Year andl
Ended Tax General Sinking % Cumrent % Total
9/30 Rate Fund Fund ‘Tax Levy Colleclions  Colleclions
2006 50,5578 $ 0.5126 $ 0.0452 $§ 7,443,029 98.56% 103.00%
2007 0.5513 0.5149 0.0364 7,893,751 98.54% 99.49%
2008 0.5500 0,4932 0.056% 8,544,561 08,95% 99.97%
2009 0.55090 0.4891 0.0609 9,070,647 08.89% 99.27%
2010 05625 0.4851 0.07M 9,383,349 (In Process of Collection)
TABLE S - TEN LARGEST TAXPAYERS
2009/10 % of Total
Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed
Name of Taxpayer Mature of Propeity Valuation Valuation
Windstream Communications Kerrville LP Utitity $29,097,801 230%
Sunmwest Management Inc. Nursing Home 9,374,696 0.74%
Comanche Trace Ranch & Golf Club Subdivision 9,180,339 0.72%
Mooney Alplane Company InctV Adreraft Manufacturer 8,387,778 0.66%
Wal-Marf Reat Estate Real Estale 7,784,640 0.61%
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc, #508 Discount Retail 7,148,601 0.56%
Home Depat, USA, Ine. Honie Retail 7,040,852 0.56%
Lawe's Home Ceniers, Inc, Home Retail 6,657,176 0.53%
Lowe’s Hoime Retail 5,675,551 0.45%
Buli, Charles C, TTEE ETAL Personal and Real Property 4,434,320 0,35%
$ 94,781,754 7.48%

(¢} Mooney Aireraft Corporation filed for Chapter 11 bankruptey on Joly 27, 2001, However, they wers purchased in
2002 by a subsidiary of Mooney Acrospace, Mooney Airplane Company. In June 2008, Mocney Airplane Co.
announced the immediate layoff of approximately 80 employees and a reduction in production in response lo the
deoline in orders for airplanes. Kerrvifle's Mooney Airplane Co. In addition, in November 2008, Mooney Alrplane Co.
forloughed an estimated 200 production employees (out of the company's tofal workforce of approximately 300-

employees) in response to declining sates and an uncertain economy.

GinERAYL OBLIBATION DEBT LIatTATION . . . No general obHgation debt fimitation is imposed on fhe City under curent State
law or the Cily's Home Rule Charter (see "THE CERTIFICATES ~ Security and Source of Payinent - Tax Rote Limitations”).
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TaBLEG - TAX ADEQUACY

2010 Principal and Interest Requirements('xz) ererierenananren rbereanteaniraradbatbrress e e erererneereerraarannaraes $477,242
$0,0385 Tox Rate at 98% Cellection Produces  ..ovveinnennn, fererereressieeriarner ferrnsserrasereeanareTanr i eaTy veeres $478,077
Average Anneal Principal and Inferest Requirements, 2010- 2036960 ... e easeseaaey Vressasararrrasent $794,335
$0.0640 Tax Rate af 98% Collection Produces  ..oovuveeiien rrerrressrences feectrrsiaterreaareiasanersTaaraer eavees $794,726
Maximum Annuat Principal and Inferest Requirements, 2019 s PP PPPPTPPTP $1,079,664
$0.0870 Tax Rale at 98% Collection Produces oot rertrsreerensnanerienn 51,080,330

)] Preliminary, subject to cliange.
2 Does not include self-supporting debd,

TABLE7 - ESTIMATED OVERLAPEING DERT

Expenditures of the various taxing entities within the territory of the City arc pald out of ad valorem laxes levied by such entities
on properties within the City. Such entities are independent of the City and may incur borzowings to finance their expenditures.
‘This statement of direct and estimated overlapping ad vatorem tax debt ("Fax Debt") was developed from information contained
in *Texas Municipal Reporls” published by the Municipal Advisory Conncil of Texas. Exeept for the amounts relaling to the
Cily, the City has not independently verified tho sccuracy or completeness of such information, and 1o person should rely upon
such Information as being accurale or complete, Furlhermore, certain of the entitles llsted may have issued additional bonds
since the date hereof, and such entitles may have programs requiriag the fssuance of substantial amounts of addilional bonds, the
amount of which oannot be determined. The followlug table reflects the estimated share of overlapping Tax Debl of taxing
bodies with territory in the City,

City's
2009/10 Overlapping Authorized
Taxable 2009/10 Tolal Estimated G.0, Tax But Unissued
Assessed Tax G.O, Tax % Debt As of Debt As Of
Taxing Jurlsdiction Value Rale Debt Applieable 123122009 12/31/2009
Kerevills, City of T T$1,267,100,786  $0.5500  $12,523,000  100.00% $12,523,000 w g -
Kere County 2,813,503,548 0.4293 3,550,000 45,98% 1,632,200 160,660
Kerrville Independent Schoo! District 1,762,684,001 1.1860 28,725,000 73.95% 21,242,138 -
Total Direct and Overlapping G. O, Tax Dgbt § 35397428
Ratio of Direct and Overlapping G. O, Tax Debt to Trxable Assessed Valuation 2.79%
Per Capita Overlapping G. 0. Tax Debt $ 1,507
) Preliminary, subject to change. Projected, includes the Certificates, and excludes self-supporting debt.
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TABLED - INTEHEST AND SINKING FUND BUDGET PROJECTION

Tax Supporied Debt Service Requirements, Fiscal Year Buding o/30/10 Y § 477242

Interest and Sinking Fund, 9/30/09'% 8 19,992

Taterest and Sinking Fund Tax Levy @ 98% Collection 756,231

¥stimated Invesiment Income - 1,476,223

Estimated Balance, 9/30/10 § 998,982
() Preliminary, subject to change. Docs not include self-supporting debt.

3] Unaudiled.

TABLE 10 - COMPUTATION OF SELF-SUPPORTING DEBT

Net Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Available as of 5/30/68 §4,423,235

Less: Requirements for Waterworks and Sower System Revenue Bonds 594,715
Balance Available for Other Purposes % 3,828,520
Requirements for Waterworks and Sewer System General Obligation Debt $ 694,558
Percentege of Welerworks and Sewer Systom General Obligation Debt Self-Supporting 100%

TapLE 11 - AUTHORIZED BUT UNISSUED GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS

The City does not have any authorized bul unissued voted general obligation bonds, The City is authorized by the laws of the
Stale 1o Issue and incur general obligalion debt, such as the Certificates, for certain authorized purposes without an eleclion.

ANTICIPATED JSSUANCE OF GENERAL ORLIGATION DEnT .. . The Clty does not anticipate fhe issuance of additional general
obligation debt within the next 12 months. See-“Capilal Tinprovement Program” for additional information regarding anticipated

issuance of debt by the Cily.
FARLE 12 —~ OTHER OBLIGATIONS

State Infrastructuye Bank Loan

Tn 2007 the City of Kerrville entered into a foan with the State Tnfrastrueture Dank for a total amount of $3,100,000 at an interest
rate of 4.100% and a fnal payment in 2027, The debt has been allocated between the General Fund and the Waterworks and
Sewer System Fund with the average annual payments tofaling $115,000 aud $92,800, respeclively.

Operating Loases®

The City leases equipment under non-cancelabls leases, Total costs for such leases were $20,506 (Lease A) and $42,544.80
(Lense B) for the year ended September 30, 2009, The feture minimum lease payments for those leases are as foliows:

Year Ending Tease A Lease B

September 30, Payment Payment
2010 20,506.00 42,544.80
2011 20,506.00 42,544.80
2012 10,253.00 38,999.40
Total $ 51,265.00 $ 124,080.00

{0 Uneudited.

Pexston Fune . . . The Cily provides pension benefits for all of ils full-time employees through the Texas Municipal Retirement
Systemn ("IMRS"), a State-wide administered pension plan. The City mukes annual contributions fo the plan equal to lie
amounts acerued for pension expense. (For more delailed imformation conceming the retirement plan, see APPENDIX B,
“Bxcerpts from the City's Annual Fingncial Report” - Note #6) The Cily has no other post employment benefits other than
penston benefils as deseribed above,

(Remninder of Page Infentionally Left Blantd)
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

TABLE 13 - CHANGES INNET ASSETS

Unaudited Fistal Year Ended September 30,
000 2008 2607 2006 2005 2004
REVENUES:
Program Revennes:
Chacges fos Servites § 43577625 5 5047533 5 S97SSE9 S 4033177 0§ 3100460 S 2795015
Operating Grants and Contributions 264,758 903,320 204,877 878,624 1,089,040 1,425,369
Capital Grants and Conbributions 176,975 1,234,540 1,707,155 381,999 I H240 273,691
Qentral Revenues:
Property Taxes 9,080,384 8,587,048 7,959,787 7,521,809 6,889,517 6A76,499
Sates Taxes 5,017,127 4,965,842 7,211,862 6,966,903 6,464,892 5,998,341
Hotel Oecupancy Taxes 332,591 977,543 937,850 £06,387 801,573 691,992
Franchise Taxes 1,930,206 2,019,492 }, 752,696 1,748,631 1,436,189 1,321,034
Alcoholic Beverage Taxes 69,227 75,952 70,008 66,118 54,764 55,344
Uneestreted Investment Eamings 65,240 391,682 B49,01¢ 588,051 381,858 225406
Capital Contribulens - - - - - -
Gain {loss) on sale of assels 13,260 (202,443) Lt 467 - . -
Miscellaneons - . 496,529 271,372 24,936 (32 534)
Tofal Revenues $ 16171402 S 23937009 $ 22171063 § 233853691 $ 21,560,720 $ 19,230,337
EXPENSES:
Genesat Government $ 5358395 § 4937628 s 7,141,532 8 5345161 $ 4,291,954 $ 3,986,827
Publiz Safsy 15,057,934 14,532,917 9,743,210 8,122,211 1,933,596 7,761,507
Culture and Recreation 3,224,363 3,262,500 3,662,625 3,022,950 2,861,570 2,559,171
Public Works 2,848,331 3,008,951 2394090 2,311,518 2,294,308 2,084,624
Business Programs 190,203 179,727 312415 210,619 188,069 157,879
Health and Welfare . - . - - -
WNon Departmenial - - - - 168,018 687,021
Fntezest on Long-term Dby 39147 459,439 312,701 466,722 491,676 304,569
Drepreciation - Unallocated - - - . - -
Total Expenditures $  23068,755 $ 23381162 §_ 23826074 § 19479221 $ 13220692 $ 17,749,508
Increase In Net Assels Before Transfers 3 (391,353) § 615,847 §  I3SEE3F & 3833370 $ 3,361,028 § 1,480,759
Transfess 168498 823,757 1,129,468 {500,710} (219,312} 410.973
Hnerease in Met Assets $ {212853) 5 L4964 §  44RLI57  § 3383160 $ 3141716 $ 1,931,132
Beglnning Net Assets 30,263,158 48,825,544 4438437 W gz 6wz @ 38,215,915 W 31,606,165
Prior Perlod Entries - - - 786,124
Ending Net Assqts § 30,042,303 5 50,265,158 § 48825544 $  45509,903 § 41,357,691 $35324,022
(0 Restated, in fiscal year 2007, the Emergency Medical Services Pund was reviewed and based on prior year activity, it

was determined that this fund should have been accounted for in the General Fund due fo the excessive losses that the
General Fund had to provide for. This resulled in & decrease in fund balance of the EMS Fund and an increase to the
General Fund. Also during the revlew, of interfund payables and receivables, it wag noted that In 2005 and 2006,
£80,000 of debt was forgiven by the City’s Bconomie Improvement Comporation {the “EIC"). When the debt was
forgiven, revenue should have been recognized by the Enterprise Funds with a corresponding decrease In lnterfund
payables. EIC should have recognized an expense with a corresponding decrease in interfund receivables: Per an in
depth review of construction in progress, it appears that ceriain profects were capitalized on construction in progress
that should have been expensed in the year in which they were incurred. This resulied in a decrease in net assets of the
Water and Sewer Fund, Governmentat nctivities and Business-type activities. The Insurance Internal Service Fund has
not previously recorded a liabifity for estimated claims payable including claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), A
perdod adfustment was made to record lhe IBNR liabifily that was estimated 1o exist at September 30, 2006. An
additional liability was recorded for the Hebility that must be paid to fhe insurer upon termination for prior years’
deficits, This resolted In a decrease in net assels of the Insurance Intemal Service Fund as well as Governmental
activities. Airpott land fhat was joinily owned by fhe City and Kerr County was recorded in the City’s general capital
assels rather than in the Airport Tund, which accounts for the Airport Jolut Venture, An adjustment was nmade to
remove $1,985,529 from the Govenumental Activities capital assets at October 1, 2006 and to record the land In the
Alport Fund, Furthermore, since the City owns 50% of the Alrport Joint Venture, the City’s equity in the Joint venlure
was increased by 50% of $1,985,529 (or $952,764) at October 1, 2006,

Please note the fooinofes cantimie on the foltowing page,
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Restated, in fiscal year 2006, it was noted that previous year's capital assefs were not properly recorded on the books.
An in depth review of their capltal asset balances showed that capital assets wers §1,802,776 overstated in the Business
type aclivities and §418,346 understated in Governmenta! activities. This resubted in a decrease to nel assets for
Business-lype activities and an increase to nel assels for Governmental aclivities. The Cily receives LEOSE funds
which are regulated and must be tracked coming in and going out, In prior year, these were reported as revenue instead
of deferred revenue. The prior year entry resulted in a decrease in fund balance in both the General Fund and
Govermnmental aclivities net assets of $4,352. Tn prior year, an adjustment was made to transfer funds from the Sales
Tax Inprovement Fund to the Water and Sewer TFund per the City's BIC Board authorization for the State Highway 16
utility relocation projeet. 1t was determined afler year end (hat this eniry was not nccessaty, resulling in a decrease lo
the Water and Sewer net assels and an Increase to fhe Sales Tax Improvement fund balance.

Restated; in fiscal year 2008, the EIC Doard approved to apply prior interest payments as principal payment on
intecfund lom to the golf course find, As a resull, beginning fund equity for golf course fimd and sales {nx
improvements funds were restated by $40,000. In fiscal year 2003, it was noled that bond issurnce costs for
governmental activities had never been capitalized in the government-wide financial statements. As o result, beginning
net assets for govermmental aciivities were increased by $153,003 to record bond issuance costs at October 1, 2004, In
reviewing construction in progress, it was neted that cerfain projects costs were recorded as capital assets in both lhe
water and sewer fund as well as govemnmental aclivities in the statement of nel assets, Since these assels will
vitimately be muiniained In the water and sewer fund, the duplicate cosis of $1,090,819 were removed from
govemmental activities as of October 1, 2004, During fiscal year 2005, the City's engineer performed o complete
inventory of the City’s storm drains. Using cument replacement costs and backirending, the Cily was able lo estimate
ils investment i storm drain infrastructure that previously liad not been capltalized, As aresult, at October 1, 2004, an
adjustrnent was made to record $3,789,769 in additionat storm drain Infrastrucluze.

(REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFTBLARK)
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TABLE 13-A - GENERAL FunD REVENIES AND EXPENDITURKE, HISTORY

Unaudited Fiscal Years Ended September 30,
2003 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
REVERUES
Taxes §15,325,173 $14,694,692 $14,049,756 $13,363,899 512,104,861 £ 13,254,820
Licanses and Permils 416,582 $48,653 464,719 593,369 457,339 410,702
Intergovemmental 833,660 464,866 829,878 495255 473,318 538,024
Charges for Services 3,295,168 1,936,429 3,403,994 1,521,648 1,462,476 1,209,066
Grants 147,365 251,906 104,327 201014 78,376 32,951
Fing and Forfsituces 505,455 420,075 340,790 307,315 322,274 193,676
Interest 48,232 265,591 368,168 285,253 115,164 56,915
Miscellaneous 747486 1,233,649 248,504 $64,846 643,235 545319
Total Revenves §71417,431 . $20115861 _S20A10,136  $17432659  $15658993 S 14441473
EXPENDITURES
Current Expeaditures:
QGenerzl Govemment $ 5218255 $ 4,438,106 § 4,919,754 S 4,421,823 % 4,032,236 $ 3906857
Public Safety 10,955,114 10,775,434 19,240,411 7,552,483 6,860,637 7,046,018
Cultuts and Recrealion 2,154,076 2,247,494 2,187,374 2,119,619 1,885,162 1,881,763
Public Works 2,419,486 2,798,312 2,296,884 2,198,898 2,072,895 1,951,026
Health and Wetfara - - - - - 157,879
Nondepartmental - - - N 159,257 -
Busingss Progeams 190,203 179,127 215,163 178,950 - -
Capital Quilay 676,210 363,445 245,783 6421 122,547 284,713
Baht Servics - - - - - -
Tolal Bxpenditures §21,613,374 $20.,802,578 $20,101,309 $16475.194 $13,122,734 $ 15,228.256
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE
OVER EXPENDITURES § (395043 5 (686,717 85 308827 § 834465 $ 336259 $ (786783)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Op¢rating Transfers [n $ 887,049 5 LOG1392 S B48393 5 703289 § 00N 8 TIL64S
Operating Transfers Out (718,581} (1,172,955) (923,579) (4712,254) G177 (179,865)
Capital Leass Obligation Proceeds - 33,633 - - - 17,593
“Total Other Fibnad¢ing Sowrces (Uses) S 168498 § (780300 §  (80,136) _§ 231,035 S 395313 5 610,373
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUE
AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES $ (127445 8§ (764747 5 228641 S 1,185,500 $ 931,432 § (176410)
FUND BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF
YEAR S 7609428 § 7258938 § 7420072 W s 6148594 P s 220314 § 539794
RESIDUAL BQUITY TRANSEER IN (OUT) _$ . $ - § - 3 - 8 . 3 -
FUND BALANCES AT END OF YEAR § 7.481,983 § 6,424,191 § 1618713 S 7.334.094 § 6,152,546 $ 35221314
{I) Resiated, In fiscal year 2007, the Emergency Medical Services Pund was reviewed and based on prior year activily, it
was determined that this fund showld have beci accounted for in the General Fund duo to the excessive losses that the
General Fund had o provide for, This resulted in a decrease in fund balance of the EMS Fund and an increase lo the
General Fund, Also durdng the review, of inferfund payables and receivables, it was noted that in 2005 and 2006,
$80,000 of debt was forgiven by the City’s Econormic Improvement Corporation {the “BIC”). When the debt was
forgiven, revenue should have been recopnized by tlie Enterprise Funds with a corresponding decrease in interfund
payables. BIC should have recognized an oxpense with & corresponding decrease in interfund receivables. Per an in
depth review of constritetion in progress, it appears that certain projects were capitalized on conslruction In progress
that sttould hiave been expensed in the year in which they were Incurred. This resulted In a decrease innet assels of the
Water and Sewer Fund, Governmental acivities and Business-type aclivities, The nsurance Internal Service Fund has
not previously recorded a finbility for estimated claims payable ineluding claims incurred but not reporied (IBNR). A
period adjustment was made 1o record the IBNR lability that was estimated to exist at September 30, 2006. An
additional Habifity was recorded for the Hability that nwst be pald to the insurer upon tennination for prior years’

: deficits. This resulted in a decrease in net assets of the Insurance Tntemal Servico Fund as well as Governmental
activities. Alrport land that was jeintly owned by the City and Kerr Couny was recorded in the City’s general capital
pssels rather than in the Airport Fund, which accounts for the Airport Joint Venture. An adjustiient was mede o
vemove $1,985,529 from the Govemmental Activities capital assets al October 1, 2006 and to record the land in the
Airport Fund. Furthermor, singe the City owns 50% of the Airport Joint Venture, the City’s equily in the joint venture
was increased by 50% of $1,985,529 {or $992,764) at October 1, 2006,

Please note the footnotes continue on the following page.
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2) Restaled, in Fiscal year 2006, it was nofed that provious year's capital assets were not properly recorded on the books,
An i depth review of thelr capital asset batances showed that capital assels were $1,802,776 overstated in the Business
type aclivities and $418,346 understated in Govenunental activities. This resufted in a decrease e net assels for
Business-type octivitics and an increase to net assets for Governmental aclivities, The Cily recelves LEOSE funds
whicl are regulated and must be tracked coming in and going out. In prior year, these were reported as revenue instead
of deferred revenue, The prior year enlry resnlted in # decrease in fimd balance in both tho General Fund and
Govemmiental activities net assels of $4,352. In prior year, an adjustment was made to transfer funds from the Sales
Tax Improventent Fund o the Water and Sewer Fund per the EIC Board authorization for the State Highway 16 ulility
relocation project, It was determined nfter year end that this entry was not necessary, resulting in a decrease to the
Waler and Sewer nel assets and an increase to the Sales Tax Improvement fund batance.

TABLE 34 = MUNICIPAL SALES TAX

The City has adopled the Municipal Sales and Use Tax Act, Texas Tax Code, Chapter 321, which grants the City the power lo
impose and levy a 1% Local Sales and Use Tax within the City; the proceeds ars credited to the General Fund and are not pledged o
(he payment of the Certificates. Collections and enforcements are effected through the offices of the Complrolier of Public
Accaunts, State of Texas, who remils the proceeds of the tax, after deduction ofa 2% service feo, to the City monthly. In May, 1995,
the voters of the City approved the imposition of an sdditional sales and use tax of one-half of ene percent {4% of 1%4) for economic
dovetopment. The sales tax for economic development is collecied solely for the benefit of Kerrville Economic Improventent
Corporalion (the "Corporation” or the “BIC"}, and may be pledged to scoure payment of sales tax revenue bonds issued by the
Corporalion.

Fiscal Equivalent

Year %of of

Euded Total Ad Valorem Ad Valorem Per
9/30 Collected”! Tox Lovy Tex Rate Capita®
2005 $ 4,309,928 63.28% b 0.3565 $ 20038
2006 4,644,615 62.40% 0,3443 205.08
2007 4,807,908 60.51% 0.3358 210.87
2008 4,965,842 58.12% 04176 214.58
2009 4,998,290 55.10% 0.4011 212,79

{ Fxeludes half-cent sales lax for economic development,

[¥A) Based on population estimates of the City staff,

Tn addition, the Tax Code provides cities the option of assessing a maximum one-half percent {1/2%) sales tax on retail sales of
taxnble items for the purpose of reducing {ts ad valorem taxes, if approved by a majority of the volers in a local eption election, If
the additional tax is approved and levied, the ad valorem property fax levy must be reduced by the estintated amount of the sates
tax revenues fo be gencrated in the curront year. Subject to the approval of a majority of the voters in a local option vlection,
stale lnw also provides certain vitics the option of assessing a sales and use tax for 2 variety of other purposes, including
cconomic and industrial development, municipal street maintenmuice and repair, mud sports and conmmunily venues.

State faw [mits the maximum aggregate sales and use tax rate in any area to 8%,

The sales tax breakdown for the City Is as follows:

Eeonomic and Community Development 0.50¢
City Sales & Use Tax 1.00¢
County Sales & Use Tax 0.50¢4
State Sales & Jse Tax G.25¢

Tofal 8.25¢

CAPITAL INMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

The City has implemented a five-year Capital Improvement Program (“CIP"). ‘The CIY was updated in 2009 and shows tax
supported debt toatling $22,908,000 and wastowater sysiem debt of £47,459,491, The CIP doss not requiro formel action by City
Couneil; however, the CIP represents the priorities and goals of the City Coungil,

FINANCIAL POLICIES

Basis_of Accounting . . . “The Cily’s accouniing system is conducted on the modified accrual basis of accounting for all
governmental fund types, expendable trust funds and agency finds. Under this basis, expenditures are recorded when liabilities
are incurred; and revenues are recorded when they become measurable and avaliable as net current assets. The acerual basis of
accounting is followed for the proprietary aud non-expendable trust funds, Under the acerual basis, revenues are recognized in
the accounting period in which they are carned and become moasuable, Bxpenses are recorded in the accounting period

incurred, if measurable.
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General Tupd Balange . . . The City’s curvent consensus is to maindain a General Fund reserve balance equivalent to 5% of
budgeted expenditures.

Debt Service Fund Balance . . . A reasonable debt service fund balance is maintained in order to compensate for unforeseen
eveils,

Budpetary Procedures , . . Sixty days prior to adoption of a formal budget, fhe City Managor files with the City Clerk a proposed
eperating budget For the year commencing the following October 1. The epersting budget includes proposed expendihires and
tie means of fingneing them. A public hearing fs conducted to obtain taxpayers’ comments, Prior to Qcteber 1, the budget is

adopted and lepally enacted (hrough passage of an ordinance.

INVESTMENTS

The City of Kerrville Invesls its investable funds In investments authosized by Texas law in accordaice with investmeni policies
approved by ths City Council of the City of Kerrville. Both state Iaw and the City’s fnvestinent policies are subject to clange.

TNVESTMENT AUTHORITY AND INVESTMENT PRACTICES OF THE CITY . . . Under Texas law, the Cily is anthorized to invest in (1)
abligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalitles, including letters of credit; (2) direct obligations of the State
of Texas or its agencics and instumentatities; (3) collateralized morigage obligalions dircetly jssued by a federal agency or
instrsentatity of the United States, the underlying security for which {s guaranieed by an agency or instrumentalily of the
United States; (4) ather obligation, the prineipal and interest of which is guaranteed or insured by or backed by the full faith and
credit of, the State of Texas or the Uited States or thelr respective agencies and instrumentalities; {5) obligations of states,
agencies, counties, citles, and other political subdivisions of any state rated as to investment quality by a nationally recognized
Investment rating firm not less than A or its equivalent; (6) bonds issued, assumed or guaranteed by the State of Isragl; (7)
certificates of deposil (hat are issued by a state or national baik domieiled in the State of Texas, a savings bank domiciled in the
State of Texes, or a state or federal credit wnion domicied in the Siale of Texas and are guarantced ot fusueed by the Federat
Dreposit Insuzance Corporation or the National Credit Union Share Tnsurance Fund, or are sceured as lo principal by obligations
descrtbed n clauses (1) through (6) ot it any other manner and amount provided by law for Clly deposits, (8) fully coltateralized
repuechase agreements that have a defined termination date, are fully secured by obligations described in elavse (1), and are
placed through a primary government securities dealer or & financial institution doing business in the State of Texas, (9) cerlain
bankers' acceptances with the remaining term of 270 days ot less, if the short-lerm obligations of the accepting bank or ils parent
are rated at least A-1 or P-1 or the equivalent by at least one nationaily recoghized credit rating agency, (10) commercial paper
with & stated maturity of 270 days or less that is rated at least A-1 or P-1 or the equivalent by efther (a) lwo nationatly recognized
credit rating agencics or (b) one natfonatly recognized credit rating agency if the paper is fully secured by an frevocable fetter of
credit issued by a U.S. or state bank, (11) no-toad money market mutual funds registered with and reguiated by the Securities and
Exchange Commission that have a dollar weighted average stated matusity of 90 days or less and include in their investiment
objectives the maintenance of a stable nef assct value of $1 for each sharg, and {12} no-load mutual funds registered with the
Seenrities and Exchange Conumission that have an average weighted maturity of fess than two years, fnvest exclusively in
obligations described in the this parageaph, and are conlinuously rated as to investment quality by at least one nationally
recognized invesiment rating firm of not less than AAA or ks cquivatent. Jn addition, bond proceeds may be nvested in
guaranteed Investment contracts that have a defined tenninalion dal and are secured by obligations, Including letters of credit, of
the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities in an amount at feast equal to the amaunt of bond preceeds invested under
such contract, olher than the prohibited obligations described in the noxt suvceeding paragraph.

A political subdivision such as the City may onter into securities lending programs if (f) the seeuritics loaned under the program
are 100% collateralized, a loan made under the program atlows for termination at any tims and a foan meds under the program is
either secured by (2) obligations that are descrlbed in clauses (1) through (6) above, (b) irrevacable lelters of credit issued by
state or national bank that is confinuously rated by « nationally recognized investment rating finn at not less than A or ils
equivalent or (6) cash Invested in obfigations described {n clauses (I} through (6) above, clauses (10) through (12) above, or an
authorized investwient pool; ii) securities held as collateral under & loan are pledged to the City, held In the City's name and
deposited at the tinte the nvestment Is made with the Cily or n third party designated by the City; (ii1) & loan made under the
program through either a primery govemment secueitios dealer or o financial Institution doing busiuess in the State of Texas; and
(iv) the agrcement to lend securities has a tenn of one year or less.

The Cily may invest in such obligations directly or through government investient pools that invest solely in such obligations
provided that the pools are rated no lower than AAA or AAA-m or an equivalent by at least one nationally recognized rating
service, The City may also contract with an investient mancgement firm reglstered under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940
(15 U.8.C. Section 80b-1 ef seq.} or with the State Securilies Board to provide for the investment and management of its public
funds or other funds under ils control far o fenm up to two years, but the City retains ultimate responsibility as fiduciary of ils
assels. T order to renew or extend such a contract, the City must do so by order, ordinance, or resolulion, The City is
specificatly prohiblied from investing in: (1} obligations whose payment represents (he coupon paymenis on the ontstanding
principal batance of the underlying morigage-backed security coltateral and pays no principal; (2) oblipations whose payment
represents the piincipal stream of cash How from the underdying mortgage-backed security and bears no interest; (3)
collateralized mortgage ebligations that have 2 stated fnal maturity of greater than 10 years; and (4) collateralized mortgage
obligations (he interest rate of which is determined by an index that adjusts opposite to the changes in amarket index.
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thider Texas how, the Cily is yequired to invest its funds under witten invesiment policies that primarily emphasize safely of
principal and liquidity; that address inveslment diversification, yield, matusity, and the quality and capability of investment
management; and that include a Jist of authorized lnvestments for City funds, the maximum allowable stated nratutity of any
individual investisent and the maximum average doflar-weighted matority allowed for pooled fund groups, All City funds must
be invested consistent with a formally adopted “Investment Strategy Satement” that specifically addresses cach fund’s
investment. Bach Investment Sirategy Statement will describo its objectives concerming: (1) sultabitity of investment type, (2)
preservatlon and safety of principal, (3) liquidity, (4) marketability of cach investment, {53 diversitication of the portfollo, and {6)

yleld,

Under Texas law, the City's investments must be made "wilh judgment and care, under prevailing eircumstances, that a person of
prudence, diseretion, and intelligence would oxercise in tho management of the person's own affalrs, not for specutation, but for
investiment considering the probablé safety of capital and probable income fo be derived." At least quarterly the Cily's investment
officers ust submit an investment report to the City Council detailing: (1) the inveslment position of the City, (2) that all
investment officors Jointly prepared and signed the report, (3) the beginning oarkel value, and any additions and changes to
matket value and he ending value of cach pooled fond group, (4) the book value and market value of each separately listed nsset
al the beginning and end of the reporting period, (5) the maluity date of each separately invested asset, {6) the account or fund or
pooled fund group for which each Individual invesiment was acquired, and (7) the compliance of the investment porifolio as it
relates to: (s adopted investment sirategies und (b) Texas law. No person may fnvest City finds withoul express wrilten authorify

from: the City Councii,

ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS . , . Under Texas law, the City Ls additionaly required to: (1) annually review its adopted policies and
strategies, (2) requive any investment officers with personal business relationships or femily relationships with fimis seeking to
sell securlties to the Gity to disclose {he relationship and file a statement with the Texas Ethics Comnission and the City, (3)
require the registered prineipal of finns seeking to sell securities to the City to: (a) receive and review the City's investment
policy, (b) acknowledge that reasonable contrals and procedures have been implemented fo preclude impradent investiment
activilies, and () deliver a writien statement ritesting to these requirenents; (4) in conjunction with its annual financinl audit,
perform & compliance audit of the management controls on investments and adherence to the City's investment polioy, (5) restrict
reverse repurchiase agreements to not more than 90 days and resteict the investment of reverse repurchase agreement funds to no
preater than the term of the reverse repurchase agreement, {6) restrict the investment in non-money market mwtual funds in the
aggregate 1o no more than 15% of the City's monthly average fund balance, excluding bond proceeds and reserves and other
finds leld for debt service, (7) require local government investment pools to conform to the new disclosure, rating, ret asset
value, yield calculation, and advisory board requiremments and (8) provide specific investment training for the Treasurer, the chief

financial officer (ifnot the Treasurer) and the investment officer.

TADLE {5 ~ CORRENT INVESTAENTS

As of Octaber 31, 2009 the City's investable fimds were Invested in the following categories:

%of Book

Description Portiolio Value
Federal Home Loan Bank 16.97% $ 4,599,923
Certificate of Deposits 28.43% 7,704,936
Commergial Paper 8.28% 2,243,441
TexPaol 19,90% 5,393,652
TexSTAR 26.41% 7,156,383
1060.00% $27,098,537

As of such dnle, 89% of the City's invesiment portfolio will maturs within 6 menths. The market value of the investment porifolio
was approximately 100% of its purchase price. -

TexSTAR is a local government investment poel for whom First Southwvest Asset Managemeni, Inc., an affiliate of First
Southwest Company, provides oustomer service and markeling for the pool. TexSTAR currently mainfains a “AAAm™ rating
from Standard & Poor’s and has an Investirent objective of achieving and malntaining a stable net asset value of $1.00 per share,
Daily investments or redemptions of funds are altowed by the patticipants.
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TAXMATTERS

OPINION . . . On the date of initial delivery of the Certificates, McCall, Parkhurst & Horton L.L.P., S8an Anfonio, Texas, Bond
Counsel, will render its opinion that, in accordance with statutes, regulations, published rulings and court decisions existing on
the date thercof (“Bxisting Law"), for federal fucome tax purposes, interest on the Certificdtes (i) will be oxcludable from the
"aross income” of the halders thereof and (ii) witl not be included as an alternative minimum tax preference ftem under section
55 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code"). Except as stated above, Bond Counsel will exprass no opinion as o any
other federal, state or focal iax consequences of the purchase, ownership or disposilion of the Cextificates. See Appendix C -

Form of Bond Counsel's Opinton.

In rendering its opinton, Bond Counsel will rely upon (8) certain infonmation and sepresentations of the City, including
Informallon and representations contained in the City's federal tax certificate, and (b) covenants of the City contained in the
Centificate documents relating to certain matters, including arbitvage and the use of tho proceeds of the Certificates and the
property financed or refinanced therewlih. Although it is expected that the Centificates will qualify as tax-oxempt obligations for
federal incone tax pumposes as of the date of issuance, the tax-oxempt slafus of the Certificates could be affected by firture
svenls. Howover, future events beyond the control of the City, as well as the failure to observe the aforementioned
representations or covenanis, could cause thie Interest on the Cestificates to become taxable retroactively to the dale of issuance.

Bond Counsel's opinion represents its legal judgment based upon its review of Existing Law and the reliance on the
aforementioncd information, representations and covenants, Bond Counscl's opinfon is not a puarantee of & result. The Bxisting
Law is subject to change by the Congress and fo subsequent judicial and administrative interpretation by the courts and the
Depariment of the Treasury, There can be no assurance that such Existing Law or the interpretation thereof will not be changed
in a imanner which weuld adversely affect the tax treatment of the purchase, ownership or disposition of the Certificates,

A mting was not sought frons the Internal Revenue Service by the City with respeel to the Certificates or the projecls financed
with the Ceriificate proceeds, No assurances can be glven as to whether the Infernal Revenue Service will commence an audit of
iho Celificates, or as to whether the Internal Revemie Service would agreo with the opinion of Bond Counsel. IF an Intemnal
Revenue Service audit is commenced, under current procedures o Intemal Revenue Service Is likely fo treat the Cily as the
taxpayer and the holders may have no right to patticipate in such procedure, No additional inferest will be paid upon any

deiermination of taxability.

TEDERAL INCOME TAX ACCOUNTING TREATMENT OF ORIGINAL IsSUE Discount . .. ‘Tho initial public offering price to be patd
for onte or more maturities of the Cerlificates (the *Original Issue Discount Centificales”) may be less than the principal amount
thereof or one or more periods for the payment of Inferest on the Cedtificates may not be equal to the accrual peried or be in
excess of one yenr, Tn such event, the difference between (i) the "staled redemption price at maturity” of each Original Issue
Discount Certificate, and (1) the initial offering price to the public of such Original Tssue Disconnt Certificate would constitute
original issuc discount. The "stated redemption price at maturity" means the sum of all paymenis to be made on the Cedificates
less the amount of all perfodic interest payments. Perlodic interest payments are payments which are made during equal accrual
periods (or during any unequat period ifit is the initlal or final period) and which sre made during accrual periods which do not

exceed one year,

Under existing law, any owner who has purchased such Original Issue Discount Certificate in the initial publie offering is entitled
to exclude from pross incoime (as defined in section 61 of the Code) an amonnt of income with respeet to such Original Issue
Discount Cetificate equal fo that portion of the amount of such original issue discount allocable to the accrual period. For a
discussion of certain collateral Federat tax consequences, see discussion set forth below,

In the event of the redemption, sale or other taxable disposition of such Original Tssue Discount Certificate prior to stated
maturity, however, the amount realized by such owner in excess of the basis of such Criginal Issue Discount Cerfiffcate in the
hands of such owner (adjusted upward by the portion of the eriginal issue discount allocable to the period for which stch
Origisiad Tssue Discount Centificate was hetd by such initiat owner) Is includable in gross income.

Under existing law, the original issue discount on each Original Issue Discount Certificate is acored daily to the siated maturity
thereof (in amounis calowlated as deseribed below for each six-month perod ending on the date before the semiannual
anniversary dates of the date of the Cenrlifivates and ratably within each such six-month period) and the acerued amonnt is added
to an Initial owner's basis for such Original Tssue Discomnt Ceriificate for purposes of determining the amount of gain ot loss
recognized by such owner upon the redemplion, sale or other disposition thereof, The amount to be added to basis for each
acerual perod is cquat to (a) the suin of the issue price and the amount of eriginal issue discount accrued in prior periods
multiplied by the yield to stated maturity (determined on the basis of compounding at the close of each acental perfod and
properly adjusted for the length of the acerual period) less (b} the amounts payable as current interest during such accrual period
ot such Criginal Issue Discount Certificate,
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The federal Income tax consequences of the purchase, ownership, redemption, sale or other disposition of Origlnal Issue Discount
Cerfificates whicl are not purchased in the initial offering at the Initial offering price may be determined according to rules which
differ from those described above, All owners of Original Issue Diseount Certificates should consult their own tax advisors with
respeet to the determination for federal, state and local income lax purposes of the freatment of Juterest acerued upon redemgption,
sale or other disposition of such Orlginal Tssue Discount Cerfificates and with respect to the federal, state, local and foralgn fax
consequences of the purchase, ownership, redeniption, sale or other disposition of such Original Issue Discount Certificates,

COLLATERAT, FEDERAY INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES . . . The followlug discussion is n summary of certain collateral federal
income tax consequences resulting ffom the purchase, ovmership or disposilion of the Certificates. This discussion is based on
Existing Law, which is subject to change or modificalion, retroactively.

The folfowing discussion is appHcable to investors, other than those wito are subject to speeiat provisions of lie Code, such as
financlal institutlons, property and casualy Insurance companics, life insutance companies, individual recipients of Soctal
Security or Railroad Retirement Denefits, individuals allowed an camed income credit, certain S corporations with Subchapter C
earnings and profits, forelgn comporations subject to the branch profits tax and taxpayers who may be deeincd to have incurred or
contlnued indebtedness to purchiase lax-exempt Obligation,

THE DISCUSSION CONTAINED HERER MAY NOT BE EXHAUSTIVE. INVESTORS, INCLUDING THOSE WHO ARE
SUBJECT TO SPECIAL PROVISIONS OF THT CODE, SHOULD CONSULT THEIR OWN TAX ADVISORS AS TO THE
TAX TREATMENT WHICH MAY BE ANTICIPATED TO RESULT FROM THE PURCHASE, OWNBERSHIP AND
DISPOSITION OF TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS BEFORE DETERMINING WHETHER TO PURCHASE THE

CERTIFICATES.

Under section 6012 of the Code, holders of tax-exempt Obligatlons, such as the Certificates, may be required lo disclose interest
received or accrued during each taxable year on their retums of federal incoine tasation.

Section 1276 of the Code provides for ordinary Ineome tax treatment of pain recognized upon the disposition of a tax-oxempt
obligation, such as the Certificates, i such obligation was acquired at a "market discount” rnd if the fixed maturity of such
abligation is equal to, or exceeds, one year from (s date of issue. Such Lreatment applles to “market discount bonds" to the extent
such gain does not exceed the accrued market discount of such bonds; altiough for this purpose, a de minimis amoeunt of market
discount Is fgnored. A "market discount bond” is one which is acquired by the holder at a purchase price witich is fess than the
stated redenption price &t maturity or, in the case of a bond issued at an original issue discount, the "revised issue price” (i.c., the
Issue prico plus acerued original issue discount). The Hacerned market discount” is the amount whick bears the same ratlo to the
market discount as the number of days during which (he holder holds the obligation bears to the aumber of days batwesn the

acquisttion date and the final matwrity date,

STATE, LOCAL AND FOREIGN TAXES , . . Investors should consult their own tax advisors concerning tho tax implicalions of the
purchase, ownership or disposition of the Certificates under applicable state or local laws, Poreign investors should also consult
{hoir owm tax advisors regarding the tax consequences unlque Lo investors wito are nol United States persons.

QUALIRIED TAX-EXEMET OBLIGATIONS FOR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS . .. Sectlon 265(n) of the Code provides, in pertinent
parl, that interest paid or incutred by a taxpayer, incleding a "financial institution,” on indebledness incurred or continued to
purchass or carry lox-exenipt Obligations is not deductlble by such taxpayer in determining taxable inconte. Section 265(b) of
the Code provides an exception to the disallowance of such deduction for any futerest expenss paid or incurred on indebtedness
of a taxpayer which is a "financial institution” altocable to tax-exempt Obligalions, other than "private activity bonds,” which are
designated by & “qualified small issuer" as "qualified lax-excnpt obligations.” A "quafificd small issuer” is any governmental
issuer (together with any suboudinate issuers) who issues 1o more than $10,000,000 of tnx-exempt Obligations during the
calender year, except that such amount will be $30,000,000 for taxable years beglnning afler December 31, 2008 and ending
prior to Januaty 1, 2011, Section 265(6)(35) of the Codo defines the ferm "financial inslilotion" as referring fo any corporation
described in section 585(8)(2) of the Code, or any person accepting deposits from the public in the ordinary course of such
person's trade or buslness which is subject to federal or state supervision as a financial jostitution,

‘The City expecs (o designate the Certificates as tquatified tax-exempt oblipations” within the meaning of section 265(b) of the
Code. In furtherance of that designation, the City will covenant to take such action which would assure, or to refralu from such
action which would adversely affec, the treatment of the Cerlficatos as “aualified tax-exetipt obligations.” Potentlal purchasers
should be aware that if the issue price to the public exceeds $10,000,000 (530,000,000 for taxable years beginning nfier
December 31, 2008 and ending prior to Januazy 1, 2011), there is a reasonable basls to conclude tat the payment of a de minimis
amount of premium in excess of $10,000,000 (535,000,000 for taxable years boginning afler December 31, 2008 and ending prior
to January I, 2011) is disregarded, but the Tnternal Revenue Scrvice could lake o contraty view, Were the Internal Revenus
Service (o conclude that the amount of such premium is not dlsregarded, then such obligalions might fail to salisfy the
aforementioned doflar limitation and the obligations woutd net bo "qualified tax-exempt obligations.”




OTHER INFORMATION

RATINGS

Application for contract ratings on the Certificates has been made to S&P, The presently oulstanding tax supported debt of the
City has an underlying rating of "AA-" by S&P. ‘Tho City also has one issue outstanding that was privately placed and is ntot
rated.  Additionalty, the Cily’s Serfes 2002, and Series 2007 Centiffcates of Obligation and Series 2007 General Qbligation
Refunding Bonds, at tho thne of issuance in 2007 were raled “A2" by Moody's Investors Serviee, Ino. ("Moody's") without regard
to credit enthancement. An explanation of the significance of any rating muy be obtained from the company fumnishing the rating.
The tating reflecis only the respective view of such organization and the City makes no representation as lo the appropriateness
of the rating. There is 1o assurance lat such rating will continue for any given period of time or that it will not be revised
downward or withdenwn entirely by such raling company, if in the judgment of such company, circumstances s¢ wamant, Any
such downward ravision or withdrawal of such reting, may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Certificates.

LATIGATION

It is the opinion of the City Altomey and City Staff that there is no pending litigation against the City that wonld have o material
adverse financial impact upon the City or its operations.

REGISTRATION AND QUALIFICATION OF CERTIFICATES FOR SALE

The sale of the Cerlificates has not been reglstered under the Federal Securities Act of 1933, 85 amended, in reliance upon the
exemption provided thereunder by Scotion 3(a)(2); and the Certlficates have not been quatified under the Securities Act of Texas
in relianee upon various exemptions contained fherein; nor have the Certificates been quutified under (he securities acts of any
Jurisdiction, The City asswes no responsibility for qualifivation of the Certificates under the securlties laws of any Judsdiction
in which the Certificates may be sold, assigned, pledged, hypothecated or oftenwise transferred, This disclaimer of responsibility
for qualification for sale or other disposition of the Certificates shall not be construed as an interpretation of any kind with regard
to the availability of any exemption from securities registration provisions.

LEGAL INVESTMENTS AND ELIGIIILITY TO SECURE PunLic FUnDs IN TEXAS

Sectlon 1201.041 of the Public Security Procedures Act (Chapter 1201, Texas Govemment Code) provides that the Certificales
are negotlable instruments povemed by Chapler 8, Texas Buslnuess and Commercs Code, and are legal and awthorized
investments for fnsurance companies, fiduclaries, and trustess, and for the sinking funds of municipatities or oiter politicat
subdivisions or public agencies of the State of Texas. With respect to investment in the Certificates by nwnicipalities or ather
political subdivisions or public sgencies of the State of Texas, the Public Funds Invesiment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas
Govemment Code, requires fiat the Certificates be assignied a rating of at least "A" or its equivalent as to Investment quality by a
national raling agency, See "OTHER INFORMATION - Ratings" hierein, In addition, various provisions of the Texas Finance
Code provide that, subject to # prudent investor standard, the Certifleates are legal investments for stale banks, savings banks,
trust campardes with at capital of onie million dollars or more, and savings and loan associations. The Certificates are eligible to
secure deposits of any public funds of the State, its agencies, and its political subdivisions, and are legal security for those
deposits to the extent of thelv market value, Mo review by the Cily hes been made of the Inwvs in other states to determine
whether the Certificales are legal investments for various institutions in those states,

LEGAT Orin1ons AND NO-LITICATION CERTIFICATE

The City will furnish a complete transeript of proceedings had incident to the authorization and Issuance of the Certificates,
inchrding the unqualified approving legal opinion of the Altomey General of Texas approving the Initial Cettificate and fo the
offect that the Certificates are valid and legally binding Obligations of the City, and based upon examination of such transeript of
proceedings, the approving legal opinion of Bond Counsel, to like effect and to the eflect that the interest on the Cerdificates will
be exciudable from gross income for federal income fax purposes under Sectlon 103(a) of the Code, subject to the matters
deseribed under "TAX MATTERS" herein, The customary closing papers, fncluding a certificate to the effect that no Hiigation of
any nature has been filed or Is then pending to restrain the issuance and delivery of the Certificates, or which would affect the
provision made for their payment or securily, or in any manner questioning the valldity of sald Certificates will also be furnished.
Bond Counsel was not requested fo participate, and did not take part, in the preparation of this Official Statement, and such finn
has not assumed any responsibility with respect thereto or undertaken independently to verlly any of the informalion contalned
herein, except that, Tn Hs capacity as Bond Counsel, sueh firm has reviewed the Information under the captions "THE
CERTIFICATES" {other than {he information under the subeaption “Book-Entry-Only System”), "TAX MATTERS", "OTHER
INFORMATION - Registzation and Qualification of Centificates for Sale", "OTHER INFORMATION - Legal Investments and
Eligibility to Secuze Public Funds in Texas", "OTHER INFORMATION - Legal Opinions and Ne-Litigation Centificate”, and
"OTHRR INFORMATION - Continuing Disclosure of Information” (other than the subcaption “Compliance with Prior
Undertakings") in the Official Statement, and such firm is of the opinion that the Information relnting to the Certificates and the
Ordinance contained under such captions is a falr and accurate suusmary of the Information shown and that the information and
descriptions contained under such captions relating to the provisions of applicable stale and federal laws ate correct as Lo mallers
of law. The legal fee to be paid Bond Counsel for services rendered in connection with the issuance of fhe Cerlificates is
contingent on the sale and delivery of the Ceittfleates. The fegnl opinion of Bond Counset will accompany the Certificates
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deposited with DTC or will bo priited on the Cerlificates in the event of the discontinuance of the book-entry-only system.
Cerlnin legal mailers will be passed upon for the Underwriters by thelt counsel, Andrews Kurih LLP, Austin, Fexas,

The legat opinion to be delivered concurently with the delivery of the Certificates express the professional Judgment of the
attonteys rendering the opinions as to the legal issues explicitly addressed thereln. In rendering a legal opinfon, the altorney does
1ot hecame an Insurer or puarantor of that exprossion of professional judgment, of the iransaction opined upon, or of the future
performancs of the parties to the transaction, Nor does the rendering of an opinion guarantee (e outcome of any legal dispute

that may arise out of the transaction.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

Tn the Ordinance, the City has made the following agreement for the benofit of thie holders and beneficial owners of the
Certificates. ‘The Cliy is required to observe the agreement for so long as it remains obligated to advance funds to pay the
Certificates, Under the agreement, the City will be ebligated to provide certain updaled financial infomiation and opemling data
anntally, and tinely notice of specified malerial events, to the Munieipal Seeurities Rulemaking Board (fhe “MSRB"), which
pursnant to SEC-approved munendments (o SEC Rule 1562-12 that beeame effeotive beginning July 1, 2009, is now the sole
nationally recogmized municlpal securities Information reposilory (“NIRMSIRY). The MSRB has established the Elecironic
Municipel Market Access (“BMMA”) system lo make such continuing disclosure available to investors free of charge. Investors
may accass conlinuing disclosure information filed with the MSRB at www.emma.nstb.org,

ANNUAL REPORTS. . . The City will provide certain updated financial information and operating data to tho MSRB annually, The
information to be updated includes all quantitative financial Information and operating data with respect to the City of the general
type included in this Official Statement under Tnbles numbered 1 through 6 and 8 through 13 and in Appendix B, The City will
update and provide this information within six months alter the end of each fiscal year ending in or after 2009. The City will
provide the updated information to the MSRB.

The Financial information and operating data lo be provided nay be set foriluin full in one or more documents or inay be included
by specific reference to any document available to the public on the MSRI’s internet web slte or filed with the United States
Securitles and Exchange Commisslon (the “SEC”), as pennitted by SEC Rule 15¢2-12 (the “Rule”). The updated infonnation
will include audited financial statements, if the City conumissions an audit and it is completed by the required time, If audited
financial slatentents are not avatiable by the required time, the City will provide unaudited finzncial statements by the required
fime, and audited financial statements when and if such audited financial stalements become available. Any such financial
statements witl be prepared in aceordance with the accounting principles described in Appendix B or such other accounting
principles as the City may be required to employ from fime 1o time pursuant to state law or regulation.

The City*s current fiscal year end Is September 30, Accordingly, it must provide updated information by March 31 in each year,
unless the Cjty changes its flscal year, Ifthe Clty changes ils fisca year, it will notify the MSRB of the chiange.

MATERIAL EVENT NOTICES. . . The City will also provide thnely notices of certain events to the MSRB. The City will provide
notice of any of the following events with respect to the Certificates, if such event is material to a decislon to purchnse or sell
Cettificates: (1) principal ond interest payment definquencies; (%) non-payment related defaulis; (3) unscheduled draws on debt
service reserves reffecting financial difiiculties; (4) wscheduled draws on eredit enhancements reflecting financial difficufties;
(5) substitution of credit or liguidity providers, or their failure to perform; (6) adverse tax opinions or events affecting the tax-
exempt status of ihie Certificates; (7) odifications to rights of holders of the Cerificates; (8) redemption calls; (9) defensances;
(10) release, substilution, or sale af properly seouring repayment of the Cerificates; and (1) rating changes. (Neither the
Certificates nor the Ordinance make any provision for debf servico reserves,) In addilion, the City will provide fimaly notice of
any failore by the Cily to provide information, data, or financial statements in accordance with its apreement described above
under “Annuat Reports.” The City will provide each nelice described in this paragraph to the MSRB.

AVAILADILIEY OF INFORMATION. . . The Clty has agreed to provided the foregoing finsncial and operating information only a5
descrlbed above, Investors will be able fo acress continuing disclosure information filed with the MSRB free of charge at

W w.emma!mstb,org.

LIMITATIONS AND AMENDMERTS. . . The City has agreed to update Information and ta provide netices of material events only as
described above. ‘The Cily has not agreed to provide othcr information that may be relevant or malerial to a complete
presentation of its financial results of operalions, condition, or prospects or agreed to update any information that Is provided,
except as described above, Tho City mukes no representation or wamanty conceming such information or conceming ils
usefuliess to a declsion to invest in or seli Certificates at any future date. The Cily disclafms any confractual or tort llability for
damages reswlling In whole or in part from any breach of its catinuing disclosure agreement or from any statement made
pursuant 1o its agreement, although holders of Certlficates may seek a writ of mandamus fo compe! the City lo comply with jts

agreement.
Tha Cily may amend its continuing disolosure agresment from time to thme to adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a
change in legal requiremerts, & change in law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of eperatlons of the City, if (i)

the agreement, as amended, would have permitted an underwriter fo purchase or sell Certificates in the offering described herein
in complisnce with the Rule, taking into account any amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendinent,
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ns well as such changed circumsiances, and (it} eitber () the holders of a majorlty in aggregate principal amount of the
outstanding Certificates consent to the amendment or (b) any person unafliliated with the City (such as nafionally recognized
bond counsel) determines ihiat the amendment wilt not materially impair the interests of the holders and beneficial owners of the
Cerifficates, The City may also mnend or repeal the provisions of this continuing disclosure agreement if the SEC amends or
repeals tho applicable provisions of the Rule or a court of final jurisdiction caters judgment that such provisions of the Rule are
Invatid, bul anly if and fo the exient that the provisions of Iis sentence would net prevent an underwriter from lawfully

purchasing or selling Cerlificates in the primary offering of the Certificates.

If the City so amends the agreement, it has agreed fo include with the nexd financial information and operating data provided in
accordance with its agreement descrlbed above under “Anmual Reports” an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for the
amendment and of the impact of any change in the type of financial informetion and operaling data so provided.

COMPLIANCE Wit PRIOR UNDERTAKINGS . . During the last five years, the City has complied in all material respects with all
continuing disclosure agreements miade by it in accordance with SEC Rule 15¢2-12.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

FirstSouthwest is employed as Financial Advisor to (he City in connection with the issuance of the Certificates, The Financial
Advisor's fee for services rendered with respect to the sale of the Certificates is confingent upon the jssunnce and delivery of the
Certificates, TFirstSouthwest, in lis capacity as Financinl Advisor, does not assume any responsibility for the infornnation,
covenants and representations contained in any of (he legal documents with respect to the federal income tax status of the
Certificates, or (e possible impact of any present, pending or future actions laken by any legislative or judicin! bodies,

The Finanelal Advisor lo the Cily has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Officlal Statement. The Financlal
Advisor has reviewed the information in this Gfficial Statement in accordance with, and as part of, ifs responsibilities {o the City and,
as applicable, to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the
Financial Advisor does nof guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information.

UNDERWRITING

The Underwriters have agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase the Certificates from the City at a prive equal fo the
initial offering prices set forih on page 2 of this Official Statement, less an vnderwriling diseount of $ The
Underwriters witt be obligated to purchase all of the Certificates if any Certificafes are purchased, The Cerlificates to be offered
to the public mny be offered and sold to certain deaters (inctuding the Underwrilers and other dealers depositing Cerfificates into
investment trusts) at prices fower than the public offering prices of such Certificates, and such publie offering prices may be
changed, from {ime to time, by the Underwriters,

ForwArD-LOOKING STATEMENTS DISCLAIMER

The stalements contained in this Official Statement, and in any other information provided by the City, that are not purcly
historical, are forward-Tooking statements, including statements regarding the Clty's expectations, hopes, intentions, or strategics
regarding the future, Readers should not place undus reliance on forward-looking statements. All forward-looking statements
included in this Officinl Statement ate based on information available to the City on the date hercof, and the City assumes no
obligation to update any such forward-looking statements. The City's actual results could differ materlally from those diseussed

in such forwerd-looking stafements,

The forward-looking statements included herein are necessarily based on varions assumptions and estimates and are inherentiy
subject to various risks and uncertainties, including risks and uncerfainiies relating to the possible invalidity of the underlying
assmuptions and eslimates and possible changes or developments in secial, cconomic, business, industey, market, legal, and
regulatory clrcumstatices and conditions and aclions taken or omitted to be taken by third parties, including customers, suppkers,
business partuers and competitors, and leglslative, judicial, and other governmental authoritics aixd officials, Assumiptions refated
to he foregoing involve judgments with respect to, nimong other things, future economic, competitive, and market condltions and
future business decisions, all of which are difficult or impossible te predict accurately and many of which are beyond the controt
of the Cily. Any of such assumptions could be inreeurate and, therefore, thore ean be no assurance that the forward-looking
statements included in this Official Statement will prove to bs accurate,

36




MISCELLANEOUS

The finaneial data and other fuformation contained herein have been obtained from the City's records, qudited financial
statements and other sources which are believed to be reliable. Thera is ito guarantes that any of the asswnptions or estimates
contained herein wili be reatized, AR of the summarics of (he statutes, documents and resclutions confained in this Officlat
Statement are made swbject to aff of the provisions of such statutes, documents and resolutions. These suntmaries do not pucport
1o be complete statenicnts of such provisions and reference is nide to such documents for fudher information, Reference is

made to original documents in al respects.

“The Ordinance authorizing the issuance of the Certificates will also approve the fonn and content of this Official Statement, and
any addenda, supplenent or amendment thereto, and authorize its further use in the woffering of the Certificates by the

Underwriters.

Mayor
City of Kenrville, Texas

ATTEST:

City Sccretary
City of Kerrville, Texas
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APPENDIX A,

GENERAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY
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LOCATION AND POPULATION

The City of Kenrville fs the principat commereial center and Counly seat of Kerr County, located at the j ntersection of Interstate
Highway 10 and State Highways 16, 27 and 173 Ttis 65 miles northwest of San Antenio along the Guadalupe River and is in the
hearl oFthe Texas Hill Country. The City's 2000 consus popufation was 20,425, incrensing 17.49% shice 1990,

fcoxoMy

Kerrville's economy Is based on a combination of agriculture, tourism and manufacturing. Major industries in the area include
healtheare, tourisi and hospitalily, jewelry, alrcratt production, retirement, building trades, ranch retreats, hunting, services and
retail. Much of the sources of agdcultural income are from cattle, sheep, and goats, There are three hospitals In Kenvitle
(Kerrville State Hospltal, the Veterans Administration Hospilal, and the Sid Peterson Memorial Hospital), employlng over 1,700

people.

The City’s location aleng the Guadalupe River in the heart of the “beantiful® Toxas Hill Country, together with the many
vacation resorts and numgrous summer camps for young people, make Kenville a haven for tourists and conventions as well as o
popular retirement area. The area is one of the state's most popular health ancl recreational areas, with more than a dozen boys'
and glrls’ eamps, adult camps, duds ranches and refigious encampments, The Kereville-Schreiner Park fs a 517.2-acre area along
the Guadalupe River, five inites southeast of downtown Kerrville which is now owned nnd operated by the City of Kerrville, The
park’s oetivities include bosling, fishing, camping, picnicking, unsupervised swimnting in the river, bird walehing, hiking,
walking, and cycling. Within the Clty there are 17 matsls/Motels with approximately 1,299 rooms, including the rooms ot the
Famous I of the Hills River Resort and the Y.0. Ranch Resort Hotel. The Hiil Country Ads Foundation, founded in 1958,
provides art classes and sunmer theatre for professionals and mnateurs, plus a special children’s program. The local higher
educational facitity, Sehreiner University, has a 2608-09 academic year enrofiment of 1,011, These major aspecis of fie
economy are suppurted by a strong retail, wholesale and serviee trade,

Major employers of the area as of December, 2009 include the fotlowing:

Approximaie

Number of

Employer Type of Business Employces
Sid Peterson Memoriat Hospital Hospital 851
Keirville Independent School District Bdueation 741
Kerrville State Hospital Hospital 535
Kerrville Veterans Administralion Hospitat Hospilal 460
Wal-Mart Discount Store 400
James Avery Craftsman, Inc. Jewely 365
H.E.B. Food and Drug Stores Grocery Store 332
City of Kerrville Govermnment 315
Kerr County Government 299
Sava Senlor Center Retirement Facility 281

Source: Kerr Tconomic Devetopment Foundation,

TRANSTORTATION

Lowis Sclireiner Field is a City/County afrport, The nearest scheduled flights are at the San Antonio International Airport, whici
can bo reached by car ina little over an hour.

The Kerrville Bus Company — Coach USA provides bus service to the area with passenger service and small package express
service, Frelght and shipping are provided by Kerrvitle Bus, United Parcel Service, Federal Bxpress, United States Postal
Servics, Basse Truck Lines, Central Freight, and Alrbome Express.




BUILDING PERMITS AND CONSTRUCTION VALUES

Commereial Residential

Fiscat Conslruclion Conslruction

Year Permifs Value Permils Value Permils Value
2005 74 $29,232,653 248 523,165,223 322 $ 52,397,876
2006 66 63,103,409 293 33,102,646 359 96,206,054
2007 81 9,710,053 21 36,200,297 358 45,910,350
2008 84 17,096,291 240 29,154,698 324 46,250,989
2009 4 30,470,574 141 21,888,983 21 52,359,557

LABOR FORCE STATISTICS FOR KERR Counry™

Annual Averages
2009 2008 20076 2006 2005

Civilian Labor Force 23,987 23,330 22431 22,590 22,726

Total Employed 22,604 22,400 21,627 21,668 21,799

Unemployed 1,383 930 804 92 927

% Unemployment 5.8% 4.0% 3.6% 4.1% 4,1%

% Unenployed (Texas) 8.1% 4.9% 4,3% 4,9% 54%

% Unemployed (USA) 9.5% 5.8% 4.6% §.6% 5.1%
(4] Source: Texas Empioyment Conunfssion.
2) As of October, 2009,
EMPLOYMENT AND YAGES BY INDUSTRY - KERR Counry!'™

Second Quarder
2009 2008 2007 2006 2003
Natural Resources and Mining 113 112 13 110 105
Construetion 1,219 1,402 1,200 1,260 i,196
Manufacturing 733 1,158 1,182 1,147 1,058
Trade, Transportation & Utilities 3,266 3,379 3,320 3,246 3,122
Information 259 243 243 286 270
Tinancial Activities 827 883 823 822 796
Professional and Business Services 1,291 1,363 1,280 I,166 1,160
Education and Health Services 3,457 3,378 3372 3,163 3,201
Lelsure and Hospitality 2,310 2,416 2,326 2,233 2474
Other Services 751 738 732 749 758
Unclassified 0 13 17 40 20
State Government 751 720 137 755 708
Local Governnient 2,054 1,953 §,946 1,978 2,028
Fotal Employitient 17,031 12,168 17,380 16,954 16,834

§ 138906250 § 145270467 § §35880627 & 124377702 § 115,671,363

) Source: Texas Employment Commission,
{2} Statistics do not include Federal employees or their wages.




PENDIX B

FXCERPTS FROM THE
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Year Ended Seplember 30, 2008
e Information contained in this Appendix consists of exceryits from the City of Kerrville,
"Texas Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended September 30, 2008, and is not intended

to be & complete stalement of the City's financial condition. Referentce is made to the
complete Report for further information,
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RUTLEDGE CRAIN & COMPANY, PC
CEATIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
2401 Qarden Park Gourl, Suite B
Astinglon, Texas 76013

Independent Auditors’ Report on Flnanolal Statements

To the City Councll
City of Kerrville, Toxas

We have audited the accompanying financlal statements of the governmental gotivilies, the business-iype aolivitles, the
aggregate discrelely presanted component units, each major fund, and the aggregate ramalning fund Information of the Cily of
Kemville, Texas as of and for e year ended Septerber 30, 2008, which collectively cormprise the Cly's bhaslc finanslal
stalements as llsted In the table of contents. These financlal statementa are the responsibiiity of the Gity of Kernvllle, Texas'
management, Our responslbility Is to express &n oplnion on 1hese financial statements based on our audit. We dld not audit
the financlal statements of Kerrville Publlc Ulility Board {KPUBY), a componant unlt, which statements reffect $1% and 95%,
raspeclivaly, of the assels and revente of the Cily's discrately presented component ualls as of and for the year snded
September 3¢, 2008, Those statoments were audited by other auditors whose report has heen furnishad to us, and ow
oplnlon, insofar as il relates to the amounts included for KPUB, Is based solely on the report of the other auditors,

We conducted our audlt in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the finanolal statements
are free of materal misslatement. An audit includes examining, on a fest basls, evidenca supporiing the amounts and
disclosures In the financlal statements. An audit also Includes assessing the accounting princlples used and significant
astimatos made by management, as well a8 evaluating the overal financlal siatement presentation. We bellove thal our audit

provides a reasonable basls for our opinions.

in our opinlon, the financial statements refarred to above present fairy, I all materlal respeots, the respective financial position
of lhe governmental activiles, the husinass-type aciivitles, the agaregate discretely presentad component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remalning fund Information of the Clly of ICerrville, Texas as of September 30, 2008, and the
tespactive changes In financlal position and , where applicable, cash flows ihereof for the year then ended In conformity with

accounting princlples generatly accepted in the Unlted States of Amerloa.

The Managsment's Discusslon and Analysis and budgelary eamparison information identifisd as Required Supplementary
information In the tabla of contents is not a requlred part of tha basic financtal statements bul ls supplementary Information
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certaln linsited
procedures, which conslsted princlpally of Inquirles of managemant regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the supplemental Information. Howaver, we dict nat audit the Informalion and express no opinfon on it

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming oplnions on the financtal statemonts vhich collectively comprise the City of
Kernvllle, Texas' basic financlal statements. The Inltoductory section, combining and indiidual nonmajor fund flnanclal
statements and stallstical sectlon are presented for purposes of additional analysts and are not a requlrect part of the basle
{lnanclal statements. The combining and individual nonmalor fund financial statements have been subljected to the audiing
procedures appiiad in the audit of ihe baslc financlal statements and, in our oplrilon, are fafrly stated in all malerlal respects n
relation to the basic financial statements taken as & whote. The secllon and statistical sections have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied In the audit of the basic financlal statements and, accordingly, we exprass o opinion on them.

ZA:@@%@%/ M:/DO |

May 3, 2009

Members:
Metto (817) 265-0908 Amarlean Institule of Cediied Public Accountants Fax {817) 8619623
Texas Socloly of Certiliad Pubilo Accountants
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CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
Management’s Discussion and Analysls

As management of the City of Kerrville, Texas, we offer readers of the City of Kerrville's financlal
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Kerrville for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2008. We encourage readers fo consider the information presented
here in conjunction with acditional information ihat we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which

cah be found on pages 12 - 15 of this report.
Financial Highlights

Government-Wide

o The Cily's assels exceeded ils liabilities at the close of the 2008 fiscal year by $88,869,963 (nel
assets). Of this amount $14,649,157 (unrestricted net assels) may be used 1o moet the Clly's
ongoing obligations to cilizens and craditors in accordance with the Cily's fund designalion and flscal
policies as more fully described helow.

« The City's total net assets increased by $6,212,319 or 6.23%. Net assets of business-type activities
increased by $3,772,705 or 10.83%, and net assets of governmentai aclivities increased by
$1,439,614 or 2.95%.

+  Total Cost of all the City's programs was $31,436,520 in 2008.

Fund Statements '
+ As of Seplember 30, 2008, the Gily's governmental funds reported combined ending fund batances of

$10,927,766 . Approximalely 90.47% of thls folal amount, $9,886,688 is unreserved and available for
use within the Cily's deslignation and policles. Reservations for construction total $2,928,230 and
represent over 26.81% of the lotal fund balance,

« Atihe end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund patance In the Genera! Funds was $6,421,228

or 27.46% of ths total general fund expenditures.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discusslon and analysls s intendad to serve as an introduction to the City of Kerville's basic

financlal statements. The Cly of Kerville's basic financial statements are compromised of three

components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financlal statements, and 3) notes to the

financial stalements. This report also contains other supplementary information In addition to the basic
financial statements themseives.

(1) Government-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assels presents Information on all of the Clty's assets and liabilitles, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net asssts may
sarve as a useful indlcator of whether lhe financlal condilion of the City Is improving or deteriorating,

The statement of aclivifies presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assels are reported as soon as the underlying event glving
tise to the change occurs, regardiess of the timing of relaled cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported In this staternent for some ftems that will anly result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
(e.g., uncoltected taxes and earnad but unused vacation leave).

Bofh of the government-wide financlal statements distinguish functions of the Clly of Kerrville that are
principally supported by laxes and intergovernmental revenues {(governmental activities) from other
funclions that are Intended to recover all or a significant portion of their cosls through user fees and
charges (Business-lype activities). The governmental acliviies of the City of Kerpvills Include general
government, public safety, public works and streets, and parks and recreation. The husiness-lype
activiies of the Cily of Kerrville include water and wastewater services, Kerrville Schrelner Park and the

Gity's public golf course.
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The government-wide financlal statements include hot only the Gity itself, but also a legally separate
electric utility (KPUB) as wells as the Economic Improvement Corporalion (EIC). Financtal information for
these component units Is reported separately from the financlal Information presented for the primary

government itself.

The governmenl-wide financial statemenis can be found on pages 36 — 38 of this report.

{2) Fund Financial Statements

Fund financlal statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that Is used to maintain control
over rasources that have been segregaled for spacfic activities or objectives. The Clly of Kerrville, like
other stale and local govemments, uses fund accounting fo ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal reguirements. Al of the funds of the Cily of Kerrville can be divided Into lwo
categorles: governnmental funds and proprietary funs.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financlal statements, Howsver, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financlal statements facus on near-term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end
of the fiscal year. Such Information may be useful in evalualing a government's near-term financing

requirements.

Because of the focus on governmenlal funds is narrower than that of the governmant-wide financlal
stalements, it Is useful to compare the Information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activilles In the government-wide financiai statements. By doing
80, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing
decislons. Both the govermmental funds halance sheet and the govemmental funds statemant of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconcillation to facltitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activitles.

The Clty of Kerrville maintains nine individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in
the Governmental Funds Balance Sheef and in the Govemmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund, which is considered to be a major
fund, Data from the other sight funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual
funds data for each of these non-major governmental funds Is provided In the form of combining
statements In the combining statements sectlon in the report,

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 39 - 42 of this report.

Proprietary funds., The City of Kerrville maintains two different types of proprietary funds, Enterprise
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financlal slatements. The Cily of Kerrville malntalns three enterprise funds. The Cily of Kerrville uses
enterprise funds to account for Its water and wastewater services, Kerrville Schrelnsr Park and the City's
public golf course. Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumutate and allocate cosls
internally among the City's various functions. The Clty of Kerrville uses internal service funds to account
for automotive maintenance facliity operations and employees’ heaith insurance services. Because hoth
of these services predominantly benefil governmental rather than business-type functions, they have
been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Enterprise funds provide the same type of inforimation as the government-wide financial statements, only
Ih more detall. The enterprise fund financial statements provide information for the Uility Fund {(water
and wastewater), Kerrville Schrelner Park and the Golf Course Fund. The Utility Fund Is considered to be
major fund of the City of Kerrville while the Goif Course Fund and Kerrvile Schreiner Park fund are
combined and presented In as single column as non-major enterprise funds. The internal service funds
are also combined Into a single, aggregated presentalion of the proprietary fund financial statements.
individual fund data for the non-major enterprise funds and Internal service funds Is provided in the form
of combining statements elsewhare in the repori.

The baslc proprietary fund financial statements can he found on pages 43-45 of this report.
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(3) Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided In
the government-wide and fund financial statements. Each note Is designed to give a more detailad
explanation of the figures which are presented In summary form throughout the financlal statements

seclion of the repart.

The nofes to the financial statements can be found on pages 46-74 of this report.

Comparative Financial Information

Government-Wide Financial Analysis
As noted earlier, net assets may serve over lime as a useful indicator of a government's financlal position.

in the case of the Cily of Kerrville, assets exceeded liabilities by $88,869,963 at the close of the most
recant fiscal year.

By far the largest porlion of the Cily of Kerrville's net assets (78.74%) reflects lts investment In capital
assets {e.g., land, bulldings, Infrastruclure and system improvements), less any related dabt used to
acquire those assets that Is outstanding. The Cily of Kerrville uses these capital assets to provide
services lo cilizens; consequently, these assets are not avallable for fulure spending. Although the Cily
of Kereville's investment in its capilal assets Is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the
resources heeded to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capilal assetls
thamselvas cannot be used to liquidate thess liabilities.

CITY OF KERRVILLE'S NET ASSETS
Government-3iile

Governniental Business-type
Activities Aclivities Tolal
2008 C 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

Current and other assels S 11,746,453 § 18,235,796 $ 8,574,056 8 6,763,534 §  26320,509 § 24,999,330
Capital essets 47,191,043 45,057,984 43,704,361 40,086,195 90,895 404 85,144,179
Total assels 64,937,496 63,293,780 52,278,417 46,849,720 117,215,913 110,143,509
Long term liabilities 12,587,927 12,253,124 12,196,187 906,137 24,783,914 13,159,261
Other liabilitles 2,084,611 2215112 1,477,425 11,111,485 3,562,036 13,326,597
Total liahllities 14,672,338 14,468,236 13,673,612 12,017,622 28,345,950 26,485,858
et assets:

Invested in capital assets,

Met of related debt 38,523,787 32,804,860 31,453,451 29,394,535 69,977,238 62,199,395
Restricted 3,639,842 1,468,016 603,726 - 4,243,568 1,468,016
Unrestricted 8,101,529 14,552,668 6,547,628 3,437,565 14,649,157 19,990,233
Total net nsscels $ 50,265,158 5 48,825,544 & 38604805 3 34,832,100 § 88869963 § 83,637,644

An additional portion of the City's nat assets (4.78%) represents resources that are subject to exlarnal
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricled net assels (16.48%) may
be used to meet the Clty's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Clly of Kerville is able to report positive balances in each
category of net assets for the government as a whole.

The City's net assets increased by $5,212,319 during the current fiscal year. $3,772,705 of this Increase
is atiributable to current year operations of the business type aclivilles. Another $1,439,614 Is attributable

to governmental activities as shown In the following table.
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Reveunues;
Program revenue
Charges for services
Operating granis and conteibutions
Capilal grants aud contributions
General Revenue
Property tax
Sates and other taxes
Unresteicled invesiment eaings
Miscellanzous revenue
Gain (foss) on sale of assets
Total revenue

Expenses:
General govermnment
Public safely
Culture and recreation
Public works
Business programs
Interest on long-lenn debt
Water and sewer operalions
Kemville Schreiner Park
Golf course
Tolal expenses
Excess before transfers
Transfers

Change in net assets

Net Assets, Beginning of Year as Restfated
Net Assets, Eud of Year

City of Kerrville

Changes i Net Assets
Govermnmental Business-type -
Activifies Activitics Tolal
2008 2007 20608 2007 2008 2007
§ 5047533 § 5975580  $ 10,118,243 5 §,688,058 5 15165776 & 14,663,647
903,820 204,877 685,003 31,856 1,588,823 236,733
1,234,540 1,207,155 1,420,761 2,071,150 2,655,301 3,784,305
8,587,048 7,959,787 - - 8,587,048 1,959,187
8,034,829 9,972,413 - - 8,034,829 9,972,413
391,682 849,946 250,988 288,366 642,670 1138812
- . 211,761 290,278 211,761 290,278
(202,443) 507,996 (34,926) (6.563) {237,369) 501,433
23,997,009 27,177,763 12,651,830 11,369,645 36,648,839 33,547,408
$ 4937628 § 17,141,532 8 - $ - $ 4,937,628 § 7,141,532
11,532,917 9,743,210 . . 11,532,017 9,743,210
3,262,500 3,662,625 - - 3,262,500 3,662,625
3,008,951 2,394,090 - - 3,008,951 2,394,090
119,727 312,415 - - 179,727 312,415
459,439 572,202 - - 459,439 572,202
- - 6,611,782 6,071,273 6,611,782 6,071,273
. - 545,526 401,888 545,526 491,388
- - 398,050 920,318 898,050 929,318
23,381,162 23,826,074 8,055,358 7,492,479 31,436,520 31,318,553
615,847 3,351,682 4,596,472 3,871,166 5,212,319 7,228,855
823,767 1,129,468 (823,767) (1,129,468) - -
1,439,614 4,481,157 3,772,705 2,747,698 5,212,319 7,228,855
48,825,544 44,344,387 34,832,100 32,084,402 83,657,644 76,428,78%

$ 50,265,158

$ 48,825,544

$ 38,604,805

3 34,832,100

§ 88,869,963

§ 81,657,644

Overall Financial Position and Results of Operations

Governmental Activities

Governmental aclivilies Increased the City of Kerrville's net assels by $1,439,614 thereby accounting for
27.62% of the total growth in the net assets of the Ciy of Kerrville. Key Elements of this increase are as

follows:

+ Charges for services provided 21.03% of the Clty's govarnmental ravenues. These include garbags
collection fees, municipal court fines, EMS service charges, and landfill surcharge revenues, among

others.

¢ Tax revenues (property, sales, franchise, hotel & alcoholic) provided 69.27% of the Cily's
governmental revenues. Tax revenues decreased by $1,310,323 or 7.31% from 2008 related to the
change In the Economic Improvement Corporation belng presented as a discrete component unit.
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Expenses and Program Revenue & General Revenue — Governmental Actlvities
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Business-Type Activities
Business-lype activities increased the Cily of Kerrville's net assels by $3,772,705 accounting for 72.38%
of the total growth in the Cily’s net assets. Key slements of this increase are as follows:

e« Charges for services provided 79.97% of the Cily's business-type revenues.

s Waler and Sewer charges for servicas provided 69.68% of the City’s business-type revenue.

s Karnville Schreiner Park and the Golf Course service charges provided 10.40% of the Cily's business-
type revenue.

Expenses and Program Revenue ~ Business-Type Activities Chart
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Individual Financial Analysis of the City's Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Kerrville uses fund accounting to endure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City of Kerrville's governmental funds s to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information Is useful In assessing the City of
Kerrville's financing requirements. in particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure
of a government's net rasources avallable for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the curreni fiscal year, the Cily of Kerrville's governmental funds reported combined
anding fund balances of $10,927,766 a decrease of $6,364,125 in comparison with the prior year. This
substantial decrease in fund balance is predominantly atidbutable to the reclassification of the Economic
Improvement Corporation funds from blended component units to discrete component unils,
Approximately 90.47% of total fund balance or $9,886,688 conslitutes unreserved fund balance, which is
avaltable for spending at the government's discretion. The remainder of fund balance fs reserved to
indicate that it is not avallable for new spending hacause it has already been commilted for restricted
purposes {debt service, caplial projacts).

The general fund is the chief operaling fund of the Clty of Kerrville, At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved fund batance of the general fund was $6,421,228 . As a measure of the general fund's
llquidily, It may be useful to compare unreserved fund balance to tota!l fund expendilures. Unreserved
fund balance represents 27.48% of total general fund expenditures.

29




The fund balance of the City of Kerrville’s general fund decreased by $764,747 during the current fiscal
year, Key factors In this decrease are as follows:

e The FY 08 budgst anticipated a $1,750,132 drawdown of cash balance, which was in excess of the
larget reserve level In order fo maintain a responsible tax rate. Audited figuras from exhibit B-1
Hustrate that on a budget basis, expendltures exceedsd revenues by only $759,557.

o Increases In current liabllities related to accounts payable and deferred revenue provide for the
rernaining reduction in the fund balance.

Proprietary Funds
The City of Kerrville's proprietary funds provide the same typs of Information found in the government-

wide financial statements bul in more detail,

Unrestricted net assets of the propristary funds at the end of the year amounted to $6,547,628 with
unrestricted net assels of the utifity fund at the end of the year amounting to $8,620,272 .

General Fund Budgetary Analysis

Actual expenditures in the general fund for 2008 exceeded revenues by $759,557. Tha ariginat budget
anticipated a drawdown of cash balance which exceeded the cily's poticy driven target cash reserve. The
final budget put this drawdown at $1,750,132, which means that the actual drawdown was approximately
$990,000 less than anticipated. The combined net effects of the following budget to actual variances
agcount for the lower than anticipated drawdown;

s The taxes and penallies category shows a significant negative variance from budget primarily due to
property tax revenue which was approximately $444,000 lower than anticipated. $240,000 of this
amount is due to a discrepancy In the distribuilon method used to apportion revenues batween the
general fund and the general debt service fund. The remalning amount ks due to an actuaf collection
rate belng approximately 98% rather than the budgeted 100%. The discrepancy in the disfribution is
related to the revenues collected on those properties claiming the over 65 tax freeze, State code
indicates thal revenues collecled based on the debt service requirements may only be used for debt
gervice, while the formula used by compfroller’s office to calculate the debt service rale excludes
consideration of revenues from frozen properties. The problem arises when assessor collectors
distribute all property tax income befween general and debt sarvice funds according to thefr pro-rata
share of the total fax rate. Additional clarification of this issue will be sought in 2009, and adjustments
wlll be made accordingly in the future.

e The charges for service revenus calegory excesded budget by approximately $459,000, primarlly due
to EMS revenues exceading budgel, This was caused by an increased number of service calls, as
well as an Increase in the number of critical care calls, which equates to a higher than anticipated
average revenue per service call,

¢ Landiill operations actual expendilures were $360,501 below budget due not expending funds which
were budgeted for fhe purchase of a grant funded grappler truck and for the landfill expansion permit,
Both of these expenditures were re-appropriated In the 2009 budget due to the timing of the actual
invoices.

s The general operations budgst had $356,134 remalning at year end. This is primarlly dus to a
relmbursement of workers compensation premiums {return of equity) and lower than budgeted cost of
merit increases for general government employees.
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Capital Asset and Long-Term Debt Administration

Capital Assets
The City of Kerrville’s Investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type aclivittes as of

September 30, 2008, amounts to $90,805,404 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings and Improvements, infrasliucture and system Improvements
(including streets and dralnage infrastructure) and machinery and equipment.

CITY OF KERRVILLE'S CAPITAL ASSETS
(net of depreefation)

Govemmenfal Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 26038 2007
Land $ 2,510,700 $ 2,283,843 $ 2,439,576 $ 2,439,576 $ 4,950,276 $ 4,723,419
Streets 19,192,587 18,499,953 - - 15,192,587 18,499,953
Construction in progress 11,594,475 10,428,440 7,807,658 4,920,149 19,492,133 15,348,595
Buildings 4,122,218 4,280,076 6,265,916 6,485,913 10,938,134 10,765,989
Improvements other than buildings 6,388,788 6,432,690 25,899,513 25,037,019 32,288,301 31,469,709
Vehictes 2,334,432 2,629,165 772,370 763,837 3,106,802 3,393,002
Machinery and equipment 447,844 485,358 429,327 434,607 YRV 919,965
Total $47,191,044 $45,039,531 343,704,360 $40,081,101 $90,895,404 $85,120,632 :

Additional informatlon on the City's capital assels can be found in Note If (C) on pages 53-56 of this report.

Long-Term Debt
At the end of the current fiscal year, the Clty of Kerrville has total governmental activities long-term deht

outstanding of $9,398,586 which the Clly expacts lo relire through the Debt Service Fund. The City also
has business activity long-term debt outstanding of $12,333,357 at Septembar 30, 2008. The Clty of
Kerrville's total bonded debt and loans increased by $2,147,193 (25.30%) during the current flscal year
due to issting additional debt for the Water and Sewer Utllity. .

The City's five year capital improvement plan identifies over $64 mililon of capital improvements during
the next five years (through 2013). The majorily of these improvements (83.78%) are anticipated 1o be
funded by debt obligations. The 2009 capital plan includes issuing approximately ten million dollars of
Cerlificates of Obligation for use in the general and utifity funds. As a result, the Gily has taken steps fo
improve its bond rating for 2009, In November of 2009, Standard and Poor's increased the City's general
fund rating from an A+ to a AA-, ulility fund rating from A to a AA-, and the economic impravement

corporation from A- to A+,

LONG-TERM DEBT
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totel
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
Gross Bonded Debt
General obligation b 2,645,525 § 2,656,650 8§ 3,299475 § 3313350 % 5945000 $ 5,970,000
Cerlificates of pbligation 5,254,575 5,539,375 6,690,425 4,370,625 11,945,000 9,910,000
Revenite bonds - - 1,135,600 §,665,000 1,135,000 1,665,000
Tolal Bonded Debt 7,800,100 8,196,025 11,124,960 9,348,975 19,025,000 17,545,000
Bond premium/discount £29,650) (31,611) (57,004) (60,790) {36,744) (92,401)
Deferred amount on refinding (179,066) (189,014} (232,147 (245,044) (411,219 (434,058}
Net Bonded Debt 7,694,384 7,975,400 10,835,659 9,043,141 18,527,043 17,018,541
Qther Long-lerm Dbt
Siale infrastructure bank loan 1,498,436 1,550,000 1,208,457 1,250,000 2,106,943 2,800,000
Capital leases 25,643 34,645 - - 25,643 34,645
Compensated absenices 659,059 257423 152,071 90,450 811,130 347,879
Landfilt closure and postclosuce casls 2,713,155 2,435,656 - 2,713,155 2,435,656

Tolal $ 12,587,027 & 12,253,124 $ 14,196,187 § 10,383,597 § 24783914 § 22636721

Additional information on the Gity’s long-term debt can be found in Nofe I (E} on pages 58-61 of this report.
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Modified Approach of Capital Assets

The Cily of Kerrville has adopted the modifled approach for its streets system of capital assets. As a
result, the Gily has made a commilment to preserve and maintaln its sireets system at certaln condition
lovels determined by the City. Nao depraclation expense is reporied for such assels, nor are amounts
_ capitalized in connection with improvements that lengthen the lives of such assels, unless the
improvements also Increase thelr service potential. The City maintains an Inventory of the sireets system
and performs perfodic condition assessments to establish that the predetermined condition Javel is being
maintalned. The City's policy Is fo malntain a largeted overall weighted average Condltion Index rating of
75 (falr condition). The City's engineers astimate the current pavement condition of the City's slreets to
be at a Conditlon Index rating of 79 (fair condition). The City makes annuat estimates of the amounts that
must be expended to preserve and maintain the sirests system at the predetermined condition fevel. To
preserve the Cily's streets system at the targeted Gondition index rating level of 75, the City's needed
expenditures for 2008 were zero (30), Although Kerrvilie's waighted average Condilion tndex rating is 79,
there are a number of streets that have falled and are deterioraling at a faster rate than normal. These
strests will require reconstruction in order to maintain a welghted average Condition Index rating above

75. For three year historical Information, please see page 74.
items That Will Have a Significant Financlal Impact

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates
The City has adopted an ad valorem tax rate of $0.5500 per $100 value for budgel year 2009, which is

the same as the tax rate of $0,5500 per $100 value in budgst year 2008.

Sales tax recelpts experienced In budget year 2008 were 1.03% greater than experienced in hudget year
2007, and are anficipated to Increase an additional 2.75% In budget year 2009. However, this
assumption could change significantly if the exlsting economic climate worsens.

The number of water accounts increased from 9,191 in fiscal year 2007 to 9,270 In fiscal year 2008, for
an Increase of 1.01%. Bllled water usage increased 1.11% from fiscal year 2007 to 2008. The number of
water accounts are anticipated to increase an additional 1.5% in budget year 2009.

Hotel/mote! occupancy tax receipts experienced In fiscal year 2008 were $977,543 or 1.04% greater than
experienced In budget year 2007, and are anticipated to increase an additional 3,6% in budget year 2008.

For 2009, the City has been awarded two substantial grants. The first grant Is a COPs technology grant
which will provide for updated communlcalions asystems and police technology infrastructure, The second
grant Is a safe routes lo schaol federal grant which will provide for sidewalks between nelghborhoods and

schools throughout the Gity.

L
0.0

This financiat report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an
interest In the governmant’s finances. Questions concerning any of the Information provided In this report
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed {o the Director of Finance, 800
Junction Highway, Kerrville, TX 78028 (830)-792-8330.
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CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

EXHIBIT A1

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008
Primary Government™ . .
Governmental Busiiess-yps Component
. Acliviltes Activitles Total ___Unite
ASSETS '
Casfr ) 3 604,613 $§ 176,693 $ 681,126 $ 781,331
Invesimonts 8,332,076 5,602,609 13,934,608 5,808,427
Equlty tn Investment pook
Recelvables (net of allowancas for uncollectibles):
Taxes 241,025 - 241,026 -
Accounls 246,049 003,966 1,240,915 9,807,820
Olher 1,741,387 - 1,741,387 -
Interfund foan receivable 47,824 - 47,824 -
Duo from other govemmenis 1,012,188 622,439 1,634,827 412,687
invenlories 64,219 293,413 347,832 1,148,628
Prepald asssls . 2,260 2,260 -
Olher assels - - - 92,983
Restricled assels:
Cash - . - 19,958
favesimants 2,041,004 757,850 2,798,944 8,623,236
Deferred chargas 134,680 126,116 269,806 176,632
Equily In Jolné venlure 3,350,388 - 3,390,388 =
Capltal assets (net of accumuialad dopraciation, where applicableh
Nondepreclable properly :
Land 2,610,698 2.438,676 4,060,274 147,666
Conslruclion In progress 11,694,476 7,897,668 19,492,133 1,648,637
Sireals 19,192,588 -- 19,102,588 -
Dapraciable properly
Bulldings 4,722,249 6,266,917 10,088,136 1,660,343
fmprovemenis olher then bulldings 0,388,787 24,899,613 32,288,300 24,310,823
Vehicles 2.334,432 772,370 3,106,802 1,002,663
Machinety and squipment 342,693 412,268 764,951 -
Offiea aquipment ~ 106,161 17,088 122,220 -
Total Assats . 64,937,496 g2 ov8dl7 1iv.215913 56,000,693
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and acerued labilitles 2,608,186 1,240,273 3,248,469 5,486,602
Payable from rasirloted assels:
Accruied revenue bond Inlerest - 33,122 33,122 =
Gustomer deposils 73,872 166,206 230,078 622,301
Uneamed rovenue . 2,663 - 2,563 --
interfund foan payabls .- 47,824 47,824 -
Noncurront flabliiffes:
Due withln one year 1,140,378 1,233,287 2,373,845 2,593,000
Due In more than ona year 41,447,349 10,862,920 22 410,269 13,166,189
Tolal Llahllillas T 14,872,338 13,873,812 26,340,950 24,700,192
NET ASSETS
westad In Capilal Assals, Net of Related Dabt 48,523,787 31,463,451 69,077,238 13,148,613
Restricted Fon
Dabt Service 782,010 603,726 1,366,738 310,888
Caplla! Projects 2,857,832 -- 2,857,832 3,200,831
Unrestricted 8,101,629 _ B547.826 _apdeder 20,640,372
Total Net Assels §__ 60,200,168 § 733,604,006 ¢ 60,880,983 §_ “:3_7@0‘501

The accompanying hotes are an integrat part of this stalsment.
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CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIMITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Program Revenuss

- Operaling Capltal
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Funclons/Programs Expenses Services Conlribullons. _Contribulions
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT - '
Goveriimenial Activitios:
General government $ 4037628 & 2474021 $ - 3 123,619
Publlc safely 11,632,917 2,338,622 421,036 108,602
Cullura and recreaifon 3,262,600 149,028 482,785 -
Publie works 3,008,051 84,962 - 1,004,329
Buslness programs 178,727 - 20,000 -
Intsrast on long-term et 450,439 - - —m
Total expendititres 2‘3,333;@_ 6,047,633 003,820  1,234540
Business-lype Aciivilles:
Water & Sower 6,611,782 8,802,617 - 1,420,761
Kerrville-Schrainer Park 645,526 403,164 = -
Qolf Courss 896,060 912,462 666,008 e
Tolal Buslness-type Aclivities B.0G6,360 10,116,243 885,003 1420761
Tolal Primary Government § _ 41,436,620, $ 16465778 S__ 1,600,823 § 2,656,301
COMPONENT UNITS:
Economic improvement Corporation $ 2,062,872 $ - $ 20,740 -
Kerrvitls Public Ullilly Board 48,990,800 49,601,027 o 234,066
Total Gomponsnt Unlls $ 49093672 $_49.601827 % 20,740 & 234,09%

Gonaral Revenues
Froperly Taxas
Bales Texes
Holel Ocotpancy Texes
Franchise Taxes
Afcohiolic Boverage Texes
Unrestricled Invesiment Earnings
Miscellaneoiis Income
Galn on Sale of Capilal Assels
Translers
Tolal Genoral Reventies and Transfers
Change In Nel Assels
Net Assals - Baglnhing
Nei Assels - Ending

The accompanylng notes are an inlegrat part of this staternent.
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EXHIBIT A-2

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes [n Not Assets N

Governmentaf Business-lyps Component
Aclivities Aclivilles _ Tolal Unils
$  (2,339.006) $  (2,339,088)
{6,606,888) {8,086,668)
(2,849,787} (2,849,787}
(1,919,860} {1,919,660)
{169,727) (169,727)
.. {460,439) o (459,439)
(16,195,269) __{i6,195.269)
- 3 3,611,506 3,611,688
- "t {142,362) {142,362)
- 80416 609415
4,168,649 4,168,649
{16,196,268) 4,166,649 (12,024,820)
$  (2,042,132)
2,035,082
792,950
8,687,048 - 8,607,048 -
4,966,842 - 4,905,842 2,482,021
977,643 = 977,643 -
2,019,492 -~ 2,019,492 -
71,052 " 71,952 -
391,682 260,068 842,870 720,777
- 211,781 211,761 1,776
{202,443) (34,926} {237,369) -~
923,767 {823,767} - _ - -
17,634,883 (305, 944) 17,230,839 - 3,205473
1,430,614 3,772,708 6,212,319 3,808,423
48,625,644 34,832,100 83,657,644 35,302,078

S Shamim s 36e0s 5B 90K
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EXHIBIT A3

CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Other Tolal
Qeneyal Gousrnmental Governmsntal
Fund Funds  Funds
ASSETS - -
Cash 3 303,679 $ 153,425 $ 467,104
Investments 3,763,826 3,865,071 7,618,608
Eqully In inveslment pool:
Recelvablas {nel of allowances for uncollectibles):
Taxes 247173 23,852 241,025
Accounis 246,049 - 246,849
Other 606,453 771,829 1,468,282
Interfund loan recelvable 47,824 = 47,824
Due from other govermments 1,012,188 - 1,092,188
Invenlonias 725,139 -- 26,139
Restricled assels:
Investments _2041,004 - 2,041,004
Toftal Assels % 8,344,124 §__ 4 814,177, I 68,301
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liablilttes:
Accounts payable and acorved llablifles $ 1,002,361 $ 358,810 8 1,461,171
Payable from restrcled assels:
Cuslomer daposiis ) 73,472 - 73,872
Defarred ravente 663,700 24,792 706,492
Total Liabilitles 1,848,035 380,802 %1230, 635
Fund balances:
Ressrved Fund Balances
Reserved for Interfund loans 47824 .- 47,824
Ressived for Invenlory 25,139 25,139
Resorved for dehl service -- 760,219 760,218
Resarved for donorfyrenior restrictions -- 207,895 207,896
Unreserved 6,421,228 . 6,421,220
Unreserved, reported In nonmajor funds:
Speciol Revenue Funds - 536,230 636,230
Capllal Projects Funds L 2929230 2,920,280
Total fund bafances 6494191 T 4,438,678 — 10,927,786
Tolal Liabliities and Fund Bafances $_.. 0344124 $ .. 4814177 $_._13,168,301

The accompanylig netes are an infegral part of lhis's!alemenl.
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EXHIBIT A4

CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
RECONGILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Tolal fund balances - goveramental funds balance shest $ 10,827,766
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the stalement of net assels
{PSNAT are different becauss:
Capilal assels used In goveramental activities are not reported In he funds. 47176188
Property taxes recolvable unavaliable to pay for current perlod expenditures are deferred in the funds. 219,814
The assals and liabilites of Inlernal service funds ara included in governmental activitles in the SNA. 597,437
Payables for bond princlpal which aro not dus In the current period ara not reported In the funds. {7,924,076)
Payables for capltal 1sases which are not due In the eurcent perlod are not reported In the funds. (26,648)
pPayables for bond Interest which are not dus in the current pariod are not reporied In tha funds. {90,308)
Payables for notes which ara not due In the current portad are not reported In the funds. (1,444,880}
Payables for compensaled absences \ehich are nol dus In e cugrent parlod are not reported fn the funds. (646,194)
Payables for coniracts which are not due In the currant perod are not reported In the funds. {2,713,165)
Olher long-term liablliles which are not due and payable In the current perlod are not reported in the funds, 176,066
Other long-lerm assels are not avatiable to pay for cusgent-perlod expendifures and are deferred In the funds, 134,600
Gourt fines fecelvahle unavallabla to pay for current perlod expoenditures are deferesd In the funds. 60,871
Ambilance recslvables unavaliable (o pay for currant porlod expendifures are deferred In the funds, 422,867
Lians receivable unavaliable to pay for currant periad expendiluses are delerced in the funds. . 9,287
Eqully In & Jolnt venlure Is not repotted In the funds. _..5300,388

$,__50,265.168,

Nat assels of goveramental aclivitles - statemant of nat assets

The accompanying noles are an Integral part of lhis stalement,
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CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Revanes;
Taxes and penalifes
Licenses and pemils
Intergovernmenial
Charges for semvices
Grants
Fines and forfeilures
interest
Miscellaneous

Tolal revenues

Expandliures;
Currenf:
General governmen!
Public safely
Cullure and recreation
Puablic works
Businass programs
Capital outlay
Deht sorvice:
Principal, Inferest, and fiscaf cherges
Total expendilures

Excass {deficloncy) of revenugs over
(under) expenditures

QOther financing sources {uses).
Transfers in
Transfera out
Progeads from sale of cepital assots
Total othar finaneing sources (uses)
Net change In fund batances
Fund balances, Qclober 1

Fund batancas, September 30

Olher Tofal
General Governmaenial Govarnmental

Fund Funds Funds
5 14604602 8 1850360 & 16,554,052
448,663 42,080 490,703
864,866 71,960 £46,828
1,936,420 1,603 1,637,092
251,908 80,118 341,004
420,075 - 420,076
266,691 126,090 391,681
1,293,649 17,022 1,260,871
0,116,861 2,207,103 _ﬂga,az_“z,gaq.
4,438,106 - 4,282 4,439,368
10,775,434 - 10,775,434
2,247,404 809,841 3,147,335
2,708,372 1,952,474 4,730,848
170,727 -~ 179,727
363,445 - 363,445
e __._bosprs _ B0B8TS
TUU0802678 3840476 | 2444305
{666,717) (1,433,372) (2,120,089)
1,081,092 1,416,740 2,478,632
{1,172,955) (481,486) (1,654,440
45,033 - 33,033
R (78,030) 036,265 657,225
(764,747) {498,117) {1,262,884)
7,268,038 4,931,692 12,190,630
3 e404101 §_ 4433578 §. 10,077,766

The accompanying notes are an Integral parl of this stalement,
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EXHIBIT A-B

CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Net change in fund balances - tolal governmental funds § (1,262,864

Amounts reported for governmenial aclivitles in the statement of activilles
("SOA™ are differant hacause:

Capllat oullays are not reported as expenses in lhe SOA, 2,613,080
The deprecation of caplial assets used in governmenlal activities is not reported In the funds, {1,075,062)
{235,476)

The galn or loss on the sale of capilal assels Is not reported In the funds.

Donations of capltal assets Increase net assels in {he SOA but not in the funds. £34,329

Gertaln properly tax reventies are deferred In the funnds. This Is the changs in these amounts his year. 67,826
funds. 9,208

Revenues In the SOA niot providing current flnanclal resourcos are not reported as rovenues In the
Repayment of bond princlpal Is an expendiluce In the funds hut Is nol an expense in the SOA. 347,439

Repaymen of capltal lease princlpatis an sxpenditure In the funds but is not an expense in the SOA. 9,002
Bond Issuance cosls and slmilar ilams are amortized in the SOA bul not In the funds (13,664)
{Incraase) decreass In accrued Interest from beginning of perod to end of perlod 8,003
‘The net revenue (expense) of nternal sorvice funds Is raported with goveramental aclivitios. (69,362}
Compensaled abssnces ara reported as the amount earned In the SOA bul as the amount paid I the funds, (380,472)
Cortaln fine revenues are deferred In the funds. This 1s the change in these amounts this year. 17,614
Cerlaln ambulance recelvables are deferred in lhe {unds. This Is the change in these amounts this year, 101,828
Change Ia jolnt ventute equily s not reported In Ihe funds, 748,005
Change In landfil postclosure costs is not reported In the finds. _ . farra08)
$ 1489614

Change In net assets of goveramental aclivilles - stalemont of activiftes 40

The accompanying notes are an Integraf part of {his statement.
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CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

ABSETS

Curront Assels:
Cash
Invésiments
Equlty In Invastment pook:
Racelvablas (nst of aflowancss for uncollaclibles):
Accolns
Olher
Dua from ather funds
Dy from olher govomments
Invenloraes
Prepalid assels
‘Tolat Current Assals

Nongurreni assals:
Rastdcted assels:
invasinmonts
Tolal Resldclad Assels

Fropetly, planl and equipment

Land

Bulidings

Improvamenls ofhier than bulidings

Vohfoles

tdachinory and equipmant

Offtee equlupnent

Conslruction In progress
Accumufaled dapractalion

Net Propesty, Plant and Equipment

Defarrad cherges
Tolal Assels
LIABILITIES

Current Liablitlas:
Acceunts payable and acorved lablitles
Aconred compensaled absencos
Duia (o ather funds
Total Cuecanl Llabltles

Current Liabilitles Payable From Restrcted Assals:
Agcrued Inferest payablo
Current poitlon of ravenue bond's payehle
Cusfomer depasits
Tolal Liabllitles Payable from Restricted Assels

Nonctreanl Liabliles
Genaraf obiigation honds
Cerlificalas of obligelion
Stale Infrastructure bank loan
Raventre honds
interfund loan payablo
Total Nencurtent Liabiliios
Total Lialditles

NET ASSETS
Invested In copital assels, net of relaled debt
Roslicled for debl sendco
Unresideled
Tolal Net Assels

$

EXHIBIT A7

§__ WIS 480668

Enterprise
_ Fud
Nonmaloer Total Internal
Water and Enlerprise Enletprise Seivice
Sewet Funds __ Funts Funds
164,809 § 13,704 8§ 175543 $ 47,608
5410762 194,747 5,802,609 718,381
993,980 - 903,068 -
- . . 273,108
121,943 127,043 -
622430 - 622,432 .-
240,926 62,468 203413 29,080
N 2260 2260 L
TUygeegdt | pb5as9 7814033 1063074
167,860 - 757,850, -
767,050 - T 767460 -
439,676 2,000,000 2,430,676 --
$,849,230 1,760,176 8800406 169,000
43,246,248 1,036,197 46,184,985 -
1,286,473 73,841 1,430,314 25,506
§2v.948 368,160 1,196,098 37,967
132,310 - 132,310 -
7,897,068 - 7,897,658 - s01)
(21,912,321 (1,962,073) _ (23,004,399) {207,807
T B8 4088230 43,704,301 14088
126,118 126,418 -
47,189,041 5216419 52,408,360 1,077,030
1,123,493 116,780 1,240,273 466,620
113,784 38,206 162,070 13,605
- 127,943 127048 .o
1257277 283,000 1,620,288 480493
33,122 - 33,122 -
1,081,187 -- 1.081,107 -
166206 - 166206 v
TRAT0EE - 1,270,625 -
3,034,088 - 3,034,085 -
68,183,488 - 6,183,468 -
1,166,210 -- 1,165,216 -
680,163 o 680,163 -
- 47,824 ALO24
10,962,520 37,824 11,010,734, -
T3 AT0,722 350,833 13,801,655 {50,453
26,495,221 4,958,230 31,453,461
603,726 . 603,726 --
6,620,272 (12,844) 6,647,628 807,437

§ 58004805 $____ b97437

Tha accompanying noles are anintegrat part of Iils sfatement,
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EXHIBIT A-8

CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEFTEMBER 30, 2008

Enterprise
_ Fuad
) Nonmajor Total Internal
Waler and Enlerpilse Enterprise Senvice
Sewer Funds Funds  Funde
OPERATING REVENUES: ’ ) '
Gharges for service $ 8,802,617 $ 1,816,026 5 10,118,243 $ 3,676,606
Tolal Opsrating Revenues 8,802,617 1,316,828 10,116,243 3576805 |
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel serviges 2,671,636 937,161 3,608,787 192,657
Repalrs and maintenance 785173 80,382 875,665 112,040
Supplies and malensls 661,900 148,422 800,322 10,446
Ullllites - 634,162 126,281 759,443 7,488
Deprecialion and amortization 1,077,322 203,766 1,261,088 3597
Genoral admintsiration 277,185 (56,631) 221,624 8,068
Clalms oxpanse -- - -- 2,742,601
Administrallon fees e S 732,784
Total Operating Expenses T 8,107,348 T AB0.A4T 7,646,679, 3,807,588
Operaling Income (Loss) 2608260 (i23,845) 2,671,424 (230,963)
NOM-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
interest ingomo : 243,839 7,148 250,008 40,987
Miscellanaous ncone 205,204 6,466 214,180 121,068
Intorgovernmental ravenus 201,511 - 204,611 -
Gainfoss from disposal caplial assels 8,222 (43,147} (34,926) -
interost expense {604,439 {4,108} {608,639) Rl
Tolal Non-operating Revenuos (Expenses) - 164432 (33630 | 12079 | 162,026
Nei Incame (1.0s) bslore Gapltal Conlrbullons ’
and Transfors 2849701 (187.462) 2692219 (68.987)
CAPITAL GONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS: .
Capltal conlribulfons 1,219,250 £886,003 1,004,263 -
Transters in 2,284,742 70,000 2,364,742 -
Transfers out . (3027878) {160,830) {3,176,609) {426)
Total Capltal Conlribullons and i
Transfers _4res3 604473 1080486  (426)
Change In net assels 3,326,014 446,691 3,772,706 {89,362)
Not Assels, October 1 30,398,205 4,438,885 34,832,100 _ 0866798
Net Assels, Seplembar 30 s  a37ie219 § 48860588 §_ 38604808 & (07487

Tha accompanying noles are an integral part of this statlemant,
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CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROFRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

BYHIBIT A-9

Cash Flows from Operattng Aclivities:
Cash Recslved from Customers §
Cash Paymonls fo Employaes for Services
Cash Payments {o Other Suppliers for Goods and Semviges

et Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activitles

Gagh Flows from Non-capltal Finanelng Aclivitles:
Transfars From {Ta) Other Funds
Nat Gash Provided {Used) by Non-caplial Financlng Activities

Cash Flows from Capltal and Related Financlng Aciivities!
Proceads from Issuance of Long-term Dehl
Pdnclpal and Inlerest Pald
Acqulsttion or Construclion of Caplial Assefs
Procesds from Sale of Caplial Assols

Net Cash Provided {Usad) for Capital & Ralated Financing Actlvillet

Cash Flows from hvesting Aotivities:
Proceeds from Selo and Maluritles of Sectirilies
Intersst and Dividends on fvesiments

Net Cash Provided (Used) for invesling Aclivilles

et Increase (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Exulvalents at Bagioning of Year
Cash and Cash Feuivalents al End of Yesr §

Reconolllation of Operating Ingome to Nel Gash
Provided by Operating Activitles:
Qporating Income (Loss) $

Enterptise Funds infetnal
Waler end Olhar Servico
Sewer Funds Totals Funds
9,080,460 $ 1,304,314 § 10,393,704 $ = 3,007,074
(2,616,117) (831,068)  (3,547,173) {191,068)
(1,788,633} (300,443)  (2,086,976) _ (4,208,426)
4,688,880 72,816 4,759,645 (669,010}
. (738188) (213,644) (061,710)  (428)
(738,166} (213,544) {651,710) a5
2,676,000 - 2,676,000 -
(1,376,002) {85817y  {1,460,619) “r
{3:187,073) (10,2268)  (3,167,299) -
g222 87093 98,116 -
(1,846,853) (7,880  [1,865670%) - .
4,034,474 177,049 1,211,623 23,026
. 24n,838 7,149 260,988 40,967
1,278,318 184,188 1,482,611 64,783
3,378,124 35,819 3,413,743 (835,462}
L eferd4r 167,833 2,365,280 1,306,341
6676671 $_ 203,452 $__ 56,779,023 § 760,860

2,005,260 §  (123,845)$ _ 2671424 $__ (230,009)

Adjustmenls o Reconclle Operaling Insome o Net Cash
Provided by Operaling Activiiles

Depracialion
Miscolfangous revanie end axpense

Change In Assels and Liablliles:
Daecreass (Inerease) hy Recefvables
Dacraase {Increase} In mvenfores
Decrease (Increase) In Propald Expenses
Ineraase (Docrease) In Accounts Payable
Inorease (Docroase} In Acerusd Wages Fayable
Increase (Decrease) In Gusfomer Deposiis
Increase (Decrease) n Uneamed Reveitio

Total Adjustments

Mot Cash Provided (Used) by Opsraling Aclvitles $__

Transacilons Not Affecting Cash Flow
Forgiveness of Inferfunt loah by Kerrville EIC

Dovefopar conlrbulfons
$

1,077,322 208,760 4,201,088 3,897
415,027 6,466 421,493 121,080
{190,897} - (190,807) (273,106)
(31,180) (62,468) (83,660) 9,426
- (2,260) (2,260) -
603,037 62,049 655,800 (331 ,442)
66,610 6,095 81,614 1,679
63,621 - 63,621 .

(786) (7,778) _  (18,666) -

1,061,661 188,660 160,220~ (468,847)

4060830 5 72,016 ¢__ 4,760,846 §_(096,810)
- 685,003 $ 686,003 $ -

1219260 .- 1,218,250 .- )

1219250 $__ 606003 & 1904263 & _ --

The accompanylng noles are an Integral part of this stalement,
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CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
Noles fo Basfe Financial Stetements
For the Year Endad Seplember 30, 2008

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.  Reporting Enlity

The Gity of Kerrvills, Texas, was founded in 1889. The City operates under the Gouncil-Manager form of governrent
as adopted by a home rule charter approved February 25, 1942, The Clly provides a full range of municipal services
inchiditg public safaly (police and fire), highway and siraats, parks and recrealion, health and soclal services,
planning and zoning, and general adminisiralive services. In addition, the Cliy provides water and sewer service as a

proprietary funciion of the City,

The accounting policies of the Clly of Kerrville, Texas, conform fo generally accepled accountlng principals Isauad by
the Govaramental Accounting Standards Board which Is the recognized financial accounting standard setling body for
govemmental entiies. The noles to the financlal slatements are an Integral part of the City's general purpose

financial stalements.

Ths Cily of Kerrville is & home rule munlcipality govarned by an elected mayor and a four member Clty Councll who
appalnt a Clly Manager. The Cily's {primary government) financial statements Include its component units, The
accompanylng general purpose financlal statements comply with the provislons of the GASB Statement No. 14, “The
Financial Reporiing Entity,” in that the financlal stalements Include all organizations, activities, functions and
componenl units for which the Cly (the “prAmary government™) Is financially accouniable, Financial accountability is
defined as ihe appolrtment of a vating majorily of a legally separate organization's governing body and elther (1) the
Gliy's abilily to Impose its will over the organization, or (2) the potential that the organization will provide a financial
henefit to or impose a financial burden on the Cliy.

Clscrately Pregented Component Unils

The Karrville Public Utlity Board ("KPUB®) - the electric wlility, an entity legally separale fram the City, Is governed by
a five member board appointed by the Cily Council. For financlal statement purposes, KPUB Is reporled as a
discretely presented compenent unit of tne Clly because It appolnts the governing body, Is potentially obligaled to
finance any deficits that may oceur, and recelves significant franchise faes, Financlal statements may be abtalned
feom the Kerville Public Utilily Board, P.O. Box 911, Kerrvills, Texas 78029, KPUB is presented as a business fund

fype.

The Kervills Economic Improvement Gorporation (EIC), an entlty tegally separate from the Cily, is governad by a
seven member board of directors appolnted by the Cily Council. For financlal stalement purposes, EIC Is reported as
a discretely presented companent unit of the Clty because it appoints the governing body, and is potentiafly obligated
to finance any deficlls. EIC collacts a half cent sales tax lo supporl iis aciivilies. Separate financial statements are

not prapared for EIC.

Join ure

Kerrvile Alrport Jolnt Veniure - The Clly and Ketr Counly {the parlicipanls) operate a municipal aiport under a Joint
venture agreement. Each participant provides financial support and Is entifled fo an undivided 50% Interest in the
physleal property. The City reports lls interest as “Investment In Joint Veniure.”

B. Govemnment-wide and Fund Financiel Statements

The govemment-wide financlal slatements {i.e. the statement of net assets and the slatement of changes In net
assals) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activittes of the primary government and its component unfts, For
the most part, the effect of Interfund activily has been removed from these stalements. Governmental aclivilles,
which nomally are supporled by laxes and Intergovernmental revenues, are reportad separately from business-lype
activities, which rely, to a significant extent, on fees and charges for supporl. Likewiss, the primary government is
reporled separately from certaln lagally separate component units for which the primary government s financially

accountable.

The slatement of activiies demonsirates the dagres to which the direct expenses of a glven funclion or segment are
offset by program revenuss, Direct expenses are those that are clearly idenfifiable with a specific funclion or
segment. Program revenues Include 1) charges to customars or applicants who purchase, use, or direclly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a glven function or segment and 2) grants and contribudions that are
restricted to mesling the operational or capital requirements of a parlicular funclion or segment. Taxes and ofher
ftems not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as genoral ravenues.
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CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
Noles to Basic Financlal Statemenls
For the Year Ended September 30, 2008

Separate financlal statements are provided for governmenta! funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even
though the latter are excluded from the government-wide finandla) statements. Malor individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns In the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presontation

The government-wide financial statemenls are reporiad using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual hasis of accouniing, as are the proprietary fund and fiduclary fund financial statements. Revenues are
racorded when earmned and expanses are recorded when a llabllity s Incurred, regardiess of the timing of refaled cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues In the year for which they are levied. Granls and similar ltems are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligiblity requirements mposed by the provider have besn met.

Govemmental fund financial stalemenls are reported using the current financial resources measurenient focus and
the modifiad accrusl basls of accounting. Revenues are racognized as soen as they are both measurable and
avallable. Revenues are considered to be avallable when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafler to pay Habililies of the current period. For this purpose, the Cily conslders revenues (o be available
If they are collected within 80 days of the end of the cutrent fiscal period. Expendilures generally are racorded when
a liabiflly Is incuired, as under acerual accounting. However, debl service expenditures, as well as expenditures
related to compensated absences and clalms and judgments, are recorded only when payment Is dus.

Property laxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and Intarest associated with the curcent fiscal period are all considered to
be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current flscal period. All olher revenue
itams are considered o be measurable and avallable only when cash is received by the Cily.

The City reporis the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is he City's primary operating fund, it accounis for all financlal resources of the general
government, except those required lo be aceounted for In anolher fund.

The City reports the folloving major proprietary funds:

The Water and Sewsr fund accounts for the provisions of water and sewsr service to the residents of the Gily. All
aclivilles necessary lo provide such services are accounted for in fhis fund, Including, but not mited 1o,
adminisiration, operaliens, maintenance, financing and relaled debt service, and billing and collection.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund lypes:
Special Reventie Funds account for the coltection and disbursement of earmarked monies.

Debt Service Funds account for the accumutation and use of properly and sales tax revanue to mest the debt
servica requlrements of the Cily's general and revenue bonded debt.

Capital Projects Fund account for the acquisition or construction of governmental capital assels.

Internal Service Funds account for automotive maintenance facilily operations, and amployees heallh insurance
services provided to olher departments or agencles of the Clty.

As a general ruls the effect of Interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financlal statements.
Exceplions to this general rule are adminisirative fees and other charges between the Cily's water and wastewaler
function and various ofher functlons of the GHy. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues reported for the various functfons concerned.

Amounts reported as pragram revenues Include 1) charges to customers or applicanis for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contribulions, and 3} capital grants and contibutions, including special
assessments, IMernally dedicated resources are raported as general reventies ralher than as prograrm revenues.
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes, miscellaneous revenue, and interest income,

Proprietary funds distlinguish operaling revenues and expenses from norioperaling items. Operaling revenues and -

expenses ganerally result from providing services and producig and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal engolng operations. The principal operaling ravenues of the Water and Sewer, Kervilte
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Schralner Park, and Golf Course enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The enterprise
ulility fund also recognizes as oparaling revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting
new customers to the system. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administralive expenses,
and depreclation on capital assets, Afl revenues and expenses not meeiing this definition are repored as

nonoperaling revenues and expenses.
Use of FASB Pronounce s in Enferprise Fun

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporiing issusd prior fo December 1, 1989, generally are
followsd In both the government-wide and propristary fund financial statements to the extent thal thosa standards do
not conflicl with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounling Standards Board. Governmsnis also have
the oplfon of following subssquent privale-sector guldance for thelr business-lyps activities and enterprise funds,
subject to this same limitation. The Chy has elected not to follow Financial Accounting Slandards Board ("FASE")
stalemenis and interpretations issued after November 30, 1089 for its business-type and enterprise fund activilies.

. Assels, Liabililles, and Net Assets Or Equity

1. Deposits and Investments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposils, and shor-term
Investments with original maturilies of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments maturing within one year of date of purchase are stated at cost or amortized cost; all other
investmants are stated at fair value, Falr value Is defined as the amount at which & financlal instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction belween willing parlles, olher than In a forced or liquidation sale. All
nvestment income 1s recognized In the appropriate fund's slatement of activity and or statement of revenuas,
expenditures and changes in fund balance.

State law and the Clly's Invesiment policy restrict bolh thme and demand daposits, including cerlificates of
deposit {*CD"), to those deposllories dolng business In the Stale of Texas and further requires full Jnsurance
andfor pledging of collateral, CDs are limited to a stated malurity not excseding one year, Pledged collateral,
equal 1o not less than 102% of tha covered account balance, is limited {o obligations of the U.S, Government, lls
agencles or Instrumentalifies and municipal obligations rated nof less than AA or equivalent by two nafienatly
recognized rating agencles. Independsnt safekaeping Is required oulslde the pledging bank's holding company
with monthly reporting, Securiles are monliored and priced at market on a dally basis as a contractuat

responsibility of the depository.

Stats law and the Cily's Investment polioy limit repurchase agresments to those with defined termination dales
execited with & Texas bank or & primary dealer (as defined by the Federal Reserve). The agreemenis require
an Induslry standard, vaitten master repurchass agresment and & minimum of 102% margin on coltateral as well
as delivery versus payment selilement and independent safekeeping. Rapurchase agresmsnis may not exceed
one year to stated maturity,

Slate law and the Cily's investment policy require commerclal paper be rated A1/P1 or equivalent by two
natlonally recognized rating agencles and restricts maturity to a maximum malurity of six (6) months.

Slate law and the Clty's investment polioy reslrict investment In SEG reglstered mulual funds fo money market
mutual funds striving to maintain a $1 net asset value as further defined by State faw, A rating of the mutuat fund

is not reguired.

Stale law requires that locat government Invesiment pools be rated AAA, or equivalent, by at least one nationally
recognized rating agency. The Clly investment policy further restrcts Investments fo AAA rated, “2a-7 like”
(constant dollar} local government investntent pools,

2. Recelvables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representalive of lencling/borcowing arrangenents oulstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are refarred to as either "due to/from other funds” {i.e., the current portion of inter fund loans} or
sadvances loffrom other funds” (L.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other oulstanding balances
belween funds are reporied as “due loffrom ofther funds.” Any resldual balances outstanding between the
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governmental activities and business-lype aclivities are reported in the government-wide financial stafements as
“internat balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financia! stalements, are offsel by a fund balance reserve
account in applicable governmental funds fo Indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not
expendable available financlal resources.

All trade recalvables are shown nel of an allowance for uncolleclibles. Trade accounts receivable In excess of
60 days comprise the trade accounts receivable aflowance lor uncolfectibles.

Properly taxes are levied on October 1 by the City based on the January 1 propedy values as assossed by the
Kerr County Cenleal Appraisal Disticl. Taxes are due without penalty unlil January 31, of the next calendar year.
After January 31 the Clly has an enforceable llan wilh respect to both real and parsonal properly. Under slate
law, property taxes levied on real propedy constilule a perpsiual llen on the real properly which cannot be
forgiven withoul specliic approval of the Stale Leglslature, Taxes applicable to parsonal property can be deemed
uncollectible by the Cily,

Inventories and Prepald llems

All fnventories are valued at cost using the walghted average cost mathod. The consumplion method is used o
account for govaramental fund type Inventorles. Under the consumptlion methad, inventories of governmenlal
funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather (han when purchased.

Certaln paymenis to vendors reflect costs applicable to fulure accounting perieds and ara recorded as prepald
items in bolh governmenti-wide and fund financlal statements.

Restricled Assels

Certaln pracaads of enterprise fund revenue bonds are classified as resticled assets on the balance sheet
bacause thelr use is limited by applicable bond covenanls. Customer depasils are also resticted.

Capital Assels

Capilal assets, which Include property, plant, equipment, and infraslnuclure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sldewealks, and stmilar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type aclivities colurmus in
the govemment-wide financial stalements. Capilal assets are defined by the Gily as assels with an inilial,
individual cost of more than $5,000 {amount not rounded). Such assels are recorded at historical cost or
eslimated histotical cost if purchased or constructed, Donated capltal assels are recorded at estimated fair
market value at the dale of donation.

The cosls of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assel or materially exlend
assets lives are not capiialized.

Major oultays for capital assefs and Improvements are capitalized as projects are conslructed. Interest Incurred
during the canslruction phase of capltal assels of business-type activilies Is Included as part of the capitalized

value of the assels constructed.
Contributions of fixed assets to proprietary funds from external sources are recorded as revenus.

Property, plant, and equipmanl of the primary governmant Is depreciated using the straight line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Bulldings 30 vears
Insprovements other than building 40 years
System Infrastruciure 40 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Office equipment 10 years
Vehiclas 8 years
Dralnage 50 years
Streals N/A - use modifisd approach parmilted by GASB-34
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In the case of lhe initial capilalization of general infrastricture assels {le., streels and storm water drains), the
City chose to include all such llems regardiess of their acqulsition date or amount. The Clly was able lo gslimate
the historical cost for the Initlal reporting of these assets through back trending (i.e., estimating he current
replacerent cost of the Infraslruciure fo be capitallzed and using an appropriate price-leve! index to defiate the
cost 1o the acquisition year or estimated acquisition year). As the Gity constructs or acquires additfonal capital
assets each year, including Infraslucture asserls, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost.

The Gily has adopled the modified approach for ils streels system of capital assels. As a resulf, the Cily has
made a commitment lo preserve and malntain its streets system at certain condition {evels determined by the
Cily. The ity Councll is responsible for determining the appropriala condition level at which such assets are to
be maittained. No depreciation expense s reported for such assels, nor are amounts capitalized In conneclion
vilh improvements that lengthen the lives of such assels, unless the Improvements also Increase lhelr service
polential, The Clly maintaing an Inventory of the sirgels systsm and performs periodic condition assessments
astablish that the predetermined condilion levef is being malntained. The City makes annual estimates of the
amounts that must be expended to preserve and malntain (he strests system at the predefermined conditlon

level,

‘The KPUB ulillty plant, purchased from the Lower Colorado River Authorlty (“LGRA®), has been recorded al the
orlginal cost of the asset as recorded by LGRA, Accumulated depreciation includes amounts recorded by LCRA
tirough the date of acquisition and depreclation since the dale of acquisttion, Ullily plant additions subsequent
to the acquistifon are recorded at cost. Cost includes the costs of contracted services, direct materals, labor,
overhead and an allowance for borrowed funds used during construction. Relirements of uiility plani, together
with removal costs less salvage, are charged to accumulated depreciation.

KPUB computes depracialion using the straight-line method over the estimated servica lives of the various
classes of depreciable properly. Rates will be changsd as needed based upon period enginesring studies.
Dapreciation as a percantage of average depreciable plant was 3.8 percent for the year ended Seplember 30,

2008.
6. Compansaled Absences

Vested or acoumulated vacallon leave that is accrued when Incurred In the government-wide and propritary
fund Fnancial statemants. A liability for these amounts Is reported n the governmental funds only if they have
malured, for example, as a result of employes resignations or retiramants.

7. Long-term Obligalions

in the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund lype in the fund financial statements, long-
term debt and other long-tarm obligations are reported as liabilities In the appllcable goveramental activities,
business-typa aclivities, or proprietary fund type sfaterment of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as welt
as issuance cosls, are deferred and amorlized over the life of the bonds using the stealght line melhod which
approximate the effective tnlarest melhod. Bonds payable are reporled net of the applicable bond premium or
discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amorlized over the term of the refaled
debt.

In the fund financial stalements, goveramental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as
bond Issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issuad is reported as other financing
sources. Promiums recelved on dabt issutances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
fssuances are reported as other flnancing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the acluat debl
proceeds recelved, are reported as debt service expendliures.

8. Fund Equity

In the fund financial slatements, governmentat funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts tiat are not
avallable for appropriation or are legally resiricted by oulside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designalions
of fund balance rapresent tontative management plans that are subject to change.

9. Raclassifications

Gertaln amounts presented in the prior year dala have hean raclassified in order lo be conslstent with the current
year's presentation.

50



CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
Noles to Basle Financial Stalemenls
Forthe Year Ended September 30, 2008

II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. Deposits and Investments

Cash

Al year end, the carrying amount of the City's cash on hand and deposils was $1,482,4185 (including restdcled cash
of $19,958). All of the bank balance was covered by federal depesit insurance and collateral pledged by the

depaository in thie City's name and held by the Cily’s agent.

Invesiments

The Cly's investments are cafegorized Into these three calegories of credli risk: (1) Insured or reglstared, or
securiies held by the Clty or ils agent in the Cily's name, (2} uninsured and unreglstered, with securities held by the
counlarparty’s trust department or agent In the Cily's name or 3) uninsurad and unregistered, with securities held by
the counterparly, or by its trust depariment or agent but nol in he Cily's name. Al year end the Cily's investments

ware:
Carmying Falr Walghted Average Credit
Investmont Type Amount Value iaturily {Years) Raling
LS Agencles
FNMA $ 2002042 $§ 2,992,042 1.10 AAA
FHNDN 095,729 985,720 0.17 AAA
FMCDN 997,638 997,638 010 AAA
FHLB 2,000,000 2,000,000 1.39 AAA
Cormmercial Paper 994,000 994,000 0.20 ARt
Cotlificates of Deposit 3,015,596 3,016,598 0.30 AAA
TexPool Local Gevernment Pool 7,179,836 7,179,836 0.12 AAAmM
TexSTAR Local Government Pool 3,912,501 3,912,501 0.09 AAAM
Accrued interest 36,678 36,579
Total Fair Value 22,123,921 22,123,921
Pool Parliclpants Excludad from Primary Governmeant
Less: Joint Venture {Alrport JV) (618,313) (618,313)
Lass: DCU {Karrville EIC) (4,772,081) {4,772,081)
Total Falr Value - Primary Government $ 16,733,627 $ 16,733,527
034

Porlfolto weighted average malurily

The Texas State Gomptroller of Public Accounts exerclses oversight responsibliily over the Texas Local Governmant
Investment Poo! ("TexPool’). Oversight includes the ability to significantly influence operallons, designation of
management and accountabiiity for fiscal inatters. Additionally, the State Complrolter has established an advisory
board composed both of particiants in TexPool and of other persons who do not have a business relationship wilh
TexPool. The Advisory Board members review lhe investment policy and management fee struclure. Finally,
TexPool Is rated AAA by Slandard and Poars, TexPool operates In a manner consistent with the Securlly and
Exchange Commissian's Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Acl of 1940. As such, TexPool uses amortized cost
to report net assets and share prices slnce that amount approximates falr value,

Texas Short Term Asset Reserve Program {*TexSTAR") and Local Government lnvestment Gooperalive (LOGIC)
opersle In a manner consistent with the SEC's Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, to the extent such
rile Is applicable to its operations. Accordingly, TexSTAR and LOGIC use the amortized cost method permitted by
SEC Rule 2a-7 to report net assets and share prices since that amount approximates fair value. The Inveslment
activitles of TexSTAR and LOGIC are administered by third party advisors. There Is no regulatory oversight by the

Stale of Texas over TexSTAR and L.OGIC.

Concenteatlan of Credit Risk. — The Clly's invesiment pollcy recognizes thal over-concentration of assefs by market
sector or maturily as a risk to the portfolic. Diversificatlon Is & major object of the investment program. The
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investmant policy has established limils for concentration by market sactor as shown belov:

Interest Rate Risk — In order to imit Interesl and marke
maximum stated maturity date
Longer malurities may be ulitize

Custodial Gredit Risk ~ Deposils. in the case of time and
failure, the Gity's deposils may not be returned to fl.
Dspositery Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance an
City's depository In the City's name and held by the depository's agent.

Cuslodlal Cradit Risk — Investments.
counterparty, the Gity may not be able to recover the value of its Inve
possession of an oulside party.

Receivables

Recslvables as of year-end for the governmel
aggregate, including the applicable allowances

of two years, with an average welighte
d for bond proceeds, but enly If matched (o plann

i rate risk from changes In Inlerest rates, the City has set a

d maturity of 90 days for {he total porifolio.
ad expendilures of the funds.

demand deposits, this is the risk that In the event of a bank
The Clly requires all deposiis to be covered by Federal
dior ba collateralized by qualiiied securilies pledged by the

Eor an Investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the

stments or collateral securities that are in the

nt's Individual major funds and nonmajor, and fiduciary funds In the
for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Governmental Business-iype
Other
Nonhmajor Total Water and {nternal
Genaral  Governmental Governmental Sawer Service
Taxes racelvable $ 255498 § 26,061 § 283,559 $ - $ -
Allowances for
uncollectible taxes (38,325) {4,209) {42,534) - -
2171473 23,862 241,025 - -
Accounts receivable 420,684 - 420,604 1,142,668 -
Altowance for
uncallectible accounts __{182,735) - (182,736) _ (148,702} -
246,949 - 246,949 903,966 -
Other recslvables 943,133 771,829 1,714,862 - 273,105
Allowancas for
uncoliectible accounts __(246,680) - (246,680} - -
695,453 771,829 1,468,282 - 273,105
Due from othar gov't. 1,012,188 - 1,012,188 - -
Total $2,472,763  § 795881 $2968444 $ 093966 § 273,105

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with recealv

be avallable to liquidate liablites of the current period, Governmen

connection with resources that have been received, but nol yel earned.
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Deferred Unearned
Major Funds
Detinquent properly taxes recelvable (General Fund} $ 198,022 $ -
Antbulance revanue recelvable (General Fund) 422,857 -
Municipal court fines recelvabla (General Fund) 50,971 -
Miscallanaous grants {General Fund) 4,297 2,553
' 681,147 2,663
Noamejor Funds
Detinquent properly taxes recelvablo (Debt Service Fund) 21,792 -
Tolal defercediuneamed ravanua for governmentsl funds $ 70293% § 2,553
C. Capilal assels
Capital assef activlly for the year ended Seplember 30, 2008 was as folfows:
Primary Government
Transfe:s and
Balance Gompleted Balance
9130/2007 Addlions Rebiremenls Conslauclion 2/30/2608
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Capilal assels, not being depreclaled:
Land $ 2,283,843 ] 226,855 $ - $ - $ 25610608
Slreets 18,499,953 690,049 - 2,588 19,192,688
Consleuction in prograss 10,428,448 1,983,112 {233,858) {583,225) 11,694,476
Tota! capltal assels nol being depreclated 31,212,242 2,900,018 (233,858) (580,639} 33,297,781
Capltal assets, being depreciated
Bulidings $,488,080 137,628 {24,540) 680,639 9,182,267
Improvements other than buildings 7.410,718 108,944 - - 7,579,862
Vehicles 6,411,983 395,444 {611,601) - 5,199,836
Machiery and equipment 1,633,783 75,234 {123,075} o 1,585,042
Tolal capifal assels boing deprecialed 22,945 4484 781,250 (760,656) 580,634 23,648,797
Less accumulaled depreciation for:
Buildings {4,208,804) {254,635) - 3,401 (4,480,038}
Improvements other than buildings (978,028) {212,847) u - {4,180,876)
Vehlcles (2,782,818) (506,498) 416,004 - {2,873,310)
#achinery and equipment (1,148,425) {101,184) 102,039 2522 (1,144,146)
Total acctmulated depreciation (9,118,175} (1,675,062} 518,943 5,923 (8,868,371)
Tolal caplial assets being depreclated, ret 13,827,289 (283,812) (241,613} 588,662 13,878,426
Govemmental activilies capital assels, nat $ 46,038,601 $ 2605204 § {(475471) § 5023 5 47,176,187

Although Included wilh governmental capital assets on Exhibit A-1, capilal assets of the garage interaat service fund
are delalled below:
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Balance Balance
9/30/2007 Addtions Retlremenls 91302008
GOVERNMENTAL ACGTIVITIES:
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS!
Capilal assels, belng deprecialed
Buiidings $ 159000 § - $ - $ 159,000
Vahicles 26,556 - - 25,566
Machinery and equipment 37,968 - - 37,966
‘Fotal capllal assets belng depraclatad 222,622 - - 222522
t.ess accumulated depraciation for:
BuildIngs (159,000) - - {169,000)
Vehicles (15,336} {2,314) - {17,650)
Machinery and equipment {29,733) {1,283} - {31,016}
. Tatal accumulated depreciation ’ {204,060) {3,687} - {207 ,668)
Govemmantal aclivities caplial assels, net 3 18453 8§ {3,607 § - $ 14,856
Transfers end
Balanco Compleled Batance
9/30/2007 Addtions Rellrements GConstreclion 9/30/2006
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES!
Capilal assels, not belng depracialed:
Land $ 2439578 $ - 3 - $ - § 2,439,676
i Conslauction In progress 4,920,149 3,300,636 - (#22,120) 7,897,658
|
1 Tolal capltal assels not bolng dapraciated 7,359,725 3,308,630 - {422,127} 10,337,234
; Capilal assels, belng depreciated
Bulidings 8,593,674 15,731 - - 8,609,405
Improvemenls other than bulldings 43,618,672 1,243,688 - 422127 45,184,385
Vehicles 1,288,124 136,216 (85,026) - 1,330,314
Hachirery and equipment 1,262,558 138,918 (205,378) - 1,198,008
Office squipment 132,319 - - - 132,319
Tola! capilal assels balng deprecialed 54,795,247 1,534,560 (290,403) 422,127 56,461,521
Less accumulated depreciatioh for:
Buildings (2,107.761) (236,727) . - (2,343,488)
Improvements other than bulldings (18,481,653} (803,319) - . (19,284,872)
Vehlcles (624,287} {125,104) 82,447 - {666,044)
Machinery and equipreent {847,360} (98,680) 162,230 - (783,840)
Offica equipment {112,880} (2,370) - - (115,260)
Tolal accumulated depreclation (22,073,871) {1,285,200) 244,677 - (23,084,394}
Tolal capllal assets belny deprecisted, net 32,721,376 288,350 {46,720) 422 12¢ 33,367,127
Businass-type activities capital assels, net § 40081101 $ 3,068,960 ¢ (46,726) $ - $ 43,704,381
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Depreciation expense was charged to functionsfprograms of the primary government as follows:

Public safely 408,864
Gulture and recesation 107,869
Public works 175,619

§ 1,075,062

Business-type Aclivilles

Water and sever oparations s  1,0681434
Keirvitla-Schrelner Park 82,707
Goif course 141,059

: $ 1,266,200

e

intetnal Service Fund:
Garage fund $ 3,587

Conslrugtion commiments

The Cily has numerous active construction projscts as of Seplember 30, 2008. The projects Includs street, bullding,
and slorm dralnags conslruction, park improvements, waler system Improvements, and sewer system improvements.
‘These improvements are bsing pald with bond procssds, EIC contributions and fnfernaily ganerated sources.

Spent to Remaining Tolal |
Date Commitment Commilment
Governmental Aclivitles:
Dralnage .
Burleson Street Of-Site Drainage 11,802 5114 17,016

$ 11,902 % 5114 § 17,016

Business-fype Aclivitles

Waler System
Ridgewood Elevated Storage Tank $ 2028451 § 36714 § 2,059,165
Ridgoewood Southeast Transmisslon Ling - 165,000 165,000
Sewar System -
Belt Filter Replacemant 3,067 8,100 11,157

$ 2026508 § 208,814 ' § 27235322
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Balance Balance
0/30/2007 Addtions Rellrements 03012008

Kpug
Capltal assels, not being deprecialad:

Land § 147,656 & - 3 - $ 117,656

Construction In progress 2,656,267 2,738,370 (3,646,000) 1,648,637

Tolal capltal assaels not being deprecialed 2,672,913 2,738,370 {3,645,890} 4,766,283
Capital assets, being depreciated

Distrdulion system 40,704,880 3,261,663 (356,114) 43,610,319

Buildings and equipment 4,004,400 194,466 (86,038) 4,172,828

Transporiation equipment 1,708,711 161,161 (80,850) 1,717,022

Olher 46,802 48,974 - 694,776

Tolal capital assels belng deprecialed 47,121,793 3,606,154 {533,002} 50,194,845
Less sccumulated depreciation for:

Distribution system {16,330,095) {1,784,130) 400,316 {19,713,909)

Buildings and equipment {2,473,234) {125,289) 88,038 (2,512,485}

‘fransportation aquipment {691,087) (114,262) 90,850 (714,469}

Other (264,805) (25,958) - (280,563)
Fotal accumutated depreciation {21,748,991) {2,049,638) 577,204 {23,221,426)
Total capilal assels being depractatad, net 25,372,802 1,666,616 44,202 26,073,619

Business-lype activilies capltel assels, net $ 28045716 § 4205886 § (3,801.786) $ 28,739,812

KPUE uses a composite rate to depreciate lis investment in the elecidc plant. The composile rale was 3.6% for the
year ended September 30, 2008,
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D. interfund receivables, payables, loans, and transfers

Interfund recelvables and payahles

Interfund Interfund
Fund Receivable Payable
Dua From/Te Other Funds
Water and Sewer Fund $ 127943 § -
Nonmajor business type funds - (127,943)
$ 127,943 §  (127,943)

The interfund receivable and payabls listed above was nacessary to prevent a cash deficit in the Golf fund at the end
of the fiscal year.

Duiring the year EIC forgave a loan to the Golf Course Fund (approximalely §685,003 which was classified as an
operating grant and contribution). The loan between the General Fund and the Golf Course Fund malures in May of
2008, The original balance was $350,000 at an interest rate of 2.5% additional detalls are in the following table:

Qriginal
Maturnity Loan Interest Annual Gurrent
Dua To Dale Balance Rate Paymsnis Balance
Genaral Fund May, 2009  $ 350,000 250% § 47824 § 47,824
Interfund transfers
Transfers
In Qut
Governmental activilies:
General Fund $ 1061892 § (1,172,955)
Nonmajor governmental funds 1,416,740 {481,485}
Business-iype activilles:
Water and Sewer Fund 2,284,742 (3,027,679}
Nonmajor business-typs funds 70,000 (160,830}
interna! service funds - (425)
§ 4,833,374 § (4,833,374}

Eliminations — \nterfund transfers are reporied In the governmental aclivities and husiness-type activilies fund
financial stalements. In the Government-Wide Statements, interfund transfers are eliminated within the governmentat
activitiss column and within the business-lype column.

Purpose of Transfars - Inferdund transfers batween the general fund and the nonmajor governmental funds relate to

the funding of capital projects. The same is true within the water and sewer funds. However, the water and sewer
fund also provides an administrative transfer to the general fund for indirect administrative costs.
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E. Long-term dabt
The Cily of Kerrville Issues general obligation bonds, certificates of obligallan bonds, contractual obllgation bonds and
notes lo provide funds for the acqulsition and construction of major capital facllities. General obligation bonds have

been Issued for both govemmental and business-lype aclivities. These issues are direct obligations and pledge the
full faith and credit of the Cily.

General Debt Currenlly Outstanding:

Average
Criginat Year of Final Antual interesl Balance
Pumpose Amount lssue Maturity Payment Rate §/3012008
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE ACTIVITIES DEBT
Geheral Obligatfon Bonds:
Improvaments $ 2,058,650 2007 2022 § 274425 4.00% $ 2,846,625
_ 254652
Certificates of Obligation:
Improvements 6,675,000 2002 2022 564,260 3.25%- 5.00% 3,219,675
improvements 2,035,000 2007 2027 153,500 4.00% - 4.20% 2,035,000
B, 254,676
7,900,160
State Infrastruciure Bank Loan 1,650,000 2007 2027 115,000 4.10% 1,408,486
Tolal Govemmental Type Activitles Debt 0,398,586
BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITES DEBT
Gpneral Ohligation Bonds:
tmprovements 5 3313350 1695 2007 & 341,900 4.25%- 540% § 3,209,476
Refunding Revenue Bonds
Rafunding 3,313,350 1698 20080 § 594,300  426%-47% 1,135,000
Cettificales of Obllgation:
Improvements 8,325,000 2002 2022 644,260 3.26%-6.00% 4,016,426
Improvemtents 2,675,000 2008 2022 233,350 T 833% 2,675,000
8,600,425
Stale Infrastruclure Hank Loan 1,550,000 2007 2027 92.300r 4.10% 1,208,466
Total Bustnass Type Aclivities Debt 12,333,350
Total Primary Government Long-Term Debt $ 24,731,942
B
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Averags
Qriginal Year of Final Annera] Interost Balance |
Purpose Amount Issue Malurily Paymsnl Rata 013072008 '
KePUB
Revenun Bonds
Refunding § 23,415,000 2001 2044 $ 2620400 3.75%-6.25% § 13,080,000
Net unamoriized bond premium 437,288
Unamortized loss on refunding {521,089)
Total Discrete Component Uit Long-Term Debl § 12,976,198
Average
Onginat Year of Finat Annual Interest Balanca
Pumpose Amaunt lssue Matusily Payment Rata 97130/2008
KERRVILLE ECONOMIC IMPROVEMENT GORPORATION
Ravenue Bonds
Improvements $ 5,350,000 1999 2014 § 240,450 4.05%-465% $ 2615000
Annual debt service requirements to malurily for general debt:
GOVERNMENT WIDE
Duse Fiscal
Year Ending Govarnmental Activities Business-ypse Activilios
Seplember 30, Principal Interest Princlpal Inlerast Tolal
2009 $ 455876 § 515648 § 1,081,197 § 535,149 $ 2,687,670
2010 451,225 499,744 1,169,620 440,539 2,558,128
2011 474,088 471,034 615,801 402,373 1,969,386
2012 492,046 456,049 642,237 376,247 1,946,679
2013 515,101 433,281 673,662 347,899 1,969,943
2014 - 2018 2,860,670 1,662,068 3,837,057 1,234,067 9,603,862
2019 - 2023 4,073,091 486,665 3,977,654 431,763 7,959,173
2024 - 2027 976,889 91,844 336,038 35,137 1,439,808
$ 0308586 $ 4619434 § 12333356 $ 3,803,164 § 30,154,540
KPUB
Dug Fiscal
Year Ending
Septembar 30, Principal interest Total
2003 $ 2005000 $ 614,776 § 2,618,776
2010 2,085,000 518,741 2,603,741
20114 2,185,000 400,066 2,604,066
2012 2,295,000 294,009 2,589,009
2013 2,418,000 171,806 2,586,806
2014 . 2,065,000 54,208 2,118,206

$ 13,080,000 §  2,062603 § 16122603

59




CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
Noles {o Basic Flnancial Stalements
Forthe Year Ended Seplember 30, 2008

Kersvllie Economic Improvement Corperation

Due Fiscat
Year Ending
September 30, Pringipal Interest Total
2009 $ 390,000 $ 108,035 § 499,935
2010 405,000 82,538 497,639
2011 .425,000 73,858 498,858
2012 446,000 54,066 499,066
2013 465,000 33,248 498,248
2014 455,000 11,276 498,276
$ 2516000 § 374,922 § 2,980,022
Capital Lease Obligations
Year Year Manthly interest Balance
Puipose Cost Acquired  Matures Paymant Rate 0/30/2008
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE ACTIVITIES DEBT
Gily
Heavy equipment $ 707398 2003 2009 s 852 4.00% § 25843
Due Flscat
Year Ending Government
Seplamber 30, Activitles
2009 3 26,278
1.ess interest (635)
§ 25,843
j— . —]

During the year ended September 30, 2008, the following changes occurred In labilities reported In the general fong-

term debt account group:

Seplember 30, Ssptember 30, Due Wilhin
Description 2007 Additlons Relirenmenls 2008 One Year
Govarnmontal activities:

General obligation bonds $ 2,656,650 § - $ (11,128) 3% 28456258 8 11,125
Cenificatas of obligation 5,430,376 . {284,800) 5,254,670 300,626
Tolat bonds payablo 8,196,026 - {296,925) 7,800,100 402,060

Bond premium/discount {31.811) - 1,961 (29,650) -

Daferced amount on refunding (189,014) - 8,948 {179,056) -
Net bonds payable 7,975,400 - (284,016) 7,601,384 402,060
State infrastruciure bank loan 1,550,000 - {61,614) 4,408,486 53,626
Capllal fease obligation 34,645 - (9,002) 25,643 25,643
Compensated absences 257,423 981,122 (579,486) 659,059 859,069

Landfil closura and posiclosure costs 2,435,656 271,499 . 2,713,165 -
§ {2253124 § 1268621 § (9md.018) § 1 2,687,727 § 1,140,378
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September 30, September 30, Due Within
Dascripion 2007 Additlons Raliremenis 2008 One Year

Business-type activities
General obligation bonds $ 3,313,350 §$ - $ {13.876) $ 3,208475 § 13,875
Cerlificates of obtigaiion 4,370,626 2,675,600 {355,200) 6,690,425 469,075
Revenus bonds 1,665,000 - {530,000} 1,135,000 655,000

Tolat bonds payabls 9,348,978 2,675,000 (899,076} 11,124,900 1,037,950
Bond premium/discount (80,796) ’ - 3,606 {67,094) -
Deferred amount on refunding (245,044) - 12,897 (232,147) -

Net bonds payable 9,043,141 2,675,000 (982,482) 10,835,659 1,037,950
State Infraslructore bank loan 1,260,000 - {41,643) 1,208,457 43,247
Compensaled absences 90,456 198,657 {137,042) 152,071 152,071

$ 10283607 § 2873857 § (1.061087) & 12196187 § 1,233,268

For the governmental aclivilies, clalms and judgmenls and compensated absences are generally liquidated by the
general fund.

" IV. OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk Managemanl

The Gily is exposed to various risks of loss refating to general Habllily, the accidental loss of real and personal
praperty damags to Clly assels, errors and omissions and personal risks which relate lo workers' componsation.
The Gily pariicipates in the Texas Munlcipal League Inlergovernmental Risk Pool. As an Insured, the City ls not
obligated {o reimbusse the pool for logses. Any losses reported but unseltled or fncurred and not repotted, are
helleved fo be Inslgnificant lo the Gily's ganeral purpose financlal staterenls.

The City provides health care benefits fo eligible employaes. Tha Cily contributes 100 percent per month for
each participant towards the premlums for employee coverage, The participants conldbute 30 percent per
month hrough payroll deductions towards the premiums for dependent coverage. All funds are deposited into
{he internal service fund oul of which administrative fees, Insurance premiums, and health claims, up to carlain
llmits, are pald. The Gily s prolected against unanficipaled catastrophic Individual losses by a stop-loss limit on
individual claims of $70,000 and an aggregate stop loss Hmit of $1,940,121,

Because the Cily met its aggregale stop-loss limit In the fiscal year ended Seplember 30, 2008, there was no
unfunded claim obligation at year-end. The change In clalm liability for the fiscal years ended September 30,
2008 and 2007, are as follows:

September 30, Septeinber 36,
2008 2007
Claims payable beginning of year 3 385742 S 598,425
Claims incurred 3,493,023 1,322,928
Payment on claims 3,432,589 {1,535,611)
Claims payable end of year $ 446176 & 385,742

Commercial insurance Is purchased for the other risks of losses to which the Cily Is exposed. There have baen
no significant reductions in insurance covarage and settiement amounts have not exceeded Insurance coverage

for the current year or he {wo prior years.
B. Closure and Postclosure Care Cosls

State and federal laws and regulalions require that the Cly place a final cover on its fandfill when closed and
perform certaln mairtenance and monitoring functions at the landflli site for thirty years after closure. In addilion
to operating expenses refaled lo current aclivities of the land(il, an expense provislon and relaled liability are
being recognized based on the fulure post closure care costs that will be Incurred near or after the date the
landfill no lenger accepls waste, The recognition of the landfill post closure care cost Is based on the amount of
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e landfil used during the year, The estimated Habtlily for fandfll post closure care costs was $2,713,155 as of
September 30, 2008, which is based on 84% usage (flledy of the landfll, 1t is estimated that an addilional
$1,599,636 will be recognized as post closure care expanses belween the date of {he balance sheet and the
dalte the tandfill is expected to be filled to capacity (2016). The estimated total current cost of the landfill post
dosure cara ($4,312,701) Is based on the amount that would ba paid If all equipment, facilities, and savices
required to close, monltor, and maintaln the landfil were acquired as of September 30, 2008, However, the
actual cost of clostre and posiclosure care may be higher due to inflation, changes in technology, or changes In

landiill laws and regulations.

The City has contractually obligated the landfill operalor to bear the cost of the fandfill closure. The Clly monlitors
the closure costs meets the financlal assurance requirements noted below.

The Cily's financlel assurance requiremsnts for closura and post closure care costs are being met through the
financtal test spacified in TAC §37.271 (refating to Local Government Financlal Test).

C. Conlingent Liabilitles and Coramitments

Amounts recelved or recalvable from grantor agencies are subject fo audit and adjustment by such agencies.
Any disallowed elaims, Including amounts already collected may constitute a liabllity of the applicable funds. The
amounts, if any, of expenditures which may bhe disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time
although the Cily expacts such amounts, if any, to ba immaterial

The Cily Is a parly in various lawsuiis. Athough the outcome of these lawsulls s not presently determinable, it is
the opinfon of the Cily's management that the rasolution of these mallers will not have a material adverse effect

on the financlal condillon of the City.

The Gity confracts for garbage disposal with a third party. Under the terms of ihe agreement the city bills and
collacts the residential billing and remits that amount to the contracling parly. The conlractor bills the commercial
customers and remils a franchise fee to the Cily based on total revenuss raceived from the contract.

D. Employee Refirement Systems and Pension Plans
The City and KPUB participate in the Toxas Munlcipal Retirement Systemn

Plan Usscription - The Clly provides pensfon banefils for all of its full-time employees (except firefighters)
through a nontradilional, joint contributory, hybrid defined benefil plan In the stale-wide Texas Municipal
Retirernant System {TMRS), one of over 774 administered by TMRS, an agent multiple-employer public
employes refirement system. Each of the 774 municipalities has an annual, individual actuarial valuation
performed. Al assumptions for the Decembar 31, 2007 valuations are contalned in the 2007 TMRS
Comprehansive Annual Financial Report which can be obtained by wiiting to P.O. Box 149153, Austin, Texas,

78714-9163.

Benefils depend upon the sum of the employed’s contributions lo the plan, with Inferest, and the City-financed
monelary credils, wilh inferest, Al the date the plan bagan, the Cily granted monetary credils for service
rendered bafore the plan began of a theorelical amount equal to two limes what would have been contibuted by
the employes, with interest, prior to eslablishment of the plan. Manetary credlts for service since the plan began
are a percant (100%) of lhe employee's accumulated contributions. In addition, the Cily can grant as often as
annually another type of monstary credit referred to as an updated service credit which is a theoretical amouni
which, when added to the employee’s accumulated cantributions and the monstary credits for sarvice since the
plan hegan, would be the total monetary ¢redits and employee contrlbutions accumulated with Interest if the
current employee coniribution rate and Clly matching percent had always been in existence and if the
employee's salary had always been lhe average of his salary In the last fhree yoars thal are one year before the
effeclive date. Al relirement, the benefit Is calculated as if the sum of the employes’s accumulated contribulions
wilh Interest and the employer-financed manetary credits with Interest ware usad to purchase an annuily,

The plan provislons are adopted by the governing body of the Cily, wilhin the oplions available in the state
statutes governing TMRS and within the actuarial constraints also in the slatules. Plan provisions for the Clly

ware as follows:
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City KPUB
Daposit Rate: 7% 7%
Matching Ratlo (Employer to Employes): 24 2-1
A Membaer is Vested After: 5 years b years
Members can relire al cerlain ages, based on
the years of service with the Employer.
The Service Reilrement Eligibility for the Employer is: 5 yearsfage 60 5 yearsfage 60

20 yearsfany age 20 yearsfany age

Contribulions - Under the state law governlng TMRS, the acluary annually delermines the City contribution rate.
Tha rate consists of the nommal cost contribution rate and the prior service contribution rate, both of which are
calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year. The hormal cost conbribulion rate finances the
currently aceruing monetary credits dus to the City matching percent, which are the ohligation of the City as of an
employaa's relirement dale, not at (he time the smployes's contributions are made. The nornal cost contribulion
rale is the actuarially determined percent of payroll necessary to satisfy the obligation of the Cly to each
employee al the time hisfer refirement becomes effeclive. The prior service contribution rate amoriizes the
unfunded (overfunded) actuarial liability (asset) over the remainder of the plan's 26-year amortization period. The
unit credil actuarial cost method is used for determining the Cily contribulion rate, Both the employees and the
City make conlributions monthly. Since the Gity needs to know lts contribution rale in advance for budgstary
purposes, there Is a one-year delay between the acluarial valuation that is the basis for the rate and the calendar
year when {ha rate goes into effect, ie. December 31, 2007 valuation s effective for rales beginning January

2008,
City KPUB
Totat # of parficipating enlilles
Employes deposit rate: 7% 7%
Malching ratlo (emptloysr to amployse): 201 2t0t
Yaars required for vesting 5 5
Searvica retirement ellgibility 5 yearsfage 60 5 yearslage 60
20 yearsfany age 25 yearsfany age

Updated service cradit 100% 100%

Annually repeating Yes Yes
Annuity Increase to relirees 70% 70%

Annuatly repeating Yes Yes
Supplemental death benefit

For active employees Yes Yes

For relirees Yes Yes
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Actuarlal Assumptions

Projected Unit Credit

Acluarial Cosl Method
Level Percent of Payroll

Amortization Method
Amoriizalion Period 30 Years - Closed Petiod
Asset Valution Mathod Amorizad Cost
Invesiment Rate of Return 7%
Projected Salary Increases Varies by age and service
Includes inflation at 3.0%
Cost-of-Living Adjustments 2.4% {3.0% CPI)
Cly-Spedific Assumptions
pPayroll Growth Assumption 3.0%
Wilhdrawal Rates for Male/Female Midiild
KpuB
Schadule of Actuarial Liabilities and Funding Progress
Acturial Valuation Pate 1213142005 1213112006 4213112007

5010446 © 9,727,880 5 9,523,147
9,840,807 § 10,730,715 $ 11,658320
81.7%

Acluarlal Value of Assels (A)

Acluarlal Accruad Liability (B)
Parcentage Funded { C) = {AN(B) 91.6% 20.7%
Uniunded (Over-funded) Actuarial Acerued Liabllily

&y

(UAAL) (D)=(B)-(A} $ 830,162 $ 1,002,829 $ 2,135,173
Annual Covered Payroli (E} $ 2555207 2,707,024 % 2,712,039
UAAL as a Percentage of Coverad Payroli (DV(E) 32.5% 371.0% 78.7%
Accounting Year Ending 9/30/2006 9J3012007 9/30/2008
Net Penston Obligation (NPO) at the Beaginning of
{he Period $ - $ - $ -
Annual Pension Cost:

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) (F) $ 340,216  § 372580 § 360,660

Contributions Made (F) $ 340,216 8§ 372580 § 360,660
NPO at tha End of the Period $ - 3 - 8 -

Actuarlal Assumptions

Acluarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit
Amorlization Method Leva! Percent of Payroll
Amortizalion Peried a0 Years - Closed Perlod
Asset Valution Melhed Amorlized Cost
Investment Rate of Relurn 7%
Projected Safary Increases Varies by age and service
includes inflation at 3.0%
Cost-of-Living Adjustments 3.0%
Gity-Specific Assumplions

Payrofl Growth Assumption 3.0%

MidMid

Wilhdrawal Rates for Male/Femala
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E. Condensed Financial Information for Discrete Commponent Units

Followlng is selected condansed comblning financial statement information for the government-wide financlal
statement for the discrete componsnt units, KPUB and Kerrvills Economlc Improverment Comoration

KPUB
Electrle Kerrville
Utility EIC Total

Operaling revenug $49591,827 % - $ 49,591,827
Operating expsnses * 45,095,572 2,062,872 47,158,444
Depreciation and amorlization 1,895,228 - 1,895,228
Cperating Income 2,601,027 (2,062,872} 538,155
Opesrating grants and conlributions - 20,740 20,740
Capital grants and coniributions 234,065 - 234,055
Sales taxes . - 2,482,921 2,482,021
Inresiment income £93,540 127,237 720777
Miscellaneaus income 1,776 - 1,775
Change in na! assels 5§ 3430397 § 568,026 3 3,008423
Nat working capital $ 10,711,528 $ 5043836 3 15755364
Non-current assets 8,992,679 26,146 9,018,825
Plant, properly and squipment - addiions 28,739,812 - 28,739,812
Non-curcont lfabilities {622,301) - (622,301)
Bonds payable, net of current porlion -

and unamorized premium/discount (12,976,198) (2,615,000} 15,591,199)
Tolal fund nel assets % 34,845,519 & 2,454,982 % 37,300,501
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Febroary __, 2010

CITY OF XERRVILLE, TEXAS
COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, SERIES 2010
DATED AS OF FEBRUARY 1, 2010

IN THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $ -

AS BOND COUNSEL FOR THE CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS (the "Ciy") in
connection with the issuance of the certificates of obligation desctibed above (the "Certificates"),
we have examined into the legality and validity of the Cettificates, which bear interest from the dates
specified in the text of the Cextificates until maturity or prior redemption at the rates and payable
on the dates as stated in fhe text of the Certificates, and which ave subject to redemption, all in
accordance with the terms and conditions stated in the text of the Certificates.

WE HAVE EXAMINED the applicable and pertinent provisions of the Constitution and
laws of the State of Texas and a transeript of certified proceedings of the City, and other pertinent
instruments authorizing and relating to the issuance of the Certificates including (i) the ordinance
authorizing the issuance of the Ceitificates (the " Ordinance"), (ii) one of the executed Certificates
(Certificate No. T-1), and (iii) the City's Federal Tax Certificate of even date herewith,

BASED ON SAID EXAMINATION, IT1S OUR OPINION that the Certificates have been
authorized, issued and delivered in accordance with law; that the Certificates constitute valid and
legally binding general obligations of the City in accordance with their terins except as the
enforceability thercof tmay be limited by bankruptey, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium,
liquidation and other similar laws now o hereafter enacted relating to creditors' rights generally or
by general principles of equity which permit the exercise of judicial discretion; that the City has the
legal authority to issue the Certificates and to repay the Certificates; that ad vatorem taxes sufficient
to provide for the payment of the principal of the Cettificates, as such principal matures, have been
lovied and ordered to be levied against all taxable property jn the City, and have been pledged for
such payment, within the limits prescribed by law; and that "Surplus Revenues® (as such term is
defined and described in the Ordinance) received by the City from the ownership and operation of
the City's Waterworks and Sewer System have been pledged to further secure the payment of the
Certificates in the manner set forth in the Ordinance.

1T IS FURTHER OUR OPINION, except as discussed below, under the statutes,

regulations, published rulings and court decisions existing on the date of this opinion, for federal ’

income tax purposes, the interest on the Certificates (i) is cxcludable from the gross income of the
owners thereof, and (ii) is not includable in an owner's altemative minimuin taxable income under
section 55 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code"). In expressing the aforementioned
opinions, we have relied on and assumed compliance by the City with, certain representations and
covenants regarding the use and investment of the proceeds of the Certificates. We call your
attention to the fact that failure by the City to comply with such representations and covenants may
cause the interest on the Certificates to becoine includable in gross income retroactively to the date

of issuance of the Certificates.
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EXCEPTAS STATED ABOVE, we express no opinion as to any other federal, state or local
tax consequences of acquiring, catrying, owning or disposing of the Certificates, In particular, but
not by way of limitation, we express no opinion with respect to the federal, state or local tax
consequences arising from the ettactment of any pending or future legislation.

WE EXPRESS NO OPINION as to any insurance policies issued with respect to the
payments due for the principal of and interest on the Cettificates, nor as to any such insurance

policies issued in the future,

OUR SOLE ENGAGEMENT in connection with the issuance ofthe Certificates is as Bond
Caounsel for the City, and, in that capacity, we have been engaged by the City for the sole putpose
of rendering an opinion with respect to the legality and validity of the Certificates under the
Constifution and laws of the State of Texas, and with respect to the exclusion from gross income of
the interest on the Certificates, if any, for federal income tax purposes, and for no other reason or
purpose. The foregoing opinions represent our legal judginent based upon a review ofexisting legal -
authorities that we deem relevant to render such opinions and are not a guarantee of a result, We
have notbeen requested to investigate or verify, and have not independently investigated or verified,
any records, data, or other material relating fo the financial condition or capabilities of the City, or
the disclosure thereof in connection with the sale of the Certificates, and have not assumed any
responsibility with respect thereto. We express no opinion and make no comment with respect to
the marketability of the Certificates and we have relied solely on certificates executed by offi mals
of the City as to the current outstandmg indebtedness of, and assessed valuation oftaxable propei ty
within, the City. Our role in connection with the City's Official Statement prepared for use in
connection with the sale of the Ceitificates has been limited as described therein,

QUR OPINIONS ARE BASED ON EXISTING LAW, which is subject to change. Such
opinions are further based on our knowledge of facts as of the date hereof, We assume no duly to
update or supplement our opinions to reflect any facts or citcumstances that may thereafter come
to our attention or to reflect any changes in any law that may thereafter occur or become effective,
Moreovet, our opinions are not a guarantee of a result and are not binding on the Internal Revenue
Service (the "Service"); rather, such opinfons represent our legal judgment based upon our review
of existing law and in reliance upon the representations and covenants referenced above that we
deentrelevant to such opinions, The Service has an ongoing audit program to determine compliance
with rules that relate to whether intersst on state or local obligations is includable in gross income
for federal income tax purposes. No assurance can be given whether or not the Service will
commence an audit of the Certificates. If an audit is commenced, in accordance with its current
published procedures the Service is likely to treat the City as the taxpayer. We observe that the City
has covenanted not to take any action, or omit to take any action within its control, that if taken or
omitted, respectively, may result in the treatment of interest on the Certificates, if any, as includable
in gross income for federal income tax purposes.

Respectfully,







Pinancial Advisory Services
Provided By

FirstSouthwest i<
A PlainsCapital Company.
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TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Discussion and direction concerning notice of amendment to certificate of
adjudication application No. 18-2002C submitted by Comanche Trace
Ranch & Golf Club L.L.L.P. to the Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality

FOR AGENDA OF: 1/26/10 DATE SUBMITTED: 1/21/10

SUBMITTED BY: Charlie HastinngMCLEARANCES: Todd Parton
Public Works Director City Manager /|

EXHIBITS: Notice from TCEQ with application for amendment, Current Copy of
Certificate of Adjudication No. 18-2002, Copy of applicable pages of
Development Agreement, Copy of Water Right Conveyance to Kerrville

AGENDA MAILED TO:

APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER:

Expenditure Current Balance Amount Account
Required: in Account: Budgeted: Number:
$ $ $

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO:
REVIEWED BY THE FINANCE DIRECTOR:

SUMMARY STATEMENT

The City of Kerrville received notice from the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
(TCEQ) that Comanche Trace Ranch & Golf Club L.L.L.P. has applied to amend Certificate
of Adjudication No. 18-2002 to maintain reservoirs and utilize tributaries to transport river
water through their golf course for recreation and recirculation purposes. The notice is
being published and mailed to the water right holders of record in the Guadalupe River
Basin pursuant to 30 TAC §295.158(b). The current Certificate of Adjudication No. 18-
2002 authorizes the owner to divert up to 136 acre-feet of water per year from the
Guadalupe River and to maintain six off-channel and five on-channel reservoirs and to
impound the diverted water. The application was received on October 16, 2008, and
declared administratively complete”and accepted for filing with the TCEQ Office of the
Chief Clerk on May 14, 2009.

If approved, the new application does not increase the amount of water that would be
diverted, it would allow for the Applicant to maintain six additional on channel reservoirs
and one off channel reservoir with a combined maximum capacity 46.3 acre-feet. The
applicant seeks to use the bed and banks of an unnamed tributary of Stone Creek to
transport water that will be provided under a Contract for Water Lease related to
authorizations under Certificate of Adjudication 18-2001 for 104 acre-feet of additional
water to be used for recirculation and aesthetic purposes.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Discussion and possible action.




TExAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

NOTICE OF AN AMENDMENT TO
A CERTIFICATE OF ADJUDICATION

APPLICATION NO. 18-2002C

Comanche Trace Ranch & Golf Club L.L.L.P., has applied to amend Certificate of Adjudication
No. 18-2002 to maintain six on-channel reservoirs and one off-channel reservoir and to utilize
the bed and banks of a segment of an unnamed tributary of Stone Creek, and two separate
segments of Stone Creek, Guadalupe River Basin, including the reservoirs located therein, to
transport the water to the proposed reservoirs for recreation and recirculation purposes in Kerr
County. More information on the application and how to participate in the permitting process is
given below..

APPLICATION. Comanche Trace Ranch & Golf Club L.L.L.P., 3074 Bandera Highway,
Kerrville, Texas 78028, Applicant, seeks to amend Certificate of Adjudication No. 18-2002
pursuant to Texas Water Code §§11.122 and 11.042, and Texas Commission on Environmental
Quality Rules 30 Texas Administrative Code §295.1, et seq. Notice is being published and
mailed to the water right holders of record in the Guadalupe River Basin pursuant to 30 TAC
§295.158(b).

Certificate of Adjudication No. 18-2002 authorizes the Owner to maintain six off-channel
reservoirs (A, B, C, E, I, J) and five on-channel reservoirs (D, F, G, H, K) on Dry Hollow, and an
unnamed tributary of Dry Hollow, tributary of the Guadalupe River, and impound water diverted
from the Guadalupe River, Guadalupe River Basin.

The Certificate authorizes the Owner to divert and use not to exceed 136 acre-feet of water per
year from the Guadalupe River at a maximum diversion rate of 2.4 cfs (1,080 gpm) for storage,
recreation, and subsequent diversion for agricultural purposes to irrigate 471.4 acres out of a
1,131.78-acre tract in Kerr County.

Owner is also authorized to use the bed and banks of an unnamed tributary of Dry Hollow to
convey water to reservoirs F, G, and H for re-circulation and aesthetic purposes.




29.968889° N Latitude and 99.130833° W Longitude.

Reservoir R is an existing off-channel reservoir located 5.7 miles east of Kerrville
impounding 27.5 acre-feet of water with a surface area of 2.76 acres. Station 0+ on the
centerline of the dam is S 47.15° E, 2,419 feet from the south corner of the Watt Survey,
also being 29.971389° N Latitude and 99.127222° W Longitude.

Applicant requests to use the bed and banks of the unnamed fributary of Stone Creek to convey
the water for recirculation and recreation (aesthetic) purposes via several features. The water for
the first feature will be discharged into Reservoir L, thence to Reservoir M, thence to Reservoir
N. Water will be diverted from Reservoir N for recirculation back into Reservoir L. Water for
the second feature will be discharged into Stone Creek upstream of Reservoir P and allowed to
flow downstream into Reservoir P where it will be diverted for recirculation. Water for the third
feature will be discharged into Stone Creek upstream of Reservoir Q and allowed to flow
downstream into Reservoir Q where it will be diverted for recirculation. The reach for these
features is upstream of and including Reservoir Q. Reservoir O is a separate on-channel reservoir
with no pumping feature. Reservoir R is an existing reservoir and will be used for additional
impoundment of run off water from the already permitted irrigation system.

The diversion points and their associated rates are described as follows:

Diversion Point 2 is located on the perimeter of Reservoir P, on Stone Creek, 5.6 miles
southeast of Kerrville, bearing S 2.95° E, 3,488 feet from the south corner of the William
Watt Original Survey No. 66, Abstract No. 365, also being at Latitude 29.966667° N,
Longitude 99.1325° W. Water will be diverfed at a maximum diversion rate of 0.2 cfs
(100 gpm). :

Diversion Point 3 is located on the perimeter of Reservoir Q, on Stone Creek, 5.7 miles
southeast of Kerrville, bearing S 9.90° E, 3,991 feet from the south corner of the Watt
Survey, also being at Latitude 29.965278° N, Longitude 99.130833° W. Water will be
diverted at a maximum diversion rate of 0.2 cfs (100 gpm).

Diversion Point 4 is located on the perimeter of Reservoir N, on an unnamed tributary of
Stone Creek, 5.3 miles southeast of Kerrville, bearing S 14.85° E, 1,785 feet from the
south corner of the Watt Survey, also being at Latitude 29.971389° N, Longitude
99.131667° W. Water will be diverted at a maximum diversion rate of 1.1 cfs (500 gpm).

The discharge points and their associated rates are described as follows:

Discharge Point 1 is located approximately 300 feet upstream of Reservoir P, on Stone
Creek, 5.6 miles southeast of the City of Kerrville, bearing S 6.033333° E, 3,195 feet
from the south corner of the William Watt Original Survey No. 66, Abstract No. 365,
also being Latitude 29.967222° N, Longitude 99.131944° W. Water will be discharged at
a maximum rate of 0.2 cfs (100 gpm).




be submitted in writing to the Office of the Chief Clerk at the address provided in the
information section below.

If a hearing request is filed, the Executive Director will not issue the permit and will forward the
application and hearing request to the TCEQ Commissioners for their consideration at a
scheduled Commission meeting.

INFORMATION. Written hearing requests, public comments or requests for a public meeting
should be submitted to the Office of the Chief Clerk, MC 105, TCEQ, P.O. Box 13087, Austin,
TX 78711-3087 or electronically at http.//www.tceq.state.tx.us/about/comments.html. For
information concerning the hearing process, please contact the Public Interest Counsel, MC 103,
at the same address. For additional information, individual members of the general public may
contact the Office of Public Assistance at 1-800-687-4040. General information regarding the
TCEQ can be found at our web site at www.tceq.state.tx.us. Si desea informacidn en Espaifiol,
puede llamar al 1-800-687-4040 o por el internet al http://www.tceq.state.tx.us.

Issued: December 22, 2009




Current Cert. of Adjud. No. 18-2002

AMENDMENT TO
CERTIFICATE OF ADJUDICATION

Certificate of Adjudication No. 18-2002B Type: §§11.122,11.042

Owner: Comanche Trace Ranch & | Address: 3074 Bandera Highway
Golf Club, L. L. L. P. Kermrville, Texas 78028

Filed: March 9, 2000 Granted: SEP 12 200

Use: ~ Irrigation County: Kerr

Watercourse: Unnamed tributary of Dry Basin: Guadalupe River Basin

Hollow and Dry Hollow, tributary
of the Guadalupe River and the
Guadalupe River

WHEREAS, Certificate No. 18-2002 authorized the owner, with a time priority of 1924, to
divert and use not to exceed 136 acre-feet of water per annum from the Guadalupe River at a
maximum rate of 2.4 cfs (1080 gpm) for irrigation of 99 acres of land in the William Watt Survey
65, Abstract No. 364, and the William Watt Survey 66, Abstract No. 365, Kerr County; and

WHEREAS, Certificate No. 18-2002, as amended, authorizes the owner to maintain an
existing off-channel reservoir (Reservoir A); to construct and maintain an off-channel reservoir

(Reservoir I) and to impound therein ‘water diverted from the Guadalupe River for subsequent
irrigation; and

WHEREAS, Certificate No. 18-2002, as amended also increased the area to be irrigated; and

WHEREAS, Comanthe Trace Ranch and Golf Club, L. L. L. P. (Comanche Trace) seeks to
amend the certificate, as amended, by adding authorization to store the water currently authorized
for diversion from the Guadalupe River in 4 additional proposed off-channel reservoirs (Reservoirs
B, C,E and J) and 5 proposed on-channel reservoirs (Reservoirs D and K on Dry Hollow, tributary
of the Guadalupe River and Reservoirs F , G and H on an unnamed tributary of Dry Hollow); and

WHEREAS, Comanche Trace also seeks authorization to convey the stored Guadalupe River
water down the bed and banks of the unnamed tributary of Dry Hollow between Reservoirs F, G,
and H and to subsequently re-circulate the streamflow between the aforesaid reservoirs; and




WHEREAS, the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission finds that jurisdiction
over the application is established; and

WHEREAS, no person protested the granting of this application; and

WHEREAS, the Commission has complied with the requirements of the Texas Water Code
and Rules of the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission in issuing this amendment.

NOW, THEREFORE, this amendment to Certificate No. 18-2002, as amended, is issued to
Comanche Trace Ranch and Golf Club, L. L. L. P., subject to the following terms and conditions:

1. IMPOUNDMENTS

Certificate Owner is authorized to construct and maintain 4 off-channel reservoirs and to
construct and maintain 5 on-channel reservoirs and impound therein water diverted from the
Guadalupe River under this certificate, asamended. The reservoirs are described as follows:

Reservoir B, an off-channel reservoir will be located 4.4 miles south of Kerrville and will
impound 6.0 acre-feet of water with a surface area of 0.9 acres. The reservoir will be N

41.73° E, 5129 feet from the south corner of the William Watt Survey No. 66, Abstract No.
365, also being 29.985°N Latitude and 99.119°W Longitude.

Reservoir C, an off-channel reservoir will be located 4.2 miles south of Kerrville and will
impound 4.4 acre-feet of water with a surface area of 0.97 acres. The reservoir will be N
37.53°E, 5997 feet from the south corner of the William Watt Survey No. 66, Abstract No.
365, also being 29.987°N Latitude and 99.119°W Longitude.

Reservoir D, an on-channel reservoir will be located on Dry Hollow, tributary of the
Guadalupe River 4.4 miles south of Kerrville and will impound 9.5 acre-feet of water with
a surface area of 1.60 acres. The reservoir will be N 47.8°E, 8559 feet from the west corner

of the William Watt Survey No. 65, Abstract No. 364, also being 29.985°N Latitude and
99.1099°W Longitude.

Reservoir E, an off-channel reservoir will be located 4.7 miles south of Kerrville and will
impound 1.2 acre-feet of water with a surface area of 0.29 acres. The reservoir will be N
30.17°E, 1596 feet from the south comer of the William Watt Survey No. 66, Abstract No.
365, also being 29.975°N Latitude and 99.125°W Longitude.

Reservoir F, an on-channel reservoir will be located on an unnamed tributary of Dry Hollow
4.3 miles south of Kerrville and will impound 0.4 acre-feet of water with a surface area of
0.09 acres. The reservoir will be N 1.76°W, 3777 feet from the south comer of the William

Watt Survey No. 66, Abstract No. 365, also being 29.985°N Latitude and 99.133°W
Longitude.




Reservoir G, an on-channel reservoir will be located on an unnamed tributary of Dry Hollow
4.2 miles south of Kerrville and will impound 1.7 acre-feet of water with a surface area of
.34 acres. The reservoir will be N 13.18°E, 4583 feet from the south corner of the William

Watt Survey No. 66, Abstract No. 365, also being 29.987°N Latitude and 99.125°W
Longitude.

Reservoir H, an on-channe] reservoir will be located on an unnamed tributary of Dry Hollow
4 miles south of Kerrville and will impound 22.3 acre-feet of water with a surface area of
2.10 acres. Thereservoir will be N 17.88°E, 5485 feet from the south corner of the William

Watt Survey No. 66, Abstract No. 365, also being 29.988°N Latitude and 99.123°W
Longitude.

Reservoir I, an off-channel reservoir will be located 4.1 miles south of Kerrville and will
impound 65 acre-feet of water with a surface area of 8.71 acres. The reservoir will be N

43°E, 8428 feet from the south corner of the William Watt Survey No. 66, Abstract No. 365,
also being 29.989°N Latitude and 99.109°W Longitude.

Reservoir J, an off-channel reservoir will be located 4.2 miles south of Kerrville and will
impound 1.5 acre-feet of water with a surface area of .34 acres. The reservoir will be N

46.92°E, 10926 feet from the west corner of the William Watt Survey No. 65, Abstract No.
364, also being 29.991°N Latitude and 99.107°W Latitude.

Reservoir K, an on-channel reservoir will be located on Dry Hollow 4.1 miles south of
Kerrville and will impound 0.3 acre-feet of water with a surface area of .09 acres. The
reservoir will be N 41.68°E, 7094 feet from the south corner of the William Watt Survey No.
66, Abstract 365, Kerr County, also being 29.988 °N Latitude and 99.118°W Longitude.

2. DIVERSION AND USE

A. Owner is authorized to convey the 136 acre-feet of water per annum

currently authorized for diversion by this certificate from the Guadalupe
River to the aforesaid reservoirs for subsequent diversion and irrigation of
land currently included in the certificate.

B. Owner is authorized to use the bed and banks of the unnamed tributary of Dry
Hollow to convey water authorized for diversion from the Guadalupe River
under this certificate, as amended, between Reservoirs F, G, and H for
aesthetic purposes and to re-circulate the water between the reservoirs.

3. TIME LIMITATIONS

A. Construction of the lakes herein authorized shall be in accordance with
standard engineering practices and shall be commenced within one year and
completed within two years from the date of issuance of this amendment.




B. Failure to commence and complete construction of Reservoirs B, C, D, E, F,
G, H, J, and K within the period stated above, shall cause this authorization,
with respect to the lakes not modified/constructed, to expire and become null
‘and void without further Commission consideration, unless permittee applies

‘for an extension of time to commence and/or complete construction prior to
the respective deadlines for commencement and completion, and the
application is subsequently granted.

This amendment is issued subject to all superior and senior rights in the Guadalupe River
Basin.

Certificate owner agrees to be bound by the terms, conditions and provisions contained
herein and such agreement is a condition precedent to granting of this amendment.

All other matters requested in the application which are not specifically granted by this
amendment are denied.

This amendment is issued subject to the Rules of the Texas Natural Resource Conservation

Commission and to the right of continuing supervision of State water resources exercised by the
Commission. ' :

TEXAS NATURAL RESOURCE
CONSERVATION COMMISSION

M‘/,’ Y
/i U ;Zﬁ;‘

For the Commission

Date Issued: SEP ]_2 ZUUU




THIS IS A CONFORMED COPY OF THE COMANCHE TRACE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT THAT

INCORPORATES THE ORIGINAL AGREEMENT DATED 1/26/99 AND AMENDMENTS DATED 12/14/99
AND_1/25/2000.  THIS AGREEMENT SHOULD BE USED AS A REFERENCE ONLY BUT IS NOT

INTENDED TO BE A SUBSTITUTE FOR THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS

10.

11.

12.

have been published and adopted by the City Engineer (a copy of which has
been provided to Developer and which Developer acknowledges receipt) for
the design and/or construction of streets, sidewalks, curb and gutter, water
distribution system, sanitary sewer collection system, storm water drainage
facilities, and other public improvements constructed in accordance with the
development of the Property, whether or not required by the Subdivision
Regulations.

Subdivision Regulations: Article 10, Chapter IV of the Code of Ordinances of
the City of Kerrville, Texas, as amended, and such other ordinances
previously or in the future adopted by City relating to the subdivision of
property located as follows:

1. within City's incorporated limits; and/or

2, within City's extraterritorial jurisdiction as determined by Tex. Loc.
Govt. Code §42.021, as amended.

Surface Water Rights: The right to divert 136 acre feet per year of surface
water from the Guadalupe River in the manner described in Certificate of
Adjudication No. 18-2002, dated July 17, 1981, and filed of record with the
TNRCC.

Type | Reclaimed Water: Domestic or municipal wastewater which has been
treated to a quality suitable for a beneficial use pursuant to the 30 TAC
Chapter 210 and other applicable rules and permits of the TNRCC or its
successor agencies (otherwise called “reclaimed water”), the use of whichis
likely to result in contact between humans and the reclaimed water.

Water Well No. 1: Water well located on the Property drilled by Edmonds
Drilling Co. and completed on or about January 20, 1978, to an approximate
depth of 655 feet below the surface according to the records of the TNRCC.

Water Well No. 2: Water well located on the Property drilled by Edmonds
Driling Co. and completed on or about September 19, 1980, to an
approximate depth of 600 feet below the surface, according to the records of
the TNRCC.

Water Well No. 3: Water well located on the Property located on the
approximately 1.73 acre tract of land described on Exhibit “B”, attached to

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR
COMANCHE TRACE RANCH AND GOLF CLUB - PAGE 3




THIS IS A CONFORMED COPY OF THE COMANCHE TRACE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT THAT
INCORPORATES THE ORIGINAL AGREEMENT DATED 1/26/99 AND AMENDMENTS DATED 12/14/99
AND 1/25/2000. THIS AGREEMENT SHOULD BE USED AS A REFERENCE ONLY BUT IS NOT
INTENDED TO BE A SUBSTITUTE FOR THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS

1. be approved as to substance and form by the City Attorney
(which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld);

2. be in an amount equal to the estimated cost to complete
construction of the public improvements associated with
development of the property described in the Initial Final Plat,
which cost estimate must be approved by the City Engineer;

3. not include costs related to construction of the City
Improvements; and

4. must be effective for a term not less than 13 months after the
date of approval of the Initial Final Plat.

4, Not later than October 1, 1999, Developer shall commence
construction of the proposed 18 hole golf course set forth in the
Concept Plan, with construction to be complete not later than October
1, 2000, and play to begin not later than July 1, 2001.

2. Conveyance of the Surface Water Rights: As additional consideration for this
Agreement, Developer agrees to convey to City ownership of the Surface
Water Rights as follows:

1. Not later than sixty days after the annexation of any portion of the
Property by City, Developer agrees to file the necessary application(s)
with the TNRCC naming City as co-owner of the Surface Water Rights
and conveying to City a one-half undivided interest in the Surface
Water Rights. Developer shall use its best efforts to seek approval of
such transfer of ownership interest to the City. City and Developer
further agree:

1. that Developer shall have the right to use the Surface Water
Rights so long as Developer retains a one-half undivided
interest in the Surface Water Rights;

2. that Developer's continued use of the Surface Water Rights
subsequent to the conveyance to City described above shall be
solely for the irrigation of the proposed golf course, green belt,
and common areas developed on the Property;

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR
COMANCHE TRACE RANCH AND GOLF CLUB - PAGE 18




THIS IS A CONFORMED COPY OF THE COMANCHE TRACE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT THAT
INCORPORATES THE ORIGINAL AGREEMENT DATED 1/26/99 AND AMENDMENTS DATED 12/14/99
AND 1/25/2000. THIS AGREEMENT SHOULD BE USED AS A REFERENCE ONLY BUT ISNOT INTENDED

TO BE A SUBSTITUTE FOR THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENTS

3.

that Developer shall bear all costs of diverting, pumping, and
transporting the water diverted from the Guadalupe River for
Developer's use;

that so long as Developer retains a one-half undivided interest
in any portion of the Surface Water Rights, City will make no
diversions of water for its own purposes from that portion in
which Developer retains an ownership interest without the
written consent of Developer;

that Developer shall not sell, grant, gift, mortgage, lease, or
otherwise convey or encumber any of Developer’s interest in
the Surface Water Rights without the written consent of City
unless such grant, gift, mortgage, lease, conveyance or
encumbrance is:

(1)  made in association with a conveyance of all or a portion
of Developer's interest in the Property; and

(2)  made subject to the provisions of this Agreement.

2. Developer agrees to file the necessary application(s) with the TNRCC
conveying Developer's remaining interest in portions of the Surface
Water Rights as follows:

1.

Not later than 90 days after the fifth anniversary of the date City
commences providing Type | Reclaimed Water Service to the
Property in accordance with Article VI.A. of this Agreement,
Developer shall convey to City its full interest in the amount of
the Surface Water Rights equal to 136 acre feet less 1.5times
the amount of the highest annual diversion by Developer during
the five year period after Type | Reclaimed Water Service to the
Property commenced;

Not later than 90 days after the tenth anniversary of the date
City commences providing Type | Reclaimed Water Service to
the Property in accordance with Article VI.A. of this Agreement,
Developer shall convey to City its full interest in the amount of
the Surface Water Rights equal to the amount of the Surface
Water Rights in which the Developer retained an interest after

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR
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THIS IS A CONFORMED COPY OF THE COMANCHE TRACE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT THAT
INCORPORATES THE ORIGINAL AGREEMENT DATED 1/26/99 AND AMENDMENTS DATED 12/14/99
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the conveyance described in paragraph a., above less the
amount of the highest annual diversion by Developer during the
ten year period after Type | Reclaimed Water Service to the
Property commenced.

In determining the “highest annual diversion” pursuant to
paragraphs a. and b., above, the total of the diversion that
occurs during any annual period shall be reduced by the
amount of excess water used to irrigate newly constructed
holes on the golf course from the time of planting to the time
the holes are open for play, generally known as the “grow-in
period”.

3. Water Well No. 1 and Water Well No. 2: As additional consideration for this

Agreement, Developer agrees to convey to City ownership of Water Well No.
1 and Water Well No. 2 and other associated property and equipment as
follows:

1.

Not later than 30 days after execution of a contract for construction of
the City Improvements, Developer shall convey to City a one-half
undivided interest in the title to Water Well No. 1 and Water Well No. 2
along with all associated equipment, pipelines, and storage facilities,
as is, and in their existing condition without any express or implied
warranties, including warranty of merchantability or fitness for a
particular purpose, which warranties are expressly DISCLAIMED. City
and Developer further agree that:

1.

Developer shall convey to City a general utility easement for all
property on or under which is located all pipelines associated
with Water Well No. 1 and Water Well No. 2;

Developer shall convey to City ingress and egress easements
not less than 25 feet wide to provide access to the Water Well
No. 1 and Water Well No. 2 parcels, which easements shall be
located on existing roads located on the Property or,
alternatively, over an access road constructed by Developer in
conjunction with the development;

Developer shall have the right to pump water from Water Well
No. 1 and Water Well No. 2 so long as Developer retains a
one-half undivided interest in said wells;

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR
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THE STATE OF TEXAS
§ WATER RIGHTS CONVEYANCE
COUNTY OF KERR §

Whereas, certain rights to divert and use water per annum measured at the point of
diversion from the Guadalupe River for the irrigation of land located in Kerr County, Texas, exist
and are authorized pursuant to the following Texas Water Rights Commission (how the Texas
Natural Resource Conservation Commission) Certificate of Adjudication-({hereafter called the
“Water Rights”):

136 acre feet of Water Rights (irrigation) out of Certificate of

Adjudication No. 18-2002, dated July 18, 1981, as amended

from time to time ("Certificate”); and

WHEREAS, COMANCHE TRACE RANCH & GOLF CLUB, LLLP (hereafter referred to as
“"GRANTOR") owns the Water Rights; and

WHEREAS, GRANTOR has entered into a certain Development Agreement, as amended
("Development Agreement"), with the City of Kerrville ("GRANTEE"), pursuant to which the
parties hereto have agreed to ownership, use, and transfer of certain of the Water Rights;

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That GRANTOR, in
consideration of (i) the sum of TEN AND NO/10THS ($10.00) DOLLARS to it in hand paid by
GRANTEE, of Kerr County, Texas, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, and (ii)
GRANTEE's entry into the Development Agreement, and pursuant to and upon and subject to
the terms of the Development Agreement does hereby SELL, CONVEY, TRANSFER AND
ASSIGN to GRANTEE a one-half undivided interest in the Water Rights, subject to existing
exceptions and encumbrances of record; provided that:

(a) GRANTOR shall have the right to use all of the Water Rights so long as
GRANTOR retains a one-half undivided interest in the Water Rights,




(b) GRANTOR's continued use of the Water Rights subsequent to this conveyance
shall be solely for the irrigation of the proposed golf course, green belt, and
common areas developed on the Property, as defined and provided in the
Development Agreement,

(c) GRANTOR shall bear all costs of diverting, pumping, and transporting the water
diverted from the Guadalupe River for GRANTOR's use,

(d) So long as GRANTOR retains a one-half undivided interest in any portion of the
Water Rights, GRANTEE will make no diversions of water for its own purposes
from that portion in which GRANTOR retains an ownership interest without the
written consent of GRANTOR, and

(e) GRANTOR shall not sell, grant, gift, mortgage, lease, or otherwise convey or
encumber any of GRANTOR's interest in the Water Rights without the written
consent of GRANTEE unless such grant, gift, mortgage, lease, conveyance or
encumbrance is:

(1)  made in association with a conveyance of all or a portion of GRANTOR's
interest in the Property; and

(2)  made subject to the provisions of the Development Agreement.

The water rights conveyed hereby are conveyed "AS 1S" without representation or
warranty and any implied warranties are DISCLAIMED. GRANTEE agrees not to amend the
Certificate in such a manner as to affect the use/rights of GRANTOR and GRANTEE as set
forth herein. No other water rights of GRANTOR are hereby conveyed except as herein
expressly provided. GRANTOR and GRANTEE agree that any covenant required hereunder
shall not be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned. GRANTOR does hereby expressly
authorize the Texas Natural Resource Conservation Commission (TNRCC) or such agency or
governmental body or authority having jurisdiction over the subject matter hereof, to make such
changes in the records as are necessary to accomplish the terms and provisions hereof.
GRANTOR and GRANTEE hereby agree to execute such other instruments as shall be

necessary and required by the TNRCC or other applicable authority in regard hereto.




EXECUTED this 14th day of February, 2000.

COMANCHE TRACE RANCH & GOLF
CLUB, LLLP, a Colorado limited liability
limited partnership

By: COMANCHE TRACE, LLC,

A Colorado limited liability company,
General Partner

By:/)fw A4 Jé(a/\,_i CO

Thomas N. Morrill, Manager




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Recommendation and approval of a new city logo and tag line
FOR AGENDA OF: January 14, 2010 DATE SUBMITTED: January 26, 2010

SUBMITTED BY: Mindy N. Wendele CLEARANCES: Todd Parton

Director of Business Programs City Manager
EXHIBITS:
AGENDA MAILED TO:
APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER: 07/
Expenditure Current Balance Amount " Account
Required: in Account: Budgeted: Number:
$ $ $

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO:
REVIEWED BY THE FINANCE DIRECTOR:

SUMMARY STATEMENT

At the January 12, 2010 council meeting, staff presented an update on the tag line
and logo project. Staff requested council appoint a three-five member committee to

review the tag line entries and the logo designs. The committee will bring a
recommendation of the top three tag lines and top two logos.

The committee consists of Councilmember Gross, Kerrville Convention and Visitors

Bureau Executive Director Sudie Burditt, Kerrville Area Chamber of Commerce

President Brian Bondy, Main Street Advisory Board Vice President Kyle Bond and

Director of Business Programs Mindy Wendele.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

For discussion and approval of a new tag line and logo design.




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Boardwalk Pavilion Funding Options

FOR AGENDA OF: January 26, 2010 DATE SUBMITTED: January 15, 2010

SUBMITTED BY: Scott Gross, CLEARANCES:
Councilmember

EXHIBITS:

AGENDA MAILED TO:

APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER:L/)/

Expenditure Current Balance Amount Account

Required: in Account: Budgeted: Number:

$ $ $

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO:
REVIEWED BY THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE:

SUMMARY STATEMENT

City Council discussion regarding potential/available funding sources and options for
construction completion.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Direct City Staff on funding sources and level of construction completion.



TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Discussion Regarding Changes to City Licensing of Peddlers and
Solicitors

FOR AGENDA OF: January 26, 2010 DATE SUBMITTED: January 14, 2010

Ea
SUBMITTED BY: Kevin Coleman "“/CLEARANCES: Kristine OndriaSD&(\g_/
EXHIBITS: Chapter 78 of Code of Ordinances
AGENDA MAILED TO:

APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER: %

Expenditure Current Balance Amount ‘Account
Required: in Account: Budgeted: Number:
$ $ $

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO:
REVIEWED BY THE FINANCE DIRECTOR:

SUMMARY STATEMENT

Chapter 78 of the City Code of Ordinances regulates the licensing of peddlers,
solicitors and itinerant merchants that operate in the City.

Generally, this Chapter regulates those individuals that sell goods and/or services
without a permanent business location. The Chapter is enforced through the
Development Services Department. Staff is currently reviewing changes in these
regulations to add clarity to this enforcement.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

At this meeting Council will be asked to:
Review the existing regulations, and

¢ Provide staff direction regarding any elements of the regulation Council
feels should be in staff’s review.




Chapter 78 PEDDLERS AND SOLICITORS*

Sec. 78-1. Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have
the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly
indicates a different meaning:

Canvasser and solicitor mean one who takes orders for future deliveries, or for
services, or solicits subscriptions, in public places or from house to house or
store to store and not from an established place on private premises (solicitation
of funds or orders by telephone is not considered canvassing in this sense of the
word.)

Itinerant merchant and vendor mean one who:

(1) Sells, offers for sale, or takes orders for the sale of any goods or
merchandise or exhibits the goods or merchandise for such purposes and who,
for the purpose of carrying on such activities, rents or occupies any room or
space in any building, structure or other enclosure, or rents or occupies any
space on land not in any such building or structure in the city; and

(2) Rents, leases, subleases or occupies such property or space for less than
one year.

Peddler means a person who sells or offers for sale tangible merchandise from
house to house, store to store, or on the sidewalks or in any public place
including those located on private premises; his sales are not made from one
established spot excepting where they are made on a sidewalk or other public
place including those located on private premises and he makes delivery at the
time of the sale. Whether or not he collects at the same time is immaterial.
Public place means those places which are not located in a permanent building
structure and to which the public or a substantial group of the public has access
and includes, but is not limited to, streets, highways, parking lots, vacant lots and
sidewalks.

Sec. 78-2. Street sales.
No licensee under this chapter shall ply his vocation on any public right-of-way or
property unless approved by the city council.

Sec. 78-3. Open air markets.

Each owner or operator of an open air market approved by special use permit
shall be required to furnish the city clerk and the state comptroller's office a list of
each person, firm or corporation leasing or occupying space in the market and
the information required by section 78-32(a) and (b) for each lessee or occupant.
Each owner or operator shall state with his information, the times and days that
those lessees or occupants shall be present to offer for sale their merchandise.

Sec. 78-4. Penalty.
Any person violating any of the provisions of this chapter shall be guilty of a
misdemeanor, and shall be subject to the penalties provided for in section 1-7. A




separate offense shall be deemed committed each day on which a violation
occurs or continues.

Sec. 78-31. Required.

It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation as well as their
agents and employees to engage in the business of peddler, canvasser, solicitor
or itinerant merchant or vendor of any merchandise, article, thing or service in the
city without having first secured a license therefor from the city.

Sec. 78-32. Applications.

(a) Applications for a license under this chapter shall be made to the city
through the city clerk's office and shall state thereon:

(1) The identity of all persons who will operate under such license by name,
social security number, driver's license number and permanent address;

(2) The kind of merchandise to be sold;

(3) The type of business operation the applicant wishes to engage in, including
whether or not customers will be required to pay for their orders in advance of
their receipt of order; and

(4) Clearances from the city zoning department, city health department, and city
building department.

(b) All applicants for a license under this chapter shall be required to produce at
the time of making applications a valid current state sales tax permit and
evidence that the applicant has advised the local office of the comptroller of the
state of the location and time that sales are to be conducted. No license shall be
granted for a period not covered by such sales tax permit.

(c) Those applicants for a license under this chapter desiring to sell
merchandise from a location on private premises shall accompany their
application with the written permission of the private property owner allowing
such business to be enacted on the private property.

(d) Upon proper application and payment as provided in section 78-33, the city
shall grant a license.

Sec. 78-33. Fees.

(a) Base fee. The base fee for such license shall be $600.00 for one year,
which shall cover one person selling under such license.

(b) Additional persons. The fee for each additional person who will operate
under any such license issued shall be an additional $10.00 for 30 days or
$100.00 for one year.

(c) Deposit. In addition, those applicants desiring to engage in the kind of
business in which the customer orders something and pays in advance therefor,
before the receipt of the purchased item or service shall, in addition to the license
fee, deposit the sum of $750.00 in cash with the city to protect the citizens from
any loss on account of such business operation, and, 30 days after the end of the
license period, if there have been no complaints regarding the licensee, then
such amount shall be refunded to the licensee. However, if the city has received
complaints regarding such licensee concerning nonperformance or inadequate




performance, then the city has the right to hold the deposit in escrow until it has
either received a written authorization for its release from such complainant or a
certified copy of an order of a court of competent jurisdiction which has passed
judgment on the dispute, and then the city shall distribute the money in
accordance with the court order. No interest shall paid on the deposit.

(d) Amendment to fees and charges. The fees and charges set forth and/or
established in this section may be changed and amended, from time to time, by
resolution of the city council.

Sec. 78-34. Exemptions.

The following are exempt from the license provisions of this chapter:
(1) Temporary special events, sales and festivals sponsored by charitable
organizations recognized as such by the Internal Revenue Laws of the United
States including, but not limited to, Boy Scouts and Girl Scouts, service clubs,
school organizations, and etc.
(2) Temporary special events, sales and festivals sponsored by governmental
subdivisions, including school districts, Chamber of Commerce and Jaycees.
(3) State arts and crafts fair and other special events such as the Easter Chili
Cook-off or Jimmy Rodgers Jubilee, as approved by council provided that the
organizer/operator of such events provides the information required for an open
air market.
(4) A traveling salesperson or solicitor calling only upon commercial businesses
in the city.
(5) Garage sales.
(6) A business with a separate business location in the city that furnished proof
of payment to the city of all ad valorem and personal property taxes then due.
(7) Six or more businesses that are organized in a sales show, convention, or
similar sales by an indoor shopping mall, hotel or similar sponsor.
(8) Businesses conducted in an open air market in compliance with all laws and
zoning regulations applicable thereto.
(9) Sale of fresh produce (fruit, nuts, and vegetables).
(10) Sale of firewood.




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
SUBJECT: Update from Staff on FY10 Employee Compensation

FOR AGENDA OF: January 26, 2010 | DATE SUBMITTED: January 15, 2010

SUBMITTED BY: Kimberly Meismijk CLEARANCES: Jeffrey Todd Parton
Director of General Op€rations City Manager

EXHIBITS:

AGENDA MAILED TO:

APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER:

Expenditure Current Balance Amount Account
Required: in Account: Budgeted: Number:
$ $ $

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO:
REVIEWED BY THE FINANCE DEPARTMENT:

SUMMARY STATEMENT

The City hired Ray Associates to conduct a formal compensation and benefits
study in 2006. It was determined with Council that we would include twelve cities
and four local businesses as our benchmark employers. These included: Boerne,
Cedar Hill, Cleburne, Ennis, Fredericksburg, Georgetown, New Braunfels, San
Marcos, Schertz, Seguin, Watauga, Weatherford, KPUB, Kerrville State Hospital,
Schreiner University, and Huser Construction. The following was the
recommended action from the study:

1. Bring salary structure in line with a mid-market position (50" percentile).

2. Make annual adjustments to all salary schedules based on the most recent
Employment Cost Index (ECI).

3. Develop a system for moving general government employees through pay
ranges. Public safety employees are set up as step plans with tenure-based
movement through the steps.

4. Benefits recommendations included:

a. Make dependent health insurance more affordable for employees.

b. Add three to four holidays per year to reach the market average of 11.6.

c. Add certification pay for water and wastewater certification/license
renewals.

d. Allow accrual and carryover of sick leave up to a reasonable maximum
accumulation.

e. Consider implementing a tuition reimbursement program.




Based upon these recommendations we have implemented the following:

¢ We conduct annual salary surveys with our benchmark employers.

e We consider the ECI and if appropriate, recommend an adjustment to the
salary schedules.

e We implemented a merit increase program for general government
employees to allow them to move through the pay ranges.

¢ We have made dependent coverage very affordable for our employees.

¢ We added two employee holidays to our schedule for a total of ten paid
holidays.

e We are currently working on a formal certification pay plan for
water/wastewater and other departments.

e We implemented a tuition reimbursement program for employees.

Council approved a 2% general government ($22K) and step plan ($140K)
adjustment for FY10. This provided a pay increase for 38 general government
employees and all of the employees on the step plans in the police and fire
departments. No COLA was given to the other general government employees
for FY10 because the CPI/ECI did not warrant a COLA. Because employees in
police and fire are on step plans, they automatically receive a pay increase based
on tenure not the CPI/ECI.

We advised Council that because we would not propose a COLA, we would
recommend rewarding the general government employees with a mid-year (April
2010) merit increase ($130K General Fund) based upon their performance.
Council agreed and this amount was included in the base budget for FY10. We
also budgeted $24K for potential internal equity, 20+ year fire compression
adjustments, and police dispatcher market adjustments.

To date, we have saved $120K due to position vacancies and due to turnover
and internal job changes, we estimate the general government merit increases
(based on an average of 3.5%) to cost $80,600 providing a budget savings of
$49,400.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Consideration of potential future agenda item based upon Council direction.




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
SUBJECT: Discuss status of application process for appointment to technical trade
boards

FOR AGENDA OF: 1-26-10 DATE SUBMITTED: 1-19-10

SUBMITTED BY: Kevin Coleman O—CLEARANCES: Kristine Ondrias )‘@/
Director of Development Services Assistant City Manager

EXHIBITS: Board Lists
List of potential applicants approached by staff

AGENDA MAILED TO:
APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER:

Expenditure Current Balance Amount " Account
Required: in Account: Budgeted: Number:
$ $ $

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO:
REVIEWED BY THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE:

SUMMARY STATEMENT

Staff would like to discuss the issue of vacancies on the technical trade boards as
follows:
Building Board of Adjustment and Appeals:

One (1) vacant alternate position to expire 5-31-2010

One (1) vacant alternate position to expire 5-31-2011

Three (3) regular positions will expire 5-31-2010: James Maxwell, Joe Rogers, and

Glinn White; only one (1) current member is eligible for reappointment

One application on file: Granger MacDonald.

Electrical Board of Adjustments and Appeals:
One (1) vacant alternate position expired 1-1-2010
One (1) vacant alternate position to expire 1-1-2011
Three (3) regular positions expired on 1-1-2010: Kenneth Bledsoe, Keith Harmon,
and Robert Thomas; all are eligible for reappointment

No applications on file.

Mechanical Board of Adjustments and Appeals:
One (1) vacant alternate position to expire 9-13-2010
One (1) vacant alternate position to expire 9-13-2011
One (1) regular position expired 9-13-2009: Lee Underwood (eligible for reappointment)
One (1) regular position vacant; due to expire 9-13-2010: Willard Amann (deceased)

One application on file: Lee Underwood.




Plumbing Board of Adjustments and Appeals:
One (1) vacant alternate position to expire 12-31-2010
One (1) vacant alternate position to expire 13-31-2011
Three (3) regular positions expired on 12-31-2009: Charles Tremper, Daniel
Lowery, and Don Nowlin (all are eligible for reappointment)

One application on file: Dwayne Downey.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Staff will present the following options for discussion and request direction from council:

1. Councilmembers personally contact potential applicants and invite them to submit
an application.

2. Council instruct staff to amend the board rules and procedures to allow persons to
serve on multiple technical trade boards.

3. Council instruct staff to prepare an amendment to the ordinance removing term
limits on the building board of adjustment and appeals.




BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT AND APPEALS (Building Code)

Orig. Re-Appt. Exp.
Telephone Appt. Date Date
** INCE, SCOT W. 896-7979 (O) 06-23-09 05-31-11
1801 Foothills 895-2016 (H)
PO Box 178, Harper, TX
Building Contractor
*** LUCK, CALVIN 792-6955 (H) 06-23-09 05-31-11
1200 Spur 100 896-9333 (O)
Construction Industry
*  MAXWELL, JAMES C. 895-2630 (H) 05-27-08 05-31-10
Chair 895-0032 (O)
911 Panorama Dr.
Engineer
****ROGERS, JOE MERCER 792-5114(H) 06-27-06 05-27-08 05-31-10

1015 Jackson Road
Member at large from the public

*** WHITE, GLINN

257-7477 (O) 06-27-06 05-27-08 05-31-10

P.O. Box 290948 896-9661 (H)
General Contractor 739-3060 (C)

ALTERNATES:

VACANT

VACANT

CITY STAFF:
Jeff Finley

05-31-10

05-31-11

792-8356 (O)

Chief Building Official

Qualifications:

Shall be composed of:

x*

Architect or professional engineer licensed to practice in the state of Texas;

Yed

one member who is active in the construction industry;

Kk

two contractors currently licensed to obtain building permits in the city; and

**** one member at large from the public not presently in the construction industry
in any manner,

e alternates shall meet the qualification provisions applicable to regular member
as stated within 1-3 above.

However, if the city council determines that there is no licensed architect or
professional engineer available to serve, then a second citizen at large shall be
selected. Except for the at-large members, all members must be residents of Kerr
County, Texas, and operate or be empioyed by a building contractor business
located within the city; however, no two members may be employed by or have an
ownership interest in the same business or firm. The at-large members must be
qualified voters of the city. :




Powers and Duties:

(1) To hearand decide appeals of orders, decisions, or determinations made by the
Building Official relative to the application and interpretation of the IBC and IRC.

(2) To grant variances to the requirements of the IBC and the IRC.

(3) To suspend or revoke licenses in accordance with the provisions of this
ordinance.

(4) To recommend amendments to this ordinance.

Jurisdiction Regarding Other Codes:

Term of Office:

Quorum:
Number of Members:
Officers:

Meeting Time & Place:

Absences:

Established by:

Revised:

The board shall not have the jurisdiction to hear administrative appeals or to grant
variances under the jurisdiction of: Supervisory Board of Electricians, Plumbing
Appeals and Advisory Board; or the Mechanical Board of Adjustment and Appeals.

Two years; no more than two consecutive full terms without at least one full year off
the board.

Three members
Five
Shall be chairperson and vice-chairperson, appointed by the members from its

voting members; shall be appointed at the first meeting after January 1; shall serve a
one-year term; shall not serve more than two consecutive terms.

At the call of the chair, City Hall

Any member missing three, or 25%, of the duly called meetings during any period of
12 consecutive months for any reason other than a medical reason, shall have his
membership reviewed by the Board. The board may recommend to the council that
such member be removed from office.

Ordinance No. 2002-06 (replaced in its entirety), amended by Ordinance No. 2009-07
and 2009-22 Code of Ordinances; Chapter 26 - Article |l - Section 26-33

January 20, 2010




ELECTRICAL BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS

Orig. Re-Appt. Exp.
Telephone Appt. Date Date
BLEDSOE, KENNETH 896-8845 (O) 01-13-09 01-01-10
P.O. Box 290845 377-8300 (H)
Master Electrician
FLOWERS, JOHN 895-2148 (O) 01-09-07 01-13-09 01-01-11
213 Oak Lane South 896-0456 (H)
Master Electrician
HARMON, KEITH A. 896-9333 (0O) 09-14-04 06-24-08 01-01-10
P.O. Box 2156 377-3727 (H)
Master Electrician
PRIOUR, JOHN 792-59000(0) 07-12-05 01-13-09 01-01-11
P. O. Box 797, Ingram
Master Electrician
THOMAS, ROBERT 896-1233 (0O) 01-13-09 01-01-10
1220 Water Street 257-5681 (H)
Electrical Contractor
ALTERNANTES:
VACANT 01-01-10
VACANT 01-01-11
CITY STAFF:
Jeff Finley 792-8356 (0O)

Chief Building Official

Qualifications:

896-0517 (F)

Three licensed and active unrestricted master electricians, one active and

Powers and Duties:

licensed unrestricted journeyman electrician and one registered electrical
engineer, all of whom shall live in Kerr County, and be residents of the city of
Kerrville, or operate a business within the city. Should there not be an electrical
engineer available to serve, then the city council shall appoint either an
unrestricted journeyman or an unrestricted master electrician. If, however, such
engineer is available at the time a vacancy next occurs, then he shall be
appointed to such vacancy. No two members of the board shall be members of
the same firm (Ordinance No. 1986-06). Alternates shall be required to have the
same qualifications as a regular member.

To adopt rules and regulations for the conduct of its business; to authorize
issuance of license required by the electrical code; to suspend licenses subject to
the provisions of the electrical code; and to suggest changes and variations of the
electrical code.

Term of Office: Two years
Quorum: Three
Number of Members: Five

Meeting Time & Place: At the call of the chair, city hall




Absences:

Established by:

Revised:

Any member having three consecutive unexcused absences shall have his
membership reviewed by the board. By majority vote, the board may recommend
to the council that such member be removed from office. The council may then
act upon such recommendation and either remove or retain such member.

Ordinance No. 1967-6, amended by Ordinance Nos. 1987-24, 2003-31 and 2009-
20 Code of Ordinances: Chapter 26 - Article 1ll - Section 26-66

January 20, 2010




MECHANICAL BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS

Orig. Re-Appt. Exp.
Telephone Appt. Date Date
Kampfhenkel, Donald 257-4303 (0) 09-13-94 09-23-08 09-13-10
Chair 895-4238 (H)
"A" licensed contractor 257-4309 (F)
2009 Lime Creek
Underwood, Lee 896-4083 (O) 09-13-94 09-25-07 09-13-09
Vice-Chair 896-6926 (H)
"B" licensed contractor
P.O. Box 293957
Amann, Willard 09-13-10
Registered engineer
Land, Regan Phillip 792-3993 (0) 04-14-09 09-13-11
Member-at-large/public 896-8871 (H)
164 Aqua Vista Dr.
Van Patten, James 895-5849 (0) 01-09-07 09-23-08 09-13-10
“B” licensed contractor 895-0021 (H)
330 Scenic Valley Rd.
ALTERNATES:
VACANT 09-13-10
VACANT 09-13-11
CITY STAFF:
Jeff Finley 792-8356 (O)

Chief Building Official

Qualifications:

Shall be composed of a registered engineer, one licensed air-conditioning

Powers and Duties:

Term of Office:

Quorum:

Number of Members:
Meeting Time & Place:

Absences:

contractor having a State of Texas class "A" license, two licensed air-conditioning
contractors having a State of Texas class "B" license, and one member-at-large
from the public. Should there not be an engineer available to serve, the board
shall add a second member-at-large from the public.

The board shall have the power to hear appeals of decisions and interpretations
of the building official and consider variances of the technical codes.

Two years

Three Members

Five

At the call of the Chair, City Hall

Any member having three consecutive unexcused absences shall have his
membership reviewed by the Board. By majority vote, the Board may
recommend to the Council that such member be removed from office. The
Council may then act upon such recommendation and either remove or retain
such member.

17



Established by:

Revised:

Ordinance No. 94-18; amended by Ordinance Nos. 95-15, 2003-32 (in its

entirety), 2008-13 (in its entirety)
Code of Ordinances: Chapter 26 — Article V — Section 26-171(B)(2)(a) through (h)

January 20, 2010
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PLUMBING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS

Orig. Re-Appt. Exp.
Telephone Appt. Date Date
HOLLOWAY, STEVE 896-0890 (O/F) 09-25-07 12-09-08 12-31-10

PO 294454

377-4734 (H)

Kerrville, TX 78029

Master Plumber

BRYANT, JOHNNY
404 Sierra Road
Master Plumber

LEE 377-0032 (O) 08-11-98  12-09-08  12-31-10
367-4765 (H)

TEMPER, CHARLES 739-4194 (O) 01-08-08 12-31-09

702 Fay Drive
Master Plumber

LOWERY, DANIEL
512 Elm St.
Master Plumber

NOWLIN, DON

896-1804 (H) 01-13-04 01-08-08 12-31-09

739-8714 (O) 01-13-04 01-08-08 12-31-09

1201 Donna Kay

Master Plumber

ALTERNATES:

VACANT

VACANT

CITY STAFF:
Jeff Finley

12-31-10

12-31-11

792-8356 (O)

Chief Building Official
800 Junction Highway

Qualifications:

Powers and Duties:

Three licensed and active unrestricted master plumbers, one active and licensed
unrestricted journeyman plumber, and one registered engineer, all of whom shall live in
Kerr County, and be residents of the city of Kerrville, or operate a business within the
city. Should there not be a registered engineer available to serve, then the city council
shall appoint either an unrestricted journeyman or an unrestricted master plumber. If,
however, such engineer is available at the time a vacancy next occurs, then he shall be
appointed to such vacancy. No two members of the board shall be members of the
same firm (Ordinance No. 86-06).

Whenever the plumbing official shall reject or refuse to approve the mode or manner of
plumbing work proposed to be followed or materials to be used in the installation or
alteration of a plumbing system, or when it is claimed that the provisions of this code do
not apply, or that any equally good or more desirable form of installation can be
employed in any specific case, or when it is claimed that the true intent and meaning of
the plumbing code or any of the regulations there under have been misconstrued or
wrongly interpreted, the owner of such building may appea! from the decision of the
pluming official to the board. The board, when so appealed to and after a hearing, may
vary the application of any provision of the plumbing code to any particular case when, in

21



Term of Office:
Quorum:

Number of Members:
Meeting Time & Place:
Absences:

Established by:

Revised:

its opinion, the enforcement thereof would do manifest injustice, and would be contrary
to the spirit and purpose of this Code or public interest, or when, in its opinion the
interpretation of the plumbing official should be modified or reversed (Sect. 105.2.1,
1985 Edition of Plumbing Code).

Two Years

Three

Five

First Thursday of each month, City Hall

Any member having three consecutive unexcused absences shall have his membership
reviewed by the board. By majority vote, the board may recommend to the council that
such member be removed from office. The council may then act upon such
recommendation and either remove or retain such member. (Ordinance No. 87-24)

Ordinance No. 67-5; amended by Ordinance Nos. 81-8 (in its entirety), 2003-03 (in its

entirety)
Code of Ordinances: Chapter 26 — Article IV — Sections 26-121(B)(2)(a) through (c)

January 20, 2010
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Trade Board Applications
List of Potential Candidates Approached by City Staff

December, 2009

Over the past month or so, Building Inspections staff has provided a committee
application to the following individuals, asking them to consider serving on one of
the City’s technical trade boards:

Building Board:

Electrical Board:

Plumbing Board:

Mechanical Board

Art Leonard - Integrity Homes — 257-6415

Mick Freed — Freed and Barker Concrete — 377-2666
Ken Chambers — Self Employed — 895-0042

John Flowers — Guadalupe Electric — 895-2149
(already on the board but knew an interested party)
Jeremy Itz - JayDee’s Electric — 896-0123

Keith Harmon — Hill Country Concepts — 377-3727
(already on the board but knew an interested party)
Chris Clark Clark Plumbing — 285-1468

Dwayne Downey - Whelan Plumbing
(Application on file)

C and F Company — contact Steve Flores — 257-7181
(two of their licensed guy were interested and were
going to decided who might apply)

In addition the department has handed out the board application to members of
the DSCAT Committee, the Building Board, and the Electrical Board at their most
recent meetings. Contact information on the membership of these groups is

attached.




Barron, S

stuart.barron@kerrvilletx.gov

Brinkman, Carl Harvey
Harvey Brinkman Commercial Real Estate
821-A Earl Garrett St.

Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 896-8888

Bus Fax: (830) 896-8865

E-mail: hbrink@ktc.com

Browning, Gord

800 Junction Hwy.
Kerrville, TX. 7

: (830) 896-0517
gordon.browning@kerrvilletx.gov

Carroll, Jeff

Matkin-Hoover Engineering, Inc.

8 Spence Road

Boerne, TX. 78006

Bus: (830) 249-0600

Bus Fax: (830) 249-0099

E-mail: jcarroll@matkinhoover.com

- : 2 -
Coleman, Kevi

(830) 896-0517
ail:  kevin.coleman@kerrvilletx.gov

Conklin, Carson

JM Lowe & Company

720 Earl Garrett Street

Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 895-5202

Bus Fax: (830) 895-5204

E-mail: cconklin@jmlowecompany.com
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Diggs, Charlie

Guadalupe Survey

217-A W. Water St.

Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 895-1808

Bus Fax: (830) 896-3534

E-mail: charlie@guadalupeonline.com

Dunlanp, P

Bus: (830Q
E-mail~"Pat.Dunlap@kerrvilletx.gov

Regina Rodriguez

S s s ———

Finely, J
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Bus: (830
E-mail+~~Charlie.Hastings@Kerrvilletx.gov

Huser, Steve

Huser Construction

410 Cotton Gin Lae

Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 257-8588

Bus Fax: (830) 257-8589
E-mail: shuser@huserco.com

Hyde, Trevor

Comanche Trace Realty
2801 Comanche Trace Dr.
Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 895-8505

- A i e D e e

Bus Fax: (830) 895-8506

E-mail: thyde@comanchetrace.com
Irvin, Rob

Re/Max

1835 Sidney Baker St.
Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 895-7771
Mobile: (830) 377-6577
Bus Fax: (830) 895-7772
E-mail: info@RobIrvin.com

Ives, Amy

Environmental He
800 Junction
Kerrville,

(830) 896-0517
amy.ives@kerrvilletx.gov

1/21/2010 15:39



Jackson, David L.

David L. Jackson, Atty. at Law
820 Main St., Ste #100
Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 896-3811

Bus Fax: (830) 257-6119
E-mail: djackson@ktc.com

Lenard, Art

Ideal Homes, A Division of Intefrity Home
P.O. Box 291697

Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 257-6415

Mobile: (830) 739-6415

Bus Fax: (830) 257-3416

E-mail: apl@integritygrouptexas.com

Lewis, Peter

Peter Lewis Architect & Associates
334 W. Water St.

Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 896-4220

Bus Fax: (830) 896-4220

E-mail: peter@pwilarchitect.com

Lowe, Mike

JM Lowe & Company

720 Earl Garrett

Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 895-5202
Bus Fax: (830) 895-5204
E-mail: jmlowe@ktc.com

MacDonald, Justin

MacDonald & Associates

2951 Fall Creek Road

Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 257-5323

Bus Fax: (830) 257-3168

E-mail: tjmacdonald@macdonald-companies.com

Machann, Dwaine, Atty. at Law

Dwaine Machann, Atty. at Law

222 Sidney Baker St., Suite 436
Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 895-3950

Bus Fax: (830) 895-5200

E-mail: dmachann@machannlaw.com

Regina Rodriguez

Martin, David

A3 Studio

343 W. Water St.

Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 895-1313

Bus Fax: (830) 895-4744
E-mail: david@a3studiotx.com

Maxwell, Jim
Maxwell Engineering

911 Panorama Dr.
Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 895-0032
Bus Fax: 830950033
E-mail: maxeng@ktc.com

= T TR T e

McKeon, Tom

L. Duff Enterprises, Inc.
301 La Casa Drive
Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 257-2454
Bus Fax: (830) 257-1097
E-mail: Ideinc@ktc.com
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Ondrias, Kris

800 Junction
Kerrville,
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Richards, Greg

Patillo, Richards & Harpoid
280 Thompson Dr.
Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 257-8080

Bus Fax: (830) 896-8489
E-mail: greg@prhlaw.com

Stone, Mark

903 Tanglewood Lane
Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 896-4678
Mobile: (830) 739-2100
E-mail: karstone@ktc.com

Stracke, Bruce
Integrity Homes

1008 Sidney Baker So.
Kerrville, TX. 78028
Bus: (830) 257-6415

Bus Fax: (830) 257-6415
E-mail; bstracke@integritygrouptexas.com

1/21/2010 15:39



Terrell Miller, P. E.

Coyle Engineering, Inc.

9120 Dietz Elkhorn Rd.

Fair Oaks Ranch, TX, 78015-4904

Bus: (830) 755-8434

Bus Fax: (830) 755-8435

E-mail: terrelimiller@coyleengineering.com

W PREe #t e

Voelkel, Lee

Voelkel Engineering & Surveying, PLCC
212 Clay Street

Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 257-3313

Bus Fax: (830) 257-3377

E-mail: lee@kerrcountysurveyor.com

Wellborn,

Zuber, Rustin

Zuber Construction

616 Clay Street

Kerrville, TX. 78028

Bus: (830) 895-2829

Bus Fax: (830) 895-1673

E-mail: rzuber@zuberconstruction.com

Regina Rodriguez 3 1/21/2010 15:39



TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
SUBJECT: Receive an update and consider an official statement of the City of
Kerrville regarding the Homeless Veteran’s Housing Program being
established in the City of Kerrville.

FOR AGENDA OF: 1-26-10 DATE SUBMITTED: 1-22-10
SUBMITTED BY: Todd Parton CLEARANCES: Todd Parton

City Manager City Manager
EXHIBITS:

KEDF email dated January 21, 2010

Draft letter from Mr. Pat Murray, CEO of Peterson Regional Medical Center
dated January 20, 2010

Email from Jody Grinstead, Kerr County Commissioner’s Court Coordinator
dated January 21, 2010

AGENDA MAILED TO:

APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER:

Expenditure Current Balance Amount Account
Required: in Account: Budgeted: Number:
TBD TBD TBD

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: TBD
REVIEWED BY THE FINANCE DEPARTMENT: NA

SUMMARY STATEMENT
A program designed to serve the needs of homeless veterans is underway in the
City of Kerrville. Approximately 5 acres of the Veteran’s Administration Hospital
is proposed for the construction of facilities to house displaced or homeless
veterans from the Iraq and Afghanistan deployments. An RFP was posted for the
construction of the facilities and two responses are now under consideration.

A public hearing was held in July 2009 to gather public input. This meeting was
not widely advertised and was lightly attended.

Due to a lack of information regarding this program and the construction project,
the Chamber of Commerce and KEDF have spearheaded an effort to gather
specific information regarding the program and its potential impact on the
community. Those efforts have been unsuccessful and no additional information
has been forthcoming.




With the pending award of the RFP and due to the lack of information,
Congressman Lamar Smith has requested that each of the stakeholders provide
an official position statement regarding the project. Attached are several letters
and emails that provide some background information.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Establish an official position and direct the city manager to forward that statement
to Congressman Lamar Smith.
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Todd Parton

From: Kerr [information@kerredf.org]

Sent: Thursday, January 21, 2010 9:30 AM

To: Dan Troxell; Todd Parton; Mayor; ‘Brian Bondy'; 'Pat Murray'; Pat Tinley
Subject: KEDF Information: RE: Homeless Veterans Housing Project

Economic Friends,

Good morning to everyone. Yesterday you received an email from Pat Murray
on his concerns and questions regarding the Homeless Veterans Housing Project. This
discussion and questions on the proposed Veterans project were brought to the front
again on what the criteria and impact of this possible project could have on our
community. | did visit Wednesday morning with Congressman Smith’s office in
Washington D.C. on what specifics and details they know about the project and
information was limited. | was requested by the Congressman office to contact key
economic stakeholders in our community about their concerns and questions they have
regarding this V.A. project. You have read comments and concerns from Pat Murray
and Judge Tinley on this project. Please forward your comments or concerns on this
project to your KEDF office. Once everyone has had the opportunity to provide their
input | will forward a letter to the Congressman’s office. They have told me they will
deliver Kerrville stakeholder's comments to our Veterans Administration Department of
Affairs. | will also be visiting tomorrow with Robin at the VA on several other topics and
we will discuss this particular issue as well.

Again our community is very blessed to have a wonderful V.A. facility and we
support every effort to help our veterans but as a community we need to be informed
clearly on the criteria and impact it could have on our community. Please respond with
your comments ASAP so we may proceed with our letter to D.C. Have a great day!

Thanks

Guy Overby
www.kerredf.org
information@kerredf.org
830-896-1157
FAX830-896-1175

1/21/2010




Homeless Veteran’s Housing Program — Kerrville January 20, 2010

In late 2009 I heard limited discussion about the possibility of establishing a “homeless
veteran’s housing program” in Kerrville, on the site/property of the Kerrville VA
Hospital. Vague details were presented, implying use of approximately 5 acres of
property; contracting for private construction and operation of facilities to house
“homeless veterans” from recent Iraq and Afghanistan deployments. I believe that a
“public hearing” was held on the grounds of the local VA hospital, with VERY short
notice to area citizens; thus there was very poor turnout.

On Tuesday, January 19, 2010 I heard a verbal presentation from a VA official stating
Kerrville has been selected for the site of a homeless veteran’s housing program, a RFP
had been solicited and two responses to the RFP were being con51dered This left me with
the impression that this project “is a go”.

My questions are:

1) What is the project?

2) How many veterans will be housed?

3) What are the criteria for resident selection?

4) What support services (mental health care, social work, drug/alcohol counseling)
will be offered by the Department of Veterans Affairs and what services will be
expected of the community?

5) Will community input — specifically City, County, local economic development
partners and related businesses be sought prior to finalizing a decision for
development of the project?

6) Is this project consistent with local economic development priorities?

7) Will this project benefit or detract from the supply of local workforce?

8) Will this project benefit or detract from the supply of local housing?

9) Will this project benefit or detract from the local “quality of life”?

10)Is there another project like this that can be assessed for community impact?

It is difficult to develop an informed opinion without answers to these questions — and
perhaps others. My uninformed opinion is that this project is NOT in the best interests of
the Kerrville economy — that it has the potential to detract rather than add to our
community. While additional employment is “nice”, and the new construction would
bring short term benefit to a contractor, I believe our economic development efforts will
be FAR better served pursuing an entity that will add to our local, state and federal tax
base. In my view we are already “out of balance” with a disproportionate number of
private non-profit/tax exempt, and federal, state, local government entities/employers.

Patrick Murray, CEO
Peterson Regional Medical Center
Kerrville, TX
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Todd Parton

From: Jody Grinstead [jgrinstead@co.kerr.tx.us]
Sent:  Thursday, January 21, 2010 8:13 AM

To: 'Pat Murray"; 'Kerr'

Cc: 'Dan Troxell'; 'Pat Tiniey'; Mayor; Todd Parton; 'Robin Gutierrez', '‘Brian Bondy'
Subject: RE: Homeless Veterans Housing Project

To all:

Judge Tinley has the following additional questions:

1. Will the housing be for veterans only — or will dependents (spouses, children, extended family, etc.)
also be eligible for housing?

2. For support or social services which are not provided directly by the VA, will the VA or other
Federal agency or program provide or otherwise be financially responsible for the providing of such
services?

Thank you!

Jody Grinstead

Kerr County

Commissioners' Court Coordinator
700 Main Street, Ste. 101
Kerrville, TX 78028

(830) 792-2211

From: Pat Murray [mailto: pmurray@petersonrmc.com]

Sent: Wednesday, January 20, 2010 3:28 PM

To: Kerr

Cc: Dan Troxell; Pat Tinley; Todd Bock; todd.parton@kerrvilletx.gov; Robin Gutierrez; Brian Bondy
Subject: Homeless Veterans Housing Project

Good afternoon Guy — To follow up on our discussion this moming | have attached a few comments and
questions related to the proposed “homeless veteran’s housing project”. As | told you — and shared with
Robin yesterday afternoon — | was very surprised to hear that this project is moving forward without more
formal vetting and local public input.

Recognizing that by verbalizing my concerns and questions some may conclude that | don’t support local
economic development; | believe that you and others know that | am extremely interested in growth. | just
do not believe that this project is right for Kerrville at this point in time. Without further discussion or
hearing a response to my questions, | will urge the City of Kerrville, Kerr County, the Kerr Economic
Development Foundation and the Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors to express opposition to this
project.

Thanks for the work that each of you do to make Kerrville a great place to live and work.

Patrick Murray, FACHE

CEO

Peterson Regional Medical Center
551 Hill Country Drive

Kerrville, TX 78028

Phone: 830.258.7728
Fax: 830.258.7574

Notice: This communication, including attachments, is for the sole use of the intended recipient and may contain information that is confidential and
privileged. The unauthorized use, dissemination, distribution, or reproduction of this e-mail, including attachments, is prohibited and may be untawful. it
constitutes non-public information intended to be conveyed only to the designated recipient(s). If the reader or recipient of this communication is not the
intended recipient or an employee or agent of the intended recipient who is responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, or if you believe that
you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately by return e-mail and promptly delete this e-mail, including

1/22/2010
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attachments, without reading or saving them in any manner. Recelpt by anyone other than the intended reclpient(s) is not a waiver of any privilege.

1/22/2010




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
SUBJECT: Update from Staff on Library Renovation Project

FOR AGENDA OF: January 26, 2010 DATE SUBMITTED: January 14, 2010

SUBMITTED BY: Antonio Martinez CLEARANCES: Kimberly Meismer
Library Director Director of General Operatio v

EXHIBITS:

AGENDA MAILED TO:

APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER: W

Expenditure Current Balance Amount Account
Required: in Account: Budgeted: Number:
$ $ $

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO:

REVIEWED BY THE FINANCE DEPARTMENT:

SUMMARY STATEMENT

The following is an update on activities involving the renovation of the Butt-Holdsworth
Memorial Library.

e January 7" - staff attended a meeting of the Steering Committee for the library
renovation project.

e There will be four phases to the project:

» Phase 1 - Necessary demolition or removal of 433 Water St. buildings and
Carriage House, relocation of Friends, and site work (including grading,
retaining walls, parking, walks, and lighting).

» Phase 2 — Begin renovation of main building. Changes to the main building
will increase usable space by approximately 15%.

» Phase 3 & 4- Renovation of History Center, river bank improvements and
landscaping.

» Total project cost is estimated at $6 million, minus the river bank work.

e There is approximately $56K available for clean up of the 433 Water Street site.
The City has heard from two potential buyers for the buildings. Proposals deadline
was January 15".

e The Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block Grant (EECBG) application was
submitted by the deadline of January 15", The total grant is $86,325 and will be
used to replace the library roof. The renovation project architect assisted in
completion of the grant application and therefore is aware of this project assistance.

e The Friends of the Library have committed $200,000 towards the construction of a
Friend’s facility at the current location of the Carriage House.




During the Steering Committee meeting, HEB representatives reported that the
scope of the Library Foundation has changed to serve libraries in Kerr County, and
not just the Butt-Holdsworth Memorial Library. They requested names of persons
who could serve on the Foundation’s establishment and governing boards.

¢ A meeting was held between City staff and HEB representatives on January 15" to
provide further updates and to discuss project management. Peter Lewis and Bill
Reynolds, HEB, will begin working on a narrative to include a timeline, strategic
plan, and funding needs and sources. This group will meet again on January 20"

RECOMMENDED ACTION

This information is provided for discussion only. No action is recommended at this time.




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
SUBJECT: Keep Kerrville Beautiful

FOR AGENDA OF: January 26, 2010 DATE SUBMITTED: January 18, 2010

SUBMITTED BY: Counciimember Keeble CLEARANCES:

EXHIBITS:
AGENDA MAILED TO:
APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER: a/
Expenditure Current Balance Amount /" Account
Required: in Account: Budgeted: Number:
$ $ $
PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO:
REVIEWED BY THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE:

SUMMARY STATEMENT

Councilmember Keeble and Aquatics/Special Events Supervisor Ashlea Boyle attended
the Keep Texas Beautiful training on January 13th and14th in San Antonio. This training
presented Kerrville with the information needed to start the program. Kerrville is now
considered a provisional affiliate and will be required to complete nine steps listed below of
the affiliate process.

1) Review the training manual

2) Determine the organizational structure and board membership

3) Prepare a mission statement

4) Prepare bylaws, organization guidelines, ordinance, or resolution of the organization
5) Get the facts about your community (needs and assessment evaluations)

6) Prioritize the projects to be accomplished in the first year

7) Establish a budget

8) Develop lists of community/volunteer organizations and media including any place
information may be shared to assist in accomplishing goals

9) Send Keep Texas Beautiful copies of Kerrville’s bylaws, ordinance/resolution,
board/committee member list.

In determining the makeup of the board, the initial thought is to include one representative
from the following: KISD, UGRA, TPWD, Master Naturalists, Main Street, Recycling
Department, and the County.

Once Kerrville becomes an affiliate, we will have to do at least one event per year and
attend one training per year.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Update only. No action needed at this time.




TO BE CONSIDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS
SUBJECT: Provide direction to city staff regarding public affairs programming for
the City of Kerrville.

FOR AGENDA OF: 1-26-10 DATE SUBMITTED: 1-22-10
SUBMITTED BY: Todd Parton CLEARANCES: Todd Parton ./ M
City Manager City Manager
EXHIBITS:
None
AGENDA MAILED TO:
APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER:
Expenditure Current Balance Amount Account
Required: in Account: Budgeted: Number:
TBD TBD TBD

PAYMENT TO BE MADE TO: TBD
REVIEWED BY THE FINANCE DEPARTMENT: NA

SUMMARY STATEMENT
City staff is requesting direction from the City Council regarding public affairs
programming. Several members of the council have mentioned a desire to
improve the city’s public affairs efforts at several meetings over the past several
months.

Pursuant to direction by the City Council, staff will bring back recommendations
for public affairs programming at the regular City Council meeting of February 9,
2010.

RECOMMENDED ACTION
No recommendation is provided at this time.




BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF KERRVILLE, TEXAS

SUBJECT: Appointments to the Main Street Advisory Board
FOR AGENDA OF: January 19, 2010 DATE SUBMITTED: January 19, 2010

SUBMITTED BY: Brenda Craig /‘2)0 CLEARANCES:
City Secretary

EXHIBITS: Board List
AGENDA MAILED TO:

APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL BY CITY MANAGER: W

SUMMARY STATEMENT

Consider appointments to the following board:

Main Street Advisory Board: Four terms expire January 31, 2010: Kyle Bond, Becky
Coons, Wes Dorman, and Peter Lewis.

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Consider appointments.




MAIN STREET ADVISORY BOARD

SLETTEN, MATT
Chairman

Orig. Re-Appt. Exp.
Telephone Appt. Date Date
257-5151 (O) 02-13-07 01-27-09 01-31-11
895-1898 (H)

710 Rim Rock Rd

BOND, KYLE ALAN

Vice-Chairman
419 East Lane

257-8233 (0) 01-22-08 01-31-10
459-0566 (H)

CARR, PENNI 896-5569 (O) 01-27-09 01-31-11
202 Riverhill Blvd. 896-0059 (H)
COONS, BECKY 895-2265 (O) 01-22-08 01-31-10

131 Sandy Lane

257-8873 (H)

DORMAN, WES 896-3850 (O) 01-24-06 01-22-08 01-31-10
218 Quinlan #511 257-7758 (H)

FRY, LEE 367-7109 (H) 01-27-09 01-31-11
120 Victoria Drive

LEWIS, PETER 896-4220 (O) 01-22-08 01-31-10
334 W. Water St. 896-1707 (H)

PETERSON, THOMAS 285-2374 (0O) 02-13-07 01-27-09 01-31-11

320 overland Trail W.
Hunt, Texas 78024-3097

SCHNEIDER, MELISSA 896-2476 (H) 06-14-05 01-27-09 01-31-11

300 Ridge Road

COUNCIL LIAISON:
Scott Gross

2908 Dry Hollow

PO Box 291277

CITY STAFF:
Mindy Wendele

792-5555 (O)
210-363-1144 (C)

792-8343 (O)

715 Water Street

Powers and Duties:

Term of Office:
Quorum:

Number of Members:
Absences:

Meeting Time & Place:
Established by:

Revised:

To encourage participation in the Main Street Revitalization Program; to establish
goals and priorities for the Main Street Program; to review design
appropriateness for the purpose of participation in the main street low-interest
loan program and incentive grant projects; and to advise and support the main
street program manager.

Two years with a maximum of two full successive terms (Bylaws)

Five members

Nine

Any member who misses three consecutive meetings may be replaced (Bylaws)
Fourth Thursday at noon, 715 Water Street

Resolution No. 1994-133

June 1, 2009
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